
1999 HOUSE APPROPRIATI"ONS . 

HB 1016 



1999 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. HOUSE BILL 1016 

House Appropriations Committee 

D Conference Committee 

Hearing Date January 7, 1999 

Tape Number Side A Side B Meter # 
One HB 1016 Elaine Little Tim Schuetzle 0.00 to 50.9 both side 
TWO HB 1016 Warren Emmer 0.7-30.9 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Minutes: 

Chairman Dalrymple called the meeting to order with all committee members present. 

( # 1 A: 1. 7) Elaine Little, Director of Corrections and Rehabilitation presented information 
regarding the analysis of the inmate growth and the $21.6 million general fund increase. 
Director Little gave a detailed explanation of the 1997-99 deficiency appropriation request. 
(Note attached testimony.) 

(#1 A:40.1) Chairman Dalrymple inquired as to the cost of the Pine Cottage project. Director 
Little stated the bonding portion is $1.4 million and available federal funds is $500,000.00 for a 
total cost of $1.9 million. 

(# 1 A: 51.3) Rep. Monson asked why alternatives to incarceration are so expensive. Should 
there be a saving? Director Little explained that compared to contracting out inmates to other 
facilities, there is actually a savings in using alternative housing to incarceration of about $4. 9 
million and 115 beds a day. 

(#lB: 8.6) Tim Schuetzle, Director of the Prisons Division, explained in detail the reasons 
for the budget request. He addressed the increase in inmate housing costs and the need for 
additional staff. (Note attached testimony.) 

(#1 B: 8.6) Rep. Carlson asked weather the Department of Corrections shares staff with the 
State Hospital. Director Schuetzle said they do share medical staff (not including counselors), 
and maintenance. 

(# 1 B: 27.1) Rep. Hoffner asked whether the budget for contracting out inmates to Appleton 
would increase in the future? Director Schuetzle replied that those facilities have beds available 
and the ability to run the market. The charges will be increasing in the future . 
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(#2A: 0.9) Warren Emmer, Director of the Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation, 
presented information regarding the Field Services Division as the department serves the District 
Court, the Parole and Pardon Advisory Boards, the DOCR, the victims and the Community. 
(Note Attached testimony.) 

(#2A:7.5) Rep. Timm inquired as to whether county facilities reimburse the state for taking 
county inmates. Director Emmer responded that when inmates are sentenced and transferred to 
the state system, the expense belongs to the state. 

(2A:9.2) Rep. Carlson asked if there are duplications of parole services. Director Emmer said 
there is only one set of parole officers in the state. 

(#2A: 11.5) Rep. Aarsvold asked whether or not the department consults risk management 
experts in their planning. Director Little replied that risk management experts are consulted on 
all plans. 

(#2A: 14.5) Director Little invited the committee to tour the facilities so they might see where 
the funds will be spent. The committee was also invited to ride along with parole officers to 
observe the circumstances under which parolees are supervised. 

House Bill 1016 is referred to Appropriation Human Resource Division for hearing 
beginning on January 12, 1999. 
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Minutes: Chairman Jack Dalrymple called the mee g to order with all committee members 

present. 

(# 1 A: 1.7) Elaine Little, Director of Corrections and Rehabilitation presented information 

regarding the analysis of the inmate growth and of the $21.6 million general fund increase. Ms. 

Little gave a detailed explanation of the 1997-99 deficiency appropriation request. (Note attached 

testimony.) 

(# l A:40.1) Chairman Dalrymple inquired as to the cost of the Pine Cottage project. Ms 

Little stated bonding portion is $1.4 million and $500,000 available from the federal program. 

Total of $1. 9 million cost. 

(# lA:45 .3) Representative Svedjan inquired about the status of the department ' s budget at 

the end of this biennium. Ms. Little explained that they will have spent $2,500,000 more than 

they had budgeted . 



• 

• 

• 

Page 2 
House Appropriations Committee 
Bill/Resolution Number 2hb 1016 
Hearing Date January 7, 1999 

(#IA:51.3) Representative Monson asked why alternatives to incarceration are so expensive. 

Should there be a saving? Ms. Little explained that compared to contracting out inmates to other 

facilities , there is actually a savings in using alternatives to incarceration. Saving about 115 beds 

a day totaling about $4.9 million. 

(#1 B:0.8) Tim Schuetzle, Director of the Prisons Division, presented information regarding 

the increase in budget request and explained in detail the reasons for requesting funds. He 

addressed the increase in inmate housing costs and the need for additional staff. (Note attached 

testimony.) 

(#1 B: 8.6) Representative Carlson asked whether the Department of Corrections shares 

staff with the State Hospital. Mr. Schuetzle said that they do share medical staff (not including 

counselors), and maintenance. 

(# lA: 27.1) Representative Hoffner asked whether the budget for contracting out inmates to 

Appleton would cause Appleton to charge more than in the past. Mr. Schuetzle replied that those 

facilities that have beds available have the ability to run the market. The charges will be 

increasing in the future. 

(#2A:0.9) Warren Emmer, Director of the Department of C01Tections and Rehabilitation, 

presented information regarding the Field Services Division as the department serves the District 

Court, the Parole and Pardon Advisory Boards, the DOCR, the Victims and the Community. 

(Note attached testimony.) 

(#2A:7.0) Representative Monson asked if an inmate who has been sent back to prison is 

counted again . Mr. Emmer said that they are counted again . 
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(2A:7.5) Representative Timm inquired as to whether county facilities reimburse state 

facilities for taking county inmates. Mr. Emmer responded that when inmates are sentenced and 

transferred to the state system, the expenses belong to the state. 

(#2A:9.2) Representative Carlson asked if there are duplications of parole services. Mr. 

Emmer said that there is only one set of parole officers in the state. 

Representative Aarsvold asked whether or not the department consults risk management experts 

in their planning. Ms. Little replied that risk management experts are consulted on all plans. 

(#2A: 14.5) Ms. Little invited the Representatives to tour the facilities so that they might see 

firsthand where the funds will be spent. The Representatives were also invited to ride along with 

parole officers to observe the circumstances under which parolees are supervised . 

House Bill 1016 is referred to Appropriations Human Resource Division for hearings 

beginning on January 12, 1999 . 
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HB 1016 -- A bill for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the 
department of corrections and rehabilitation. 

Chairman Svedjan open the hearing with all members present. 

Elaine Little, Director of Corrections, made the opening statement of Bill 1016. 

(Tape 1, A, 1.0) Tim Schuetzle, Prison Division Director, appeared in support of Bill 1016. A 
copy of written testimony is attached. 

(21.1) Rep. Timm commented that the budget has a large increase and wondered if it's going to 
increase even more in the next biennium. Mr. Schuetzle thought it would be very possible. He 
thinks some things could be done now to stop the increase. It is possible they hit a point in the 
projections and that is where they will stay, but considering the statistics from the past five years, 
it will increase. 

(Tape 1, B, 9 .3) Rep. Delzer asked about the cost in hiring a recreational officer to post at front 
gate. Mr. Schuetzle said a recreational officer is 70 thousand plus benefits a biennium. 

( l 0.6) Rep. Delzer asked how they got the money to remodel, and if there was a cost overrun. 
Mr. Schuetzle stated there was cost overrun. The cause was that they couldn't get into the 
building because of the Grand Forks flood , and they were using the building to house inmates . 
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(39.9) Rep. Timm stated that we pay the inmates quit a bit of money and asked why. Mr. 
Schuetzle clarified that they pay inmates that are working $1.35 per day. They use the money to 
buy personal hygiene products. 

(Tape 2, A, 8. 7) Dennis Fracassi (Director of Rough Rider Industry) appeared in support of Bill 
1016. A copy of his testimony attached. 

(21.8) Rep. Timm asked if it is costing money for Rough Rider Industry. Mr. Fracassi stated 
they show an operational loss of 90 thousand dollars for fiscal year end June 97, while there is a 
profit of 144 thousand dollars for fiscal year end 98. Overall , the two year period we show 54 
thousand profit. 

(34.2) Elaine Little (Director of Corrections) appeared in support of Bill 1016. A copy of her 
testimony attached. 

(Tape 2, B, 10.4) Chairman Svedjan asked ifit is a costly thing for Ms. Little ' s department to do 
the training for officers. Ms. Little stated she didn ' t think it was costly when you look at the 
benefit of what is being accomplished through the people . 

BILL 1016 CONTINUED JANUARY 14, 1999 

(Tape 1, A, 38.2) Rep. Delzer asked how much of state funds Adult Services uses . Mr. Warner 
replied they utilize as much as they can in the department of Human Service. 

(45.4) Rep Svedjan asked how much it costs to electronically confine inmates to their houses. 
Mr. Warner replied that the cost is less than $5.00. 

ENDED COMMITTEE HEARING FOR BILL 1016 . 
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A Bill for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the department of 

corrections and rehabilitation. 

Tape 1, A, 10.6 Chairman Svedjan opened committee work on HB 1016. All members 

present. 

10.6 Chairman Svedjan went through sheets on inmate housing. 

16.4 Elaine Little (Director of Corrections) was available to answer questions. 

24.0 Rep. Kerzman asked if it is possible to do more double bunking. Ms. Little states there is 

very little extra double bunking. 
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30.7 Chairman Svedjan asked if their admissions have gone down. Ms. Little states that they 

have. 

35.0 Ms. Little reviewed worksheets that the committee requested. 

Tape 1, B 13.2 Rep Delzer asked how they built the 2.5 million dollar deficiency appropriation 

on inmates. Ms. Little states that a little over a million was contracting out inmates. 

34.1 Karen Borr states that all bill that have construction projects get a emergency clause so 

when the bill is sign they get the funding for the project. 

Tape 2, A, 1.6 Ms. Little explained Attachment #2 from the previous hearing again. 

47.4 Chairman Svedjan asks if anyone monitor cities and counties are doing to see if it fits with 

your program. Ms. Little states that there isn't because it not part of the federal grant. 

Tape 2, B, 8.6 Chairman Svedjan states that most of the treatment from the youth creational 

center require a psychological acessment, why don' t they pay for it. Ms. Little states that it is a 

financial issue. 

61.0 Chairman Svedjan adjourned committee work. 
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A Bill for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the department of 

corrections and rehabilitation. 

Tape 1, A, 0.0 Chairman Svedjan opened the committee work. All members present. 

1.5 Elaine Little was available to answer questions, she had summarized worksheets on the work 

in Wahpeton. 

1.5 Rep. Delzer asked if the 4.8 was actual cost or was that projected. Ms. Little states that it 

was the actual cost, we went back to the emergency commission add the additional amount. 

13.9 Rep. Kerzman asked if they had anyone to verify the bills. Ms. Little states that they do. 

49.6 Chairman Svedjan adjourned the committee work . 
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A Bill for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the department of 

corrections and rehabilitation. 

Tape 1, A, 0.0 Chairman Svedjan opened committee work for HB 1016. All members are 

present. 

2.0 Elaine Little and Bev Johnson (Fiscal Director) were available to answer questions. 

3.0-51.6 Committee members went through the questions that they had from the sheets Ms. 

Little provided. 

Cross reference with January 12 & 13, 1999. 
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A Bill for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the department of 

corrections and rehabilitation. 

0.0 Chairman Svedjan opened committee work HB 1016. All members present. 

2.1 Elaine Little was available for questions that the committee had. 

2.2 Chairman Svedjan asked questions on FTE's. 

31.0 Committee discussed Day Treatment Program. See attached testimony. 

31.8 Committee discussed In Home Project. See attached testimony. 

53.8 Committee discussed Diversified Occupation Program. See attached testimony . 
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Tape 1, B, 9.9 Chairman Svedjan went through analysis sheets. See attached sheets. 

58.0 Committee went through extraordinary repairs. See Legislative Council sheets. 

Tape 2, A, 0.0 Committee went through JRCC's 5 & 6 floors . See Legislative Counci l sheets. 

Tape 2, B, 9-61.3 Committee went through FTE's for JRCC. See Legislative Council sheets. 

Tape 3, A, 14.8 Committee discussed Adult Services and their FTE' s. See Legislative Council 

sheets. 

Tape 3, B, 0.0 Committee discussed Half Way Housing. See testimony attached . 
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Minutes: 

A Bill for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the department of 

corrections and rehabilitation. 

0.0 Chairman Svedjan opened committee work on HB 1016. All members present. 

.2 Joel Morrison (Legislative Council) went through drawn up amendments for HB 1016. 

10.0 Rep Delzer moved to pass amendment 98016.0101 , 2nd Vice Chairman Bernstein. The 

vote was 6 yes, 0 no, 0 absent. 

15.5 Rep Delzer moved to pass HB 1016, 2nd by Vice Chairman Bernstein. The vote was 6 yes, 

0 no, 0 absent. 
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16.0 Chairman Svedjan went through handouts for the Corrections Department. See handouts 

attached. 

19.0 Mr. Tim Dodson explained amendment 98016.0102, that went with the handouts about 

house arrest for DUI instead out going to prison. The amendment will be considered in the 

Senate. 

27.0 Chairman Svedjan adjourned committee work . 
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Chairman Dalrymple opened the discussion on House Bill 1016. 

lA: 2.3 Rep. Svedjan discussed amendment 98016.0101. 

Meter# 
0-53.0 

lA: 25.9 Rep. Svejan made a motion to adopt the amendments. Rep. Bernstein 2nd the motion. 
Discussion on the amendment: 

lA: 30.6 Chairman Dalrymple asked if crime bill funds will still be available if they are not 
used this biennium. Rep. Delzer and Rep. Svedjan replied that they can still technically be used 
for the next biennium. Fmiher responded that there is already a plan in place for the crime money 
which is required so another state cannot use the money. Amount of funds: $1.5 - 2 million. 

lA: 37.0 Rep. Nichols asked on page 5, what the $83 ,000 reduction is for. Rep. Svedjan that it 
is a general 10% reduction for various programs in Juvenile Services. 

lA: 47.7 Chairman Dalrymple asked if the sub-committee was satisfied with the number of 
cells available. Rep. Svedjan replied yes: Dickinson has lost all federal inmates and will have 30 
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beds available. James River Correction Center has another 110 beds. Possibly a private prison 
being built in North Dakota. 

lA: 50.8 On a Voice Vote the amendment was adopted. 

lA: 50.9 Rep. Svedjan moved a DO PASS AS AMENDED. Rep. Bernstein 2nd the motion. 
On a Roll Call Vote the motion carried. 
20 voting Yes 
0 voting No 
0 voting Absent 
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98016.0102 
Title . 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative Svedjan 

February 16, 1999 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1016 

Page 1, line 2, after "rehabilitation" insert"; and to create and enact a new subsection to 
section 39-08-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to inmate placement for 
driving while under the influence" 

Page 2, after line 28, insert: 

"SECTION 4. A new subsection to section 39-08-01 of the North Dakota 
Century Code is created and enacted as follows: 

As used in this section , the term "imprisonment" includes house arrest if 
sentenced to house arrest by the court. In addition, the term includes 
house arrest if a person is committed to the department of corrections and 
rehabilitation, in which case the type of imprisonment is to be determined 
by the director of the department of corrections and rehabilitation." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 98016.0102 
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98016.0101 
Title . 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
House Appropriations - Human Resources 

February 15, 1999 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1016 

Page 1, line 2, after "rehabilitation" insert "; and to amend and reenact subsection 2 of section 
12.1-32-07 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the supervision of 
probationers" 

Page 1 , line 12, replace "878,152" with "865,070" 

Page 1, line 13, replace "118,682" with "115,000" 

Page 1, line 14, replace "26,950" with "20.200" 

Page 1, line 15, replace "1,023,784" with "1,000,270" 

Page 1, line 18, replace "9,764,955" with "9,552,045" 

Page 1, line 19, replace "4,344,374" with "4,229,174" 

Page 1, line 20, replace "141 ,771" with "104,321" 

Page 1, line 21, replace "371,900" with "35,000" 

Page 1, line 24, replace "17,693,900" with "16,991,440" 

Page 2, line 1, replace "5,688,979" with "5,674,504" 

Page 2, line 2, replace "12,004,921" with "11,316,936" 

Page 2, line 5, replace "2,610,550" with "2,609,036" 

Page 2, line 6, replace "828,335" with "821,649" 

Page 2, line 7, replace "10,029,660" with "9,635,277" 

Page 2, line 8, replace "20,234,931" with "16,699,252" 

Page 2, line 9, replace "3,853,788" with "3 ,833,361 " 

Page 2, line 10, replace "23,625,750" with "20,341,166" 

Page 2, line 11, replace "9,243,724" with "7,521,794" 

Page 2, line 12, replace "70,426,738" with "61,461,535" 

Page 2, line 13, replace "16,335,431" with "12,660,179" 

Page 2, line 14, replace "54,091 ,307" with "48,801,356" 

Page 2, line 15, replace "67,120,012" with "61,118,562" 

Page 2, line 16, replace "22,024,41 0" with "18,334,683" 

Page No. 1 98016.0101 
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Page 2, line 17, replace "89,144,422" with "79,453 ,245" 

Page 2, line 24 , replace "victims services ," with "various" 

Page 2, line 25, remove "institutional offender services , and community offender services" 

Page 2, line 26, after "Act" insert a comma 

Page 2, after line 28 , insert: 

"SECTION 4. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - RENOVATION OF THE JAMES RIVER 
CORRECTIONAL CENTER FIFTH AND SIXTH FLOORS - REPORT TO 
LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL. It is the intent of the fifty-sixth legislative assembly that 
during the 1999-2001 biennium, the department of corrections and rehabilitation monitor 
changes in the inmate population and the number of correctional cells at public and 
private correctional institutions available to house state inmates through contractual 
agreements . Prior to the 2001 legislative session , the director of the department of 
corrections and rehabilitation shall present a report to the legislative council , or a 
committee determined by the legislative council, on actual and projected changes in the 
inmate population, the number of correctional cells at public and private correctional 
institutions available to house state inmates through contractual agreements, and 
proposals for the renovation of the-fifth and sixth floors of the residential building of the 
James River correctional center. 

SECTION 5. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - PROGRAMS PROVIDING 
ALTERNATIVES TO INCARCERATION - REPORT TO BUDGET SECTION. It is the 
intent of the fifty-sixth legislative assembly that during the 1999-2001 biennium , the 
department of corrections and rehabilitation implement and operate programs to provide 
alternatives to the incarceration of inmates, including a revocation center and other 
intermediate measure intervention programs, community placement programs, jail 
placement for parole violators, house arrest and home detention, halfway house 
confinement, day reporting, and other programs as determined by the department. The 
purpose of such programs shall be to remove inmates from incarceration and prevent 
the return to incarceration of parole and probation violators. The director of the 
department of corrections and rehabilitation , periodically during the 1999-2001 
biennium, shall provide reports to the budget section of the legislative council on the 
effectiveness of these programs and the actual and projected impact on the state 
inmate population. 

SECTION 6. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 12.1-32-07 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

2. The conditions of probation must be such as the court in its discretion 
deems reasonably necessary to ensure that the defendant will lead a 
law-abiding life or to assist the defendant to do so. The court shall provide 
as an explicit condition of every probation that the defendant not commit 
another offense during the period for which the probation remains subject 
to revocation. The court shall order supervision costs and fees of not less 
than tfttfty thirty-five dollars per month unless the court makes a specific 
finding on record that the imposition of fees will result in an undue 
hardship." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

DEPARTMENT 530 - DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS AND REHABILITATION 

House - This amendment makes the following changes : 

Page No. 2 98016.0101 



EXECUTIVE HOUSE HOUSE 
BUDGET CHANGES VERSION 

Central Office : 
Salaries and wages $878.152 ($13,082) $865.070 
Operating expenses 118.682 (3,682) 115.000 

• 
Equipment 26,950 (6,750) 20 .200 

Total all funds $1 ,023,784 ($23,514) $1,000,270 

Less estimated income 

Total general fund $1 ,023.784 ($23,514) $1 ,000,270 

Juvenile Services: 
Salaries and wages $9.764 ,955 ($212,910) $9,552,045 
Operating expenses 4.344,374 (115,200) 4,229 ,174 
Equipment 141.771 (37.450) 104,321 
Capital improvements 371,900 (336,900) 35,000 
Grants 2,870,900 2,870,900 
Delinquency prevention 200.000 200,000 
consortium 

Total all funds $ t 7,693,900 ($702,460) $16,991,440 

Less estimated income 5.688.979 (14,475) 5,674,504 

Total general fund $12 ,004,921 ($687,985) $11 ,316,936 

Adult Services: 
Victim services $2,610.550 ($1 ,514) $2,609.036 
Institutional offender 828,335 (6,686) 821.649 
services 

Community offender 10,029,660 (394,383) 9,635,277 
services 

Support services 20,234,931 (3,535,679) 16,699,252 
Program services 3,853,788 (20.427) 3,833,361 
Security and safety 23,625,750 (3,284,584) 20,341 ,166 
Roughrider Industries 9,243,724 (1,721,930) 7,521,794 

Total all funds $70.426,738 ($8,965,203) $61,461,535 

Less estimated income 16,335,431 (3,675,252) 12,660,179 

Total general fund $54,091,307 ($5,289,951) $48,801 ,356 

Grand total all funds $89,1 44.422 ($9,691,177) $79,453,245 

Less grand total special funds 22,024.410 (3,689,727) 18,334,683 

Grand total general fund $67,120,012 ($6,001 ,450) $61, 118,562 

FTE 577.21 (30.53) 546.68 

Detail of House changes to the executive budget includes: 

DELAY 
MARKET 
SALARY REDUCE INCREASE 

INCREASE TO COMPENSATION HEALTH REDUCE REDUCE 
JANUARY 1, PACKAGE INSURANCE REDUCE OPERATING CAPITAL 

2001 TO2/2 COST EQUIPMENT EXPENSES IMPROVEMENTS 

Central Office: 
Salaries and wages ($3,571)1 ($11 ,792)2 $2,281 3 
Operating expenses ($3,682)6 
Equipment ($6J50)4 

Total all funds ($3,571) ($11,792) $2,281 ($6,750) ($3,682) $0 

Less estimated income 

Total general fund ($3,571) ($11 ,792) $2,281 (6,750) ($3,682) $0 

Juvenile Services: 
Salaries and wages ($120,416)2 $35 ,641 3 
Operating expenses ($115,200) 7 
Equipment ($37,450) 5 

($336,900) 9 Capital improvements 
Grants 
Delinquency prevention 
consonium 

Total all funds $0 ($120,416) $35 ,641 ($37,450) ($115,200) ($336,900) 

Less estimated income (3,807) 1 426 

• Total general fund $0 ($116,609) $34 ,215 ($37,450) ($115,200) ($336 ,900) 

Adult Services: 
Victim services ($1 .942) 2 $428 3 
Institutional offender (8,981)2 2,295 3 

services 

Page No. 3 98016.0101 



Community offender 
services 

(61,334) 2 18,233 3 ($149 ,800) 8 

Support serv,ces (58 ,942) 2 17,963 3 ($3 .~94.700) 10 
Program services (26,700) 2 6.273 3 
Security and satety (213.452) 2 70,282 3 
Roughrider Industries (31,054) 2 9,124 3 

Total all funds $0 ($402,405) $124 ,598 $0 ($149,800) ($3,494 ,700) 

Less estimated income (36,128) 10 407 (2,093,531) 

Total general fund $0 ($366,277) $114 ,191 $0 ($149 ,800) ($1.401 . 169) 

Grand total all funds ($3 ,571) ($534,613) $162,520 ($44,200) ($268,682) ($3 ,831 .600) 

Less grand total special (39,935) 11,833 (2,093 ,531) 
funds 

Grand total general fund ($3,571) ($494,678) $150,687 ($44,200) ($268.682) ($1,738,069) 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

REMOVE 
FTE AND REMOVE 

REDUCE OPERATING SPENDING 
OPERATING EXPENSES AUTHORITY REMOVE 

EXPENSES FOR FOR 5TH AND RELATING TO POSITIONS 
CONTRACT 6TH FLOOR LICENSE INCREASE AND RELATED TOTAL 

INMATE RENOVATION PLATE SUPERVISION OPERATING HOUSE 
HOUSING AT JRCC ISSUE FEES EXPENSES CHANGES 

Central Office: 
Salaries and wages ($13,082) 
Operating expenses (3,682) 
Equipment (6.750) 

Total all funds $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($23,514) 

Less estimated income 

Total general fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($23 ,514) 

Juvenile Services: 
Salaries and wages ($128,135) 15 ($212,910) 

• 
Operating expenses (115,200) 
Equipment (37,450) 
Capital improvements (336,900) 
Grants 
Delinquency prevention 
consortium 

Total all funds $0 $0 $0 $0 ($128,135) ($702.460) 

Less estimated income {12,094) (14,475) 

Total general fund $0 $0 $0 $0 ($116,041) ($687,985) 

Adult Services: 
Victim services ($1,5 14) 
Institutional offender (6,686) 

services 
Community offender ($201,482) 16 (394,383) 

services 
Support services (3,535,679) 
Program services (20.427) 
Security and safety ($ I ,424,260) 11 ($1 ,463,679) 12 (253,475) 17 (3,284,584) 
Roughrider Industries ($1 .700,000) 13 (1,721,930) 

Total all funds ($1 .424,260) ($1,463,679) ($1,700,000) $0 ($454,957) ($8,965,203) 

Less estimated income (1,700,000) 144 000 14 (3,675,252) 

Total general fund ($1 ,424,260) ($1,463,679) $0 ($144,000) 14 ($454,957) ($5,289.951 ) 

Grand total all funds ($1 ,424,260) ($1.463,679) ($1 ,700,000) $0 ($583 ,092) ($9.691 ,177) 

Less grand total special (1,700,000) 144,000 (12,094) (3,689,727) 
funds 

Grand total general lund ($1,424 ,260) ($1,463,679) $0 ($144 ,000) ($570,998) ($6,001,450) 

FTE 0.00 (20.00) 0.00 0.00 (10.53) (30 .53) 

House changes narrative : 

1 This amendment delays until January 1. 2001, implementation of a market salary increase for the director of the Department of Corrections and 

• 
Rehabilitation. This adjustment will provide an increase of approximately $163 per month for the last six months of the biennium . 

2 This amendment reduces salaries increases to two percent in July 1999 and two percent in July 2000. 

3 This amendment increases salaries and wages and program line items to reflect increased he_alth insurance costs. 
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4 This amendment reduces the equipment line ,tern for the Central Office by approximately 25 percent. from $26.950 to $20 .200 . 

5 Th is amendment reduces the equipment line ,tern tor the Juvenlie Services Divis ion by $37.450 tor the following . 

GENERAL OTHER TOT AL ALL 
FUND FUNDS FUNDS 

Youth Correctional Center: 
Reduces from $50,000 to $37,500 the amount ($12,500) ($12,500) 
provided tor computer purchases 

Reduces from $15,000 to $10,000 the amount (5,000) (5,000) 
provided for the purchase of a replacement 
tractor 

Eliminates funding tor vocational equipment purchased (18,200) (18,200) 
during 1997-99 

Juvenile Community Services: 
Reduces equipment line item from $7,000 to (1,750) (1,750) 
$5,250 

Total Juvenile Services Division ($37,450) ($37,450) 
equipment reduction 

6 This amendment reduces the operating expenses line item for the Central Office from $118,682 to $115,000 for reductions to be determined by the 
department. 

7 This amendment reduces the operating expenses line item tor the Juvenile Services Division from $4,344.374 to $4,229, t 74 to reflect a $32,200 
reduction to the Youth Correctional Center for medical -related expenses and a $83,000 reduction to Juvenile Community Services for reductions to 
be determined by the department. 

e This amendment reduces the community offender services line·item to reflect a reduction from $2,149,800 to $2,000,000 in the amount provided for 
various programs that provide alternatives to the incarceration of inmates. This amendment also adds Section 5 which provides legislative intent 
that the department monitor the effectiveness of these programs and present a report to the Budget Section. 

9 This amendment reduces capital improvements for the Youth Correctional Center as follows: 

Eliminates funding for Divine Hall improvements 

Eliminates funding for fire suppression systems 
in Brown and Maple cottages 

Reduces from $150,900 to $35,000 funding 
for extraordinary repairs 

Total Youth Correctional Center capital 
improvements reductions 

GENERAL 
FUND 

($120,000) 

(101,000) 

(115,900) 

($336,900) 

OTHER 
FUNDS 

10This amendment reduces capital improvements for the Adult Services Division as follows: 

Reduces from $1,003,700 to $650,000 
funding for extraordinary repairs 

Reduces from $121 ,000 to $100,000 funding 
for security improvements at the 
James River Correctional Center 
(JRCC) 

Reduces from $325,000 to $200,000 funding 
for forensic building lobby, front 
entrance, and other JRCC improvements 

Reduces from $71 ,000 to $40,000 funding for 
parking lot construction at the JRCC 

Eliminates funding for a security fence 
around the RRI building 

Reduces from $433,000 to $245,000 funding 
for administrative segregation unit 
improvements at the Penitentiary 

Reduces from $325,000 to $100,000 funding 
for parking lot improvements at 
the Penitentiary 

Reduces the support services line item 
for the 5th and 6th floors renovation 
of the JRCC 

Total adult services capital improvements 
reductions 

GENERAL OTHER 
FUND FUNDS 

($353,700) 

(21,000) 

(t 25,000) 

(31,000) 

(198,000) 

(188,000) 

(225,000) 

(259,469) 

($1,401,169) 

($2,093,531) 

($2,093,531 ) 

TOTAL ALL 
FUNDS 

($120,000) 

(101,000) 

(115,900) 

($336,900) 

TOTAL ALL 
FUNDS 

($353,700) 

(21 ,000) 

(125,000) 

(31 ,000) 

(198,000) 

(188,000) 

(225,000) 

(2,353,000) 

($3,494 ,700) 

This amendment adds Section 4 of the bill , which provides legislative intent that during the 1997-99 biennium the department monitor the growth ot 
the ,nmate population and the number of correctional institution beds available to the department to contract for inmate housing, and prior to the 2001 
legislative session, present a report to the Legislative Council or an interim committee on the department's plans to renovate the 5th and 6th floors of 
the JRCC . 

11This amendment reduces funding tor contracting for inmate housing from $4 ,085.300 to $2,661 ,040 to reflect an anticipated growth in the inmate 
population of 1 o percent for fiscal year 2000 and 15 percent tor fiscal year 2001 and legislative intent that the department contract with in-state 
county facilities for housing as many inmates as possible before contracting with out-of-state facilities. 
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12Th,s amendment eliminates the following FTE posI1Ions and operating expenses for the 5th and 6th floors of the JRCC: 

Removes correctional unit case managers 
Removes correctional caseworkers 
Removes correctional officer II positions 
Operating expenses 

Total reduction for operation of 
the 5th and 6th floors of the JRCC 

FTE GENERAL OTHE R 
POSITIONS FUND FUNDS 

(2.00) ($87,906) 
(6.00) (234 ,048) 

(12.00) (411,540) 
(730,185) 

(20 .00) ($1,463,679) 

TOTAL ALL 
FUNDS 

($87,906) 
(234 ,048) 
(411 .540) 
(730,185) 

($1,463.679) 

13This amendment reduces the Roughrider Industries line item by $1 . 7 million for operating expenses relating to the issuance of license plates. 

14 This amendment increases by $144.000 anticipated revenue from parole supervision fees based on increasing fees from $30 to $35 per month, as 
provided in Section 6 of the bill . This amendment also reduces general fund spending authority by the same amount. 

15This amendment reduces funding for the expansion of the Youth Correctional Center education program to increase the number of months of 
instruction from 1 Oto 12 months. The amendment is based on legislative intent that the Youth Correctional Center expand the educational program 
by offering only core curriculum during the summer months rather than a full education program as proposed in the executive budget. The costs 
are estimated as follows: 

FTE GENERAL OTHER TOTAL ALL 
POSITIONS FUND FUNDS FUNDS 

Executive budget 3.57 $269,895 $43,858 $313 ,753 
House version 2.04 153,854 31 764 185,618 

Change from executive budget (1.53) ($116,041) ($12,094) ($128,135) 

16This amendment eliminates the following FTE positions and related operating expenses included in the community offender services line item: 

FTE GENERAL OTHER TOTAL ALL 
POSITIONS FUND FUNDS FUNDS 

a. Removes adminis1rative secretary Ill (2.00) ($95,436) ($95,436) 
positions 

Adds funding for temporary salaries 
Removes related operating expenses 

b. Removes community corrections agent 
Removes related operating expenses 

c. Removes parole and probation officer II 
Removes related operating expenses 

Total FTE and related changes for 
community offender services 

(1 .00) 

(1.00) 

(4.00) 

38,436 38,436 
(41,848) (41,848) 

(53,024) (53,024) 
(2,531) (2,531) 

(36,657) (36,657) 
(10,422) (10,422) 

($201 ,482) ($201,482) 

17This amendment eliminates the following FTE positions and related operating expenses included in the security and safety line item: 

FTE GENERAL OTHER TOTAL ALL 
POSITIONS FUND FUNDS FUNDS 

a. Removes correctional officer II (2.00) ($110,910) ($110,910) 
positions relating to the JRCC 

Removes related operating expenses 

b. Removes correctional officer II 
positions relating to transporting 
Missouri River Correctional Center 
inmates 

Removes related operating expenses 

c. Removes correctional officer II 
position relating to Penitentiary 
front lobby security 

Removes related operating expenses 

d. Increases funding for temporary 
salaries 

(2.00) 

(1 .00) 

(5.00) 
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(4,480) (4,480) 

(110,910) (110,910) 

(4,480) (4,480) 

(55,455) (55,455) 

(2,240) (2,240) 

35,000 35,000 

($253,475) ($253,475) 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE (410) 
February 17, 1999 7:56 a.m. 

Module No: HR-32-3253 
Carrier: Svedjan 

Insert LC: 98016.0101 Title: .0200 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1016: Appropriations Committee (Rep. Dalrymple, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS 
(20 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1016 was placed on the 
Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 2, after "rehabilitation" insert" ; and to amend and reenact subsection 2 of section 
12.1-32-07 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the supervision of 
probationers" 

Page 1, line 12, replace "878,152" with "865,070" 

Page 1, line 13, replace "118,682" with "115,000" 

Page 1, line 14, replace "26,950" with "20,200" 

Page 1, line 15, replace "1 ,023,784" with "1 ,000,270" 

Page 1, line 18, replace "9,764,955" with "9 ,552,045" 

Page 1, line 19, replace "4,344,374" with "4,229,174" 

Page 1, line 20 , replace "141 ,771 " with "104,321 " 

Page 1, line 21 , replace "371 ,900" with "35,000" 

Page 1, line 24, replace "17,693,900" with "16,991,440" 

Page 2, line 1, replace "5,688,979" with "5,674,504" 

Page 2, line 2, replace "12,004,921" with "11 ,316,936" 

Page 2, line 5, replace "2,610 ,550" with "2,609,036" 

Page 2, line 6, replace "828,335" with "821,649" 

Page 2, line 7, replace "10,029,660" with "9,635,277" 

Page 2, line 8, replace "20 ,234,931" with "16,699,252" 

Page 2, line 9, replace "3,853,788" with "3 ,833,361" 

Page 2, line 10, replace "23,625,750" with "20,341 ,166" 

Page 2, line 11 , replace "9,243,724" with "7,521,794" 

Page 2, line 12, replace "70 ,426,738" with "61,461 ,535" 

Page 2, line 13, replace "16,335,431 " with "12,660,179" 

Page 2, line 14, replace "54,091 ,307" with "48,801 ,356" 

Page 2, line 15, replace "67,120,012" with "61 ,118,562" 

Page 2, line 16, replace "22,024,41 O" with "18,334,683" 

Page 2, line 17, replace "89,144,422" with "79,453 ,245" 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE (410) 
February 17, 1999 7:56 a.m. 

Page 2, line 24, replace "victims services ," with "various" 

Module No: HR-32-3253 
Carrier: Svedjan 

Insert LC: 98016.0101 Title: .0200 

Page 2, line 25 , remove "institutional offender services , and community offender services" 

Page 2, line 26, after "Act" insert a comma 

Page 2, after line 28, insert: 

"SECTION 4. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - RENOVATION OF THE JAMES 
RIVER CORRECTIONAL CENTER FIFTH AND SIXTH FLOORS - REPORT TO 
LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL. It is the intent of the fifty-sixth legislative assembly that 
during the 1999-2001 biennium, the department of corrections and rehabilitation 
monitor changes in the inmate population and the number of correctional cells at public 
and private correctional institutions available to house state inmates through 
contractual agreements. Prior to the 2001 legislative session , the director of the 
department of corrections and rehabilitation shall present a report to the legislative 
council , or a committee determined by the legislative council , on actual and projected 
changes in the inmate population , the number of correctional cells at public and private 
correctional institutions available to house state inmates through contractual 
agreements, and proposals for the renovation of the fifth and sixth floors of the 
residential building of the James River correctional center. 

SECTION 5. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - PROGRAMS PROVIDING 
ALTERNATIVES TO INCARCERATION - REPORT TO BUDGET SECTION. It is the 
intent of the fifty-sixth legislative assembly that during the 1999-2001 biennium , the 
department of corrections and rehabilitation implement and operate programs to 
provide alternatives to the incarceration of inmates, including a revocation center and 
other intermediate measure intervention programs, community placement programs , 
jail placement for parole violators , house arrest and home detention , halfway house 
confinement, day reporting , and other programs as determined by the department. The 
purpose of such programs shall be to remove inmates from incarceration and prevent 
the return to incarceration of parole and probation violators. The director of the 
department of corrections and rehabilitation , periodically during the 1999-2001 
biennium, shall provide reports to the budget section of the legislative council on the 
effectiveness of these programs and the actual and projected impact on the · state 
inmate population. 

SECTION 6. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 12.1-32-07 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

2. The conditions of probation must be such as the court in its discretion 
deems reasonably necessary to ensure that the defendant will lead a 
law-abiding life or to assist the defendant to do so. The court shall provide 
as an explicit condition of every probation that the defendant not commit 
another offense during the period for which the probation remains subject 
to revocation. The court shall order supervision costs and fees of not less 
than ~ thirty-five dollars per month unless the court makes a specific 
finding on record that the imposition of fees will result in an undue 
hardship." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

DEPARTMENT 530 - DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS AND REHABILITATION 

(1 ) LC, (2) DESK, (3) BILL CLERK, (4-5-6) COMM Page No. 2 HR-32-3253 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE (410) 
February 17, 1999 7:56 a.m. 

House - This amendment makes the following changes: 
EXECUTIVE HOUSE HOUSE 

BUDGET CHANGES VERSION 

Central Office : 
Salaries and wages $878,152 ($13 ,082) $865,070 
Operating expenses 118,682 {3,682) 115,000 
Equ ipment 26,950 (6,750) 20,200 

Total all funds $1,023,784 ($23 ,514) $1,000,270 

Less estimated income 

Total general fund $1,023,784 ($23,514} $1 ,000,270 

Juvenile Services: 
Salaries and wages $9,764,955 ($212,910) $9,552,045 
Operating expenses 4,344,374 {115,200) 4,229,174 
Equipment 141 ,771 {37,450} 104,321 
Capital improvements 371 ,900 (336,900) 35,000 
Grants 2,870,900 2,870,900 
Delinquency prevention 200,000 200,000 
consortium 

Total all funds $17,693,900 ($702,460) $16,991,440 

Less estimated income 5,688,979 (14,475) 5,674,504 

Total general fund $12,004,921 ($687,985) $11 ,316,936 

Adult Services: 
Victim services $2,610,550 ($1 ,514} $2,609 ,036 
Institutional offender 828,335 {6,686) 821 ,649 
services 

Community offender 10,029,660 (394 ,383) 9,635 ,277 
services 

Support services 20,234,931 (3,535,679} 16,699 ,252 
Program services 3,853,788 (20,427) 3,833,361 
Security and safety 23 ,625 ,750 (3,284,584} 20 ,341,166 
Roughrider Industries 9,243,724 (1 ,721 ,930) 7,521 ,794 

Total all funds $70 ,426,738 ($8 ,965,203} $61,461 ,535 

Less estimated income 16,335,431 (3,675,252) 12,660 ,179 

Total general fund $54 ,091 ,307 ($5,289,951 ) $48,801 ,356 

Grand total all funds $89,144,422 ($9,691 ,177) $79 ,453,245 

Less grand total special funds 22,024,410 (3,689,727) 18,334,683 

Grand total general fund $67,120,012 ($6,001,450} $61,118,562 

FTE 577.21 {30 .53) 546.68 

Detail of House changes to the executive budget includes: 

DELAY 
MARKET 
SALARY REDUCE INCREASE 

INCREASE TO COMPENSATION HEALTH 
JANUARY 1, PACKAGE INSURANCE 

2001 TO 2/2 COST 

Central Office : 
Salaries and wages ($3 ,571)1 ($11 ,792) 2 $2,281 3 
Operating expenses 
Equipment 

Total all funds {$3 ,571) ($11 ,792) $2,281 

Less estimated income 

Total general fund ($3,571} ($11,792) $2,281 

Juvenile Services : 
Salaries and wages ($120,416} 2 $35 ,641 3 
Operating expenses 
Equ ipment 
Capital improvements 
Grants 
Delinquency prevention 
consortium 

Total all funds $0 ($120,416} $35,641 
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REDUCE REDUCE 
REDUCE OPERATING CAPITAL 

EQUIPMENT EXPENSES IMPROVEMENTS 

~4 
{$3 ,682) 6 

($6 ,750) ($3 ,682) $0 

(6,750) ($3,682) $0 

($37,450) 5 
($115,200) 7 

($336,900) 9 

($37,450) ($115,200) ($336,900) 

HR-32-3253 
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Less estimated income (3,807) 1,426 

Total general fund $0 ($116,609) $34,215 ($37,450) ($115,200) {$336,900) 

Adult Services : 
Victim services ($1 ,942) 2 $428 3 
Institut ional offender (8,981 ) 2 2,295 3 
services 

Community offender {61 ,334) 2 18,233 3 ($149,800) 8 
services 

Support services {58,942) 2 17,963 3 ($3,494,700) 10 
Program services (26,700) 2 6,273 3 
Security and safety {213,452) 2 70 ,282 3 
Rough rider Industries (31,054) 2 9,124 3 

Total all funds $0 ($402,405) $124,598 $0 {$149 ,800) ($3,494 ,700) 

Less estimated income (36 ,128) 10,407 (2,093,531 ) 

Total general fund $0 ($366,277) $114,191 $0 ($149,800) ($1 ,401 ,169) 

Grand total all funds ($3 ,571) ($534,613) $162,520 ($44,200) ($268,682) ($3 ,831 ,600) 

Less grand total special (39,935) 11 ,833 (2,093,531) 
funds 

Grand total general fund ($3 ,571) ($494,678) $150,687 ($44,200) ($268,682) ($1 ,738,069) 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

REMOVE 
FTE AND REMOVE 

REDUCE OPERATING SPENDING 
OPERATING EXPENSES AUTHORITY REMOVE 

EXPENSES FOR FOR 5TH AND RELATING TO POSITIONS 
CONTRACT 6TH FLOOR LICENSE INCREASE AND RELATED TOTAL 

INMATE RENOVATION PLATE SUPERVISION OPERATING HOUSE 
HOUSING ATJRCC ISSUE FEES EXPENSES CHANGES 

Central Office: 

- Salaries and wages ($13,082) 
Operating expenses {3,682) 
Equipment (6 ,750) 

Total al l funds $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($23,514) 

Less estimated income 

Total general fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($23,514) 

Juvenile Services: 
Salaries and wages ($128 ,135) 15 ($212,910) 
Operating expenses (115,200) 
Equipment (37,450) 
Capital improvements {336,900) 
Grants 
Delinquency prevention 
consortium 

Total all funds $0 $0 $0 $0 ($128,135) ($702,460) 

Less estimated income (12,094) (14,475) 

Total general fund $0 $0 $0 $0 ($116,041) ($687,985) 

Adult Services: 
Victim services ($1 ,514) 
Institutional offender (6,686) 
services 

Community offender ($201,482) 16 (394,383) 
services 

Support services (3,535,679) 
Program services 

($1 ,424,260) 11 ($1,463,679) 12 {253,475) 17 
(20 ,427) 

Security and safety 
($1 ,700 ,000) 13 

(3,284,584) 
Roughrider Industries (1,721,930) 

Total all funds ($1 ,424,260) ($1 ,463,679) ($1,700,000) $0 ($454 ,957) ($8,965,203) 

Less estimated income (1 ,700 ,000) 144,000 14 (3,675 ,252) 

Total general fund ($1 ,424,260) ($1 ,463,679) $0 {$144,000) 14 ($454,957) ($5,289,951 ) 

-
Grand total all funds ($1 ,424,260) ($1 ,463,679) ($1 ,700,000) $0 ($583,092) {$9,691 ,177) 

Less grand total special (1,700,000) 144,000 {12,094) (3,689,727) 
funds 

Grand total general fund ($1,424,260) ($1 ,463,679) $0 {$144,000) ($570 ,998) ($6 ,001,450) 

FTE 0.00 (20.00) 0.00 0.00 {10.53) (30 .53) 
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House changes narrative: 

This amendment delays until January 1, 2001 , implementation of a market salary increase for the director of the Department of Corrections and 
Rehabilitation . This adjustment will provide an increase of approximately $163 per month for the last six months of the biennium. 

2 This amendment reduces salaries increases to two percent in July 1999 and two percent in July 2000. 

3 This amendment increases salaries and wages and program line items to reflect increased health insurance costs . 

4 This amendment reduces the equipment line item for the Central Office by approximately 25 percent, from $26,950 to $20,200. 

5 This amendment reduces the equipment line item for the Juvenile Services Division by $37,450 for the following: 

Youth Correctional Center: 

GENERAL 
FUND 

Reduces from $50,000 to $37,500 the amount ($12,500} 
provided for computer purchases 

Reduces from $15,000 to $10,000 the amount (5,000} 
provided for the purchase of a replacement 
tractor 

Eliminates funding for vocational equipment purchased (18 ,200) 
during 1997-99 

Juvenile Community Services: 
Reduces equipment line item from $7,000 to (1 ,750} 
$5,250 

Total Juvenile Services Division 
equipment reduction 

($37,450) 

OTHER 
FUNDS 

TOTAL ALL 
FUNDS 

($12,500} 

(5,000} 

(18,200} 

(1 ,750) 

($37,450) 

6 This amendment reduces the operating expenses line item for the Central Office from $118,682 to $115,000 for reductions to be determined by the 
department. 

7 This amendment reduces the operating expenses line item for the Juvenile Services Division from $4,344,374 to $4,229,174 to reflect a $32,200 
reduction to the Youth Correctional Center for medical-related expenses and a $83,000 reduction to Juvenile Community Services for reductions to 
be determined by the department. 

8 This amendment reduces the community offender services line item to reflect a reduction from $2,149,800 to $2,000,000 in the amount provided 
for various programs that provide alternatives to the incarceration of inmates. This amendment also adds Section 5 which provides legislative 
intent that the department monitor the effectiveness of these programs and present a report to the Budget Section. 

9 This amendment reduces capital improvements for the Youth Correctional Center as follows : 

Eliminates funding for Divine Hall improvements 

Eliminates funding for fire suppression systems 
in Brown and Maple cottages 

Reduces from $150,900 to $35,000 funding 
for extraordinary repairs 

Total Youth Correctional Center capital 
improvements reductions 

GENERAL 
FUND 

($120,000) 

(101 ,000} 

(115,900} 

($336 ,900} 

OTHER 
FUNDS 

1 0This amendment reduces capital improvements for the Adult Services Division as follows: 

(1) LC, (2) DESK, (3) BILL CLERK, (4-5-6) COMM 

GENERAL 
FUND 

Page No. 5 

OTHER 
FUNDS 

TOTAL ALL 
FUNDS 

($120,000} 

(101 ,000} 

(115,900} 

($336,900) 

TOTAL ALL 
FUNDS 
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Reduces from $1,003,700 to $650,000 
funding for extraordinary repairs 

Reduces from $121 ,000 to $100,000 funding 
for security improvements at the 
James River Correctional Center 
(JRCC) 

Reduces from $325,000 to $200,000 funding 
for forensic building lobby, front 
entrance, and other JRCC improvements 

Reduces from $71 ,000 to $40,000 funding for 
parking lot construction at the JRCC 

Eliminates funding for a security fence 
around the RRI building 

Reduces from $433 ,000 to $245,000 funding 
for administrative segregation unit 
improvements at the Penitentiary 

Reduces from $325,000 to $100,000 funding 
for parking lot improvements at 
the Penitentiary 

Reduces the support services line item 
for the 5th and 6th floors renovation 
of the JRCC 

Total adult services capital improvements 
reductions 

($353,700} 

(21,000} 

(125,000) 

(31,000) 

(198,000} 

(188,000) 

(225,000) 

(259,469} 

($1 ,401,169) 

Module No: HR-32-3253 
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($2,093,531) 

($2,093,531} 

($353,700} 

(21 ,000} 

(125,000) 

(3 1,000) 

(198,000} 

(188,000) 

(225,000} 

(2,353 ,000) 

($3,494,700) 

This amendment adds Section 4 of the bill , which provides legislative intent that during the 1997-99 biennium the department monitor the growth of 
the inmate population and the number of correctional institution beds available to the department to contract for inmate housing, and prior to the 2001 
legislative session , present a report to the Legislative Council or an interim committee on the department's plans to renovate the 5th and 6th floors of 
the JRCC. 

11This amendment reduces funding for contracting for inmate housing from $4,085,300 to $2,661 ,040 to reflect an anticipated growth in the inmate 
population of 1 O percent for fiscal year 2000 and 15 percent for fiscal year 2001 and legislative intent that the department contract with in-state 
county facilities for housing as many inmates as possible before contracting with out-of-state facilities . 

12This amendment eliminates the following FTE positions and operating expenses for the 5th and 6th floors of the JRCC: 

Removes correctional unit case managers 
Removes correctional caseworkers 
Removes correctional officer II positions 
Operating expenses 

Total reduction for operation of 
the 5th and 6th floors of the JRCC 

FTE 
POSITIONS 

(2.00) 
(6.00) 

(12.00) 

(20.00) 

GENERAL 
FUND 

($87,906} 
(234,048} 
(4 11,540) 
(730,185) 

($1,463,679) 

OTHER 
FUNDS 

TOTAL ALL 
FUNDS 

($87,906) 
(234,048) 
(4 11 ,540} 
(730,185) 

($1,463,679} 

13This amendment reduces the Roughrider Industries line item by $1.7 million for operating expenses relating to the issuance of license plates . 

14This amendment increases by $144,000 anticipated revenue from parole supervision fees based on increasing fees from $30 to $35 per month, as 
provided in Section 6 of the bill. This amendment also reduces general fund spending authority by the same amount. 

15This amendment reduces funding for the expansion of the Youth Correctional Center education program to increase the number of months of 
instruction from 1 O to 12 months. The amendment is based on legislative intent that the Youth Correctional Center expand the educational 
program by offering only core curriculum during the summer months rather than a full education program as proposed in the executive budget. 
The costs are estimated as follows: 

Executive budget 
House version 

Change from executive budget 

FTE 
· POSITIONS 

3.57 
2.04 

(1.53} 

GENERAL 
FUND 

$269,895 
153,854 

($116,041} 

OTHER 
FUNDS 

$43,858 
31,764 

($12,094) 

TOTAL ALL 
FUNDS 

$313,753 
185,61 8 

($128,135) 

16This amendment eliminates the following FTE positions and related operating expenses included in the community offender services line item: 

(1) LC, (2) DESK, (3) BILL CLERK, (4-5-6) COMM 

FTE 
POSITIONS 

Page No. 6 

GENERAL 
FUND 

OTHER 
FUNDS 

TOTAL ALL 
FUNDS 
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a. Removes administrative secretary Ill 
positions 

Adds funding for temporary salaries 
Removes related operating expenses 

b. Removes community corrections agent 
Removes related operating expenses 

c. Removes parole and probation officer II 
Removes related operating expenses 

Total FTE and related changes for 
community offender services 

(2.00) 

(1.00) 

(1.00) 

(4.00) 

Module No: HR-32-3253 
Carrier: Svedjan 
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($95,436) ($95,436) 

38,436 38,436 
(41 ,848) (41 ,848) 

(53,024) (53,024) 
(2,531 ) (2,531 ) 

(36,657) (36,657) 
(10,422) (10,422) 

($201,482) ($201 ,482) 

17This amendment eliminates the following FTE positions and related operating expenses included in the security and safety line item: 

a. Removes correctional officer II 
positions relat ing to the JRCC 

Removes related operating expenses 

b. Removes correctional officer II 
positions relating to transporting 
Missouri River Correctional Center 
inmates 

Removes related operating expenses 

c. Removes correctional officer II 
position relating to Penitentiary 
front lobby security 

Removes related operating expenses 

d. Increases funding for temporary 
salaries 

(1) LC , (2) DESK, (3) BILL CLERK, (4-5-6) COMM 

FTE 
POSITIONS 

GENERAL 
FUND 

(2.00) ($110,910) 

(4,480) 

(2.00) (110,910) 

(4,480) 

(1.00) (55,455) 

(2,240) 

35,000 

(5.00) ($253,475) 

Page No. 7 

OTHER TOTAL ALL 
FUNDS FUNDS 

($110,910) 

(4,480) 

(110 ,910) 

(4,480) 

(55,455) 

(2,240) 

35,000 

($253,475) 

HR-32-3253 
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SENATOR NETHING: Opened the hearing on engrossed HB 1016; a BILL for an Act to 
provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the department of corrections and 
rehabilitation; and to amend and reenact subsection 2 of section 112.1-32-07 of the North Dakota 
Century Code, relating to the supervision of probationers. 

ELAINE LITTLE: Director, Department of Corrections of Rehabilitation, presented an 
overview of the corrections program (attachment IA), the inmate population (1B), and the 
projected inmate population and contracted service fees (1 C). (tape 1, side A 80-600) 

SENATOR KRAUTER: Can we go to the second inmate admissions, the selected offenses? Ifl 
take calendar year '98 and add that up that comes up to 736, and ifl go up in the first column, the 
first chart, and I look at annual new arrivals and it is 778, where are the other 42? 

LITTLE: We showed just the major offense categories. Another category we don't even have 
here is property offenders. That has stayed pretty static for a number of years and we didn't 
include that in our general population information. (tape 1, A, 670) 

SENA TOR ROBINSON: How are we doing in training our people that when they are released 
larger percentages of them are productive citizens and not returned to the system? 

LITTLE: We think we're getting better at that. We've averaged in the low 20 percent rate for 
recidivism. We've implemented a number of new programs in the last couple of years. One in 
particular that I think will have a tremendous impact in the long-run we call cognitive 
restructuring, programming to train inmates to change their way of thinking. We believe that 
along with the other treatments, like alcohol and drug, we will have an impact on our recidivism 
rate. 
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SENATOR ST. AUBYN: On the drug offenders, do the judges have the authority to do home 
detention? 

LITTLE: It depends on the type of drug offense. If it is a drug offense that comes under the 
minimum mandatory law which would be any offender who has manufactured or delivered a 
controlled substance, those come under mandatory sentencing. In that case, the judge couldn't 
use home detention, but would have to send them to prison. If it is a possession case or a 
marijuana case, they have full authority to give any type of senten:.:e. 

SENATOR ST. AUBYN: The minimum mandatory, that can't be part of the sentence? Does it 
say specifically prison? 

LITTLE: It is very specific. The shortest amount of prison time for the manufacture or sale of a 
controlled substance is 8 months, depending on the amount. It goes up from 8 months. It is very 
specific about prison time. 

SENATOR ST. AUBYN: Can it be a county jail, or that type of facility? 

LITTLE: If the minimum mandatory is 8 months, it can be a county jail. If it is longer than that 
or over a year then it needs to be a class 1 jail, which are limited to housing an inmate for l year. 
Anything over a year, they need to send them to the state prison . 

SENA TOR AND RIST: Is electronic monitoring being used or is it cost effective? 

LITTLE: Yes, we are using electronic monitoring. It is really just a tool. You can only use it for 
a limited amount of time, because it is so intense. Research has shown that after 3-6 months an 
offender just can't handle being incarcerated or cooped up that long. We do use it for short 
periods. It is a just a tool, not a sanction. ( tape 1, A, 1065) 

SENATOR NETHING: Are you talking the same thing? The bracelets the anklets and those 
kinds of things? What is confining about that? 

LITTLE: Basically, the individual wears the bracelet and it is hooked up to an electronic system 
whereby the person in control can determine when and how long the individual has to be in that 
setting. For example, if they have a job they could allow for that person to leave the home at 8:00 
and be back at 5:00. Outside of that time, you periodically call the residence and the individual 
has to be present to answer the phone or put their bracelet up to the phone so the individual 
knows the person is indeed at home. Basically it confines them to their house unless the officer in 
charge gives them specific time frames when they can be gone. 

SENA TOR AND RIST: I understood this could actually take the place of jail sentence. Nothing 
could be more confining than a 4x6 cell or whatever. 

LITTLE: It can be used that way, you just have to be careful about the crime and really how 
you ' re utilizing it because it is a system that is not foolproof. If the individual decides to run, 
they ' re going to run, there is nothing to hold them there. The system just alerts us in a matter of 
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time that they're gone, but they can still leave. An electronic monitor is seldom used on a sex 
offender because you have to know at all times where they are. But, it can be used as a jail 
sentence. 

SENATOR ANDRIST: Back to my original question, how much are you using that type of 
thing? 

LITTLE: We have about 15-20 offenders around the state on an average. It is time intensive for 
the officer who has individuals on electronic monitoring, so we use it sparingly. 

SENATOR NETHING: How does it work cost wise? 

LITTLE: It is quite cost effective. It probably costs between $10-$15 per day. At times, 
depending on the offender and their job status, we can have the offender pay for it. In that case, 
there wouldn't be any cost to the department. 

SENA TOR NE THING: How about for the officer? How many can an officer handle? 

LITTLE: Normally we say an officer can handle 4-5 at one time in conjunction with their other 
work. (tape 1, A, 1584) 

LITTLE: Presented information relative to the second chart: the number of admissions by 
sentence length; as well as information relating to other crime types on remaining pages. 
(attachment #1) 

SENATOR LINDAAS: What are property offenses? 

LITTLE: The whole area of theft- burglary, fraud; they may have a tie-in to drugs. 

SENATOR BOWMAN: Could we reduce costs by locating less violent criminals in less 
secure/less costly facilities? 

LITTLE: You'll hear about alternatives later. (tape 1, A, 1895) 

SENATOR ROBINSON: What are we projecting for numbers for June 1999, and where will 
we be at the end of the biennium; and how many federal inmates are housed at the facility and 
how many do we have out-of-state? (tape 1, A, 2050) 

LITTLE: The next part of my presentation will get to where our population is going to be, but in 
terms of the federal inmates, we have just a handful remaining in our facility. Most of those are 
on a trade basis. Basically we're getting the good end of the deal. They're housing one of our 
inmates that we do not have an adequate facility to handle, and in turn we're housing one of 
theirs. I think we have 5 total now with 3 leaving this week. On the average we have about 20 
inmates out of state on interstate compact, but at the same time that means we have 20 other 
inmates from other states in our system where it is a one-for-one trade. In terms of contracting for 
housing of inmates, we do very little of that. 
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SENATOR ROBINSON: That doesn' t include those in county jails? 

LITTLE: County jail inmates are in these populations. 

LITTLE: Reviewed inmate population projection for the next biennium and what they hope this 
committee will look at. The House made some changes, we're not comfortable with those 
changes. ( testimony 1 C, page 1) 

SEN ATOR ST. A UBYN: You talk about in the second year that 15 percent. Do we reach a 
point where the prison population stabilizes? (tape 1, A, 2640) 

LITTLE: We have tried to analyze that, but it is difficult because of the wide range of types of 
sentences that are given. But, looking at the average sentence right now of the minimum 
mandatory drug offenders which is about 5 years, we know it will take at least that time frame 
where we can start stabilizing. The other thing we hope will help stabilization is the alternatives 
we ' re using because we're pulling everyone out who has a sentence that doesn't need the 
maximum kind of housing. Our goal is that by the end of this biennium, we will be able to hold 
at the population projected and maybe even start, depending again what happens with sentencing 
and all of those kinds of things, we're hoping to keep a population that doesn't go beyond the 5th 
and 6th floors in Jamestown. (tape 1, A, 2800) 

SENATOR KRAUTER: We're loosing population in ND, and I look at this and we keep going 
the opposite way. What's the correlation? Are these individuals nonresidents? 

LITTLE: Drug offenders are really driving the prison population; methamphetamine has 
affected the population in a very different way. The violent offenses in some categories are 
related to more gang activities, especially in the eastern part of the state. So even though our 
population hasn't really grown, the type of offender we're seeing is primarily the ND resident. 

SENATOR NETHING: I'm not sure we're loosing as much population as it is shifting. 

LITTLE: I think it is remaining fairly stable. 

SENATOR NAADEN: What percentage of drug offender are taking treatment? 

LITTLE: We try to treat everyone who wants it. We currently have a lot of individuals on 
waiting lists and also individuals who we determine can be treated within the community when 
they're released. We're probably around 50% who would receive treatment within the facility. 

LITTLE: Presented the cost comparison of completing the 5th & 6th floors at JRCC, including 
House recommendations and how contracting affects the budget. (attachment 1 C, page 3) (tape 1, 
A, 3050-3250) 

SENATOR TOMAC: Who sets the $55 or $60 rate? How is that arrived at? 
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LITTLE: That rate has gradually increased since the time we first started contracting with the 
local jails, and then the private prison in Appleton. The Appleton rate right now is $50 per day. 
They, however, had asked for an increase last August to $60/day. We guaranteed 50 inmates for 
the rest of the biennium, they allowed us to remain at the $50/day. Rates are set by provider. 

SENATOR ANDRIST: Who provided the House with the numbers? 

LITTLE: We worked together and looked at lots of different options. The House subcommittee 
didn't believe our prison population was going to grow significantly, and thought we would have 
a tremendous impact with the revocation center up to July 1. They made the decision to use those 
lower numbers. 

SENATOR ANDRIST: How about their projections as to the cost? 

LITTLE: They took the current cost based on a survey of the jails, and used an average of the 
present costs. We know based on conversations this past year, those jails want increases. So to 
use the current rate for the entire next biennium is not going to be adequate. Also, those numbers 
didn' t include any travel money. (tape 1, A, 3765) 

SENATOR KRAUTER: Getting back to this issue on daily rates, when you say the counties are 
currently are at $45 and you have the state outside pay $55, I understand you negotiae these 
things like with Appleton. What number did you use for preparing the budget? 

LITTLE: We used $55 in the Governor's budget for the first year of the biennium and $60 for 
the second year of the biennium. We think this is as low as it is going to be based on the 
information we have received. 

SENATOR KRAUTER: Can you provide us some history from previous bienniums how you 
negotiated those with Appleton or what the rates have been, and how you've either prevailed in 
those negotiations or not. 

LITTLE: Appleton, we 've only started contracting with them during this biennium. Initially the 
rate was $50, and that is what we're still at. However, as I mentioned earlier, that is the number 
we' re still at. But as I mentioned earlier, we had to negotiate to keep it at that rate or it would 
have gone up to $60 had we not guaranteed a certain number of inmates. Whether we had that 
number of inmates or not, we had to guarantee filling certain numbers of beds. There are many 
states that need beds, and there is a waiting list. Basically when the time to negotiate comes, 
we're going to have to pay their rate because there will be another state waiting in line to pay that 
$60 if we don't. 

SENATOR BOWMAN: Have there been any studies to use existing closed military facilities? 

LITTLE: Yes. We looked at the Oakes facility, the only state-wide facility available. It would 
have been too costly to renovate. Across the country, there have been some states who have been 
able to use these facilities . (tape 1, A, 3914) 
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SENATOR SOLBERG: On the operating expenses of the Jametown facility, it looks like from 
April 2000 to June 2000, you have $730,000 operating? 

LITTLE: Yes, basically that would be the primary operating expenses like utility, food costs for 
the inmates, clothing--basically operating the facility . 

SENATOR SOLBERG: And, how many inmates? 

LITTLE: That is for an additional 100 and for the 2 floors. I'll review the costs to renovate the 
5th & 6th floor (Testimony #lC, page 4) 

SENATOR TALLACKSON: You get federal money if you remodel the 5th & 6th floor. Do 
you get the same amount if you contract out? 

LITTLE: The dollars would be available, but they need to be utilized for construction. 

SENATOR TOMAC: In rough figures, it costs approximately $30/day for salaries and 
maintenance of an inmate if the state does it themselves - above construction costs? 

LITTLE: That could be because when we add the 5th & 6th floors, all of the fixed costs are 
already taken care of there for the most part. Normally we say our costs are about $50/day. It will 
actually be less to do the 5th & 6th floor because we're already paying a lot of the fixed costs on 
the other floors. We'd be adding just the staff and basic inmate care costs. 

SENATOR TOMAC: So this addition is probably pretty cost effective; however, ifwe go 
beyond this addition, we may need to reanalyze it. 

LITTLE: Yes, that's fair. 

SENATOR ST. AUBYN: In comparing what the House did on that one chart and looking at 
your figures. I see a couple of different figures, on the 20 FTE positions, they had $749,560 (as 
prepared by the legislative council) and you had $733 ,494. Have these changed? 

LITTLE: We used the same numbers we used in the Executive budget, but in the House analysis 
that would include the salary increase dollars. It would be fair to use the $749,000 figure. 

SENATOR KRINGST AD: Are we currently heating the 5th & 6th floor now? 

LITTLE: Yes, to some extent at least because we're utilizing the 5th floor for crafts. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: How sure are we will receive federal dollars, and where are we with 
cooperating with the State Hospital on laundry, meals, etc.? 

LITTLE: I received notification just this week from Congress regarding the money. I will be 
attending a meeting this coming weekend. It is one of the topics on the agenda. From the 
beginning it has been characterized as a five-year program, and that ' s what states have done their 
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planning on. So other states are in the same situation we are and are depending on those dollars. 
We're confident we can get Congress to add those dollars back in. 

Our cooperation with the State Hospital has gone well. We weren' t able to contract with them for 
food because they use state employees in the preparation of their food, and state employee 
salaries. It was much more expensive than what we can do when we contract with a food service 
company who utilizes inmate help. So we're getting a lower rate by contracting than if we would 
have worked with the State Hospital. We're working with them on the laundry. They've asked us 
for a bid to do the State Hospital laundry. We'll have more information on that shortly. We're 
working with them in a number of ways. They are providing all of the addiction counseling free 
of charge to our revocation center utilizing state counselors at the State Hospital for us. We're 
also contracting with them for psychological services, x-ray, and other types of medical services. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: lfit is so much cheaper for you to provide food services, why hasn't 
the State Hospital looked at that? Couldn't we combine the two to save some dollars on the State 
Hospital side? 

LITTLE: We've had some discussion on that. One of the concerns was we have to make sure no 
prisoner goes outside of the fence. There was also a concern of carting and keeping the food 
warm, etc . 

SENATOR TALLACKSON: One of the items of discussion when we toured the facility last 
summer was the bunking of 6 people together. Is that turning out to be a problem? 

LITTLE: It isn't the best of situations. It is difficult to find 6 individuals who can get along. 

SENATOR KRAUTER: The double bunking and making sure we' re maximizing all of that, as 
I understand it, the east cell and the west cell are still maximum security, single inmate per cell. 
What are the options there to maximize that? 

LITTLE: The east cell house cannot physically be double bunked. The ceilings are so low there 
is not room to put another bunk on top of the other. The west cell house, many of the cells there 
house the administrative seg unit. The upper floors of the west cell house, we have in the past 
occasionally double bunked. It is mostly maximum security. The policy nationwide is it is not 
wise to double maximum security inmates. There are only so many inmates you can put into a 
facility with the number of auxiliary services available, the rec space, the food service, etc. We 
really believe with all of the double bunking we ' re doing now, which is the entire orientation 
unit, almost all of the cells in the south unit, that is the maximum amount of double bunking we 
can do. 

SENATOR KRAUTER: You say it is recommended not to double bunk maximum security, 
you ' re doing it already in the north unit. 

LITTLE: The north unit is orientation where inmates come in. There may be a maximum 
security person in there, but they ' re in there for a very short time and then moved to their cell. 
Many of those would not be maximum security. 
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SENATOR KRAUTER: The north unit has 66 bunks, 66 rooms capacity, so you're telling me 
we have a flow of 66 people moving into the system and on through it that fast? 

LITTLE: On the average, an inmate stays in orientation 5 weeks or less. Basically they are there 
to get their testing done, the evaluations, until we have enough information. They go through 
inmate rules until we have enough information to classify them, to give them a custody level, and 
then they're moved out. 

SENATOR NETHING: Senator Bowman asked about minimum security. How many people 
are in minimum security and where are they? 

LITTLE: Our only minimum security facility is the Missouri River Correctional Center south of 
Bismarck. That is composed of 150 beds. Those are the only minimum security beds we have, 
and right now because of the alternatives, what we're trying to do in keeping people in the 
community, we're having trouble finding 150 minimum people. 

SENATOR KRAUTER: The Council prepared me a memo that said we've also got the south 
unit that is maximum security and it is double bunked, and there may be 7 inmates there. That 
doesn't follow what you're saying. We also have another we're maximizing . 

LITTLE: The south unit is our honor dorm. The only inmates who get there are those who have 
performed in every way. That is why we're comfortable double bunking most of that unit. So, in 
a sense we are breaking our own rules, but it is because it is the honor dorm. 

TIM SCHUETZLE: Director of the Prisons Division, and also Warden at the State Penitentiary, 
presented the House budget cuts and how these cuts affect these programs (testimony attached 
#2) (tape 1, side A 6000-end; tape 1, side B, 0 - 57) 

SENATOR ST. AUBYN: You talk in that first paragraph you requested the committee add 
money back for the remaining positions, and then in the next paragraph, you talk about the 3 
COIi positions to operate the front lobby positions. One of these positions was removed by action 
taken by the HoU£e. l 'm.los.t.he.c.aus.e_b_efure_~mLs.aidJ. positions were funded out. ___________________ . _____ __ _ 

SCHUETZLE: We'd asked for a total of 3 positions for the front lobby, the House left 2 in the 
budget, and cut 1. These other 2 positions are work crew supervisors that they also removed. 

SENATOR ST. AUBYN: How do you currently operate that now? 

SCHUETZLE: There are times on the weekends when we don't have anyone in the front lobby. 
What we do then is we hold visitors back until we can free up an officer from the cell house to 
come out and shake down those people. When we do that we short ourselves in supervising the 
dining room or the recreation area. During the weekdays, we're using our reception, clerical 
position, to screen the people through. We do have an officer assigned to the visiting room and 
that person is out in the front lobby at the start of visiting hours and does most of that work for 



• 

Page 9 
Senate Appropriations Committee 
Bill/Resolution Number HB 1016.lwp 
Hearing Date 3/8/99 

us, but then as people come in afterwards we rely on our security officers we free up from the 
institution or our clerical position or receptionist who answers the telephone. 

SENATOR ANDRIST: Isn' t it possible to reduce visiting hours? 

SCHUETZLE: Yes, that is possible, but it is not something we would like to see happen. We 
have cut back on visiting now. We don' t have any visiting on Mondays. We find visiting is an 
important part for the inmates. It is good to keep them with some family ties. It is certainly 
something we could do; however, we would still have others coming into the facility, i.e. doctors, 
religious volunteers, and others coming in even if we cut back on the visiting hours. I wouldn't 
recommend cutting that, visiting is important. I'll continue with my testimony on capital 
improvements, page 2). My personal top priority would be to reinstate $198,000 to complete the 
fencing project. 

SENATOR NETHING: Did the House indicate why they cut the security fence? Those ofus 
that visited the facility had quite a concern about this problem. 

LITTLE: It was the general feeling among House subcommittee members that you've gotten 
along without it this long, you can continue to get along without it. 

SCHUETZLE: Continued with needed capital improvement projects, including the $21,000 to 
complete the ceiling tile project. 

SENATOR NETHING: They left $100,000, instead of your requested $121,000. Did the House 
indicate why they thought you could do it for that amount? (tape 1, B, 535) 

LITTLE: There wasn't anything specific, they were looking for dollars. 

SCHUETZLE: Continued with JRCC capital improvements, including $325,000 for a 
processing building, Forensic Unit barriers, and replacing the camera system in that unit. The 
first priority would be to get that building for processing visitors and the front gate built. (tape 1, 
B, 975) 

SEN ATOR NE THING: Why did you leave those improvements out of the original remodeling? 

SCHUETZLE: At the time, we were trying to get what we could with the money available to do 
that building. We knew we were cutting corners. Now that we've been in that building, we've 
found where the problems are. That's where the security issues come in. 

SENATOR NETHING: Would these renovations have been eligible for federal funds? 

SCHUETZLE: Yes, they would have. I'm not sure if they would be eligible for federal funds 
now. I think we're putting the $2.lM crime bill money we have available into the 5th & 6th floor 
renovation. 
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SENATOR ST. AUBYN: It seems $200,000 for this visitor center is high. Can you explain 
that? 

SCHUETZLE: I agree. It was originally proposed at $180,000. Part of that is not only for the 
construction, there is a microwave detection system for the building as well as the parking lot. 
We're looking at ways to scale back on that building and still have some money available to do 
some of these other projects. 

SENATOR BOWMAN: What's going to be coming down the pike after we do the 5th & 6th 
floor, finding out now that when we made this decision to do this to begin with, we thought we 
were spending the money to have a prison. Now we find out we only have half a one and we have 
to fund all of these other projects. When you finish the 5th & 6th floors, two or three years later, 
what's going to come down that we're going to need to finish? It seems this is an ongoing 
concern. We were told this is what is going to take to do the project, but when the project is 
done, it isn't nearly enough. 

SCHUETZLE: You weren't told by me that's what it would take to get the project done. We 
were given a number. This is what you can use to build the building. That is what we did. We did 
the best we could with the funds given to us. Is it the best prison? The best security? Absolutely 
not. Will I be back in 3 years when something comes up? Yes, I probably will be. That might not 
make you happy, but my job is to try to keep this place secure and to try to keep the people who 
need to be inside, inside. So, if I see things down the line I really believe we need, I'll come and 
ask for them. It isn't cheap to run a prison. It costs money. I guess we have to put a degree on 
how much public safety we want to have. 

SENATOR ROBINSON: We took care of floors 1, 2, 3, and 4 last session. We're looking at 5 
& 6. What about the rest of the building - the roof -- are we in pretty good shape there in terms of 
needs? 

SCHUETZLE: Right now, as far as I know the roof is fine. Actually the building is in pretty 
good shape. But, when we did go in to do some of the remodeling, we did find problems with the 
steam pipes, the toilets, the asbestos (we knew about that), there were things that added to the 
cost. Actually the ET building itself is pretty good. There are things in the Forensics Building 
that we've asked for that are still in our budget that we're doing. I think the gymnasium building 
is probably one that isn't in very good shape. But, it is functional - we're using it and will 
continue to use it. I don't know of any problems in the two main buildings that are 
insurmountable at this time. (tape 1, B, 1315) 

SE~ATOR ROBINSON: So, ifwe have additional costs, they're going to be surprise type 
things - revisions, security enhancements and those types of things? 

SCHUETZLE: I believe so. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: I believe you mentioned something about the food service area on the 
Missouri River Correctional Facility. That's a new building, do you have to remodel it already? 
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SCHUETZLE: That is a new building and it isn't to be remodeled. That is a capital project 
building. It's actually in the bonding bill, HB 1022, and we'll be discussing that Wednesday 
morning. It isn't part of this budget bill. The Governor had it placed in the bonding bill. We did 
build a new building for a dormitory, but there was no food service put into that dorm in '92. 
We're still using the 1930's building for the food service. 

SENATOR NETHING: Presented a handout providing a summary of a Utah corrections 
facility) (attachment #3) 

DENNIS FRACASSI: Director, Rough Rider Industries. I know you are veteran lawmakers 
so we're not going to talk about the basis of our program, but I would like to share with you a 
couple of things that are rather exciting for our program and then I'll briefly go over our budget 
numbers. (attachment #4) (tape 1, B, 2190-2745) 

SENATOR BOWMAN: You said you want to expand to between 50-70 inmates. What kind of 
profit potential is there to put back into your industry with this new program that you're getting 
involved in? 

FRACASSI: There is tremendous amount of opportunity for the private sector. We're not profit 
motivated, but one thing this program will do for us is we place more accountability on the 
inmate. We will be making deductions from the inmate. We're allowed to take up to 80% of that 
inmate's gross wages. They'll be paid minimum wage and those deductions will go for victim's 
compensation, bonds restitution, and under the ruling board provision, we can take some of those 
dollars and put them back into the industry program to help get us over the hurdle. 

SENATOR BOWMAN: Are these companies you're going to be working for going to help 
capitalize the project? 

FRACASSI: No, right now they are not. The risk is on us. 

SENATOR BOWMAN: They want us to capitalize it, the prisoners to do the labor, and they 

---- ~ re=al2-1he P~to=fi=1t=s?~· ----------------------------------

• 

FRACASSI: As it stands right now, yes. And, that is not unusual for any new prison industry 
partnership program. The first one is very, very difficult to get going. We've talked to well over 
100 businesses in ND. The fact that Acceleration Products is willing to give us a chance after 
hearing our story I think is positive. But, the risk is all on us at this point in time. 

SENATOR NE THING: Tell us a little more about the kind of relationship you have with the 
company? They don't pay any rent? They pay something to you for doing this, do they not? 
You've got to generate some money someplace to pay those wages. (tape 1, B, 2930) 

FRACASSI: You're absolutely correct. We will charge them for the product and it wil take us 
some time to determine what our actual costs are. In the case of GEM, we have agreed to build 
their products for the prices that they are currently buying. And, then we will need some time to 
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work to see how we can cut costs and how we can get our production levels more efficient to get 
under that price. Those prices are already established. In the case with Acceleration Products, we 
have the opportunity to start from the ground, develop our costs, determine what our overheads 
are, and then charge them accordingly. We generally look for a 33% profit. 

SENATOR NETHING: And, isn't some of that money then used to offset the capitalization 
costs? 

FRACASSI: Yes, sir. 

SENATOR NETHING: I think you left the impression with Senator Bowman they weren't 
responsible for any capitalization costs. They don' t come up with any front dollars, I understand 
that. But, they ultimately will be paying, as you price these products out, some of that will 
include interest, or part of the recovery, or something, will it not? 

FRACASSI: Yes, Mr. chairman. Thank you for clarifying that. I apologize, Senator Bowman, 
for leading you to that. But, yes, any interest, any principal, any interest expense we absorb, any 
overhead costs for insurance, utilities, staff, labor, all of those things have to be built into the 
product cost and will be passed on to the two companies in the form of the products we sell and 
the price we charge . 

SENATOR SOLBERG: A couple of questions: 1) What are your total sales at Rough Rider 
Industries for this biennium? 

FRACASSI: Last fiscal year, our gross sales were $3.lM. We anticipate doing about 
$5.2-$5 .3M for the biennium. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: For the biennium? 

FRACASSI: Yes. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: So, we're still running in the red about $3M? 

FRACASSI: That's correct, sir. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: 2) How's your computer system. And, you know I'm pretty chaffed 
about what you did last time on the computer systems. 

FRACASSI: Yes, I do understand you' re upset with this. I'm not quite sure why, Senator. I'd be 
more than happy to sit down with you and walk through this from point A to point Z, whatever it 
takes. I really believe that we were prudent in doing what we did. We went through all of the 
appropriate channels that were available to us, And, I'm really not--I do know, sir, that you' re 
upset, but I' m not sure why. I would welcome an opportunity to sit down with you an work it out . 

SENATOR SOLBERG: I think I'm upset, Dennis, is .. Ifl may, Mr. Chairman? 
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SENATOR NETHING: Yeah, better bring it out now. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: It's been brought out already, but it will be brought out also. Two years 
ago in this committee, you were specifically asked if there was anything else needed. No. You 
talked about the computer system, but the needs of that could certainly wait. And, I don't think 
our taillights were too far from Bismarck leaving last session when you began the process of a 
new computer system in Rough Rider Industries to the tune of $182,000 - about $40,000 some of 
that financed for this biennium. I don't for the life of me understand if that was such an 
emergency, and it did go through the emergency commission and the budget section, why all of a 
sudden that was such a grave emergency it had to be done that way when it wasn't two years ago 
or about three months prior to when you began the process. I don't believe in bypassing the 
appropriation process. Now, if you can explain how this all happened, you can explain it to me, 
and if you don't want to go further that's fine. But, I still don't buy it. 

FRACASSI: If everybody is interested, I would be glad to give my explanation. 

SENATOR NETHING: I think we are, let's hear your explanation. 

FRACASSI: What happened was we were on a mainframe AS400 computer, and we had always 
intended to convert over to a PC networking system as we were working with ISO as they ~re 
developing the PC networking for the state. We had planned on putting it in the '97-'99 
biennium, and we were going to use revenues from the general issue of license plates to pay for 
that. The Department of Motor Vehicle informed us they would not be requesting a general issue 
for the '97-'99 biennium. We pulled it out of our budget. We were going to wait until this 
session to ask for that. Right after we left the last session in July of '97, IBM informed us we had 
to bring our AS400 up two or three grades in order to retain support. We were about 2-3 tiers that 
these AS400s are built on behind. The system was doing us just fine and we didn't want to invest 
the $20-30,000 per tier to upgrade a system that we knew we were going to abandon. But, we 
also didn't anticipate that IBM and the software company, Markum, would hold us hostage by 
saying you will lose all of your support unless you upgrade right now. We took that dilernna to 
ISD and said, "What shall we do? They said your request to replace the system is out of 
compliance. They had two options - they could deny our request, or they could request additional 

_____ _.....ia.u..formatio.n...fram us They_did_that.___Ihey asked for additional information from Rough Riders 
Industries which we provided for them, and we explained the timing of all of this. 

• 

SENATOR NETHING: Who is they? 

FRACASSI: ISO, sir. 

SENA TOR NETHING: That's our own PR, I thought it was IBM. 

FRACASSI: IBM was telling us we needed to upgrade. The whole total cost would have been 
about $65,000. We knew we were going to replace this system within two years anyway, and it 
just didn't make sense to put $65,000 into a system we were going to replace in two years. 
That ' s when we went to ISD and said can we go ahead and buy this thing now? We'll have to put 
it on lease because we don't have the general funds to pay for it. When they asked for additional 
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information, we provided it to them. They stated they would support our request, contingent upon 
being heard at the budget section committee. We did that. I know, Senator Solberg, you were 
upset at that committee meeting as was Representative Byerly. After that was all done, I didn't 
know what went on, and so we asked the chairman. I said what happened here? Can we go 
forward or not? We were told yes, you can. 

SENATOR NETHING: Who was the chairman that told you that? 

FRACASSI: Representative Dalrymple. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: I believe the deal was already made at that time. There was no choice 
on whether we went forward. The deal was made on the December budget section. The deal was 
made, signed, the whole ball of wax. (tape 1, B, 3725) 

FRACASSI: I don't believe that is true. I think it was January of '98 before the deal was 
consummated. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: I'll bring the minutes of the meeting, and this is exactly what 
happened. This is what we were told. Now we're finding out something different again. I think 
you and I better sit down and have a long talk, sir. 

FRACASSI: I would welcome that opportunity. I sure would like to clear this up. 

SENATOR ANDRIST: You say you pay the inmates within Rough Rider Industries minimum 
wage rates? (tape 1, B, 3785) 

FRACASSI: Yes, that is correct for these partnership programs. We will be paying the inmates 
either minimum or prevailing wages. There are no other companies similar to that in the 
Jamestown locale. There are no prevailing wages, so we use minimum. 

SENA TOR AND RIST: I guess I was just thinking, this is a teaching thing as well as a business 
thing for the inmates. I think it would be a good thing to think of providing some small incentive 

----~ fi=o~r_,..p~er~fi=ormance. That way we're guing to teach them performance is related to what they will be 
expected to do when they are released. 

• 

FRACASSI: I agree with you and we have built an incentive into their program. We are going to 
deduct from their gross wages, 80% the first month; 79% the second month (they'll have 1 % 
more net income for each month of continuous employment with good behavior). That is a huge 
incentive. Right now if they work a full 40 hour week, their first month they'll net $178 and they 
will in effect get 5 cents an hour per hour increase for each month of continuous employment. 
$178 in net income after paying fines, restitution, room and board, is a considerable amount of 
money for any inmate. There are a lot of people out in the streets that after they pay their rent and 
everything else they don't have $178 to use. But, also out of this $178, 25% goes into a 
mandatory savings account, the rest they use for their livelihood, sending home to their families, 
or what have you. Hopefully the more responsible ones will save up and have a nest egg when 
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they get out. That is one of the most difficult things inmates have when they get out if they don't 
have any money they have no way of making it, and they return to crime in many cases. (tape 1, 
B, 4070) 

WARREN EMMER: Director, Department of Corrections Division of Field Services, the 
community side of the department of corrections. Reviewed the adjustments that were made to 
the Governor's budget, the revocation program developed in Jametown, as well as our alternative 
programs for sentencing, and the supervision fee amendment that was also proposed by the 
House. (attachment #5) (tape 1, B, 5360 - 5500) 

SENATOR ST. AUBYN: Are you saying that for the '99-'0l, they were all cut? 

EMMER: About $150,000 were cut. Elaine thought some of these were new to the committee 
and she wanted me to discuss it. We would have to make a determination in here somewhere 
where we would cut back. Otherwise, all of this is actually being funded into the next biennium. 

SENATOR ST. AUBYN: So, on these 115 beds for the next biennium, that's already figured in 
Elaine's projections? 

EMMER: Yes, in fact, she's counting on it. The major priority I would have is to replace that 
$144,000 in special funds with general funds. I believe raising that supervision fee up to $3 5 
would be counterproductive, and that we'd actually generate less money possibly than we are 
currently. (Presentation continued- tape 1, B, 5515-6208) 

SENATOR NETHING: Why is this $5 supervision fee such a hardship? 

EMMER: The rest of the country has experienced this program along with us. They've seen the 
pluses and minuses. The important thing is it is a cooperative program. It is cooperative because 
the court also has to buy into it. We haven't had any discussions with the court. There are some 
judges out there that were very reluctant initially, to support a supervision fee program. The 
supervisory fee program could be effectively waved by any judge that chose to. So we want to 
have the time to put that in place. The other thing that happens, you aren't going to start 
generating this income_righLaway. All of the offenders who are currently under supervision 
would be subject to the old law of $30. So it causes a whole lot of confusion out there. New 
offenders coming in at $35 may talk. They'll say we've got to pay $35, why does this guy pay 
$30? Some of these guys then go ahead and choose not to pay anything. Then we wind up in 
front of the judge because somebody has failed to pay supervision fees. Then a judge says you're 
the one who asked to collect the additional money. It becomes a very difficult situation. If we can 
wait and have this thing slowly moved into place by July 1, 2001, we have a $36 supervisory fee 
versus $35 which is one the current amendment. We'll have virtually every offender that is 
currently under supervision in 2001 eligible for the new legislation. So there will be very few we 
have to grandfather in. And, we' ll also have the court on board with us. I support the fact 
offenders pay. We were the first state in the Upper Midwest to initiative a supervision fee 
program, and we've done it on our own accord. The real problem is if we don't do it carefully, 
we could cause more harm than good with the other players. 
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SENATOR NETHING: If the court was mandated (by us) to do this, then you're off the hook, 
right? 

EMMER: There are mandates out there that -- I'm not sure that would work. On a practical 
level, I think we need to support the court from the standpoint of being participants in this thing, 
I think mandating it would be the wrong approach. There are a lot ofreasons that it wouldn't 
make sense to mandate in the first place. There are some people who are indigent. Of course, we 
allow them to work it off in community service. Also, there are a lot of offenders who owe 
restitution and other fees and fines, so it is really the court's prerogative to make the final 
decision as to how people pay what. We'll support whatever comes out of this committee and 
whatever the Governor signs, but we're just cautioning you that may cause us more harm than 
good. 

SENA TOR NETHING: It may have an impact on your budget that you wouldn't like otherwise, 
so that may be the alternative. Joe, I think we need to make a note of that. We still have the Court 
budget and we may want to have some gentle intent or something that we expect this to be added 
to that. 

SENATOR KRAUTER: Getting back to C2, the $149,800, and that is the community offender 
services. I'm trying to find in your testimony what the Governor's number was. If we take out 
$149,000, what does that leave us? What is the total we're still spending? 

EMMER: We'd be spending $2M. The subcommittee just rounded it to an even number. They 
didn't point to any specific part of the alternatives and say we need to cut there. 

SENATOR ST. AUBYN: On these positions, are they currently vacant? 

WARREN EMMER: These are all new positions. So the House eliminated 4 of our new 
positions. (tape 2, A,, 465) 

ALLEN LICK: Director, Division of Juvenile Services, presented an overview of House 
budget cuts and their impact (attachment #1, page 2) as well as program impact (attachment #6, 

-----uage.2)-(tape-2,-A,..A-8-0--LL5.Q:,...__ _____________________ _ 
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SEN ATOR NE THING: I gather all of the classes listed on your sheet are being taught for a 
nine-month period. 

LICK: We run a 10-month school. 

SENATOR NETHING: The idea the House has is that you'll still run 10 months for everybody, 
but for the other two months, you'll only run the core curriculum 

LICK: Yes, and above that you'll see the classes we'll provide in the core curriculum, and below 
that the classes we won't provide in the core curriculum. 
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SENATOR GRINDBERG: Regarding the life safety systems, was there involvement from the 
state architect and state health office? We had another request that all of a sudden we had to put a 
sprinkler systems in a vet's home in Lisbon which had been inspected over 3 bienniums and 
judged to be safe. Now a new person comes in and now we have to make a change. Is any of that 
involved with this project as well? 

LICK: We got this from the Fire Marshall's Office. We've got a letter I can provide to the 
committee, if you like, that says we need this in the building. We'd done the other buildings on a 
scheduled basis and these may have allowed us to schedule these and this is the schedule for this 
to come up. The other thing we've done along the way, too, is we used to have doors that you 
would lock individually. We have now put in automatic doors. That was on a schedule basis. We 
didn't want to hit you all at one time with all of these things. We've tried to schedule as we go 
along. The life safety - the fire safety things come up this time. 

SENATOR ANDRIST: Is the Fire Marshall in the Health Department now? 

LICK: The Fire Marshall is in the Attorney General's Office. 

SENA TOR AND RIST: What kind of computers are you looking at buying? Are they 
instructional computers? 

LICK: It is replacement computers at the correctional center. The instructional computers, the 
PC's, are now at the point where we could say they were in the school, but they could be in other 
places, too. The DP people tell me over the course of having the number of computers in place 
for an amount of time, you need to replace so many. We just took the schedule we have. We 
have computers for kids now, but we don' t know where and when the others are going to go out. 
This part of the replacement schedule we were given. 

SENATOR ANDRIST: We run into this in every budget, everybody's got to recycle and get 
new computers every 2-3 years. If we figure out what you really need in a computer, how much 
capacity, how much hard drive? It seems to me that if you need a little less than some other 
department uses, maybe you could scrounge some. Computers are worth virtually nothing at the 

_____ _._.ti_._.m_._,,e'----,Jyou replace them. I think our legislative computers, which were notebooks, went for just a 
few hundred dollars. They really had a lot of capacity. I would think in this whole capitol there 
would be lots of places where you could find free computers. Talk to ISO. 

LICK: If we can find some computers someplace, we will get our hands on them. ISD is where 
we got the quote from for our replacements. 

SENATOR TOMAC: Can you walk me through the long-range plan for Divine Hall? 

LICK: The Historical Society comes to us and says we're going to put these buildings on the 
Historical list; but, nothing comes with that to keep the building going. We tore down another 
one that was on the Historical list. Down the line this building may best be used for 
administrative offices. Architecturally, it is one of the buildings that when we did our 10 year 
plan, the architect said this is a salvageable building and it could be used. The trouble with using 
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it for kids is it has real high ceilings, no elevator or anything in it. So if we would use it for 
anything, our plan would be to use it for administration. But, we' re at the point we won't be able 
to use it for anything if we don't put something into it right now. It isn't one of our highest 
priorities because kids come first, but it is a critical time to look at that building. We haven't 
been in that building for about 6 years. 

SENATOR KRAUTER: Do we heat it, but the heating systems is so bad it only keeps it warm. 

SENATOR NETHING: Is this the building the House said don't make any improvements to? 

LICK: Yes. 

SENATOR ROBINSON: We haven ' t used it for 6 years, ifwe don' t make the improvements 
and create an administrative facility, are we going to be in need of an administrative facility in 
2-4 years because of growth. Or, is it a situation where if we just tore it down, we'd be fine down 
the road? 

LICK: Our 10-year plan included the architects and engineers. They came in and said keep these 
buildings, don't keep these. We're keeping some they told us not to keep. We're putting life 
safety systems into them because that is what the powers to be want us to do. Our administration 
now is housed where the school is. The numbers in the juvenile center are staying at about 500, 
but when you look at the population of ND, they ' re actually going up in our division because the 
number of kids are going down; and by 2003 are going to go down much quicker. You've all 
looked at that data. We're really growing a little bit as an agency. We have another bill in the 
building bill that takes care of some long-term projects that we're taking care of. I can't tell you, 
Senator Robinson that in 4 years we'd be occupying that building with administration. There are 
so many things that have happened along the way, that if we followed our plan we wouldn't be 
doing now anyway. That is hard to project. (tape 2, A, 2006) 

ELAINE LITTLE: Presented the central office budget (handout #1 , p 1) that shows cuts they 
would like reinstated. 

-----~S~E~N~A~IOR ST. AlIRYN: I requested from the Council, a summary regarding computer 
equipment and things like that, i.e. needed computer equipment for the Y2K, high end user, etc. 
I'm having this made available for all the appropriation committee members. I'm still trying to 
verify if it includes everything I need, but one of the things I find interesting even within your 
department, the cost of computers varies division by division. Was there any discussion about 
that in terms of budgetary purposes? In some cases they used $2,000/computer - in other cases 
$2,200, etc. 

LITTLE: The reason for that probably is that in every division, the fiscal person develops the 
budget. In some cases you might be purchasing computers with different capacity. But, in most 
cases you would generally have a constant dollar amount for computer purchase. The equipment 
decrease of 25% will probably impact the connectivity to develop an offender information 
system. 
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SENATOR NAADEN: Ifwe put money back in to redo that 5th & 6th floor, what is the wash? 
The House has contract money then that we wouldn' t need, right? 

LITTLE: Right. On page 4 of handout # 1, at the bottom of the page it shows the difference. The 
Governor's budget initially included over $4M in contract, the House reduced that to $2.6M. The 
new estimates I provided for you this morning would require just over $2M for contracting. So 
out of that line you could reduce another $611,000 out of the contracting line. On the upper end, 
you need to add back the money to do the renovation. (tape 2, A, 2814) 

SENATOR SOLBERG: I keep going back to this federal money. It is going to be very difficult, 
in my opinion, to build a budget if we' re going to even think of going back to James River if we 
don't know if we have that other $2M. We can hope and dream, but until it is solid, and it's not 
in the budget, it' s pretty tough for us to put money into a situation like this and make the 
commitment. 

LITTLE: It is a concern of mine also. I don' t know what direction to tell you to take. I believe 
the federal money will be reinstated, but I can' t tell you that for sure. I'm hoping after this 
weekend I'll have a little bit more information. I don' t know if I'll still be at a point where I can 
give you anything concrete. We will have to make some decisions in that area. 

SENATOR NETHING: I guess the only answer is that ifwe don't receive the federal money, 
there isn't going to be anything built. We 've done contingent things before, and if the money 
doesn ' t come, you ' ll have to do some other alternative. 

LITTLE: Our concern is, and I think the committee would have to look at that, in the event it 
isn ' t built, it will end up costing you more money. 

SENATOR NETHING: That's exactly right, but that may well be the only alternative. If we 
don' t have the money, maybe there's another place within the penitentiary budget, I doubt it. 

SENATOR KRINGSTAD: Is there any federal money for contracting? (tape 2, A, 2814) 

LITTLE: Not that I know of. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: In the juvenile services, the medical part, are these residents wards of 
the state or are they wards of the family? How do you consider them? 

LITTLE: Once the division of juvenile services has the individual, we have formal custody of 
that juvenile. However, we try to keep their families involved. If the family has medical 
insurance, that would still cover. However, it is seldom families have medical coverage. 

SENATOR SOLBERG: The CHIPS program that was just approved in the House, a vast 
number of these individuals would be under 18 individuals, and probably qualify under the 
CHIPS program, wouldn ' t they? 

LITTLE: Yes, that is correct. 
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TOM MARTIN: Former criminal prosecutor in ND and MN and Rick Berg's nephew. I run an 
electronic home detention company in four western counties of MN. As I read the law in ND for 
DUI's anyway, sentencing judges in ND aren't allowed to sentence offenders under the minimum 
mandatory that Director Little spoke of earlier. Representative Berg and I drafted an amendment 
(attachment #7) to the existing DUI law that would allow sentencing judges to sentence an 
offender insider the minimum mandatory to electronic detention. One of the senators mentioned 
"gadgetry . This is state of the art gadgetry (passed around machine that contains an intoxilizer 
machine) This machine is hooked to the offender's phone along with a video camera. What you 
end up at the central monitoring computer is a photograph of the offender, a record of the date 
and time of call, and whether or not the offender tested positive for alcohol. The photo at the 
bottom is an actual photograph of the offender at the time the machine was installed in the 
offender's home. We have walked into Counties and subcontracted the entire ordeal. Director 
Little indicated it takes quite a bit of effort for a probation officer to follow the~e people who are 
on home arrest. It does. I have 1 full-time staff person for every 30 people we supervise. That's 
all they do 8 hours a day is track these people down, install the equipment, and go back and get 
it. (tape 2, A, 3075-3355) 

SENATOR BOWMAN: What would the cost savings be to the state? 

MARTIN: My major client is Clay County, MN. We figure we're saving them a little over 
$35,000/month. That's a county of 50,000 people. We have people on the program, 
predominantly DUI's, but we're also supervising low-grade felons. 

SENA TOR BOWMAN: What would your charge per person be? 

MARTIN: We charge $15/day/person, which is fairly comparable to what the state or local 
governments can be the equipment for. Basically, we provide the service of installing the 
equipment, making sure the reports are reviewed on a daily basis who knows what they mean, 
and then if there is a problem, we contact the probation officer or the prosecutor to make sure 
that problem is addressed by the court. 

____ ___._,S~E.NALQR TOMAC: Was this offered in the House? 

MARTIN: No, it is a matter of timing. 

SENA TOR TO MAC: What liability do you have? 

MARTIN: I have a $1 M liability policy. 

SENATOR NETHING: We will assign this to a subcommittee with Senator Nething, Chair, 
and Senator Kringstad and Senator Robinson. 

SENATOR NETHING: Closed the hearing on engrossed HB 1016. (tape 2, B, 3700) 
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tape 1, A, 960-3427 

SENATOR NETHING: Reopened the hearing on engrossed HB 1016, and presented an 
overview of the engrossed bill and presented the proposed amendments. 

JOE SMITH: (LC) Explained the proposed amendments. 
DISCUSSION was entertained, and the motion called for. 

SENATOR KRINGSTAD: Moved do pass the proposed amendment 98016.0203. 
SENATOR ROBINSON: Seconded the motion. 
ROLL CALL: Unanimous voice vote approval to do pass proposed amendment. 

SENATOR KRINGSTAD: Moved do pass engrossed HB 1016, as amended. 
SENATOR ROBINSON: Seconded the motion. 
ROLL CALL: 14 yeas; 0 nays; 0 absent & not voting 
MOTION CARRIED TO DO PASS ENGROSSED HB 1016, AS AMENDED. 
CARRIER: SENATOR KRINGSTAD 
SENATOR NETHING: Closed the hearing on HB 1016. 
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98016.0201 
Title. 

lft3 /0 /~ .Jt1 
~1~"-1-tn 

Prepared by the Legislative touncil staff for 
Representative Berg 

February 26 , 1999 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1016 

Page 1, line 2, after "rehabilitation" insert"; to create and enact a new subsection to section 
39-08-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to inmate placement for driving 
while under the influence" 

Page 3, after line 31, insert: 

"SECTION 7. A new subsection to section 39-08-01 of the North Dakota 
Century Code is created and enacted as follows: 

As used in this section. the term "imprisonment" includes house arrest 
whether sentenced to house arrest by the court or committed to the 
department of corrections and rehabilitation. If committed to the 
department. the director of the department may determine the type of 
imprisonment. As a condition of house arrest. a defendant may not 
consume alcoholic beverages. The house arrest must include a program 
of electronic home detention in which the defendant is tested at least twice 
daily for the consumption of alcohol." 

Renumber accordingly 
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98016.0203 

Title., tl~O 
Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Nething 

March 31, 1999 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1016 

Page 1, line 2, remove the second "and" 

Page 1, line 3, after "probationers" insert "; to provide an effective date; and to declare an 
emergency" 

Page 1, line 14, replace "115,000" with "118,682" 

Page 1, line 15, replace "20,200" with "26,950" 

Page 1, line 16, replace "1 ,000,270" with "1,010,702" 

Page 1, line 20, replace "4 ,229,174" with "4,344,374" 

Page 1, line 21, replace "104,321" with "123,571" 

Page 1, line 22, replace "35,000" with "74,500" 

Page 2, line 1, replace "16,991,440" with "17,165,390" 

Page 2, line 2, replace "5,674,504" with "5,839,216" 

Page 2, line 3, replace "11,316,936" with "11 ,326,174" 

Page 2, line 8, replace "9,635,277" with "9,836,759" 

Page 2, line 9, replace "16,699,252" with "19,350,252" 

Page 2, line 11, replace "20,341 ,166" with "21,576,321" 

Page 2, line 13, replace "61,461,535" with "65,549,172" 

Page 2, line 14, replace "12,660,179" with "14,865,710" 

Page 2, line 15, replace "48,801 ,356" with "50,683,462" 

Page 2, line 16, replace "61,118,562" with "63,020,338" 

Page 2, line 17, replace "18,334,683" with "20,704,926" 

Page 2, line 18, replace "79,453,245" with "83 ,725,264" 

Page 2, remove lines 29 through 31 

Page 3, replace lines 1 through 21 with : 

"SECTION 4. LAND BOARD DISTRIBUTIONS. Notwithstanding the 
provisions of section 15-03-05.2, during the 1999-2001 biennium, the board of 
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university and school lands shall distribute to the youth correctional center all income 
from permanent funds managed for the benefit of that institution." 

Page 3, line 29, replace "thirty-five" with "thirty-six" 

Page 3, after line 31, insert: 

"SECTION 6. APPROPRIATION. The funds provided in this section , or so 
much of the funds as may be necessary, are hereby appropriated from special funds 
derived from federal funds to the department of corrections and rehabilitation for the 
purpose of defraying its expenses for the period beginning with the effective date of this 
Act and ending June 30, 1999, as follows: 

Operating expenses 
Equipment 

Total special funds 

$15,000 
18,209 

$33,209 

SECTION 7. EFFECTIVE DATE. Section 5 of this Act is effective for fees 
collected after December 31, 2000, for offenses committed after June 30, 1999. 

SECTION 8. EMERGENCY. Section 6 of this Act is declared to be an 
emergency measure." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

DEPARTMENT 530 - DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS AND REHABILITATION 

SENATE - This amendment makes the following changes: 
EXECUTIVE HOUSE SENATE SENATE 

BUDGET VERSION CHANGES VERSION 

Central Office: 
Salaries and wages $878,152 $865,070 $865,070 
Operating expenses 118,682 115,000 $3,682 118,682 
Equipment 26,950 20,200 6,750 26,950 

Total all funds $1 ,023.784 $1,000.270 $10,432 $1,010,702 

Less estimated income 

Total general fund $1,023 ,784 $1 ,000,270 $10,432 $1,010,702 

Juvenile Services: 
Salaries and wages $9,764,955 $9,552,045 $9,552,045 
Operating expenses 4,344,374 4,229,174 $115,200 4,344 ,374 
Equipment 141 ,771 104,321 19,250 123,571 
Capital improvements 371,900 35,000 39,500 74,500 
Grants 2,870,900 2,870.900 2,870,900 
Delinquency prevention 200,000 200,000 200,000 

consortium 

Total all funds $1 7,693.900 $16,991,440 $173,950 $17,165,390 

Less estimated income 5,688,979 5,674 504 164 712 5,839,216 

Total general fund $12,004,921 $11 ,316,936 $9,238 $11 ,326.174 

Adult Services: 
Victim services $2.610,550 $2,609,036 $2,609,036 
Institutional offender 828 ,335 821,649 821,649 

services 
Community offender 10,029,660 9,635 ,277 $201.482 9,836.759 

services 
Support services 20,234,93 1 16,699,252 2,651 ,000 19,350,252 
Program services 3,853 ,788 3,833 ,361 3,833,361 
Security and salety 23,625.750 20.341 ,166 1,235,155 21 ,576,321 
Roughrider Industries 9 243 724 7 521 794 7 521 794 

Total all lunds $70 ,426,738 $61 ,46 1.535 $4,087,637 $65,549, 1 72 

Less estimated income t 6 335 431 t 2 660 179 2,205,531 14,865,710 
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T 01al general tund $54 .091 .307 $48.801 ,356 $1 ,882.106 $50,683,462 

Grand total all funds $89.144,422 $79,453,245 $4,272,019 $83,725.264 

Less grand total special funds 22,024,410 18,334,683 2,370,243 20,704,926 

Grand total general fund $67,120.012 $61 ,11 8,562 $1,901 .776 $63,020,338 

• FTE 577.21 546.68 26.00 572.68 

Detail of Senate changes to the House version: 

FUNDING 
SOURCE 
CHANGE 

FOR YOUTH 
DELAY CORRECTIONAL 

RESTORE RESTORE REDUCE SUPERVISION CENTER 
RESTORE OPERATING CAPITAL CAPITAL FEE 12-MONTH 

EQUIPMENT EXPENSES IMPROVEMENTS IMPROVEMENTS INCREASE SCHOOL 

Central OHice: 
Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses $3,682 3 
Equipment $6,750 1 

Total all funds $6,750 $3,682 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Less estimated income 

Total general fund $6,750 $3,682 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Juvenile Services: 
Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses $115 ,200 4 
Equipment $19,250 2 
Capital improvements $39,500 5 
Grants 
Delinquency prevention 
consortium 

Total all funds $19,250 $115,200 $39,500 $0 $0 $0 

Less estimated income 19,250 12,094 9 

Total general fund $0 $1 15,200 $39,500 $0 $0 ($12,094) 9 

Adult Services: 
Victim services 
Institutional offender 

services 
Community offender 

services 
Support services $2,751 ,000 6 ($100,000) 7 
Program services 
Security and safety 
Roughrider Industries 

Total all funds $0 $0 $2,751 ,000 ($100,000) $0 $0 

Less estimated income 2,313,531 (108,000) 8 

Total general fund $0 $0 $437,469 ($100,000) $108,000 8 $0 

Grand total all funds $26,000 $118,882 $2,790,500 ($100,000) $0 $0 

Less grand total special 19,250 2,313,531 (108,000) 12,094 
funds 

Grand total general fund $6,750 $118,882 $476,969 ($100,000) $1 08,000 ($12,094) 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

RESTORE FUNDING 
POSITIONS ANO RESTORE SOURCE 

OPERATI NG OPERATING CHANGE TO 
RESTORE EXPENSES EXPENSES REFLECT 
POSITIONS FOR 5TH ANO FOR ADDITIONAL 

AND RELATED 6TH FLOOR CONTRACT LAND TOTAL 
OPERATING RENOVATION INMATE DEPARTMENT SENATE 
EXPENSES AT JRCC HOUSING DISTRIBUTIONS CHANGES 

Central Otfice : 
Salaries and wages 

$3,682 Operating expenses 
Equipment 6,750 

Total all funds $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,432 

Less estimated income 

Total general lund $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,432 

Juvernle Services. 
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Snlaries and wages 
Operating expenses $115,200 
Equipment 19.250 
Capital improvements 39,500 
Grants 
Delinquency prevention 

consortium 

Total all funds $0 $0 $0 $0 $173,950 

Less estimated income 133 ,368 14 164 712 

Total general tund $0 $0 $0 ($1 33,368) 14 $9,238 

Adult Services: 
Victim services 
Institutional offender 
services 

Community offender $201 ,482 10 $201 ,482 
services 

Support services 2,651 ,000 
Program services 
Security and safety 115,390 11 $857,345 12 $262,420 13 1,235.155 
Roughrider Industries 

Total all funds $316,872 $857.345 $262.420 $0 $4.087,637 

Less estimated income 2.205,531 

Total general fund $316.872 $857,345 $262,420 $0 $1,882,1 06 

Grand total all funds $316,872 $857,345 $262,420 $0 $4,272.019 

Less grand total special 133,368 2,370.243 
funds 

Grand total general fund $316,872 $857,345 $262,420 ($133,368) $1 .901 ,TT6 

FTE 6.00 20.00 0.00 0.00 26.00 

Senate changes narrative: 

This amendment adds Section 6, which provides an appropriation of $33,209 from federal funds for the 
1997-99 biennium. This amendment also makes the following changes: · 

1 Restores the House reduction to the equipment line item for the Central Office, increasing the total 
amount from $20,200 to $26,950. 

2 Restores the following House reductions, but provides special funds spending authority, rather than 
general fund spending authority which was removed by the House: 

GENERAL OTHER TOTAL ALL 
FUND FUNDS FUNDS 

Youth Correctional Center: 
Restores funding for computer $12,500 $12,500 
purchases, increasing the total 
amount from $37,500 to $50,000 

Restores funding for replace- 5,000 5,000 
ment of a tractor, increasing 
the total amount from $10,000 
to $1 5,000 

Juvenile Community Services: 
Restores funding for equip- 1,750 1,750 
ment, increasing the total 
amount from $5,250 to $7,000 

Total Juvenile Services $0 $19,250 $19,250 
Divis ion equ ipment 
restorations 
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3 Restores the House reduction to the operating expenses line item for the Central Office, increasing the 
total amount from $115,000 to $118,682. 

4 Restores the House reductions to the operating expenses line item for the Juvenile Services Division, 
increasing the total amount from $4,229,174 to $4,344,374. The restoration includes $32,200 for 
medical-related expenses at the Youth Correctional Center and $83,000 for Juvenile Services Division 
community programs. 

5 Restores a portion of the House reduction for Youth Correctional Center extraordinary repairs, 
increasing the total amount from $35,000 to $74,500. The executive budget included $150,900. 

6 Restores funding for capital improvements for the Adult Services Division as follows: 

Restores funding for 5th and 6th floors 
renovation project at the JRCC (The 
House removed the same total amount, 
but $259,469 from the general fund 
and $2.093.531 from federal funds. 
The Senate is adding $39,469 from 
the general fund. $1 ,913,531 
from federal funds . and $400,000 
from the Penitentiary land replace
ment fund.) 

Restores funding for a security fence 
around the Roughrider Industries 
building 

Restores funding for parl<ing lot 
construction at the JRCC, increasing 
the total amount for the project from 
$40,000 to $71,000 

Restores funding for forensic 
building lobby. front entrance. 
and other JRCC improvements. 
increasing the total amount for 
these projects from $200,000 
lo $325,000 

Restores funding for security 
improvements at the JRCC, 
increasing the total amount for 
:he project from $100,000 to 
$121,000 

Restores funding for extraordinary 
repairs for a JRCC ventilation 
pro,ect (The House reduced the 
extraordinary repairs funding for 
adult services from $1 ,003.700 
to $650 ,000.) 

Total Adult Services Division capital 
improvements restorations 

GENERAL 
FUND 
$39,469 

198.000 

31 ,000 

125,000 

21,000 

23,000 

$437,469 

OTHER 
FUNDS 

$2,313,531 

$2,313 ,531 

TOTAL ALL 
FUNDS 

$2,353,000 

198,000 

31 ,000 

125,000 

21,000 

23,000 

$2,751,000 

7 Removes funding for parking lot improvements at the Penitentiary (The House reduced the amount 
included in the executive budget for this project from $325,000 to $100,000.) 

8 Reduces other funds and increases general fund spending authority to reflect delaying collection of 
increased probation supervision fees until January 1, 2001 . The amendment increases fees to $36 
per month. The House increased fees to $35 per month, effective July 1, 1999. 

9 Increases other fu nds and decreases general fund spending authority for the 12-month school 
program at the Youth Correctional Center. The $12,094 of other funds spending authority was 
removed by the House, but reflects federal fu nds anticipated to be available. 

10 Restores funding for the following FTE positions and related operating expenses included in the 
community offender services line item : 
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a. Restores administrative secretary Ill 
pos11,ons removed by the House 

Restores re lated operating expenses 
removed by the House 

Removes funding for temporary salaries 
added by the House 

b. Restores community corrections agent 
removed by the House 

Restores related operating expenses 
removed by the House 

c. Restores parole and probation olficer If 
removed by the House 

Restores related operating expenses 

Total positions and related costs 
restored for community ottender services 

FTE 
POSITIONS 

2.00 

t.00 

4.00 

GEN[HAL 
FUND 

$95 .436 

41 ,848 

(38,436) 

53,024 

2,53 1 

36,657 

$201 ,482 

OTHER 
FUNDS 

$0 

TOTAL ALL 
FUNDS 

$95,436 

41 ,848 

(38,436) 

53,024 

2,531 

36,657 

10,422 

$201.482 

11 Restores funding for the fo llowing FTE positions and related operating expenses included in the 
securi ty and safety line item : 

a Restores correctional olficer If 
positions for the JRCC 

Restores related operating expenses 

Total positions and related costs 
restored tor the security and safety 
program 

FTE 
POSITIONS 

2.00 

2.00 

GENERAL 
FUND 
$110,910 

4,480 

$115,390 

OTHER 
FUNDS 

$0 

TOTAL ALL 
FUNDS 

$110,910 

$115,390 

12 Restores funding for 20 FTE positions and related operating expenses for the operation of the JRCC 
5th and 6th floors. The executive budget assumed that the JRCC would be completed by May 2000. 
The House removed the funding for the operation of the facili ty. The Senate assumes that the facility 
will be completed by November 2000. 

13 Restores funding for contract inmate housing, increasing the amount provided from $2,661 ,040 to 
$2,923 ,460. The House reduced the executive budget amount of $4,085,300 by $1 ,424,260. The 
House amount was based on inmate population growth of 10 percent the first year of the 1999-2001 
biennium, 15 percent growth the second year, a July 1, 1999, population of 950 inmates, alternatives 
to incarceration saving 135 prison beds per month, and not completing the 5th and 6th floors of the 
JRCC. The Senate amount is based on 10 percent inmate growth the first year of the biennium, 
15 percent growth the second year, a July 1, 1999, population of 975 inmates, alternatives to 
incarceration saving 115 prison beds per month, and November 2000 completion of the 5th and 6th 
floors of the JRCC. 

14 Increases other funds and decreases general fund spending authority for the Juvenile Services 
Division to reflect an additional $133,368 anticipated to be distributed to the Youth Correctional Center 
from the Board of University and School Lands. Section 4 is added which directs the Board of 
University and School Lands to distribute all available trust fu nd income for the 1999-2001 biennium. 
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Date: ---~----
Roll Call Vote#: --------

1999 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES 
BILL/RESOLUTION No. Eo3ro~sed f-/t3 /t:J/~ 

Senate APPROPRIATIONS Committee 

D Subcommittee on _________________________ _ 
or 

D Conference Committee 

~islative Council Amendment Number tJ ff /6. t!o2 ~ J 
Action Taken lltJ / /1-5".S 

Motion Made By Senator LI b I .. L S,.econded 
I \_f v /V ff Sr ~Y 

Senator LJ . / 1 

1ctftJ1NStJN 

Senators Yes No Senators Yes No 
Senator Nething, Chairman 
Senator Naaden, Vice Chairman 
Senator Solberg 
Senator Lindaas 
Senator Tallacksen 
Senator Tomac 
Senator Robinson 
Senator Krauter 
Senator St. Aubyn 
Senator Grindberg 
Senator Holmberg 
Senator Kringstad 
Senator Bowman 
Senator Andrist 

Total (Yes) /,1/tE //~/4' t(.NA-N/k~~~ 
---------------

Absent 

Floor Assignment Senator ---------------------------
If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 
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Date: JJ'/-1? 
Roll Call Vote#: / ---.'------

1999 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES 
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. £n3ro S.5cd #A /t?/6 

Senate APPROPRIATIONS Committee 

D Subcommittee on ________________________ _ 
or 

D Conference Committee 

vie'gislative Council Amendment Number tJ f tf //, ~,;)_tJ_,3 

ActionTaken !J# h-ss IJ-5 /mEJV/e-d 
Motion Made By Senator 

Senators Yes/ No Senators Yes No 
Senator Nething, Chairman V / 
Senator Naaden, Vice Chairman v/ 
Senator Solberg v / 
Senator Lindaas v> 
Senator Tallackson v / 
Senator Tomac / 

Senator Robinson ✓/ 
Senator Krauter \/ ,, 
Senator St. Aubyn ✓/ 
Senator Grindberg ✓/ 
Senator Holmberg ✓/ 
Senator Kringstad ✓ // 
Senator Bowman v / 
Senator Andrist ✓ 

Total (Yes) No 

Absent 

Floor Assignment Senator 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE (410) 
March 31, 1999 4:33 p.m. 

Module No: SR-58-6142 
Carrier: Kringstad 

Insert LC: 98016.0203 Title: .0300 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1016, as engrossed: Appropriations Committee (Sen. Nething, Chairman) 

recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends 
DO PASS (14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed HB 1016 
was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 2, remove the second "and" 

Page 1, line 3, after "probationers" insert "; to provide an effective date; and to declare an 
emergency" 

Page 1, line 14, replace "115,000" with "118,682" 

Page 1, line 15, replace "20,200" with "26,950" 

Page 1, line 16, replace "1,000,270" with "1,010,702" 

Page 1, line 20, replace "4,229,174" with "4,344,374" 

Page 1, line 21 , replace "104,321" with "123 ,571" 

Page 1, line 22, replace "35,000" with "74,500" 

Page 2, line 1, replace "16,991,440" with "17,165,390" 

Page 2, line 2, replace "5,674,504" with "5,839,216" 
. 

Page 2, line 3, replace "11 ,316,936" with "11 ,326,174" 

Page 2, line 8, replace "9,635,277" with "9,836,759" 

Page 2, line 9, replace "16 ,699,252" with "19,350,252" 

Page 2, line 11 , replace "20,341,166" with "21,576,321" 

Page 2, line 13, replace "61,461,535" with "65,549,172" 

Page 2, line 14, replace "12,660,179" with "14,865,710" 

Page 2, line 15, replace "48,801,356" with "50,683,462" 

Page 2, line 16, replace "61,118,562" with "63,020,338" 

Page 2, line 17, replace "18,334,683" with "20,704,926" 

Page 2, line 18, replace "79,453,245" with "83,725,264" 

Page 2, remove lines 29 through 31 

Page 3, replace lines 1 through 21 with: 

"SECTION 4. LAND BOARD DISTRIBUTIONS. Notwithstanding the 
provisions of section 15-03-05.2, during the 1999-2001 biennium , the board of 
university and school lands shall distribute to the youth correctional center all income 
from permanent funds managed for the benefit of that institution." 

Page 3, line 29 , replace "thirty-five" with "thirty-six" 
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"SECTION 6. APPROPRIATION. The funds provided in this section, or so 
much of the funds as may be necessary, are hereby appropriated from special funds 
derived from federal funds to the department of corrections and rehabilitation for the 
purpose of defraying its expenses for the period beginning with the effective date of this 
Act and ending June 30, 1999, as follows: 

Operating expenses 
Equipment 

Total special funds 

$15,000 
18,209 

$33,209 

SECTION 7. EFFECTIVE DATE. Section 5 of this Act is effective for fees 
collected after December 31, 2000, for offenses committed after June 30, 1999. 

SECTION 8. EMERGENCY. Section 6 of this Act is declared to be an 
emergency measure." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

DEPARTMENT 530 - DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS AND REHABILITATION 

SENATE - This amendment makes the following changes: 
EXECUTIVE HOUSE SENATE SENATE 

BUDGET VERSION CHANGES VERSION 

Central Office : 
Salaries and wages $878,152 $865,070 $865,070 
Operating expenses 118,682 115,000 $3,682 118,682 
Equipment 26,950 20,200 6,750 26 ,950 

Total all funds $1 ,023,784 $1 ,000 ,270 $10 ,432 $1,010,702 

Less estimated income 

Total general fund $1,023,784 $1,000,270 $10,432 $1 ,010,702 

Juvenile Services: 
Salaries and wages $9,764,955 $9,552,045 $9,552 ,045 
Operating expenses 4,344,374 4,229,174 $115,200 4,344 ,374 
Equipment 141,771 104,321 19,250 123,571 
Capital improvements 371,900 35,000 39,500 74,500 
Grants 2,870 ,900 2,870 ,900 2,870,900 
Delinquency prevention 200,000 200,000 200,000 
consortium 

Total all funds $17,693,900 $16,991 ,440 $173,950 $17,165,390 

Less estimated income 5,688,979 5,674,504 164,712 5,839 ,216 

Total general fund $12 ,004,921 $11,316,936 $9,238 $11 ,326,174 

Adult Services : 
Victim services $2,610,550 $2,609,036 $2,609,036 
Institutional offender 828,335 821 ,649 821,649 
services 

Community offender 10,029 ,660 9,635,277 $201 ,482 9,836,759 
services 

Support services 20,234,931 16,699,252 2,651 ,000 19,350,252 
Program services 3,853,788 3,833 ,361 3,833,361 
Security and safety 23,625,750 20,341 ,166 1,235,155 21 ,576 ,321 
Roughrider Industries 9,243,724 7,521 ,794 7,521 ,794 

Total all funds $70,426,738 $61 ,461,535 $4,087,637 $65,549,172 

Less estimated income 16,335,431 12,660 ,179 2,205,531 14,865,710 

Total general fund $54,091,307 $48,801 ,356 $1 ,882,106 $50 ,683,462 

Grand total all funds $89,144,422 $79,453,245 $4,272,019 $83 ,725,264 
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Less grand total special funds 

Grand total general fund 

FTE 

22,024,410 

$67,120,012 

577.21 

Detail of Senate changes to the House version: 

18,334,683 

$61 ,118,562 

546.68 

2,370,243 

$1 ,901 ,776 

26.00 

20,704,926 

$63,020,338 

572.68 

RESTORE REDUCE 
CAPITAL CAPITAL RESTORE 

EQUIPMENT 

RESTORE 
OPERATING 
EXPENSES IMPROVEMENTS IMPROVEMENTS 

Central Office : 
Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Equipment 

Total all funds 

Less estimated income 

Total general fund 

Juvenile Services: 
Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Equipment 
Capital improvements 
Grants 
Delinquency prevention 
consortium 

Total all funds 

Less estimated income 

Total general fund 

Adult Services: 
Victim services 
Institutional offender 
services 

Community offender 
services 

Support services 
Program services 
Security and safety 
Roughrider Industries 

Total all funds 

Less estimated income 

Total general fund 

Grand total all funds 

Less grand total special 
funds 

Grand total general fund 

FTE 

Central Office : 
Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Equipment 

Total all funds 

Less estimated income 

$6,750 1 

$6,750 

$6,750 

$19,250 2 

$19,250 

19,250 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$26,000 

19,250 

$6,750 

0.00 

RESTORE 
POSITIONS 

AND RELATED 
OPERATING 
EXPENSES 

$0 

$3 ,682 3 

$3,682, 

$3,682 

$115,200 4 

$115,200 

$115,200 

$0 

$0 

$118,882 

$118,882 

0.00 

RESTORE 
POSITIONS AND 

OPERATING 
EXPENSES 

FOR 5TH AND 
6TH FLOOR 

RENOVATION 
AT JRCC 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$39,500 5 

$39,500 

$39,500 

$2,751,000 6 

$2,751,000 

2,313,531 

$437,469 

$2,790 ,500 

2,313,531 

$476,969 

0.00 

RESTORE 
OPERATING 
EXPENSES 

FOR 
CONTRACT 

INMATE 
HOUSING 

$0 
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$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

($100,000) 7 

($100 ,000} 

($100 ,000) 

($100,000) 

($100 ,000) 

0.00 

FUNDING 
SOURCE 

CHANGE TO 
REFLECT 

ADDITIONAL 
LAND 

DEPARTMENT 
DISTRIBUTIONS 

$0 

DELAY 
SUPERVISION 

FEE 
INCREASE 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

(108,000) 8 

$108,000 8 

$0 

(108,000) 

$108,000 

0.00 

TOTAL 
SENATE 

CHANGES 

$3,682 
6,750 

$10,432 

FUNDING 
SOURCE 
CHANGE 

FOR YOUTH 
CORRECTIONAL 

CENTER 
12-MONTH 
SCHOOL 

$0 

$0 

$0 

12,094 9 

($12,094} 9 

$0 

$0 

$0 

12,094 

($12,094) 

0.00 

SR-58-6142 
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Total general fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,432 

Juven ile SeNices: 
Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses $115,200 
Equipment 19,250 
Capital improvements 39,500 
Grants 
Del inquency prevention 
consortium 

Total all funds $0 $0 $0 $0 $173,950 

Less estimated income 133,368 14 164,712 

Total general fund $0 $0 $0 ($133 ,368) 14 $9,238 

Adult SeNices: 
Victim seNices 
Institutional offender 
seNices 

Community offender $201,482 10 $201,482 
seNices 

Support seNices 2,651,000 
Program services 

115,390 11 $857,345 12 $262,420 13 Security and safety 1,235,155 
Roughrider Industries 

Total all funds $316,872 $857,345 $262,420 $0 $4,087,637 

Less estimated income 2,205,531 

Total general fund $316,872 $857,345 $262,420 $0 $1 ,882,106 

Grand total all funds $316,872 $857,345 $262,420 $0 $4,272,019 

Less grand total special 133,368 2,370,243 
funds 

Grand total general fund $316,872 $857,345 $262,420 ($133 ,368) $1 ,901 ,776 

FTE 6.00 20.00 0.00 0.00 26.00 

Senate changes narrative: 

This amendment adds Section 6, which provides an appropriation of $33,209 from federal funds for the 
1997-99 biennium. This amendment also makes the following changes: 

Restores the House reduction to the equipment line item for the Central Office, increasing the total 
amount from $20,200 to $26,950. 
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2 Restores the following House reductions, but provides special funds spending authority, rather than 
general fund spending authority which was removed by the House: 

GENERAL OTHER TOTAL ALL 
FUND FUNDS FUNDS 

Youth Correctional Center: 
Restores funding for computer $12,500 $12,500 
purchases, increasing the total 
amount from $37,500 to $50,000 

Restores funding for replace- 5,000 5,000 
ment of a tractor, increasing 
the total amount from $10,000 
to $15,000 

Juvenile Community Services: 
Restores funding for equip- 1,750 1,750 
ment, increasing the total 
amount from $5,250 to $7,000 

Total Juvenile Services $0 $19,250 $19,250 
Division equipment 
restorations 

3 Restores the House reduction to the operating expenses line item for the Central Office, increasing 
the total amount from $115,000 to $118,682. 

4 Restores the House reductions to the operating expenses line item for the Juvenile Services Division, 
increasing the total amount from $4,229,174 to $4,344,374. The restoration includes $32,200 for 
medical-related expenses at the Youth Correctional Center and $83,000 for Juvenile Services 
Division community programs. 

5 Restores a portion of the House reduction for Youth Correctional Center extraordinary repairs, 
increasing the total amount from $35,000 to $74,500. The executive budget included $150,900. 

6 Restores funding for capital improvements for the Adult Services Division as follows: 
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Restores funding for 5th and 6th floors 
renovation project at the JRCC (The 
House removed the same total amount, 
but $259,469 from the general fund 
and $2,093,531 from federal funds. 
The Senate is adding $39,469 from 
the general fund , $1 ,913 ,531 
from federal funds, and $400,000 
from the Penitentiary land replace
ment fund .) 

Restores funding for a security fence 
around the Roughrider Industries 
building 

Restores funding for parking lot 
construction at the JRCC, increasing 
the total amount for the project from 
$40,000 to $71,000 

Restores funding for forensic 
building lobby, front entrance, 
and other JRCC improvements, 
increasing the total amount for 
these projects from $200,000 
to $325,000 

Restores funding for security 
improvements at the JRCC, 
increasing the total amount for 
the project from $100,000 to 
$121 ,000 

Restores funding for extraordinary 
repairs for a JRCC ventilation 
project (The House reduced the 
extraordinary repairs funding for 
adult services from $1 ,003,700 
to $650,000 .) 

Total Adult Services Division capital 
improvements restorations 

$39,469 

198,000 

31 ,000 

125,000 

21 ,000 

23,000 

$437,469 
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$2,313,531 $2,353,000 

198,000 

31,000 

125,000 

21 ,000 

23,000 

$2,313,531 $2,751,000 

7 Removes funding for parking lot improvements at the Penitentiary (The House reduced the amount 
included in the executive budget for this project from $325,000 to $100,000.) 

s Reduces other funds and increases general fund spending authority to reflect delaying collection of 
increased probation supervision fees until January 1, 2001. The amendment increases fees to $36 
per month. The House increased fees to $35 per month, effective July 1, 1999. 

9 Increases other funds and decreases general fund spending authority for the 12-month school 
program at the Youth Correctional Center. The $12,094 of other funds spending authority was 
removed by the House, but reflects federal funds anticipated to be available. 

10 Restores funding for the following FTE positions and related operating expenses included in the 
community offender services line item: 
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FTE 
POSITIONS 

a. Restores administrative secretary Ill 2.00 
positions removed by the House 

Restores related operating expenses 
removed by the House 

Removes funding for temporary salaries 
added by the House 

b. Restores community corrections agent 1.00 
removed by the House 

Restores related operating expenses 
removed by the House 

C. Restores parole and probation officer 11 1.00 
removed by the House 

Restores related operating expenses 

Total positions and related costs 4.00 
restored for community offender services 
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GENERAL OTHER TOTAL ALL 
FUND FUNDS FUNDS 

$95,436 $95,436 

41 ,848 41 ,848 

(38,436) (38,436) 

53 ,024 53 ,024 

2,531 2,531 

36,657 36,657 

10,422 10,422 

$201,482 $0 $201 ,482 

11 Restores funding for the following FTE positions and related operating expenses included in the 
security and safety line item: 

a. Restores correctional officer II 
positions for the JRCC 

Restores related operating expenses 

Total positions and related costs 
restored for the security and safety 
program 

FTE 
POSITIONS 

2.00 

2.00 

GENERAL 
FUND 

$110,910 

4,480 

$115,390 

OTHER 
FUNDS 

$0 

TOTAL ALL 
FUNDS 

$110,910 

4,480 

$115,390 

12 Restores funding for 20 FTE positions and related operating expenses for the operation of the JRCC 
5th and 6th floors. The executive budget assumed that the JRCC would be completed by May 2000. 
The House removed the funding for the operation of the facility. The Senate assumes that the facility 
will be completed by November 2000. 

13 Restores funding for contract inmate housing, increasing the amount provided from $2,661,040 to 
$2,923,460. The House reduced the executive budget amount of $4,085,300 by $1,424,260. The 
House amount was based on inmate population growth of 1 0 percent the first year of the 1999-2001 
biennium, 15 percent growth the second year, a July 1, 1999, population of 950 inmates, alternatives 
to incarceration saving 135 prison beds per month, and not completing the 5th and 6th floors of the 
JRCC. The Senate amount is based on 1 0 percent inmate growth the first year of the biennium, 
15 percent growth the second year, a July 1, 1999, population of 975 inmates, alternatives to 
incarceration saving 115 prison beds per month, and November 2000 completion of the 5th and 6th 
floors of the JRCC. 

14 Increases other funds and decreases general fund spending authority for the Juvenile Services 
Division to reflect an additional $133,368 anticipated to be distributed to the Youth Correctional 
Center from the Board of University and School Lands. Section 4 is added which directs the Board of 
University and School Lands to distribute all available trust fund income for the 1999-2001 biennium. 
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Minutes: 

CONFERENCE COMMITTEE ON HB 1016 

A Bill for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the department of corrections and 
rehabi I itation. 

TAPE 1, A, 0.0 CHAIRMAN SVEOJAN opened conference committee with Sen . Kringstad, Sen . Robinson, Sen. 
Nething, Rep. Delzer, and Rep. Hoffner present. 
1.1 SEN. NETH ING: What we did in this bill is, we asked the corrections people to give us a list of priorities. 
Then, we took those priorities put them in order and that is what you have in front of you. (Sen. Nething handed out 
the priorities list.) In the upper left hand corner is the program legion, so that in the column that says program you 
will be able to determined which department it is, it may be of some interest at so point. The first number on the left 
hand side are the numbers of the priorities that where given by the department. When I say that you' II note that we 
took the first fifteen , but then we started doing other selections. Those selections were based on what we 
determined to be 2 factors: 1 was that we wanted to complete the JRCC center and so you will see an example there 
is 20, 23 , 25, 26 and 29 they are out of line in priority of the institution, but they are in line for the position that we 
advanced that the we should complete want was done there. lfwe do that the only thing that we know right now 
and I say that now is important. We do know that there are windows that do need to be repaired in that building 
which ultimately will be requested in the future. It wasn ' t requested this time because there were higher priority. 
The next thing is a description and what we are going to bring to you is a narrative of that description that will 
match each of those for the program I talked about. The next thing is the changes you made in the original bill 
showing the reductions that came through and/or couple of places there were some additions . Then, we show what 
the department requested of us in the third column and things and then we show those changes from the original bill 
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and then we do a subtotal on the right as to what those are. When you see what the department requested, those are 
the same dollars in the amendments that we passed over to you, they are department requests but Senate action. 
3.7 SVEDJAN: Senator Nething go to the second one operating expenses number two. I understand the first two 
columns but how do you get $10,432 for a running total. NETHING: That's a running total, we started out with 
everything added, because we wanted to have a running total as we went that was just for our purposes. 
4.8 DELZER: This is the question is these all the departments request for readjustments or was there others that 
you didn't fund. I would like to see them. NETHING: There were others. Everything you cut out was requested . 
5.4 NETHlNG: Look at the bottom line in the center column the additions that we made were 2,435 , 144 of general 
funds and 1,836,875 special funds. 
5.9 ROBINSON: $400,000 Senator Nething you might want to explain that it is not reflected here, the land 
replacement fund. 
6.1 NETHING: In the amendments there are two funding adjustments made $400,000 Penitentiary Land Trust and 
that money is generated from a gravel source over ant the YCC, that runs about $200,000 dollars per year by statute 
it is limited to certain uses, build another facility is permitted. We also, transferred some money from the land trust 
which shows in the amendments. That we have, I con point it out to you . It was the land depattment trust is a 
permanent trust, over at the permanent trust they have. Joe how much do they have? 
6.8 Joe Morrisette: $ I 33,368 which is in the last column of the Senate changes on page 4. 
7.3 Nething: What that is permanent trust and the land department distributes the income in a variety of places one 
of them is the Industrial School but the don't distribute all the money from the trust fund. What they distribute is 
well I will use this as a descriptive number only assuming that the permanent trust would earn 9% of funds, of that 
9% they take 5% of the total or a little over half. They distribute out to the various institution that get it. One of 
which is the Industrial School. So what they do because of three sessions ago we changed the law, and we sa id they 
didn't have to di stribute all the money. They could put some back in the permanent trust fund and use that money 
to continue to earn interest. Like you would with your own investments dollars. So with the 133 thousand that 
showed on top of page 4. The $133, 368 was money that we are interrupting this year, instead of saving that money 
we are going to take it out. It is a one time transfer out. It will be reflected in this budget for the YCC. Basically, 
what we have done is increased special fund by $533,368 either special or other funds . 
8.8 SYEDJAN: Senator if I may interrupt, then the distribution from the land permanent trust is the finance quote. 
Nething states yes. 
9.0 DELZER: Senator Nething would this give the YCC a larger percent over everyone else that is getting from 
that. 
9.1 NETH ING: The percentage varies from each of the institutions that draw from the trust fund. Pait goes to the 
Blind School and part goes to the Deaf School, there are 6 institutions that get it, the State Hospital gets some and 
the School of Minds gets a separate amount. There is a formula that has been established for years that show how 
mach each of them get. To my knowledge its not the same. Now, when I use that 5% figure , that only relates to 
the total earnings which represents a little more than half. So when we talk about that percentage it doesn't relate to 
any of the distribution , it relates to what they spent of the earnings. 
10.0 SVEDJAN: Senator I would like to follow-up on that. The I 33 here is amount over and about the amount they 
would normally would be distributed but it is a one time distribution. 
10.1 NETHlNG: That's exactly right. 
10.1 DELZER: Before we changed that law, then did everybody just get that much more. 
10.2 NETHlNG: Right, for an example, ifwe hadn ' t changed the law three sessions ago they would have already 
gotten this money. 
10.3 DELZER: No, they would have only gotten a share of the money. 
10.3 NETHING: The$ 133,000 they would have gotten. If that law was not in affect to day, that money would 
have been already distributed to them. 
10.4 DELZER: Does everybody getting some extra, not just the YCC. 
I 0.5 NETH ING: Everyone will get a segment of it. We adjusted every budget that is listed in 
there. High Ed gets a bigger amount, the School for the Deaf and Blind get a smaller amount. 
10.7 DELZER: The Veterans Home . 
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10.7 NET HlNG : The Veterans Home gets a portion ofit. About 64,000, so what we have done is taken that money 
and off set it to genera l fund dollars. 
10.8 SVEDJAN: Just to clarify this does the $ I 33,000 here than diminish the amount the others get. 
10.9 NETHING: No. 
11.0 SVEDJAN: They will all get as they have gotten before. This is in excess of what they normally get. 
11.0 NETH ING : In the Higher Ed budget for example, you will see that. It will say a reduction of general funds 
and increase in special. 
11. 1 DELZER: Senator Nething what I certain you are just going around what we did a couple of years ago. Are 
you afraid that we are setting a a perusable, that we will be going back to this every time. 
11.3 NETH ING : Well , I am not. I' m hoping this will be the last time that we will ever see a down turn in budget 
reproductions. That's what's driving us to find other dollars anywhere we can. 
11.6 HOFFNER: Senator Nething what kind of long term effects will this have are you looking at. If you pay thi s 
out now, what kind of implications are we dealing with the next 5 to IO years to be eligible for the program yo ur 
talking about. 
11.9 NETHING: When it would be, 133 thousand for an example would be thrown into a savings account the trust 
fund. Depending upon their earnings that investment period. Just say they earn I 0% that would be 13 ,000 per year 
if in fact their earnings were that good. 
12.7 DELZER: If the last couple of sessions this went back in there, it went in part of the permanent trust fund. 
what is the total size of the trust fund? 
12.9 NETHING: We studied it. It is not the common school trust fund. It has a whole different distribution agenda 
to it. I can get that chart for you. You have seen this in all the budgets as you go. 
13.5 SVEDJAN: I would like to go back to the 400,000 that you mentioned earlier on. First of all is it the 400,000 
even or is it 439,000 that you are requesting for the 5th and 6th floor renovation . 
13.6 NETHING: The amount that we actually drew from that trust fund was estimated to be about 406,000 . We 
drew 400,000 of that. 
13.8 SVEDJAN: Where is that reflected in here? 
13.9 NETHING: You have to go to the amendments, go to page 5. As you read the first foot note under 6, as you 
read restored funding and so on. You go down to the last phrase, 400,000 from the Penitentiary Land Replacement 
fund. 
14.3 SVEDJAN: That 400,000 is included in the 2.4 shown on the spreadsheet. 
14.3 NETHING: No, it is not included. Neither of the two funds are include in the 2.4 of the spreadsheet. The 
spreadsheets stick strictly to replacement of what we did from the house. So, it brings us to about a 1.9 total of 
general funds. Then the other sheet we had was dated call Narrative by Priorities, we just distributed that. Up on 
the right hand corner it says March 30, 1999. This then lines up with the, when you go back to the spreadsheet that 
lines up with each number that 's there and explain exactly at a brief narrative what those items are all about. There 
is one exception to that and if yo u look at the spreadsheet and go to item 18 and you look at the narrative it really is 
item 16. What that is about is, you had left a l 00,000 dollars in for funding a new parking lot next to the deputy 
warden's house. After visiting with the administration, we decided that wouldn't be enough to do much so we took 
it out total and funded it in the overall picture. But I did want to point out that number error. 
16.3 SVEDJAN: My recollection of that discussion was that we first looked at a much larger scale parking lot 
renovation project. We were concerned about that and the workability of it. Then we went to plan B which was this 
one, we were told if I recall that it was a acceptable one. 
16.7 NETH ING: We used that money and an other source 14 and 15. That's how we funded those two positions at 
a higher priority. 
16.9 SVEDJAN: So what you are doing here is not doing anything all to the parking lot. 
17.0 NETH ING: Not at this time. Now, the other part that I should move into. I had indicated to you that are 
changes were based on two things. One was the completion of the JRCC and the other was that we wanted to shore 
up field services as much as we could. So that was the second part of our determination of bring things back into 
the budget. Our reason for that is, that field serv ices is really the parol and probation area. We believe that it is 
extremely impo1tant in order to keep this population in line at all we don ' t sho1t change field services and fail. We 
need to keep those people out and so that was the basis for a couple of things that we put back in . If you look at FS 
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you will see those items number 8 for example we made a change there. Items 14 and 15 were changes that we 
made and that was basically driving those decision. That we felt that we just need to make sure that we don ' t short 
change them out there. The rest were on the priority discussion bases. 
18.4 ROBINSON: Senator would you like to talk a little bit about the rational behind the move on our side to 
complete the 5th and 6th floors. 
18.8 NETH ING: Yes I will. We did a couple of things at the YCC and they show there items 3 and 4 because they 
were high priorities. Item 17 because that has to do with the adding 12,000 to other funds and reducing general 
funds by 12,000. 
19.4 SVEDJAN: Does that have to do with the 12 month school. 
19.4 NETHING: Right. We kept what they gave us on the 12 months. 
19.5 SVEDJAN: What is the source of those funds right now the way you have it. 
19.7 ELAINE LITTLE: When the amendments were made up on the house side, the reduction was made in the 
special funds and in the general funds total. When we went back to look at to reduce the back alternative programs. 
When we looked at that reduction our initial reaction was that we ask the question was what that other fund. What 
programs did that relate to . What we first determined was that all of the other funds in the 12 month school 
program was for specia l education in title I funds. So our impression was that this dollars were reduced because of 
the vocational program is being pulled out that special fund didn ' t apply to vocational dollars. 
20.9 SVEDJAN: Could it be said that these are title I funds. 

21.1 ELAINE LITTLE: Right, the only dollars in the YCC budget for education were in the budget, majority is 
special education. All of those dollars were built into the base budget. Actually, there shouldn't been a reduction at 
all in the special funds area. 
21.7 NETHING: The best way for me to understand it is to substitute special funds to general funds for a program 
that we are eligible for. 
21.9 SVEDJAN: Just backing up a bit, the extraordinary repairs at the YCC . 
21.9 NETHING: That includes what's on the narrative, that includes the 3 projects of the life safety system , the 
administration bill of 19,000, parking lot repair of 9,000, and removal of asepsis at the Hickory cottage. Reason we 
did that is because of the high priority the department gave them . Then, what I would like to give you now is an 
overview what's transpired number wise and some of those things. This is general information that you people 
already had but if brings it into focus . As we get down to the middle paragraph where we talked about the addition 
of beds and what has transpired. This is just an overview and a snapshot of this session. 
23.6 DELZER: Elaine what's your numbers for March? 
23.7 LITTLE: In March we had 82 admissions, which is the second highest we had ever had. The tape is hard to 
hear, couldn't make it out. 
24.2 SVEDJAN: Today you stand at what number. 
24.2 LITTLE: I believe about 930 is where we are at. 
24.4 SVEDJAN: As I am reading the amendments. It sound like you didn't change the percentage of the 
projections in terms of growth you staid at IO% the first year and 15 % the second year. But you started at 975 
instead of the 950. 
24.7 NETHJNG: As long as we started on that, let me give you copy of exactly what we were leading to . What I 
am giving you are three different scenarios. The top scenario is the departments version of the prison inmates 
population using the house contracting costs. We felt you had a set of contracting costs we needed to be consistent 
with in comparison prepossess . The second page of the handout is the house version , that you made your 
termination with . The third page is the departments version, where they were at March 19. 
26.0 SVEDJAN: You adjusted the beds saved by alternatives. You adjusted the starting point. You kept the 
growth percentages the same. 
26.3 NET HING: Right, 10 the first year and 15 the second year. We also utilized the, maybe this doesn't show in 
here Elaine, keep in mind when we are talking about the 5th and 6th floors at the JRCC. We are talking about a 
completion date of November before the figures were based on May completion date . I don't think any of that is 
reflected in here, OH it is reflected in here . When we start bringing back numbers into the prison capacity. At the 
middle column in November those numbers jump to I I 0. They are in the original version on page 3 but your 
version shows 861 all the way threw. The last thing I would like to hand out. This is the cost of comparison of 
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completing the 5th and 6th floors vs. contracting and this assumes that November 2000 operational date and this 
also ass umes the house contracting rate. That was reflected in the pervious hand out that I just gave to you. 
28.4 SVEDJAN: At 47 a day and 60 later on. 
28.5 NETHING: Right, the ones on the first page but I think they are very close to yours. Then on page 2 we have 
addition contracting audit inmates November 2000, June 200 I if the 5th and 6th floors are not renovated . Then on 
page 3 there is a saving in the genera l fund by completing them 2001-2003 biennium. Another words what the 
savings would be in the following biennium . So mister chairman I think maybe we will have to throw the sheets 
you would like to have as we proceed for our next session. 
29.4 SVEDJAN: ls there any questions before we adjourn for now? I would invite the house members to look this 
over. I will schedule our next time. I don't know when that will be, watch your computers. CHAIRMAN 
SVEDJAN ADJOURNED THE COMMITTEE. 
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A bill for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the department of 
corrections and rehabilitation. 

18.3 CHAIRMAN SVEDJAN opened conference committee on HB 1016. All members present. 
18.3 NETHING: Would it be all right if Joe could run though the amendments after everything 
is distributed. So we can focus on those a little bit. 
18.5 SVEDJAN: I would like to verify again on the spreadsheet that you gave us. I'm still not 
clear, under the general fund column in the middle, you show a total of 2.4 million. I heard you 
say not included in that was 400,000 for the land replacement fund, 133,368 for the permanent 
land trust fund. So with those in there, I realize those are special funds. They are not in there 
because you are only showing the general funds. 
19.2 NE THING: That is all this is was a explanation of what we replaced with out ruining any 
funds. 
19.2 SVEDJAN: In respect of what we have done. There 2.4 million dollars added back based 
on your actions in the Senate. Then 533 ,000 comes from the trust fund, they don' t show in the 
other fund . 
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19.6 NETHING: These are the funds only in your original bill. That is why they don ' t show 
any other information on this spreadsheets. 
19.7 SVEDJAN: Technically the total add back, I heard you say 1.9 million. 
19.8 NETHING: That's right, deduct the 533,000 from the 2.4. 
20.0 SVEDJAN: Why would you do that when your dealing with two separate funds. 
20.1 NETHING: There new funds that we are bringing into the equations. 
20.4 KRINGST AD: If you deduct from the 24 you would be replacing it. 
20.6 LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL: The difference between this schedule and if you look at the 
purpose of amendments schedule that shows what actually was done by the Senate is the 533 ,000 
dollar difference. The actual 533,000 less then the general fund amount. The reason for the is, 
instead of adding the 2.4 million general fund like the department requested they replaced 
533,000 dollars for the general fund with those other funds which you talked about. The total 
amount would stay the same but there was a funding source switch of that 533,000 from what is 
shown on the schedule supplied. 
21.2 SVEDJAN: The 400,000 is shown on page 5 is combined with other funds but that 400,000 
is under the other funds 2.3 million. 
21.4 LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL: Look at number 10 on the schedule from the department 
shows that they were asking 439,000 for the 5th and 6th floor renovation. Look ant the foot note 
6 on page 5. Shows that only 39,000 was added. The 400,000 from penitentiary trust fund. 
They requested 1.9 federal fund that was changed to 2.3, 1.9 of federal 400 was other. 
22.1 ROBINSON: The net effect is where we are actually putting the 1.9 of general fund back. 
34.2 SVEDJAN: What is the Senates logic for delaying the fees a dollar. 
34.4 NETHING: By delaying it, the problem was without the delay the confusion out there and 
the individuals probationers are sentenced under one law to pay the 35 dollars. The concern was 
that there would be two groups paying different amounts. We should be going down from 3200 
to 400, so we thought that would be a more suitable time. 
43.8 NETHING: I the priority matched up with our spreadsheet. The narrative that we will get 
for you, 10 pages includes these items but also includes the other items that we didn't bring back 
into the picture. 
46.5 ROBINSON: The reason was because these are community they are matched local and 
federal funds. It is impossible to cut without discontinuing on going programs in a particular 
community. They are related to other matching dollars. 
49.5 CHAIRMAN SVEDJAN ADJOURNED THE CONFERENCE COMMITTEE. 
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CONFERENCE COMMITTEE ON HOUSE BILL 1016 

.1 SVEDJAN: It is important that we are working from the same number. What I did was to ask 
us to look at some projections. What I requested on this was to combine some numbers for our 
projections and some from the senate. So what you are looking at here is a description of 
projections based on 950 which was the number that we used in the house. But then we used the 
115 alternative which you will see down in the first foot note. We didn' t change the percentage 
increase projection we kept that at the 10% the first year and 15% the second year. But we used 
your 115 in the prison alternative program and started at the base of 950 inmate population. 
1.3 LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL: Walked the committee through the projections the chair 
passed out. 
4.4 SVEDJAN: I request this but I still have a concern about where we are today. The first day 
we were at 930 in that time, it was two days ago. Starting at 950 does give us some leeway. It 
would be my interest to use the 950 as a starting point on the projections. 
6.9 DELZER: When we looked at the numbers, the last couple of months in Jan. we had a 
decline in population. 
11.0 ELAINE LITTLE: Couldn't here the tape! 
12.0 SVEDJAN: How did you bring the 135 down to 115. 
12.2 NETHING: That was the departments request that is how we arrived at that. 
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13.0 ROBINSON: We were not comfortable placing a lot of inmates in the class B facility. 
Based on the testimony we heard from the department, when we get away from Devils Lake, 
Stark County, and Jamestown. It is very limited for what we have for facilities. 
15.1 KRINGST AD: Just to clarify for myself, the questions of the savings their going to have 
with the renovation of the parking lot, entrance renovation any of that. 
15.5 SVEDJAN: This in just the delaying of the 5th and 6th floors and the contracting at that 
time. 
17.3 ROBINSON: There is a time line to access federal dollars to finish those two floors. I 
don't know what that time line is but I know it isn' t out there forever and a day. 
17.6 DELZER: We asked that question, it doesn' t matter because the money will still be there 
next biennium. 
17.7 ELAINE LITTLE: What I said for the dollars that has been allocated, we will be on our 
4th year now. We have up to 4 years to spend those dollars. We don't know about the fifth year. 
What we don't know is if the legislation doesn' t include the 5th and 6th floors we can' t access 
the fifth year. If we don' t access it, I don't know if the money will sit there and wait for us or be 
redistributed. 
19.9 SVEDJAN: I'm distribute this to. This is one that will ask to have consider to. 
20.3 LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL: Went through the hand out. 
21.3 NETHING: Are we talking about the northeast proposal. 
21.4 SVEDJAN: That is what it boils down to. I did go back and check the record. This was 
discussed in our committee, it is part of the record. What this document does if you go to the 
second page. It lays out some of the thinking of that group. There discussion were very 
pulmonary. 
24.0 ROBINSON: I did attend a meeting on this issue. They don't need any time to get 
anything organized. If we go this route they will need a commitment from the state. 
36.0 SVEDJAN: adjourned the conference committee. 
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20.9 SVEDJAN: What I just distributed is an alternate to the numbers that we have been looking 
at. What we're suggesting is a base figure of 960 of the house version to 962. Then split the 
difference on the alternatives. Keeping the contracting at $4 7 accept for those out of state. 
21.5 LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL: went through the work sheet that Chairman Svedjan handed 
out. 
24.1 SVEDJAN: So what this represents is a compromise position splitting the difference on the 
starting point with the contracted beds. In terms of the potential inmate beds, and splitting the 
difference between 115 and 135 on the impact the alternatives would have. This would keep 
everything else the same to the senate version to move the 5 & 6 floors by Nov. 2000. That 
would be our offer. 
30.4 SVEDJAN: Backing out 46,000, it reduce the 1.156 million which it is in the 3rd foot note 
it would reduce it down to 1.110 million that is what the impact would be. That would reduce 
the difference from the senate version and the house version. 
30.8 LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL: That is correct. 
32.0 NETHING: As I see it now, what we are really talking about from the senate side is the 
budget reduction of 1.1 million. That would change our overall picture of a 2.4 to a 1.3 . 
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32.6 SVEDJAN: Yes that is correct, recognizing that the 533 thousand from the trust fund are 
still in there. In terms of the general fund, your version was 1. 9 this would reduce the general 
funds by 1.110. 
35.2 ROBINSON: A quick analysis of the impact going 960 to 962 that is the balk of the impact 
here. 
35.4 SVEDJAN: We're talking about a combination of a few things. One has to do with that 
movement and the other has to do with going from 115 to 125 on the saved bed on the alternative 
program. The senate version contracted at 55 dollars a day, the legislative council show that we 
could contract at 4 7. 
45.0 NETHING: I am a little leery about this budget because of the closeness. Reducing it by 
1.1, I would like to see us split the difference. In another words, do a reduction of 550,000, that 
would be the difference from were you are here and were we came over. 
46. 7 SVEDJAN: I resist that offer and I will tell you why. When we worked this budget on the 
house side we were working from a comfort level of 135 alternative. 
47.3 ELAINE LITTLE: COULDN'T HEAR THE TAPE! 
52.9 SVEDJAN: We have 1 maybe 2 differences left. One is the fence around the perimeter, 
we have appropriated for that fence before and the fund were use for other prepossess. The last 
biennium they were diverted to the JRCC. It has been stated that they have one or two escape 
attempts but they never materialized. It is the question to us if it is truly necessary. 
TAPE 1, B, .1 DELZER: Nething is voicing some concerns of the level that we are taking out 
of contracting. The numbers that I was looking at were not increasing the amount we were 
taking out. But possibly looking at 120 or something that way to see if it is close enough so that 
it is okay. And are your feeling really strong about the fence . 
.4 NETHING: Yes, if you are satisfied with them coming back with a deficiency appropriation, 
we will do it. To do that I want to see all the other items in place. 
CHAIRMAN SVEDJAN ADJOURNED CONFERENCE COMMITTEE. 
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Chairman Svedjan opened the meeting. 
la: 47.0 Chairman Svedjan: We have the amendments 0206 in front ofus. We ' ve already identified a typo where 
the biennium should be 1999 instead of 1991. 
la: 47.5 Joe Morrissette, Legislative Council: (Reviewed changes in new amendment). 
la: 52.2 Chairman Svedjan: Are there any questions of Joe? 
la: 52.4 Rep. Hoffner: Were we going to do anything with the construction of the fence? 
la: 52.4 Chairman Svedjan: It's there in Section 5 on page 2. 
la: 52.7 Rep. Delzer: Section 7 covers the multiple counts? 
la: 53.0 Chairman Svedjan: Yes it does. Basically it means that if you have two counts in the same anest or same 
incident, they can't be counted as separate offenses. 
la: 53.5 Sen. Nething: Move the amendments as presented. 
la: 53.6 Rep. Hoffner: Second. 
la: 53.7 Chairman Svedjan: Is there any more discussion? 
la: 53.9 A roll call vote was taken to adopt the amendments. The motion carried. The votes were as follows: Sen. 
Kringstad, yes ; Sen. Robinson, yes; Sen. Nething, yes ; Rep. Svedjan, yes ; Rep. Delzer, no; Rep. Hoffner, yes. 

The meeting was adjourned. 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1016 

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1097-1102 of the House 
Journal and pages 966-971 of the Senate Journal and that Engrossed House Bill No. 1016 be 
amended as follows: 

Page 3, after line 21, insert: 

"SECTION 6. CONTINGENT APPROPRIATION - BUDGET SECTION 
APPROVAL. The funds provided in this section, or so much· of the funds as may be 
necessary, are hereby appropriated, subject to the provisions of this section, out of any 
moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, and from 
special funds derived from federal funds and the penitentiary land replacement fund, to 
the department of corrections and rehabilitation for the purpose of renovating the fifth 
and sixth floors of the James River correctional center, for the biennium beginning 
July 1, 1999, and ending June 30, 2001. This section is ineffective if, as of June 1, 
2000, construction has begun on a privately owned and operated adult correctional 
facility within this state. If such construction has not begun as of June 1, 2000, the 
budget section of the legislative council may authorize the department to spend the 
following amounts for renovation of the fifth and sixth floors of the James River 
correctional center: 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

$2,353,000 
2,313,531 

$39,469 

The department may spend moneys appropriated in this section, as authorized by the 
budget section, after September 30, 2000. The department shall not employ any 
additional full-time equivalent positions relating to the fifth and sixth floors of the James 
River correctional center during the 1999-2001 biennium. The estimated income line 
item in this section includes up to $400,000 from the penitentiary land replacement 
fund." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

DEPARTMENT 530 - DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS AND REHABILITATION 

CONFERENCE COMMITTEE - This amendment provides a contingent appropriation of 
$2,353,000 ($39,469 from the general fund, $400,000 from the penitentiary land replacement 
fund, and $1,913,531 from federal funds) to the Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation 
for renovation of the fifth and sixth floors of the James River Correctional Center. The 
appropriation may be spent if, as of June 1, 2000, a private prison is not being constructed in 
this state and if the expenditure is authorized by the Budget Section. 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1016 

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1097-1102 of the House 
Journal and pages 966-971 of the Senate Journal and that Engrossed House Bill No. 1016 be 
amended as follows: 

Page 1, line 2, remove the second "and" and after "12.1-32-07" insert "and subsection 5 of 
section 19-03.1-23" 

Page 1, line 3, after "probationers" insert "and sentencing for drug offenses; to provide an 
effective date; and to declare an emergency" 

Page 1, line 14, replace "115,000" with "118,682" 

Page 1, line 15, replace "20,200" with "26,950" 

Page 1, line 16, replace "1,000,270" with "1,010,702" 

Page 1, line 20, replace "4,229,174" with "4,344,374" 

Page 1, line 21, replace "104,321" with "123,571" 

Page 1, line 22, replace "35,000" with "74,500" 

Page 2, line 1, replace "16,991,440" with "17,165,390" 

Page 2, line 2, replace "5,674,504" with "5,839,216" 

Page 2, line 3, replace "11,316,936" with "11,326,174" 

Page 2, line 8, replace "9,635,277" with "9,836,759" 

Page 2, line 9, replace "16,699,252" with "19,350,252" 

Page 2, line 11 , replace "20,341,166" with "20,465,352" 

Page 2, line 13, replace "61,461,535" with "64,438,203" 

Page 2, line 14, replace "12,660,179" with "14,865,710" 

Page 2, line 15, replace "48,801 ,356" with "49,572,493" 

Page 2, line 16, replace "61,118,562" with "61,909,369" 

Page 2, line 17, replace "18,334 ,683" with "20 ,704,926" 

Page 2, line 18, replace "79,453,245" with "82 ,614,295" 

Page 2, remove lines 29 through 31 
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Page 3, replace lines 1 through 21 with: 

"SECTION 4. LAND BOARD DISTRIBUTIONS. Notwithstanding the 
provisions of section 15-03-05.2, during the 1999-2001 biennium, the board of 
university and school lands shall distribute to the youth correctional center all income 
from permanent funds managed for the benefit of that institution. 

SECTION 5. CAPITAL PROJECT - ADULT SERVICES DIVISION. The 
support services line item in subdivision 3 of section 1 of this Act includes up to 
$198,000 from the state general fund which must be used by the department of 
corrections and rehabilitation for the construction of a security fence around the 
roughrider industries building at the penitentiary during the 1999-2001 biennium." 

Page 3, line 29, replace "thirty-five" with "thirty-six" 

Page 3, after line 31, insert: 

"SECTION 7. AMENDMENT. Subsection 5 of section 19-03.1-23 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

5. A violation of this chapter or a law of another state or the federal 
government which is equivalent to an offense under this chapter committed 
while the offender was an adult and which resulted in a plea or finding of 
guilt must be considered a prior offense under subsections 1, 3, and 4. 
The prior offense must be alleged in the complaint, information, or 
indictment. The plea or finding of guilt for the prior offense must have 
occurred before the date of the commission of the offense or offenses 
charged in the complaint, information, or indictment. 

SECTION 8. APPROPRIATION. The funds provided in this section, or so 
much of the funds as may be necessary, are hereby appropriated from special funds 
derived from federal funds to the department of corrections and rehabilitation for the 
purpose of defraying its expenses for the period beginning with the effective date of this 
Act and ending June 30, 1999, as follows: 

Operating expenses 
Equipment 
Total special funds 

$15,000 
18,209 

$33 ,209 

SECTION 9. EFFECTIVE DATE. Section 6 of this Act is effective for fees 
collected after December 31, 2000, for offenses committed after June 30, 1999. 

SECTION 10. EMERGENCY. Sections 7 and 8 of this Act are declared to be 
an emergency measure." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

DEPARTMENT 530 - DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS AND REHABILITATION 

CONFERENCE COMMITTEE - This amendment makes the following changes: 
CONFERENCE 

CONFERENCE CONFERENCE COM PARISON 
EXECUTIVE HOUSE COMMITTEE COMMITTEE SENATE TO SENATE 

BUDGET VERSION CHANGES VERSION VERSION VERSION 

Central Office: 
Salaries and wages $878.152 $865,070 $865,070 $865,070 
Operating expenses 118,682 115,000 $3 ,682 118,682 118,682 
Equipment 26,950 20,200 6,750 26,950 26,950 
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Total all funds $1 ,023,784 $1 ,000,270 $10,432 $1 ,010 ,702 $1 ,010,702 $0 

Less estimated income 

Total general fund $t ,023 ,784 $1 ,000,270 $10,432 $1 ,010,702 $1 ,010,702 $0 

Juvenile Services: 
Salaries and wages $9,764,955 $9,552,045 $9,552,045 $9,552,045 
Operating expenses 4,344,374 4,229,174 $115,200 4,344,374 4,344,374 
Equipment 141 ,771 104,321 19,250 123,57t 123,571 
Capital improvements 371 ,900 35,000 39,500 74,500 74,500 
Grants 2,870,900 2,870,900 2,870,900 2,870,900 
Delinquency prevention 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 
consortium 

Total all funds $17,693,900 $16,991,440 $173,950 $17,165,390 $17,165,390 $0 

Less estimated income 5,688,979 5,674,504 164 712 5,839,216 5,839,216 

Total general fund $12,004,921 $11,316,936 $9,238 $11,326,174 $11 ,326,174 $0 

Adult Services: 
Victim services $2,610,550 $2,609,036 $2,609,036 $2,609,036 
Institutional offender 828,335 821,649 821 ,649 821,649 
services 

Community offender 10,029,660 9,635,277 $201 ,482 9,836,759 9,836,759 
services 

Support services 20,234,931 16,699,252 . 2,651,000 19,350,252 19,350,252 
Program services 3,853,788 3,833,361 3,833,361 3,833,361 
Security and safety 23,625,750 20,341 ,166 124,186 20,465,352 21 ,576,321 ($1,110,969) 
Roughrider Industries 9.243.724 7,521,794 7,521,794 7,521 ,794 

Total all funds $70,426,738 $61 ,461 ,535 $2,976,668 $64,438,203 $65,549,172 ($1 ,110,969) 

Less estimated income 16,335,431 12,660,179 2,205,531 14,865,710 14,865,710 

Total general fund $54,091 ,307 $48,801,356 $771 ,137 $49,572,493 $50,683,462 ($1 ,110,969) 

Grand total all funds $89. 144,422 $79,453,245 $3,161,050 $82,614,295 $83,725,264 ($1,110 ,969) 

Less grand total special funds 22,024,410 18,334,683 2,370,243 20,704,926 20,704,926 

Grand total general fund $67,120,012 $61,118,562 $790,807 $61 ,909,369 $63,020,338 ($1,110,969) 

FTE 577.21 546.68 26.00 572.68 572.68 0.00 

• Detail of Conference Committee changes to the House version : 

FUNDING 
SOURCE 
CHANGE 

FOR YOUTH 
DELAY CORRECTIONAL 

RESTORE RESTORE REDUCE SUPERVISION CENTER 
RESTORE OPERATING CAPITAL CAPITAL FEE 12-MONTH 

EQUIPMENT EXPENSES IMPROVEMENTS IMPROVEMENTS INCREASE SCHOOL 

Central Office: 
Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses $3,682 3 
Equipment $6,750 1 

Total all funds $6,750 $3,682 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Less estimated income 

Total general fund $6,750 $3 ,682 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Juven ile Services: 
Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses $115,2004 
Equipment $19,250 2 
Capital improvements $39,500 5 
Grants 
Delinquency prevention 
consortium 

Total all funds $19,250 $115,200 $39,500 $0 $0 $0 

Less estimated income 19,250 12,094 9 

Total general fund $0 $115,200 $39,500 $0 $0 ($12,094) 9 

Adult Services: 
Victim services 
Institutional offender 

services 

• Community offender 
services 

Support services $2,751 ,000 6 ($100,000) 7 
Program services 
Security and safety 
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Roughrider Industries 

Total all funds 

Less estimated income 

Total general fund 

Grand total all funds 

Less grand total special 
lunds 

Grand total general fund 

Central Office: 
Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Equipment 

Total all funds 

Less estimated income 

Total general fund 

Juvenile Services: 
Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Equipment 
Capital improvements 
Grants 
Delinquency prevention 

consortium 

Total all funds 

Less estimated income 

Total general fund 

Adult Services: 
Victim services 
Institutional offender 

services 
Community offender 

services 
Support serv ices 
Program services 
Security and safety 
Roughrider Industries 

Total all funds 

Less estimated income 

Total general fund 

Grand total all funds 

Less grand total special 
funds 

Grand total general fund 

FTE 

$0 

$0 

$26,000 

19,250 

$6,750 

RESTORE 
POSITIONS 

AND RELATED 
OPERATING 
EXPENSES 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$20 1,482 10 

115,390 ll 

$316,872 

$316,872 

$316,872 

$316,872 

6.00 

$0 

$0 

$118,882 

$118,882 

RESTORE 
POSITIONS ANO 

OPERATING 
EXPENSES 

FOR 5TH ANO 
6TH FLOOR 

RENOVATION 
ATJRCC 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$857,345 12 

$857,345 

$857,345 

$857,345 

$857,345 

20.00 

Conference Committee changes narrative: 

This amendment makes the following changes : 

$2,751,000 

2,313,531 

$437,469 

$2.790,500 

2,313,531 

$476,969 

REDUCE 
OPERATING 
EXPENSES 

FOR 
CONTRACT 

INMATE 
HOUSING 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

($848,549) 13 

($848,549) 

($848,549) 

($848,549) 

($848,549) 

0.00 

($100 ,000) 

($100,000) 

($100,000) 

($100,000) 

FUNDING 
SOURCE 

CHANGE TO 
REFLECT 

ADDITIONAL 
LAND 

DEPARTMENT 
DISTRIBUTIONS 

$0 

$0 

$0 

133,368 14 

($133,368) 14 

$0 

$0 

$0 

133,368 

($133,368) 

0.00 

$0 

(108,000)8 

$108,000 8 

$0 

(108,000) 

$108,000 

TOTAL 
CONFERENCE 

COMMITTEE 
CHANGES 

$3 ,682 
6,750 

$10,432 

$10,432 

$115,200 
19,250 
39,500 

$173,950 

164 712 

$9,238 

$201,482 

2,651 ,000 

124,186 

$2,976,668 

2,205,531 

$771,137 

$3,161 ,050 

2,370,243 

$790,807 

26.00 

$0 

$0 

$0 

12,094 

($12,094) 

• Removes Section 4 of the engrossed bill, which provided legislative intent that during the 
1999-2001 biennium, the department monitor changes in the inmate population and the number of 
correctional cells available to house state inmates through contractual agreements and present a 
report to the Legislative Council. 
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• Rornove Section 5 of the engrossed bill , which provided legislative intent that during the 1999-2001 
blonnlum, the department operate programs to provide alternatives to incarceration and present to 
tho Budget Section periodic reports on the effectiveness of these programs . 

• Adds Section 7, which amends North Dakota Century Code Section 19-03.1-23 relating to 
sentencing for drug offenses. 

• Adds Section 8, which provides an appropriation of $33,209 from federal funds for the 1997-99 
biennium. 

, Restores the House reduction to the equipment line item for the Central Office, increasing the total 
amount from $20,200 to $26,950. 

2 Restores the following House reductions , but provides special funds spending authority, rather than 
general fund spending authority which was removed by the House: 

Youth Correctional Center: 
Restores funding for computer 
purchases, increasing the total 
amount from $37,500 to $50,000 

Restores funding for replace
ment of a tractor, increasing 
the total amount from $10,000 
to $15,000 

Juvenile Community Services: 
Restores funding for equip
ment, increasing the total 
amount from $5,250 to $7,000 

Total Juvenile Services 
Division equipment 
restorations 

GENERAL 
FUND 

$0 

OTHER 
FUNDS 

$12,500 

5,000 

1,750 

$19,250 

TOTAL ALL 
FUNDS 

$12,500 

5,000 

1,750 

$19,250 

3 Restores the House reduction to the operating expenses line item for the Central Office, increasing the 
total amount from $115,000 to $118,682. 

4 Restores the House reductions to the operating expenses line item for the Juvenile Services Division, 
increasing the total amount from $4,229,1 74 to $4 ,344,374. The restoration includes $32,200 for 
medical-related expenses at the Youth Correctional Center and $83,000 for Juvenile Services Division 
community programs. 

s Restores a portion of the House reduction for Youth Correctional Center extraordinary repairs, 
increasing the total amount from $35,000 to $74,500. The executive budget included $150,900. 

6 Restores funding for capital improvements for the Adult Services Division as follows: 

Restores runding for the 5th and 6th floors 
renovation project at the JRCC (The 
House rdmoved the same total amount, 
but $259. ~69 from the general fund 
and $2.093.53 1 from federal funds . 
The Conldrence Committee is adding 
$39.46'.l I,om the general fund. $1 ,913,531 
from feddral funds . and $400 .000 
from tho Penitentiary land replace-
ment f11 11d.) 

Restores I11ndrng for a security fence 

GENERAL 
FUND 

$39.469 

t98,000 

Page No. 5 

OTH ER 
FUNDS 

$2,313.531 

TOTAL ALL 
FUNDS 

$2,353.000 

198,000 
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around the Roughrider Industries 
building 

Restores funding for parking lot 
construction at the JRCC, increasing 
the total amount for the project from 
$40,000 to $71,000 

Restores funding for forensic 
building lobby, front entrance, 
and other JRCC improvements, 
increasing the total amount for 
these projects from $200 ,000 
to $325,000 

Restores funding for security 
improvements at the JRCC, 
increasing the total amount for 
the project from $100,000 to 
$121,000 

Restores funding for extraordinary 
repairs for a JRCC ventilation 
project (The House reduced total 
extraordinary repairs funding for 
adult services from $1 ,003,700 
to $650.000.) 

Total Adult Services Division capital 
improvements restorations 

31 .000 31 ,000 

125,000 125,000 

21.000 21,000 

23 ,000 23,000 

$437,469 $2,313,531 $2,751 ,000 

7 Removes funding for parking lot improvements at the Penitentiary. The House reduced the amount 
included in the executive budget for this project from $325,000 to $100,000. 

8 Reduces other funds and increases general fund spending authority to reflect delaying collection of 
increased probation supervision fees until January 1, 2001. The amendment increases fees to $36 
per month. The House increased fees to $35 per month, effective July 1, 1999. 

9 Increases other funds and decreases general fund spending authority for the 12-month school 
program at the Youth Correctional Center. The $12,094 of other funds spending authority was 
removed by the House, but reflects federal funds anticipated to be available. 

10 Restores funding for the following FTE positions and related operating expenses included in the 
community offender services line item: 

a. Restores administrative secretary Ill 
positions removed by the House 

Restores related operating expenses 
removed by the House 

Removes funding for temporary salaries 
added by the House 

b. Restores community corrections agent 
removed by the House 

Restores related operating expenses 
removed by the House 

c. Restores parole and probation otticer II 
removed by the House 

Restores related operating expenses 

Total positions and related costs 
restored for community offender services 

FTE 
POSITIONS 

2.00 

1.00 

1.00 

4.00 

GENERAL 
FUND 

$95,436 

41 ,848 

(38,436) 

53.024 

2,531 

36.657 

10.422 

$201 ,482 

OTHER 
FUNDS 

$0 

TOTAL ALL 
FUNDS 

$95,436 

41 .848 

(38,436) 

53.024 

2.531 

36.657 

$201,482 

11 Restores funding for the following FTE positions and related operating expenses included in the 
security and safety line item: 

a. Restores correctional otticer II 
positions for the JRCC 

Restores related operating expenses 

Total positions and related costs 
restored for the security and safety 
program 

FTE 
POSITIONS 

2.00 

2.00 

Page No. 6 

GENERAL 
FUND 

$110.910 

$115 ,390 

OTHER 
FUNDS 

$0 

TOTAL ALL 
FUNDS 

$110,910 

4 480 

$115,390 

98016 .0207 



12 Restores funding for 20 FTE positions and related operating expenses for the operation of the JRCC 
5th and 6th floors. The executive budget assumed that the JRCC would be completed by May 2000. 
The House removed $1,463,679 for the FTE positions and the operation of the facility. The 
Conference Committee amendment restores $857,345 and assumes that the facility will be completed 
by November 2000. 

13 Reduces funding for contract inmate housing, reducing the amount provided from $2,661 ,040 in the 
House version and $2,923,460 in the Senate version to $1 ,812,491 in the Conference Committee 
version. The House reduced the executive budget amount of $4,085,300 by $1 ,424,260. The House 
amount was based on inmate population growth of 1 0 percent the first year of the 1999-2001 
biennium, 15 percent growth the second year; a July 1, 1999, population of 950 inmates; alternatives 
to incarceration saving 135 prison beds per month ; not completing the 5th and 6th floors of the JRCC; 
and contracting for inmate beds at the daily rate of $47 for the first 82 beds and additional beds at $55 
the first year and $60 the second year. The Senate amount was based on 10 percent inmate growth 
the first year of the biennium, 15 percent growth the second year; a July 1, 1999, population of 975 
inmates; alternatives to incarceration saving 115 prison beds per month; November 2000 completion 
of the 5th and 6th floors of the JRCC; and contracting for inmate beds at the daily rate of $55 the first 
year and $60 the second year. The Conference Committee amount is based on a July 1, 1999, 
population of 962 inmates; alternatives to incarceration saving 125 prison beds per month; and the 
contracting daily rates used in the House version . 

14 Increases other funds and decreases general fund spending authority for the Juvenile Services 
Division to reflect an additional $133,368 anticipated to be distributed to the Youth Correctional Center 
from the Board of University and School Lands. Section 4 is added which directs the Board of 
University and School Lands to distribute all available trust fund income for the 1999-2001 biennium. 
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REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
(ACCEDE/RECEDE) - 420 
=============- ·-- ------- ---============= 

(Bill Number f6_/()_/2~~---- (, as (re)engrossed): 

Your Conference Committee 

07398 
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~/ I 72517_26.~ S72'/1726 5723/9725 

ouse) amendments on (S~ page(s) 

D and place ____ on the Seventh order. 
727 

O , adopt (further) amendments as follows, and place 

on the Seventh order: ----

0 having been unable to agree, recommends that the committee be discharged 
and a new committee be appointed. no/515 

((Re)Engrossed) ____ was placed on the Seventh order of business on the 
calendar. 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
DATE: !/__1k._1 97 
CARRIER: 

LC NO. 

LC NO. 

of amendment 

of engrossment 

Emergency clause added or deleted __ _ 

Statement of purpose of amendment __ _ 

==---------------------------------------------------------------------------------= 
(1) LC (2) LC (3) DESK (4) COMM . 
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JOURNAL OF THE SENATE 68th DAY 

prog amend and reenact subdivision d of subsection 5 of section 61-02-02 of the 
North Dakota Century Cod_e, relating to the definition of works ; to require the pledging of 
funds for certain water profects: to allocate funds from settlements with tobacco product 
ma_nufacturers : lo provide a_ statement of legislative intent : to provide for reports to the 
leg1slat1v_e council_; to provide for _development of a statewide water development 
program, to provide an appropriation; to provide an effective date; to provide an 
exp1rat1on date ; and lo declare an emergency. 

ROLL CALL 
The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, the roll was 
called -and there were 45 YEAS, 3 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 1 ABSENT ANO NOT VOTING. 

YEAS: Andrist ; Bowman ; Christmann: Cook: DeMers; Fischer; Ffakoll; Freborg ; Grindberg : 
Heitkamp; Holmberg ; Kelsh; Kilzer; Kinnoin; Klein ; Krauter; Krebsbach; Kringstad; Lee; 
Lindaas ; Lyson ;. Math~rn. O.; Mathern, T.; Mutzenberger; Naaden; Nelson, C.; 
Nelson , G.; Neth1ng; OConnell; Redlin ; Robinson ; Sand: Schobinger; Solberg; 
St. Aubyn; Steneh1em, W.; Tallacksen; Thane; Thompson; Tomac; Traynor ; Urlacher ; 
Wanzek: Wardner ; Watne 

NA VS: Kroeplin ; Mutch ; Stenehjem, B. 

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING : Bercier 

Engrossed SB 2188, as amended. passed, the title was agreed to, and the emergency clause "\j ""''"'" ""''" 
REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 

HB 1016, as engrossed : Your conference committee (Sens. Kringstad , Robinson, Nething 
and Reps. Svedjan , Delzer, Hoffner) recommends that the SENATE RECEDE from the 
Senate amendments on HJ pages 1097-1102, adopt amendments as follows , and place 
HB 1016 on the Seventh order: 

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1097-1102 of the House 
Journal and pages 966-971 of the Senate Journal and that Engrossed House Bill No. 1 O 16 be 
amended as follows : 

Page 1, fine 2, remove the second "and" and after "12.1-32-07" insert ·and subsection 5 of 
section 19-03. 1-23" 

Page 1, line 3, after "probationers· inserl "and sentencing for drug offenses ; 10 provide an 
effective date ; and to declare an emergency· 

Page 1, line 14, replace ·115,000" with · 118,682" 

Page 1, line 15, replace ·~· with ·~· 

Page 1, line 16, replace "1 ,000,270" with ·1 ,010,702" 

Page 1, line 20, replace "4,229,174" with "4,344 ,374" 

Page 1, line 21, replace ·104,321" with "123,571" 

Page 1, line 22, replace "35,000" with "74,500" 

Page 2, line 1, replace "16,991 ,440" with "17,165,390" 

Page 2, line 2, replace ·5 674,504" with "5,839.216" 

Page 2, line 3, replace ·11,316,936" with ·11 ,326,174" 

Page 2, line 8, replace "9,635,277" with "9,836,759" 

Page 2, line 9, replace "16,699,252" with "19,350,252" 

Page 2. line 11 , replace "20,341,166" with "20,465 ,352" 

Page 2. line 13. rep l.1ce "61 ,461 ,535" with "64,438,203" 

68th DAY WEDNESDAY, APRIL 14, 1999 

Page 2, line 14, replace ·12 660 179" with •14 865 710" 

Page 2. line 15, replace "48 ,801 ,356" with "49 ,572,493" 

Page 2, line 16, replace "61 ,118,562" with "61 ,909,369" 

Page 2, line 17, replace ·18 ,334,683" with "20,704,926" 

Page 2, line 18, replace "79,453.245" with "82 ,614 ,295" 

Page 2, remove lines 29 through 31 

Page 3, replace lines 1 through 21 with : 

• 1269 

"SECTION 4. LAND BOARD DISTRIBUTIONS . Notwi ths tanding the 
provisions of section 15-03-05 .2, during the 1999-2001 biennium. the board of 
university and school lands shall distribute to the youth correctional center all income 
from permanent funds managed for the benefit of that inst1tut1on . 

SECTION 5. CAPITAL PROJECT · ADULT SERVICES DIVISION. The 
supporl services line item in subdivision 3 of section 1 of this Act includes up to 
$198,000 from the stale general fund which must be used by the department of 
corrections and rehabilitation for the construction of a security fence around the 
roughrider industries building at the penitentiary during lhe 1999-200 t b1enn,um." 

Page 3, line 29, replace "th irty -five· with ·~· 

Page 3, alter line 31, inserl : 

"SECTION 7. AMENDMENT. Subsection 5 of section 19-03.1-23 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

5. A violation of this chapter or a law of another state or the federal 
government which is equivalent to an ottense under this chapter committed 
while the ollender was an adult and which resuli ed in a plea or finding of 
gui lt must be considered a prior offense under subsections 1, 3, and 4. 
The prior offense must be alleged in the complaint, inlorma1,on. or 
indictment. The plea or linding of guilt for the prior off ense must have 
o,;~urred belore the date of the commission of the offense or ottenses 
cha rged in the complaint inlormation or indictment. 

SECTION 8. APPROPRIATION. The funds provided in this section , or so 
much of lhe funds as may be necessary , are hereby appropriated from special funds 
derived from federal funds to the department of correc tions and rehabilitation for the 
purpose of delraying its expenses for the period beginning with the effective date of this 
Act and ending June 30 , 1999, as follows : 

Operating expenses 
Equipment 
Total special funds 

$15 ,000 
~ 

$33,209 

SECTION 9. EFFECTIVE DATE. Section 6 of this Act is effective for fees 
collected alter December 31, 2000, for offenses committed after June 30 , 1999. 

SECTION 10. EMERGENCY. Sections 7 and 8 of this Act are declared to be 
an emergency measure." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT : 

DEPARTMENT 530 - DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS AND REHABILITATION 

CONFERENCE COMMITTEE - This amendment makes the following changes : 
CONFERE NCE 

CONFERE NCE CONFERENCE COMPARISON 
EXECUTIVE HOUSE COMMITTEE COMMITTE E SENATE TO SENATE 

BUDGET VERSION CHANGES VERSION VERSION VERSION 

Cen11al Off ice 
Sa1ar1t!s a"o waQl:!S S878 152 5865 ,070 $.865 070 5665 ,070 
Opet a1ing inpen~s I 18 ,682 115.000 SJ .682 118.682 118 ,682 
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~ ~ !.D.Q ~ 

Totalall lunds 11 .023 .784 11 ,000.270 110,432 $ 1,010,102 

less Hl~lltd ,neome 

To1a1 Qltf'lefal luno $1 ,023. 7154 $ 1.000 ,210 11 0.,n $1 ,010.702 

Jvvemi. Services 
S~a,ies ano ..,a119s 19 76-4 955 $9 .552 .045 19.552.045 
o,p., a11ng Hpenses 4.JU JH 4 229. 1 74 $11 5 ,200 4,344 .374 
EQ\.lipment 141 71 1 104 321 19.250 12J .57 1 
Cao11aJ .rro,ovemc,nts )71 900 35 000 39.500 74 500 
G,an1s 2.IH0 .900 2 870 900 2.870.900 
0.ill'lQUen(:y P,9\1.011()1'\ 200 .000 200 000 200,000 
consoa1um 

TowiI.itunc1s $17.69:l ,900 $16 .991 .U O $173,950 $17 ,165.390 

Len H t1ma11td income 5 ... 979 ~ lli.!11 llllJ1j 

T 0111 Qe"91' ti lvnd $12 ,004 921 $11 .316.936 19.ne $11 ,326,174 

AOul1 Services 
V1C11mMNIC8S $2 .610 ,550 U .609 .036 $2 .609 .036 
lns111u11onal on.no., 828 .335 821.649 821 .6-49 
serve•• 

Commuoi1yotteno.f 10,029 .660 9 .&Js.2n 1201 .482 9 .836 ,759 
Hl'VICH 

$up()Of1servas 20 2l4 ,9ll 16.699 .252 2.651,000 19.350 .252 
P•aoram s9rvas J .85J ,788 J .833 .361 3,833 .361 
S.CUr1ty ana u1ery 23.625 .750 20 ,341 166 124.186 20 .465 ,352 
Roughrldet lndu1tr .. , 9 243 724 7 521 794 Ll1.!...lli 
Total 1M lundl 170.426.738 S61.461 .5J5 12.976.868 1&4.438 .203 

Leu esllmaled income 16 335 431 12 660 179 2 205 5J1 14 &65 710 

To!JI Qlt~al lund 154 091 307 $48 801.356 1771 ,137 $49,572 .493 

G,afld k:»al all lund1 $89 .144,422 179 453.245 "3.161 .050 142.614 .295 

lHS grarn::I 101ar special lunds 22 024 4 \Q l!..ll!..W Ul2..ill ~ 
G1Jfld I0lal gene1at lul'ld 16 7.120.012 S61 .1 ,e !,62 1790.807 $6 1.909.369 

FTE 577 21 ..... 26 00 572 68 

Detail of Conference Committee changes to the House version : 

Cen11a10N,c.a 
Silaroes and waoes 
()pef a11n9 11.penws 
EQuipment 

To1a.1a11 tunos 

Ju¥en1'e Se"'ic:es 
Saia, .. , ilfld waQtts 
Qpef ahnQ I lPttnses 
Equ1pmen1 
Capit.i lfrC)fO-.emencs 
G,anis 
OtllnQuency pre-venll()n 
COOK>t'hUffl 

Tour,/ oaner aJ lund 

AduN Sttrvic:H 
Victim services 
1ns1,1ut~l one,,oe, 

,e,...,ces 
CommurnlW" onenoe, 

ser-.,ce, 
SIJ000(1 se,...,,ces 
P,aoram wivic:es 
s«u11ty &tld saterv 
ROVQflr10e1 lnOustnes 

TOlill &11 IUOOS 

Tot&I Qtntfal fund 

G,aino 10111 a,,r tuno, 

LUI 9'Nkl 101.M ~ 1,,,,. 

REST O RE 
EQUIPMENT 

~' 
$6.7SO 

$6 ,750 

119 250 2 

$19.250 

~ 

$0 

IO 

IO 

126 .000 

19 ,250 

$6 .150 

RESTORE 
OPERATING 
EXPENSES 

13.662 l 

Sl .682 

13.6"2 

1 115,200 4 

$115 .200 

1 115.200 

IO 

IO 

1 118.88.2 

s,1e.&a2 

RESTORE REDUCE 
CAPIT Al C APH AL 

IMPROVEMENTS IMPROVEMENTS 

10 10 

10 10 

ll9.SOO 5 

SJ9.SOO 10 

SJ9 .SOO 10 

S2.751 .ooo 6 (1 100 00017 

$2.7~1 .000 11 100.0001 

Ll.!l..lli 
$437 ,469 111 000001 

12.790 500 ($1 00 ,000) 

2.313 ,SJI 

J,476 969 11100.0001 

~ 

$1 ,010,102 

$1 ,0 10.102 

$9,552 .045 
4,344 ,374 

1235 71 
74 .500 

2,870.900 
200.000 

$17 .165,390 

W.t.ill 
s, 1,326.174 

$2 ,609.036 
821 .649 

9,836,759 

19,350 .252 
J .IIJJ .J61 

21 576 .321 

~ 

165.~9.172 

U 865 710 

$5,0.683 ,462 

l8J .725 .26' 

20 7Q4 926 

l6J .020 .ll8 

51268 

DELAY 
SUPERVISION 

FEE 
INCREASE 

10 

IO 

10 

10 

10 

po., 00018 

11oe ooo 8 

10 

(108 0001 

$108 .000 

68th DAY 

10 

10 

10 

10 

{11 ,110,969 ) 

Ill.I 10,969) 

(1 1,110.969 ) 

111.110.969) 

(11 ,110.969) 

000 

FUNDING 
SOURCE 
CHANGE 

FO R YOUTH 
CORRE CTIONAL 

CENTER 
12-MO NTH 
SCHOOL 

10 

10 

10 

~ 9 

($ 12.09 4) 9 

10 

10 

10 

12 ,09 4 

(11 2,094 1 

68th DAY WEDNESDAY, APRIL 14, 1999 • 
Cen1,aJ ()thee 

Sala,,., and waoe• 
()per ahng t1.pens.es 
Equipmenl 

Total aJl lunds 

Jvv•n1i. &:lrvices 
Sa1anes and waoes 
Ope, ahng • apenses 
Equ,pment 
Cao,tat ,1~1ovem1tnts 
G1an1s 
OehnQuencv pievanll()I'\ 

COOSQ(11um 

Total &JI lunds 

Total g,11r11t1 al rune 

Adult Sttivice, 
V1Ct1m services 
1ns111u111()(1al oth1noe, 

sar.,,ces 
Commu,,,rv 011en<>e1 

servce1 
SupPO(I servas 
PIOQlam Sltf'VIC8S 
Secu11ry and utety 
Rough110e, lndus111es 

T04at alt funds 

Lau es11ma1&<1 income 

Total gene• aJ tund 

G1and total a11 tunds 

Leu giand 101aJ speoal 
funds 

G,and 101ai gene, al lurid 

FIE 

RESTO RE 
POSITIONS 

ANO RELAT ED 
OP ERATING 
EXPENSES 

$0 

10 

10 

10 

RE STORE 
POSIT IONS ANO 

OPERAT ING 
EXPENSES 

FOR SH◄ ANO 
6THFL00R 

RENOVATION 
AT JA CC 

10 

$0 

10 

10 

1101 482 10 

115.390 11 S857 .345 12 

$316,872 ,a5 7.345 

' J l6 ,872 $857 ,345 

1316.872 $857 ,345 

$:) 16 8 72 $857.345 

6 00 ,o 00 

Conference Committee changes narraIive : 

This amendmenl makes the following changes : 

RE DUCE 
O PER.A TING 
EXPE NSES 

FQ A 
CON TRAC T 

INI.AA TE 
HOUSING 

10 

IO 

10 

10 

FUNDING 
SOURCE 

CHANGE TO 
RE FLECT 

A001 1l()NAL 
LANO 

OEPARTI.AENT 
01$1 R18 UTIONS 

$0 

$0 

10 

~ , .. 
t l l J J .36" ) 14 

1S848 .549 ) 13 

(18"8.549 ) 10 

(S8-48 .5-49 ) 10 

(1848.549 ) 10 

IJ3 ,J6a 

tl&-48 .5 49 1 {S IJJ.368 1 

0 00 0 00 

TO U.l 
CONFERENCE 

COMMITTEE 
CHANGES 

$:J .. , 

~ 

s , o."-32 

1 115 2'00 
, g :'SO 
J9 500 

$ I 7J 950 

~ 

19.2J8 

1201 .-a2 

2 65 1.000 

124.186 

12.9715 .~ 

22055JI 

1771.137 

SJ.161 .0~ 

2,3 70 243 

'790 807 

,. 00 

1271 

Removes Section 4 ol the engrossed bill , which provided leg islative intent that during the 
1999-200 1 biennium. the department monitor changes ,n the inmate population and the number ol 
correctional cells available to house state inmates through contractual agreements and presen1 a 
report to the Legislative Council. 

• Remove Section 5 of the engrossed bill, which provided legislative intent !hat during the 1999-2001 
biennium. the department operate programs lo provide alternatives 10 1ncarceraI1on and present to 
the Budget Section periodic reports on the effect iveness ol these programs. 

Adds Section 7, which amends North Dakota Century Code Section 19-03 1-23 relating to 
sentencing lor drug offenses. 

Adds Section 8, which provides an appropriation ol $33 .209 lrom federal funds tor !he 1997-99 
biennium. 

Restores the House reducIion to the equ ipment line item tor the Cenlral Office . increasing the 101al 
amoun l lrom $20,200 to $26,950. 
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Restore~ . ing House reductions, but provides special luhds spending authority rather lhan 
general lund spenaIng authority which was removed by the House: ' 

Youth Correctional Center: 
Restores funding lor computer 
purchases, increasing lhe I0IaI 
amount lrom $37,500 to $50,000 

Restores funding lor replace
ment al a tractor , increasing 
the total amount tram $10,000 
to $15,000 

Juvenile Community Services : 
Restores funding lor equip
ment, increasing the total 
amount lrom $5,250 to $7,000 

Total Juvenile Services 
Division equipment 
restorations 

GENERAL 
FUND 

so 

OTHER 
FUNDS 

$12,500 

5,000 

1,750 

$19,250 

TOTAL ALL 
FUNDS 

$12,500 

5,000 

1,750 

$19,250 

3 Restores the House reduction to the operating expenses line item tor the Central Oflice increasing 
the total amount lrom $115,000 to $118,682. ' 

• .Restores the House reductions to the operating expenses line item lor lhe Juvenile Services Division, 
increasing the total amount from $4 ,229.174 lo $4,344 ,374. The restoration includes $32 200 tor 
medical-related expenses at the Youth CorrecI1onal Center and $83,000 lor Juvenile Services Division 
community programs. 

, Restores a porlion al the House reduction lor Youth Correctional Center extraordinary repairs 
increasing the total amount lrom $35,000 to $74,500. The executive budget included $150,900. · 

6 Restores funding lor capital improvements lor the Adult Services Division as follows : 

R~OfH lundwlg k>f the 5m Ind 6th tloot1 
renov111on pro,ec:1 ,1 the JACC (The 
HouM rtrrov«I Zht um. lotll amoun1. 
bul 1259.469 from r,. genetal lund 
and $2 .093.531 lrom lecsefaj lunc:Js 
The Conte,.,,ce ComrnnN 1, ~lllQ 
$39 .469 lrom the- genei-11 lund. $1.913 .531 
lfom teder• f\Jncls, and $•00 .000 
lrom me Penitenr..ry land r9P1~-
1Nnl tund I 

Re1,U)l'H lund1ng lo, I MCUl'lly tenet 
around~ Roughr~ k'l<Jv1tne1 
bu-.g 

RnlOfH h.1nthng l(>f Pl11ung lol 
oonJ1rvc11on • lhe JACC. lflC/'eu,ng 
l,e IOtal amounl tor lh• p!O)ICI l10m 
$-'0 .00010 $71 .000 

Atslo,,s h,mdlnQ IOI' to,ens,c 
bui6dlng lobby . Iron! tnttlllCe. 
and Oftl..- JACC ~ovemen11. 
lf'IO'H,U~ the tor.al 1moun1 kw 
Nw P«>ieicts from S200.000 
to S,325 000 

RtSICHS tunoano lof secu,,ry 
improYerr,.nn 11 1T'1t1 J RCC. 
increasing ltW tOI.II amount !Of 
lht Pt'O,ec\ !'tom $11)0 ,000 to ,,,, .ooo 

RtSIOl'tl lunding lo, unaorOin~ 
1ep,.,r1 lo, I JRCC '<'et°\l~IIOO 

P,o,Kt !T"- HQuw, fe(Juced lotal 
el(traor()inary repairs tund,ng !Of 
.o,i,r ~ from 11 .00J .700 
lO $650.000.1 

Total A4.lft S.V.:. 0Mu:>rl cap!.al 
~11rnac,,1bQf'l1 

GENERAL 
FUND 

$39.469 

198,000 

31 .000 

125.000 

21 .000 

23.000 

$437 ,469 

OTHER 
FUNDS 

$2 .313 .531 

$2.313.S,31 

TO T AL All 
FUNDS 

12,353 ,000 

l!HI 000 

JI ,000 

125.000 

2 1.000 

23 ,000 

$2, 751 ,000 

7 . Remove.s funding Im parking lol improvements at the Penitentiary. The House reduced lhe amount 
included 1n the executive budget lor lh1s project lrom $325,000 to $100,000. 

• . Reduces other r.unds and increases gen.era! lund spending authority to reflect de laying collection at 
increased probalion supervision lees unI1I January 1, 2001 . The amendment increases lees to $36 
per month. The House increased lees 10 $35 per month. eflective July 1, 1999. 
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Increases other lunds and decreases general fund spending authority tor , 1 2-month school 
prog1am at the Youth Correct1onal Center . The $12,094 at other lunds spending authonty was 
removed by the House, but rellecls federal lunds anticipated 10 be ava ilable. 

10 Restores funding lor lhe !allowing FTE posIt1ons and related operat ing expenses included In tl'le 
communily offender s~rvices line item : 

FTE GENERAL on~EA TO TA L AL L 
POSIT IONS FUND FUNDS FUNDS . Resto,es idmm1suarive s.eaeta,y Ill 2 00 S95 .•J6 S95 .• 36 

posruons removed by the Hou~ 
Restores 1e1a1tte1 operaono e•penses 41 , 8-♦a 41,848 

l&mOV&d by Iha Hous.e 
Removes lundlng IOI' 1empo,ary ~11es 

aOOed by trle Hou54 
(38 ,436) (38,436 ) 

b Re s,o,es comrnuf'HI)' conect10ns AQenl 1.00 SJ .02, SJ .02, 
1ernovttd by lhe Hous.e 

Aes1ores re la1ttd operaurio 1uper1ses 2.531 V>J l 
, emoved by lt'te Houu 

C Res1O1tu par ole and p,Oba110n oNar II 1 00 36 651 J6 65 1 
1emovoo 01 I"• House 

Res1ores 1e1a100 optt1i1t1ng tt•penses ~ .!.2-ill 
Total pos1110ns and related cos•s • 00 s 201 .la2 "' SlOt ~ 
1ttstoittd tor communny ON11nc>e1 services 

" Restores funding lor the tallowing FTE positions 
security and salety line item : 

and related operat ing expenses included in me 

FT E GENER.AL OTHER TOT AL ALL 
POSITIONS FUND FUNDS FUNDS 

I Ro slOHIS COHt!CIIOnal oNice• II 2 00 ,, 10.91 0 $110,9 10 
pos1110ns I()( rtie JRCC 

Ra s10,tt1 ,,1a11td optJrating llJpenMts ~ ~ 

Total pos1110ns and related cos1s 2 00 SI 15.390 "' $115,390 
ftlSIOf ed lo, ltle S&eur1ty anO s.al@ty 
pr og,arn 

12 Restores funding tor 20 FTE positions and related operating expenses tor the operation al the JRCC 
5th and 6th lloors. The executive budget assumed thal the JRCC would be completed by May 2000. 
The House removed $1,463,679 tor the FTE positions and the operation al the facility . The 
Conference Comminee amendment restores $857,345 and assumes that the facility will be completed 
by November 2000. 

" Reduces funding lor contract inmate housing , reducing the amount provided tram $2,661 .040 in the 
House version and $2,923,460 in the Senate version to $1 ,812,491 in the Conference Committee 
version. The House reduced the executive budge! amount al $4,085 ,300 by $1 ,424 ,260. The House 
amount was based on inmate population growth al 10 percent lhe lirst year at the 1999·2001 
bienniu1n, 15 percent growth the second year : a July 1, 1999, popuIaIIon at 950 inmates: alternatives 
10 inca rceration saving 135 prison beds per month ; not completing the 5th and 6th floors al me JRCC : 
and conlractIng for inmate beds at the daily rate at $4 7 lor the l irsl 82 beds and add1lional beds at $55 
the l irst year and $60 the second year. The Senate amount was based on 10 percen1 inmate growth 
the tirsl year al the biennium, 15 percent growth the second year : a July 1. 1999, population al 975 
inmates : alternatives to incarceration saving 115 prison beds per month ; November 2000 completion 
al the 5th and 6th lloors al the JRCC: and contracting lor inmate beds at the daily rate al $55 the first 
year and $60 the second year . The Conference CommiMe amount is based on a July 1, 1999. 
populat ion al 962 inmates; alternatives to incarceration saving 125 prison beds per month ; and the 
contracting daily rates used in the House version . 

" Increases other lunds and decreases general lund spending authority tor the Juvenile Services 
Division to reflect an additional$ t 33 ,368 anticipated to be distributed 10 the Youth Correct ional Center 
lrom the Board al University and School Lands. Section 4 is added which directs lhe Board at 
University and School Lands to distribute all available trust tund income lor lhe 1999-2001 biennium. 

Engrossed HB 1016 was placed on the Seventh order ol business on the calendar . 

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
SEN. KRINGSTAD MOVED lhat the conference committee repor1 on Engrossed HB 1016 be 
adopted , which molion prevailed on a voice vote . 

Engrossed HB 1016, as amended, was placed on the Founeenth order. 

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL 
HB 1016: A BILL lor an Act to provide an appropriation lor defraying lhe expenses ol the 

department ol corrections and rehabilitat ion : to amend and reenact subsection 2 ol 
section 12.1-32-07 and subsecI1on 5 of section 19-03.1-23 ol the Nonh Dako1a Century 
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Department 530 - Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation 
House Bill Noa. 1016, 1022 

1999-2001 Executive Budget 

1997-99 Legislative Appropriations 

Increase (Decrease) 

FTE 
Po•ltlon• 

577.21 

518.64 

58.57 

This amount indudes $3 ,075 ,000 of bonding proceeds appropriated in House Bill No. 1022. 

Genenil 
Fund 

$67,120.012 

45,229,992 

$21,890,020 

Other 
Fund• Total 

$25,599,410 $92 ,719,422 

26.1 25.026 71 ,355,018 •• 

($525 ,616) $21 ,364.404 

This amount has been increased to $75 ,150.759 ($45,480,097 from the general fund , $29,670,662 from other funds ) to reflect additional spending authority approved 
by the Emergency Commission and carryover authority from the 1995-97 biennium. 

Major Item• Affecting Department of Correction• and Rehabilitation 1999-2001 Budget 

Central Office 
1. Provides an equity salary increase for the director position based on a survey conducted 

by the Central Personnel Division (The House reduced this amount by $3,571 .) 

2. Deletes a .50 FTE administrative officer II position 

3. 

4 . 

5. 

6. 

7 . 

Decreases operating expenses for the net effect of inflationary increases . additional lease 
payments for leased equipment. and reductions relating to one-time costs incurred during 
the 1997-99 biennium for the adult services automation project (The House reduced the 
operating expenses line item by an additional $3,682 from the general fund.) 

Decreases equipment for reductions relating to one-time costs incurred during the 1997-99 
biennium for the adult services automation project (The House reduced the equipment 
line item by an additional $6. 750 from the general fund .) 

Juvenile Services - Youth Correctional Cent.er 
Decreases extraordinary repairs from $190,700 in 1997-99 to $150,900 in 199Sc2001 (The 
House reduced this amount by $115,900, to $35,000.) 

Increases funding for capital projects from $1 ,782.300 in 1997-99 to $2,1 96.000 in 
1999-2001 

Provides funding for the following capital improvements at the Youth Correctional Center. 
Extraordinary repairs (The House reduced this amount by $115. 900.) 
Fire suppression systems in Brown and Maple Cottages (The House eliminated this 

funding.) 
Pine Cottage addition for special management unit ($500,000 federal funds. 

$1 ,475 ,000 state bonding proceeds) (The House eliminated this funding from House 
Bill No. 1022.) 

Divine Hall improvements and planning for remodeling (The House eliminated this 
funding .) 

Total capital projects recommended 

8. Increases general fund and decreases other funds spending authority for operating 
expenses to reflect the elimination of federal funding from the Department of Human 
Services for contract child psychiatric services• 

9. Increases operating expenses for contract child psychology services• 

10. Increases operating expenses for anticipated increases in medical costs' 

11 . Increases operating expenses for contract nursing services• 
• (The House reduced the operating expenses line item by $32,200 for medical-related 

expenses.) 

12. Increases general fund and decreases other funds spending authority to replace 
foundation aid moneys received from the Department of Public Instruction during 
1997-99 which will not be received during 1999-2001, pursuant to North Dakota Century 
Code Section 15-40.1-05.1 

13. Increases salaries and wages and provides authority fo< additional 3.57 FTE faculty 
positions (. 17 increase for 21 positions) to extend the term of teacher contracts to allow 
establishment of a 12-month education program (The House reduced this amount by 
S 128. 135. $116,041 from the general fund and $12,094 from other funds. and removed 
1.53 FTE positions.) 

Juvenile ServlcH. Juvenile Community ServlcH Dlvl•lon 
14. Increases general fund and decreases other funds spending authority to reflect a reduction 

of federal funds for operating expenses relating to the North Dakota Partnership Project. 
which provides servia!s to children with serious emotional disorders who are under the care, 
custody, or control of the division (The House reduced the operating expenses line item by 
$83 ,000 for reductions to be determined by the department) 

15. _Increases spending authority for the delinquency prevention consortium from $100,000 in 
1997-99 to $200,000 in 1999-2001 for the study and development of programs to serve 
children exhibiting delinquent behavior 

Adult ServicH - Community Correctlon• Oivl•lon 
16. Decreases the victims services line item to reflect an anticipated decl ine in federal and 

other funds available for victims grants from $2,806 ,464 in 1997-99 to $2,297.239 in 
1999-2001 

17 Adds 1 FTE program administrator IV position to serve as a crime victim coord inator 
($81 .037) and funding for related costs ($14 ,238) (institutional offender services line item) 

General Fund Other Fund• 

$4,597 

(38,621) 

(79,094) 

(45,871) 

(39,800) 

221 ,000 

150,900 
101 ,000 

120.000 

$371 ,900 

$57,600 

48,000 

95,000 

41,600 

1 , 2◄ 2.200 

269,895 

74,080 

19,054 

($103,834) 

(93,779) 

192,700 

1,975,000 

$1 ,975,000 

($57,600) 

(1,242.200) 

43,858 

(7-4,080) 

100,000 

(509,225) 

76,221 

Total 

$4,597 

(38,621) 

(1 82,928) 

(139 ,650) 

(39,800) 

413,700 

150,900 
101 ,000 

1,975,000 

120.000· 

$2,346 ,900 

$48,000 

95,000 

41 ,600 

313,753 

100,000 

(509,225) 

95 ,275 



1 R Adds 3 FTE pos,tions and funding for related costs to establish a release team which will be 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

20 

• 

2~ 

2Q 

JO 

Jt 

3= 

,esponsible for inmate reintegration programs (institutional offender services line rtem): 
2 FTE parole and probation officer Ill 
1 FTE admin istrative secretary Ill 
Additional operating costs 
Total 

Decreases general fund and increases other funds spending authority for the 
community offender services line item to reflect additional supervision fee collections 
dunng 1999-2001 and supervision fees collected during 1997-99 carried forward to 
1999-2001 (The House increased other funds by $144 ,000 to reflect a $5 per month increase 
,n supervision fee rates.) 

Increases the community offender services line item for programs that serve as alternatives 
10 the ,ncarceration of offenders . induding addiction treatment. home confinement. halfway 
house detention, and other programs (The House reduced this amount to $2,000,000.) 

Decreases the community offender services line item to reflect an estimated decline in 
federal domestic violence funds and drug control and system improvement funds 

Add s 3.5 FTE community corrections agents ($205,473} and funding for related costs 
($8 ,857) to supervise low-risk offenders, allowing parole and probation officers to 
concentrate on high-risk cases : increases general fund authority and decreases other funds 
to reflect an anticipated dedine in federal funds for contracted supervision services for 
low-risk offenders (community offender services line item) (The House removed 1 FTE 
position and $55,555 .) 

Adds 3 FTE administrative secretary Ill positions ($1 47 ,616} and funding for related costs 
($62.771) to provide support for field offices, allowing parole and probation officers and 
community corrections agents additional time to monitor offenders (community offender 
services line ,tern) (The House removed 2 FTE positions and $98,848.) 

Adds 3 FTE parole and probation officer II positions ($189 ,062} and funding for related costs 
($31 ,265} to meet additional needs in Bismarck and Fargo (community offender services 
line ,tern} (The House removed 1 FTE position and $47,079.) 

Adds 1 FTE addiction counselor II position ($81 ,772} and funding for related costs 
($9 ,981) for the Fargo office (community offender services line item) 

Increases the community offender services line item for the establishment of a revocation 
center to provide treatment to inmates and to parole and probation violators who would 
otherw ise be returned to prison (services will be provided on a contract basis through the 
State Hospital) 

Adult ServicH - Prison• Division 
Provides funding for the following capital improvement projects: 

Extraordinary repairs (other funds from Roughrider Industries operations) (The House 
reduced this amount by $353 ,700 from the general fund .} 

Secunty improvements - James River Correctional Center (JRCC) (The House reduced 
this amount by $21 .000.) 

Fire suppression Forensic Unit and Amusement Hall - JRCC 
Fifth and sixth floor renovation - JRCC (other funds from federal sources) (The House 

reduced this amount to $200,000 from the general fund for JRCC improvements not 
related to the fifth and sixth floors, but induded in the estimated project cost.} 

Parking lot construction - JRCC (The House reduced this amount by $31 ,000.) 
Connecting tunnel and wheelchair lift to allow pool access for State Hospital patients and 

a wheelchair lift in the JRCC residential building to meet Americans with Disabil ities 
Act requirements - JRCC 

Food serv,celmultipurpose building - Missouri River Correctional Center (MRCC} 
(other funds from state bonding proceeds) (The House removed this funding from 
House Bill No. 1022.) 

Secunty fence around Roughrider Industries building - Penitentiary (The House removed 
this funding .} 

Administrative segregation unit improvements - Penitentiary (The House reduced this 
amount by $188,000.) 

Park ing lot improvements and replacement - Penitentiary (The House reduced this 
amount by $225,000.) 

Total 

Provides equipment funding for the purchase of emergency response equipment and a 
portable x-ray scanner (support services line item) 

Add s 1 FTE account technician II position ($52,912) and funding for related costs ($4 ,955) 
for processing inmate accounts at the JRCC (support services line item) 

Adds 2 FTE reg istered nurse II positions ($139,574) and funding for related costs ($5 ,685) 
for the Pen,tent,ary (support services line item) 

Adds 2 FTE addiction counselor II positions ($143,854) and funding for related costs 
($10,910) for the JRCC (program services line item} 

Adds 1 FTE addiction counselor II position ($71 ,927) and funding for related costs 
($5,455) for the Penitentiary and MRCC (program services line item) 

Add s 1 FTE correctional unit case manager position ($72,832) and funding for related 
costs ($4.955) for the Penitentiary (security and safety line item) 

2 

General Fund 

178,596 
49,206 
25,227 

$253,029 

($336,919) 

2,149,800 

289,708 

210,387 

220,327 

91,753 

658,709 

953,700 

121,000 

181 ,000 
584 ,469 

71 ,000 
135,960 

198,000 

433,000 

325,000 

$3,003,129 

$124,219 

57 ,867 

145,259 

154,764 

77,382 

77,787 

Other Fund■ 

336 ,919 

(391,757} 

(75,378} 

360,000 

50,000 

2,093,531 

1,600,000 

$3,743,531 

Total 

178,596 
49,206 
25,227 

--$253-:029 
= 

$2,149 ,800 

(391,757} 

214,330 

210,387 

220,327 

91 ,753 

1,018,709 

1,003,700 

121 ,000 

181 ,000 
2,678,000 

71,000 
135,960 

1,600,000 

198,000 

433,000 

325,000 

$6,746,660 

$124,219 

57,867 

145,259 

154,764 

77,382 

77,787 



34 . Adds 6 FTE correctional officer II pos,t,ons ($342,240) and funding for related costs 
($13.440) for the JRCC (security and safety line ,tern) (The House removed 2 FTE positions 
and $115.390.) 

Adds 5 FTE correctional officer II pos itions ($285 ,200) and funding for related costs 
($11 .200) for transporting MRCC residents for work and treatment programs (security 
and safety line item) (The House removed 2 FTE positions and $115,390.) 

36. Adds 3 FTE correctional officer II positions ($171 ,120) and funding for related costs 
($6 ,720) for front lobby secunty at the Penitentiary (security and safety line item) 
(The House removed 1 FTE position and $57,695. The House also added $35.000 for 
temporary salaries.) 

37 . Increases the program services line item for the cost to continue treatment and education 
programs 

38. Eliminates revenue from housing out of state and federal prisoners (the 1997-99 
appropriation induded revenue from housing 1 O federal prisoners and S Alaskan 
prisoners) (support services line ,tern) 

39. Increases the security and safety line item for costs to contract for the housing of inmates 
outside the Penitentiary , MRCC . and JRCC. based on projected increases in the number 
of inmates during 1999-2001 (The House reduced this amount by $1.424 .260. to $2.661 ,040.) 

40. Increases the security and safety line ,tern for the cost to continue security and safety 
programs at the Penitentiar'y, MRCC, and JRCC 

41 . Increases the security and safety line item and adds 20 FTE positions for the operation of 
the 5th and 6th floors of the residential building at the JRCC. after the proposed renovation 
of those floors during the 1999-2001 biennium. estimated to be completed by May 1, 2000: 

2 FTE correctional unit case manager 
6 FTE correctional caseworker 
12 FTE correctional officer 11 
Additional operating costs 
Total 
(The House removed this funding.) 

42. Increases the Roughrider Industries line item for the cost to continue programs in Bismarck 
and Jamestown and provide for a general issue of license plates during the 1999-2001 
biennium (The House reduced the Roughrider Industries line item by $1 .7 million relating to 
the issuance of license plates.) 

General Fund 

355,680 

296,400 

177,840 

477,412 

4,085,300 

1,688,195 

89,626 
238,974 
420,960 
730,185 

$1 ,479,745 

Major Leglalatlon Affecting the Department of Comtetlona a.nd Rehabilitation 

Other Funds 

($44,817) 

(570,130) 

275 ,936 

436,116 

Total 

355 .680 

296 .400 

177,840 

432,595 

(570,130) 

4,085,300 

1,964.131 

89,626 
238,974 
420,960 
730,185 

$1,479,745 

$436,116 

Senate Bill No. 2026 - This bill provides a deficiency appropriation of $2,250,000, $2 million from the state general fund, S250,000 from other funds, for operating 
expenses of the Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation. 

2. Senate Bill No. 2087 - This bill increases the number of members of the parole board from 3 to 6 and provides that the chairman of the board will designate 
3 members to participate in each meeting of the board. The fiscal note indicates an increase of $3,459 in general fund expenditures for the 1999-2001 biennium . 

• 
3 



Department 530 - Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation 

•

,fouse 8111 Nos. 1016, 1022 

1999-2001 Executrve Budget 

1997-99 Legislative Appropriations 

Increase (Decrease) 

FTE 
Positions 

577 .21 

518 .64 

58 .57 

This amount includes $3 ,075.000 of bonding proceeds appropriated in House Bill No. 1022. 

Prepared by the North Dakota Legislative Council 
staff for House Appropnations 

Revised January 18, 1999 

General Other 
Fund Funds 

$67,120,01 2 $25 ,599,410 

__ 45,229,992 26,125,026 -- -·-- ---
$21 ,890,020 _ ____J__i52.,52 ~ } -~ 

Total 

$92.719,422 

71,355,018 ·

$:11 ,3§_4 ,<\04 

This amount has been rncreased to $75,150,759 ($45,480,097 from the general fund, $29,670,662 from other funds) to reflect additional spend ing authority approved 
by the Emergency Commission and carryover authority from the 1995-97 biennium. 

Major Items Affecting Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation 1999-2001 Budget 

Central Office . 
1. ~ty salary increase for the director position based on a survey conducted 

by the Central Personnel Division 

2. Deletes a .50 FTE administrative officer II position 

3. Decreases operating expenses for the net effect of inflationary increases, additional lease 
payments for leased equipment. and reductions relating to one-time costs incurred during 
the 1997-99 biennium for the adult services automation project 

4. Decreases equipment for reductions relating to one-time costs incurred during the 1997-99 
biennium for the adult services automation project 

Juvenile Services -
5. creases extraordinary repairs from $190,700 in 1997-99 to $150,900 in 1999-2001 

6. Increases funding for capital projects from $1 ,782,300 in 1997-99 to $2.196,000 in 
1999-2001 

7 . Provides funding for the following capital improvements at the Youth Correctional Center: 
Extraordinary repairs 
Fire suppression systems in Brown and Maple Cottages 
Pine Cottage addition for special management unit ($500,000 federal funds, 

$1,475,000 state bonding proceeds) 
Divine Hall improvements and planning for remodeling 
Total capital projects recommended 

Increases general fund and decreases other funds spending authority for operating 
expenses to reflect the elimination of federal funding from the Department of Human 
Servrces for contract child psychiatrrc services 

9 Increases operating expenses for contract child psychology services 

10. Increases operating expenses for an~crpated increases in medical costs 

11 . Increases operating expenses for contract nursing services 

12. Increases general fund and decreases other funds spending authority to replace 
foundation aid moneys received from the Department of Public Instruction during 
1997-99 which will not be received during 1999-2001 , pursuant to North Dakota Century 
Code Section 15-40.1-05.1 

13. Increases salaries and wages and provides authority for add itional 3.57 FTE faculty 
positions (.17 increase for 2'l.j:>ositions) to extend the term of teacher contracts to allow 
establishment of a 12-month education program 

14. n ecreases other funds spending authority to reflect a reduction 
of federal funds for operating expenses relating to the North Dakota Partnership ProJect. 
which provides services to children with serious emotional disorders who are under the care, 
cu stody, or control of the division 

15. Increases spending authority for the delrnquency prevention consortium from $1 00,000 rn 
1997-99 to $200,000 in 1999-2001 for the study and development of programs to serve 
children exhibiting delinquent behavior 

~-Community Corrections Division 
16 fDecreases the victims services line ,tern to reflect an anticipated decline in federal and 

other funds available for victrms grants from $2 ,806,464 in 1997-99 to $2,297,239 in 
1999-2001 

17 Adds 1 FTE program admrnistrator IV position to serve as a crime victim coordinator 
($81 ,037) and funding for related costs ($14,238) (institutional offender services line item) 

18. 

• 
Adds 3 FTE positions and fund ing for related costs to establish a release team which wrll be 
responsible for rnmate reintegration programs (instrtutional offender services line item): 

2 FTE parole and probation officer Ill 
1 FTE admrnrstrative secretary Ill 
Additional operati ng costs 
Total 

General Fund 

$4 ,597 

(38,621) 

(79,094) 

(45,871) 

(39,800) 

221 ,000 

150,900 
101,000 

120,000 
$371 ,900 

$57,600 

48,000 

95,000" 

41,600 

1,242,200 

269,895 

74,080 

19,054 

178,596 
49,206 
25,227 

$253,029 

Other Funds 

($103 ,834) 

(93,779) 

192,700 

1,975,000 

--------
$1 ,975,000 

($57 ,600) 

(1 ,242,200) 

43,858 

(74,080) 

100,000 

(509,225) 

76,22 1 

Total 

$4 ,597 

(38,621) 

(182 ,928) 

(139,650) 

(39,800) 

413,700 

150,900 
101 ,000 

1,975,000 

120,000 
$2,346,900 

fB ,000 

95,000 

41 ,600 

100,000 

(509 ,225) 

95 ,275 

178,596 
49 ,206 
25,227 

- --- $253,029 



19. Decreases general fund and increases other funds spending authority for the 
community offender services line item to reflect add itional supervision fee coll ections 
during 1999-2001 and superv,s,on fees collected during 1997-99 carr ied forward to 
1999-2001 

•

increases the community offender services line item for programs that serve as alternatives 
to the incarceration of offenders . including addiction treatment. home confinement, halfway 
house detention , and other programs 

21 Decreases the community offender services line item to reflect an estimated decl ine in 
federa l domestic violence funds and drug control and system improvement funds 

22 . Adds 3.5 FTE community corrections agents ($205,473) and fund ing for related costs 
($8 ,857) to supervise low-risk offenders . allowing parole and probation officers to 
concentrate on high-risk cases (commun ity offender services line item) 

23. Adds 3 FTE administrative secretary Ill pos1t1ons ($147,616) and fund ing for related costs 
($62 ,771) to provide support for field offices , allowing parole and probation officers and 
community corrections agents add itional time to monitor offenders (commun ity offender 
services line item) 

24 . Add s 3 FTE parole and probation officer II positions ($189,062) and fund ing for related costs 
($31,265) to meet add itional needs in Bismarck and Fargo (community offender services 
line item) 

25. Adds 1 FTE addiction counselor II pos ition ($81,772) and funding for related costs 
($9,981) for the Fargo office (community offender services line item) 

26. Increases the communi ty offender services line item for the establishment of a revocation 
center to provide treatment to inmates and to parole and probation violators who would 
otherwise be returned to prison (services will be provided on a contract bas is through the 
State Hospital ) 

_.,,.-- .Adult Services - Prisons Divis ion 
-~ rovides funding for (he following capital improvement projects : 

/ Extraordinary repairs (other funds from Roughrider Industries operations) 

\ Security improvements - James River Correctional Center (JRCC) 
\ Fir,;: suppression Forensic Unit and Amusement Hall - JRCC 
\ 

\ 
Fifth and sixth floor renovation - JRCC (other funds from federal sources) 

" Parking lot construction - JRCC 
\ 

Connecting tunnel and wheelchair lift to allow pool access for State Hospital patients and 
a wheelcha ir lift in the JRCC residential building to meet Americans with Disabilities 
Act requirements - JRCC 

• 
Food service/multipurpose build ing - Missouri River Correctional Center (MRCC) 

(other funds from state bond ing proceeds) 
Security fence around Roughrider Industries building - Penitentiary 
Admin istrative segregation un it improvements - Penitentiary 
Parking lot improvements and replaceme nt - Penitentiary 
Total 

28 Provides equipment funding for the purchase of emergency response equipment and a 
portable x-ray scanner (support se rvices line item) 

29 . Adds 1 FTE account technician II position ($52 ,912) and funding for related costs ($4 ,955) 
for processing inmate accounts at the JRCC (support services line item) 

30. Adds 2 FTE reg istered nurse II positions ($139,574) and funding for related costs ($5,685) 
for the Penitentiary (support services line item) 

31 . Adds 2 FTE addiction counselor II positions ($143,854 ) and funding for related costs 
($1 0,910) for the JRCC (program services line item) 

32 . Adds 1 FTE addiction counselor II position ($71,927) and funding for related costs 
($5 ,455) for the Penitentiary and MRCC (program services line item) 

33 . Add s 1 FTE correctional unit case manager position ($72,832) and funding for related 
costs ($4 .955) for the Penitentiary (security and safety line item) 

34 Adds 6 FTE correctional officer II positions ($342,240) and funding for related costs 
($13,440) for the JRCC (security and safety line item) 

35. Add s 5 FTE correctional officer II posit ions (S285.200) and funding for re lated costs 
($11,200) for transporting MRCC residents for work and treatment programs (security 
and safety line item) 

36 Adds 3 FTE correctional officer II positions ($171,120) and funding for related costs 
($6,720) for front lobby security at the Penitentiary (security and safety line item) 

37 Increases the program services line ,tern for the cost to continue treatment and education 
programs 

38 Eliminates revenue from hous ing out of state and federa l pnsoners (the 1997-99 
appropriation induded revenue from housing 1 0 federal prisoners and 5 Alaskan 
prisoners) (support services line item) 

39. Increases the security and safety line ,tern for costs to contract for the housing of inmates 
outside the Pen itentiary, MRCC . and JRCC. based on projected increases in the number 
of inmates during 1999-200 1 

• Increases the security and safety line item for the cost to continue security and safety 
programs at the Penitentiary , MRCC . and JRCC 

2 

General Fund 
($336,919) 

2,149,800 

289,708 

210,387 

220,327 

91,753 

658,709 

953,700 
121 ,000 
181,000 
584,469 
71,000 

135,960 

198,000 
433,000 
325,000 

$3,003,129 

$124 ,219 

57,867 

145,259 

154,764 

77,382 

77 ,787 

355 ,680 

296,400 

177,840 

477,412 

4,085,300 

1,688,195 

Other Funds 
336,919 

(391 .757) 

(75,378) 

360.000 

50,000 

2,093,53 1 

1,600 ,000 

--------
- $3,J.t~.~~ 

($44 ,817 ) 

(570, 130) 

275,936 

Total 

$2,149,800 

(391 .757) 

214 ,330 

210,387 

220,327 

91,753 

1,018,709 

1,003,700 
121,000 
181,000 

2,678,000 
71,000 

135,960 

1,600,000 

198,000 
433 ,000 
325,000 

-~.§.~ 

$124 ,219 

57 ,867 

145,259 

154,764 

77,382 

77,787 

355,680 

296,400 

177.840 

432 ,595 

(570,130) 

4,085 ,300 

1.964 ,131 



General Fund Other Funds Total 
41 Increases the security and safety line ,tern and adds 20 FTE pos ,t,ons for the operation of 

the 5th and 6 th fioors of the res1dent1al build ing at the JRC C. afte r the proposed renovation 
of those floors during the 1999-2001 b1enn,um, estimated to be completed by May 1. 2000 

2 FTE correctional unit case manager 
6 FTE correctiona l caseworker 
12 FTE correct ional off icer II 
Add1t1onal operating costs 

89 ,626 89 ,626 
238 .974 238 ,974 
420,960 420 ,960 
730 .1 65 730.185 

Tota l ~---~1 "--479,745 $_1,479,745 

42. Increases the Roughrider Industries line item for the cost to continu e programs in Bismarck 
and Jamestown and provide for a general issue of license plates during the 1999-2001 
biennium 

Major Legislation Affecting the Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation 

436.116 

House Bill No . 1022 - This bill authorizes the Industrial Commission to issue bonds in the amount of $16 million for construction of a food service build ing at the 
Missouri River Correctional Center and $1.475 mill ion for an addition to Pine Cottage at the Youth Correctional Center. This bill also appropriates up to 
$500 .000 of federal or other funds to the Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation for the Pine Cottage project. 

$436,116 

2. Senate Bill No. 2026 - This bill provides a deficiency appropriation of $2 .5 mill ion ($2 ,250.000 from the state general fund , $250,000 from other funds ) for operating 
expenses of the Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation . 

3. Senate Bill No. 2087 - Th is bill increases the number of members of the parole board from 3 to 6 and provides that the chairman of the board w ill des ignate 
3 members to partIcIpate in each meeting of the board . 



FEBRUARY 19. 1999 LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL Page No. 45 
ANALYSIS OF LEGISLATIVE CHANGES 

• 
AS OF FEBRUARY 18, 1999 

DIFF 
HOUSE SENATE BETWEEN 

EXECUTI VE HOUSE DIFF TO SENATE DIFF TO HOUSE & 
BILL 1/ 0EPARTHENT LINE BUDGET VERSION EXEC BUDGET VERSION EXEC BUDGET SENA TE 
HB1016 VICTIH SERVICES 2,610,550 2,609,036 1,514- 0 O+ O+ 
OOCR-AOULT SERVICES INSTITUTIONAL OFF 828,335 821,649 6,686- 0 O+ O+ 

COHHUNITY OFFENOE 10,029,660 9,635,277 394,383- 0 O+ O+ 
SUPPORT SERVICES 20,234,931 16,699,252 3,535,679- D O+ O+ 
PRDGRAH SERVICES 3,853,788 3,833,361 20,427- 0 0+ 0+ 
SECURITY & SAFETY 23 ,625,750 20,341,166 3,284, 584- 0 O+ O+ 
ROUGH RIDER INDUS 9,243,724 7,521,794 l, 721,930- 0 O+ O+ 

TOTAL 70,426,738 61,461,535 8,965,203- D 0+ O+ 
519 SPEC I AL FUNDS 16,335,431 12,660,179 3,675,252- 0 O+ O+ 

GENERAL FUND 54,091,307 48,801,356 5,289,951- 0 0+ O+ 

HB1016 SALARIES ANO WAGE 878, 152 865,070 13,082- 0 0+ O+ 
OOCR-CENTRAL OFFICE OPERATING EXPENSE 118,682 115,000 3,682- 0 0+ O+ 

EQUIPHENT 26,950 20,200 6,750- 0 O+ 0+ 

TOTAL 1, 023,784 1,000,270 23,514- D 0+ O+ 
530 SPECIAL FUNDS 0 0 •, 0+ 0 O+ O+ 

GENERAL FUND 1, 023,784 1,000,270 23,514- 0 O+ 0+ 

HB1016 SALARIES ANO WAGE 9,764,955 9,552,045 212,910- 0 O+ 0+ 
OOCR-JUVENILE SERVICES OPERATING EXPENSE 4,344,374 4,229,174 115,200- 0 O+ 0+ 

EQUIPHENT 141,771 104,321 37 ,450- 0 O+ 0+ 
HAJOR IHPROVEHENT 371,900 35,000 336, 900- 0 O+ O+ 
GRANTS 2,870,900 2,870,900 O+ 0 O+ O+ 
DELINQUENCY PREVE 200,000 200,000 O+ 0 O+ O+ 

TOTAL 17,693,900 16,991,440 702,460- 0 O+ O+ 
532 SPEC !AL FUNDS 5,688,979 5,674,504 14,475- 0 O+ O+ 

GENERAL FUNO 12,004,921 11,316,936 687,985- 0 O+ O+ 

BILL TOTAL TOTAL 89,144,422 79,453,245 9,691, 177- 0 O+ O+ 

• HB1016 SPECIAL FUNDS 22,024,410 18,334,683 3,689,727- 0 O+ O+ 
GENERAL FUND 67,120,012 61,118,562 6,001,450- 0 0+ O+ 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

DEPARTMENT 530 - DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS AND REHABILITATION 

House - This amendment makes the following changes: 

EXECUTIVE HOUSE HOUSE 
BUDGET CHANGES VERSION 

Central Office: 
Salaries and wages $878. 152 ($13.082 $865,070 
Operating expenses 118.682 3.682 115.000 
Equipment 26.950 6.750 20,200 

Total all funds $1 ,023.784 ($23,514) $1 ,000.270 

Less estimated income 

Total general fund $1 ,023,784 ($23,514) $1 ,000.270 

Juveni le Services: 
Salaries and wages $9,764.955 ($212.910l $9,552,045 
Operating expenses 4,344.374 (115.200 4,229 .1 74 
Equipment 141 ,771 ?7.450 104.321 
Capital improvements 371 ,900 ( 36,900 35,000 
Grants 2.870.900 · 2.870.900 
Delinquency prevention 200,000 , 200,000 
consortium 

Total all funds $17,693,900 ($702,460) $16,991 ,440 

Less estimated income 5.688,979 (14.475) 5,674,504 

T eta! general fund $12,004,921 ($687,985) $11 ,316,936 

Adult Services : 
Victim services $2,610,550 ($1 .514! $2,609,036 
Institutional offender 828.335 (6,686 821 ,649 

• services 
Community ottender 10,029,660 (394,383} 9,635,277 

services 
Support services 20.234,931 16,699,252 
Program services 3.853,788 3.833,361 
Security and safety 23.625,750 20.341 , 166 
Roughnder Industries 9,243,724 7,521,794 

HB1016 



Page No. 46 LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL FEBRUARY 19. 1999 
ANALYSIS OF LEGISLATIVE CHANGES 

• 
AS OF FEBRUARY 18, 1999 

EXECU TIVE HOU SE HOUSE 
BUDG ET CHANGES VERSION 

Total all funds $70,426.738 ($8,965.203) $61.461 .535 

Less estimated income 16.33 5.431 (3, 675.252) 12.660 .1 79 

Total gel'leral fund ~54.091 .307 ($5,289.951) $48,801 .356 

GRAND TOTAL ALL FUNDS $89.1 44.422 ($9 ,691 .177) $79,453.245 

LESS GRAND TOTAL 22.024 410 
SPECIAL FUNDS 

(3,689.727) 18.334 .683 

GRAND TOTAL GENERAL 
FUND 

$67.1 20.012 ($6,001 .450) $61.118.562 

FTE 577 .21 (30 .53) 546.68 

Detail of House changes to the executive budget includes: 

DELAY 
MARKET 
SALARY REDUCE INCREASE 

INCR EASE TO COMPENSATION HEAL TH REDUCE REDUCE 
JANUARY 1, PACKAGE INSURANCE REDUCE OPERATING CAPITA L 

2001 TO 2/2 COST EQUIPMENT EXPENSES IMPROVEMENTS 

Central Office: 
Salaries and wages ($3.571)1 ($11,792) 2 $2.281 3 
Operating expenses ($3,682) 6 
Equipment ~ ( 

Total all funds ($3,571 ) ($11 .792) $2.281 ($6.750) ($3.682) $0 

Less estimated income 

• Total general fund ($3.57 1) ($11 ,792) $2.281 (6,750) ($3,682) $0 

Juvenile Services: 
Salaries and wages ($120,416) 2 $35.641 3 
Operating expenses 

($37,450)5 
($115,200) 7 

Equipment 
($336,900) 9 Capita\ improvements 

Gran ts 
Deli nquency prevention 
consonium 

Total all funds $0 ($120.416) $35.641 ($37,450) ($115,200) ($336.900) 

Less estimated income (3 .807) 1 426 

Total general fund $0 ($116.609) $34,215 ($37,450) ($115.200) ($336.900) 

Adult Services : 
V1ct1m services ($1 .942l 2 $428 3 
1nst1tut1onal offender (8.981 2 2.295 3 

services 
Community offender (61 .334) 2 18,233 3 ($149,800) 8 

services 
Support services 17,963 3 ($3.494.700) 10 
Program services 6.273 3 
Security and safety 70.282 3 
Roughnaer Industries 9.124 3 

Total all funds $0 ($402,405) $124.598 $0 ($149.800) ($3,494.700) 

Less estimated income (36,128) 10,407 (2,093 .53 1) 

Total general fund $0 ($366.277) $114 191 !Q ($149.800) ($1,401 .169) 

GRAND TOTAL ALL FUNDS ($3.571 ) ($534.613) $162.520 ($44 ,200) ($268,682) ($3,831.600) 

LESS GRAND TOTAL 
SPECIAL FUNDS 

(39 ,935) 11 ,833 (2,093,531) 

GRAND TOTAL 
GENERAL FUND 

($3,571) ($494,678) $150,687 ($44,200) ($268,682) ($1,738.069) 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

HB1016 



• 

• 

FEBRUARY 19, 1999 

Cen1ral Office: 
Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Equipment 

To1al all funds 

Less est1ma1ed inccme 

Total general fund 

Juvenile Services: 
Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Equipment 
Caonal improvements 
Gran1s 
Delinquency prevention 
consortium 

To1al all funds 

Less estimated inccme 

Total general fund 

Adult Services: 
Victim services 
Institutional offender 

services 
Community offender 

services 
Support services 
Program services 
Security and safety 
Roughnder Industries 

Total all funds 

Less estimated inccme 

Total general fund 

REDUCE 
OPERATING 

EXPENSES FOR 
CONTRACT 

INMATE 
HOUSING 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

($1.424.260) 11 

($1 ,424.260) 

($1 ,424.260) 

GRAND TOTAL ALL FUNDS ($1 ,424.260) 

LESS GRAND TOTAL 
SPECIAL FUNDS 

GRAND TOTAL 
GENERAL FUND 

FTE 

($1,424.260) 

0.00 

House changes narrative: 

LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL 
ANALYSIS OF LEGISLATIVE CHANGES 

AS OF FEBRUARY 18, 1999 

REMOVE 
POSITIONS AND 

OPERATING 
EXPENSES 

FOR 5TH AN D 
5TH FLOOR 

RE NOVATION 
AT JRCC 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

($1,463.679) 12 

($1,463.679) 

($1,463,679) 

($1,463.679) 

($1,463.679) 

(20 .00) 

REMOVE 
SPENDING 

AUTHORITY 
RELATING TO 

LICENSE 
PLATE 
ISSUE 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

($1,700,000) 13 

($1 ,700,000) 

(1,700.000) 

$0 

($1,700.000) 

(1,700,000) 

$0 

0.00 

INCREASE 
SUPERVISION 

FEES 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

144,000 14 

($144,000) 14 

$0 

144.000 

($144,000) 

0.00 

REMOVE 
POSITIONS 

AND RELATED 
OPERATING 
EXPENSES 

$0 

$0 

($128. 135) 15 

($128,135) 

(12,094) 

($116.041) 

($201 .482) 16 

(253.475) 17 

($454,957) 

($454.957) 

($583,092) 

(12,094) 

($570,998) 

(10.53) 

TOTAL 
HOUSE 

CHANGES 

Page No. 47 

($13.082) 
(3 686l 

($23.514) 

($23.514) 

($212.91 0! 
(11 5. 200 

(37.450 
(336.900 

($702,460) 

{14,475) 

($687.985) 

($1 ,514) 
(6,686) 

(394.383) 

(3,535,679 
(20.427 

3.;184.584 
1.721 .930 

($8.965.203) 

(3.675.252) 

{$5,289 .951 ) 

($9,691, 1TT) 

(3.689 ,727) 

($6,001,450) 

(30 .53) 

1 This amendment delays until January 1 . 2001 . implementation of a market salary increase for the director of the 
Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation. This adjustment will provide an increase of approximately $163 per 
month for the last six months of the biennium. 

2 This amendment reduces salaries increases to two percent in July 1999 and two percent in July 2000. 

3 This amendment increases salaries and wages and program line items to reflect increased health insurance costs. 

' This amendment reduces the equipment line item for the Central Office by approximately 25 percent . from 
$26,950 to $20.200 . 

H81016 



Page No . 48 LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL 
ANALYSIS OF LEGISLATIVE CHANGES 

AS OF FEBRUARY 18, 1999 

FEBRUARY 19. 1999 

This amendment reduces the equipment line item for the Juvenile Services Divis ion by $37.450 for the following : 

Youth Correctional Center: 

GENE RAL 
FUND 

Reduces from $50. 000 10 $37. 500 the amount ($12.500) 
provided tor computer purchases 

Reduces tram $15.000 to $10.000 the amount (5.000) 
provided tor the purchase of a replacement 
tractor 

Eltmina1es funding tor voca!ional eq uipment purchased (18.200) 
during 1997-99 

Juvenile Community Services: 
Reduces equipment ltne item from $7.000 10 (1.750) 
$5.250 

Total Juvenile Services Division ($37.450) 
equipment reduction 

OTHER 
FUNDS 

TOTAL Al l 
FUNDS 

($12.500) 

(5.000) 

(18,200) 

(1.750) 

($37.450 ) 

6 This amendment reduces the operating expenses line item for the Central Office from $118,682 to $115,000 for 
reductions to be determined by the department. 

7 This amendment reduces the operating expenses line item for the Juvenile Services Division from $4,344.374 to 
$4 ,229,174 to reflect a $32,200 reduclion to the Youth Correctional Center for medical-related expenses and a 
$83,000 reduction to Juvenile Community Services for reductions to be determined by the department. 

This amendment reduces the community offender services line item to reflect a reduction from $2,149,800 to 
$2 .000 .000 in the amount provided for various programs that provide alternatives to the incarceration of inmates.(, 
This amendment also adds Section 5 which provides legislative intent that the department monitor the 
effectiveness of these programs and present a report to the Budget Section. 

9 This amendment reduces capital improvements for the Youth Correctional Center as follows : 

Eliminates funding tor Divine Hall improvements 

Eliminates funding tor tire suppression systems 
1n Brown and Maple conages 

Reduces from $ 150.900 to $3 5.000 funding 
tor extraordinary repai rs 

Total Youth Correcttonal Center capital 
improvements reduc11ons 

HB1016 

GENERAL 
FUND 

($120.000) 

(101,000) 

(115.900) 

($336.900) 

OTHER 
FUNDS 

TOTAL ALL 
FUNDS 

($120.000) 

(1 01,000) 

(11 5.900) 

($336.900) 



FEBRUARY 19. 1999 LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL 
ANALYSIS OF LEGISLATIVE CHANGES 

AS OF FEBRUARY 18, 1999 
I0This amendment reduces capital improvements for the Adult Services Division as follows: 

Reduces from $1 .003 .700 10 $650.000 
funding for extraordinary repairs 

Reduces from $ 121 .000 to $100.000 funding 
for secunty improvements at the 
James River Correctional Center 
(JRCC \ 

Reduces from $325.000 to $200.000 funding 
for forensic building lobby_. front 
entrance. and other JRCC improvements 

Reduces from $71 .000 to $40.000 funding for 
parking lot construction at tne JRCC • 

E11minaIes funding for a security fence 
around the ARI building 

Reduces rrom $433.000 to $245.000 funding 
for administrative segregat ion unit 
improvements at the Penitentiary 

Reduces from $325.000 to $100.000 funding 
tor parking lot improvements at 
the PeniIen11ary 

Reduces the suppon services line item 
for the 5th and 6th floors renovation 
of the JRCC 

Total adult services capital improvements 
reductions 

GENERAL 
FUND 

($353.700) 

(21 ,000) 

(125.000) 

(31,000) 

(198.000) 

(188,000) 

(225.000) 

(259,469) 

($1 ,401 .169) 

OTHER 
FUNDS 

($2,093,531) 

($2,093.53 1) 

TOTAL ALL 
FUNDS 

($353 .700) 

(21 .000) 

(125.000) 

(31 .000) 

(198.000) 

(188,000) 

(225.000) 

(2.353 .000) 

($3,494,700) 

Page No. 49 

This amendment adds Section 4 of the bill , which provides legislative intent that during the 1997-99 biennium the 
department monitor the growth of the inmate population and the number of correctional institution beds available to 
the department to contract tor inmate housing, and prior to the 2001 legislative session, present a report to the 
Legislative Council or an interim committee on the department's plans to renovate the 5th and 6th floors of the 
JRCC. 

I1 This amendment reduces funding for contracting for inmate housing from $4,085,300 to $2,661 ,040 to reflect an 
anticipated growth in the inmate population of fO percent for fiscal year 2000 and 15 percent tor fiscal year 2001 
and legislative intent that the department contract with in-state county facilities for housing as many inmates as 
possibfe before contracting with out-of-state facilities . 

12This amendment eliminates the following FTE positions and operating expenses tor the 5th and 6th floors of the 
JRCC: 

FTE GENERAL OTHER TOTAL ALL 
POSITIONS FUND FUNDS FUNDS 

Removes correctional unit case managers 12.ooj $87,906 $87.906 
Removes correctional caseworkers 6.00 234.048 234.048 
Removes correctional ott1cer II positions {12.00 411 .540 411 .540 
Operating expenses 730.185 730 185 

Total reduction for operation of 
the 5th and 6th floors of the JRCC 

{20.00) ($1 ,463.679) ($1 ,463,679 ) 

13This amendment reduces the Roughrider Industries line item by $1.7 million for operating expenses relating to the 
issuance of license plates. 

••This amendment increases by $144,000 anticipated revenue from probation supervision tees based on increasing 
fees from $30 to $35 per month, as provided in Section 6 of the bill. This amendment also reduces general tuna 
spending authority by the same amount. 

H81016 



Page No. 50 LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL 
ANALYSIS OF LEGISLATIVE CHANGES 

AS OF FEBRUARY 18, 1999 

FEBRUARY 19. 1999 

15This amendment reduces funding _ for the expansion of the Youth Correctional Center education program to 
increase the number of months of 1nstruct1on from 1 O to_ 12 months. The amendment 1s based on legislative intent 
that the Youth Correctional Center expand the educational program by ottenng only core curriculum during the 
summer months rather than a full education program as proposed in the executive budget . The costs are 
estimated as follows : 

FTE GENERAL OTHER TOTAL ALL 
POSITIONS FUND FUNDS FUNDS 

Executive budget 3.57 $269,895 $43.858 $31 3.753 
House version 2.04 153.854 31.764 185.61 8 

Change lrom executive budget (1.53) ($11 6,04 1) ($12.094) ($128.135) 

16This amendment eliminates the following FTE positions and related operating expenses included in the community 
offender services line item: 

FTE GENERAL OTHER TOTAL ALL 
POSITIONS FUND FUNDS FUNDS 

a. Removes administrative secretary Ill (2.00) ($95,436) ($95,436) 
positions 

Adds tundini tor temporary salaries 38.436 38.436 
Removes re ated operating expenses (41 .848) (41 ,848) 

b. Removes community corrections agent 
. Removes related operating expenses 

(1.00) (53.024! 
(2.531 

(53.024! 
(2.531 

c. Removes parole and probation officer II (1.00) (36.657 36.65~ 
Removes related operating expenses 10.422 10.422 

Total FTE and related changes for 
community offender services 

(4.00) ($201,482) ($201 .482) 

17This amendment eliminates the following FTE positions and related operating expenses included in the securit( -
and safety line item: 

a. Removes correctional officer II 
pos itions relating to the JRCC 

Removes related operating expenses 

b. Removes correctional officer II 
oosIt1ons relating to transporting 
Missouri River Correctional Center 
inmates 

Removes related operating expenses 

c. Removes correctional officer 11 
position relating to Penitentiary 
front lobby security 

Removes related operating expenses 

d. Increases funding tor temporary 
salaries 

HB1016 

FTE 
POSITIONS 

(2.00) 

(2.00) 

(1.00) 

(5.00) 

GENERAL 
FUND 

($110.910) 

(4,480) 

(110.910) 

(4.480) 

(55.455) 

(2.240) 

35,000 

($253.475) 

OTHER TOTAL ALL 
FUNDS FUNDS 

($110,910) 

{4,480) 

(110,910) 

{4,480) 

{55,455) 

(2.240) 

35,000 

($253.475) 
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The Central Office is the administrative arm of the Department of Corrections and 
Rehabilitation (DOCR) that is responsible for the overall direction, operation, and planning 
of the department. Additionally, the Central Office is responsible for jail inspections 
across the state and for training of county correctional officers and jail administrators. 

I'd like to discuss in more depth, some of the Central Office responsibilities and some 
of its accomplishments this biennium. 

PLANNING 

One of the Central Office's most important functions is to assure that the Department is 
moving in the right direction. We must assure that adequate planning is done throughout 
the department to anticipate and meet the cha I lenges and needs of the future. 

During the past year, we completed an extensive strategic planning process for the 
entire department. We utilized an outside facilitator to help us develop a plan for the next 
few years. Staff from all levels of operation were included in the process. Following are 
the major issues, goals, and strategies identified by both the Adult Services Division and 
the Juvenile Services Division in their planning efforts. 

Adult Services Division 

Issue# 1 - Escalating Population 

Goal One: Maximize efficiency of statewide correctional resources 
Manage and minimize offender population growth 

Strategies: 1. Define and identify cause of corrections problems/issues 
2. Explore options regarding a statewide correctional system 
3. Identify current resources and needs and develop alternative resources to 

meet projected needs 
4. Develop alternative/innovative sentencing options and inform/educate 

stakeholders 
5. Explore legislative relief/alternatives 

Issue #2 - Public Perception 

Goal Two: Ensure that public perception matches the reality of the DOCR 

Strategy: 1. Develop a marketing system 

Issue #3 - Offender Management System 

Goal Three: One unified system efficiently managing needs and risk concerns of victims, 
staff, offenders, and the public 



Strategies: 

Human Resources Subcommittee 
House Appropriations Committee 

January 12, 1999 

1. Adopt a theoretical approach to process offenders into and through the 
DOCR 

2. Devise organizational structure supporting the efficient flow of 
information and resources 

3. Develop and implement a standardized assessment instrument to place 
offenders in the least restrictive environment while minimizing risk and 
addressing their needs 

4. Develop and provide optimal opportunities for employees to help them 
reach their full potential 

5. Develop a unified and comprehensive service delivery system for victims 

Division of iuvenile Services 

Issue# 1 - Offender Services 

Goal One: All offenders are engaged in appropriate and timely services needed for 
success in society 

Strategy: 1. To enhance efficiency and expand treatment, education, and case 
management services for multifaceted youth by utilizing a multi
disciplinary approach 

Issue #2 - Community 

Goal Two: Awareness, respect, and cooperation are pervasive in DJS relationships with 
the community 

Strategies: 1. To incorporate the philosophy of restorative justice into the daily 
operations of the Division 

2. To establish relationships that encourage and support preventative efforts 
3. The Division will respond openly with respect and cooperation to the 

community 

Issue #3 - Families 

Goal Three: Parent/Guardian is responsible and active in the rehabilitation program of 
the juvenile offender 

Strategy: 1. DJS will establish an active approach to involve parents/guardians as 
responsible stakeholders in the rehabilitation of their juvenile 

Issue #4 - Organizational 

Goal Four: DJS has a culturally diverse, fully-trained, professional staff in an optimally 
funded agency 

2 



Strategies: 1. Review the DJS EEOP to increase staff diversity 

Human Resources Subcommittee 
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2. Enhance funding sources and develop additional resources 
3. Enhance professionalism within DJS through training and education 

The Strategic Plans developed by both the Adult Services Division and the Juvenile 
Services Division are living documents. We continue to work at carrying out the strategies 
developed for each of the goals in the plans. 

TECHNOLOGY 

The Management Information System coordinator for the DOCR is located in the 
Central Office. It has been our goal for several years to develop an integrated data system 
for the department. We made significant progress during the past year. A system called 
"DOCSTARS" has been developed that will serve as a single data system for all offenders 
in the Adult Services Division. Data for an offender, whether on probation or an inmate, 
will only be entered once and will be utilized and maintained by both the DOCR Prisons 
Division and the DOCR Field Services Division. This will be much more efficient and 
provide better information to the department for management purposes. Our systems 
coordinator is presently working with the Prisons Division to replace its inmate software. 
The new software will tie into "DOCSTARS." The Division of Juvenile Services is going 
through the same process to connect its community and institution information. 

TRAINING 

The 1997 Legislature authorized a Training Director position for the DOCR. This 
position has been tremendously helpful to us. The training director is responsible for 
providing training to all new county correctional officers in the state and to jail 
administrators. He also is responsible for departmentwide Supervisor Training initiated by 
the DOCR. He also maintains the jail standards/rules. 

During this past year, we completed a process through which we revised and updated 
the Jail Standards. The most controversial issue in the revision was the addition of a 
standard to require all county correctional officers to receive a certain number of hours of 
training and to make certain types of training mandatory. In order to make it feasible for 
counties to comply with the new training standard, we pledged the Department's 
assistance in providing that training to county staff. 

The Training Director has also been given the responsibility to assure that all DOCR 
staff is trained in the "Cognitive Restructuring" approach to treatment. Our goal is for this 
training to be completed by Year 2000. 
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The Training Director also assists Division training staff as needed. For example, he 
was instrumental in helping train all of the new JRCC staff. 

INMATE POPULATION ANALYSIS 

A responsibility of the Central Office is to compile information and make projections 
about the inmate population growth. As the population has increased rapidly the past few 
years, it has become more important and more complex to make inmate population 
projections. 

Recently, the Department requested technical assistance to have someone experienced 
in making population projections review our inmate population projections to assure their 
credibility. Based upon the information available to us and the methods used to calculate 
our estimates, our estimates have been verified by a consultant. 

We are also working towards developing a formal population module that can be 
utilized to generate inmate population estimates. We hope to have this module developed 
to assist us in making projections prior to the next legislative session. 

INMATE APPEALS AND GRIEVANCES 

A fair amount of time each month is spent in Central Office investigating inmate 
appeals and grievances. We believe this is an important function for Central Office to 
maintain, to assure that persons placed in our care and custody are treated as required 
under state and federal law and under Department policy. It is a good system of "checks 
and balances" for our system. It also provides a good trail of information in cases where 
inmates file lawsuits against us. 

FISCAL ADMINISTRATION AND HUMAN RESOURCES ADMINISTRATION 

The Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation has grown to include 518 
employees and manages a budget of $75,000,000. This requires a great deal of fiscal 
oversight and human resources management. I believe the Central Office staff does a good 
job in providing guidance to division staff to assure proper management of resources in 

these areas. 

!AIL INSPECTIONS 

Central Office provides oversight for the jail inspections process. A penitentiary staff 
member completes 14 Class I jail inspections, 9 Class II inspections, 8 Class Ill jail 
inspections and 3 Juvenile Detention Centers inspections each year and certifies their 
continual operation. 
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The DOCR Central Office Budget for the 1999-2001 Biennium includes funding for 8.0 
FTE's and the necessary administrative expenses. In addition, it includes operating 
expenses to cover costs of the inspection of local jails, for the training of county 
correctional officers and jail administrators and funding to continue to enhance the Adult 
Services Network to support DOCR operations. 

Salaries and Wages - $878,152 

• 8.0 FTE's - $831,288 (Unfunded a .50 FTE Administrative Officer) 
• Governor's Salary/Benefit Funding - $46,864 

Operating Expenses $118,682 

• Data Processing/Telecommunications - $16,345 

• Travel-$31,900 
(Expenses include motor pool costs related to the inspection of jails within the 
state, the training of local jail administrators and officers, and mileage costs for 
management staff travel. Also includes out-of-state travel costs for management 
staff to attend national conferences, meetings, and training seminars.) 

• Lease of Equipment - $6,720 
(Funding to upgrade Central Office's copier.) 

• Dues and Professional Development - $7,600 
(Registration and conference fees, national association dues and management 
training fees.) 

• Professional Services - $11,700 
(Funding for presenters and trainers to provide training to corrections 
management staff and county jail administrators and officers. Also includes 
funding to continue to enhance the Adult Services Network to support DOCR 
operations. Miscellaneous funding for audit fees, advertising services, service 
awards, service contracts, etc.) 

• Professional Supplies and Materials - $24,250 
(Includes funding to develop Web Site for DOCR and upgrade Winframe server 
and departmental email. Also, includes funding for subscriptions; correctional 
publications; human resources, fiscal and technology updates; and videos and 
training materials.) 
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• Other Expenses - $20, 167 
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January 12, 1999 

(Postage, repairs, office supplies, printing costs, and miscellaneous equipment 
items costing less than $750.) 

Equipment - $26,950 

• Funding for PC replacement and to provide network connectivity for all DOCR 
Adult Services computer users. 

TOTAL CENTRAL OFFICE BUDGET - $1,023,784 

Funding Source 

General Fund - $1,023,784 
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Month and Year 
July 1999 
August 1999 
September 1999 
October 1 999 
November 1999 
December 1999 
January 2000 
February 2000 
March 2000 
April 2000 
May 2000 
June 2000 

July 2000 
August 2000 
September 2000 
October 2000 
November 2000 
December 2000 
January 2001 
February 2001 
March 2001 
April 2001 
May 2001 
June 2001 

Estimated 
Population 

1000 
1012 
1024 
1036 
1048 
1060 
1072 
1085 
1098 
1111 
1124 
1137 

1150 
1160 
1170 
1180 
1190 
1200 
1210 
1221 
1232 
1243 
1254 
1265 

PROJECTED INMATE POPULATION 
1999-2001 BIENNIUM 

Adjusted for 
Alternatives Prison Capacity 

(30) 970 861 
(45) 967 861 
(60) 964 861 
(80) 956 861 
(100) 948 861 
(115) 945 861 
(115) 957 861 
( 11 5) 970 861 
( 115) 983 861 
( 115) 996 861 
( 115) 1009 971 
( 115) 1022 971 

(135) 1015 971 
( 13 5) 1025 971 
(135) 1035 971 
(135) 1045 971 
(135) 1055 971 
(135) 1065 971 
(135) 1075 971 
(135) 1086 971 
(140) 1092 971 
(140) 1103 971 
(140) 1114 971 
(140) 1125 971 

Human Resources Subcommittee 
House Appropriations Committee 

January 12, 1999 

Inmates 
Contracted/Housed 
Outside of System 

109 (x31 x$55) = 
106 (x31 x$55) = 
103 (x30x$55) = 

95 (x31 x$55) = 
87 (x30x$55) = 
84 (x31x$55) = 
96 (x31 x$55) = 

109 (x28x$55) = 
122 (x31 x$55) = 
135 (x30x$55) = 

38 (x31 x$55) = 
51 (x30x$55) = 

44 (x31 x$60) = 
54 (x31 x$60) = 
64 (x30x$60) = 
74 (x31 xS,60) = 
84 (x30xS,60) = 
94 (x31 xS,60) = 

104 (x31 xS,60) = 
115 (x28xS 60) = 
121 (x31 x~-60) = 
132 (x30x$60) = 
143 (x31 x$60) = 
154 (x30x$60) = 

Cost 
$185,845 

180,730 
169,950 
161,975 
143,550 
143,220 
163,680 
167,860 
208,010 
222,750 

64,790 
84,150 

$ 81,840 
100,440 
115,200 
137,640 
151,200 
174,840 
193,440 
193,200 
225,060 
237,600 
265,980 
277,200 

TOTAL CONTRACTING COST I *i410501150 

*This number will vary somewhat depending upon the scenario used for adjusting the inmate population for the 
alternative to incarceration impact. 
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Operating 
E xpenses 

Data Processing 
Telecommunications 
Travel 
Utilities 
Postage 
Lease/Rent Equip 
Professional Dev 
Operating Fees & Svrs 
Repairs 
Professional Svrs 
Insurance 
Office Supplies 
Printing 
Professional Supp & M 
Bldg, Grnds, Mtce 
Miscellaneous Supplies 

TOTALS 

General Fund 
Federal Funds 
Special Funds 

• 
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS AND REHABILITATION 

CENTRAL OFFICE 

Analysis of Operating Expenses 

1997-99 Biennium 1999-2001 Biennium 
B d t u gc B d t u gc ,, 

• 

Increase/Decrease 

Admin/Training Technology Admin/Training Technology Admin/Training Technology 

$ $ 4,956 $ ' $ 7,777 $ $ 2,821 
8,574 . 20,000 8,568 (6) (20,000) 

22,500 10,000 24,900 7,000 2,400 (3,000) 
41,000 (41,000) 

1,950 100 1,560 (390) (100) 
6,720 6,720 

7,500 10,000 5,600 2,000 (1,900) (8,000) 
8,885 600 8,907 22 (600) 

700 500 (200) 
500 4,500 700 11,000 200 6,500 
300 300 

5,400 126,197 4,300 16,450 (1,100) (109,747) 
4,000 5,700 1,700 
3,298 500 3,500 202 (500) 

150 200 :50 
5,000 15,000 3,000 (2,000) (15,000) 

$ 68,757 $ 232,853 $ 74,455 $ 44,227 $ 5,698 $ (188,626) 

42,045 155,731 74,455 44,227 32,410 (106.548) 
77,122 (77,122) 

26,712 (26,712) 



Priority# 
17 

18 

31 

36 

Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation 
Optional Items Funded Differently Than Requested Amounts 

(First line is requested - Second line is recommended) 

Description General Federal Special 
Extraordinary Repairs - Prisons Division 382,320 

345,000 

Extraordinary Repairs - YCC 190,800 
150,900 

12 Month School 320,912 
252,925 34,941 8,917 

Revocation Center 891,800 360,000 
458,709 360,000 200,000 

Total 
382,320 
345,000 

190,800 
150,900 

320,912 
296,783 

1,251,800 
1,018,709 

Total Requested 1,785,832 360,000 0 2,145,832 
Total Recommended 1,207,534 394,941 208,917 1,811,392 

Note: The FTE in option 36 were not funded 

Karen Borr 
Office of Mgmt Budget 

1/20/1999 
2:46 PM 
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March 8, I 999 

REQUEST TO REINSTATE THE FOLLOWING 
TO ENGROSSED HB1016 

CENTRAL OFFICE 

Salaries and Wages 

2 percent increases per year instead of 3 percent 
Delay market salary adjustment until 0 1/01/2001 

Total 

Operating Expenses 

Reduction to operating expenses to be determined 
by department 

Equipment 

Reduces equipment request by 25 percent 

Total - General Fund 

$1 1,792 
3.571 

$15,363 

$3,682 

$6.750 

$25,795 



DIVISION OF JUVENILE SERVICES 

Salaries and Wages 

2 percent increases per year instead of 3 percent 
($3,807 is other funds) 
Reduced funding from a full education program 

to only core curriculum at YCC. 
($12,094 is other funds). 
FTE's reduced by 1.53 FTE's 

Operating Expenses 

Reduced YCC medical budget 
Reduced DJS/Community programs 

Equipment 

YCC: Reduced funding for computer purchases 
Reduced funding - Replacement of Tractor 

Total 

Total 

DJS/Community: Reduced funding for computer purchases 
Total 

Capital Improvements 

Eliminated funding for Divine Hall improvements 
Eliminated funding for fire suppression 
Reduced funding for extraordinary repairs 

Grand Total 

General Fund 
Estimated Income 

Total 

March 8, 1999 

$120,416 

128.135 

$32,200 
83.000 

$12,500 
5,000 

1.750 

$120,000 
101,000 
115.900 

$704,000 
$15,901 

$248,551 

$115,200 

$19,250 

$336.900 

S719,901 
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ADULT SERVICES 

ivision of Field Services 

Victim Services 

2 percent salary increases per year instead of 3 percent 

Institutional Offender Services 

2 percent salary increases per year instead of 3 percent 

Communitv Offender Services 

2 percent salary increases per year instead of 3 percent 
Reduced funding for various programs that provide 

alternatives to incarceration. 
Eliminated the following four ( 4.00) FTE's and 

associated operating expenses. 

a. Two (2.00) Admin. Secretary III positions 
Removed related operating expenses 
Added funding for Temporary Salaries 

b. One (1.00) Community Corrections Agent 
Removed related operating expenses 

c. One (1.00) Parole & Probation Officer II 
Removed related operating expenses 

Total 

Probation Supervision Fees 

$95,436 
41,848 

(38,436) 

$53,024 
2,531 

36,657 
10.422 

$ 61 ,334 

149,800 

201.482 

An amendment was included that increased by $144.000 the anticipated 
revenue from Probation supervision fees based on increasing fees from $30 
to $35 per month as provided in Section 6 of the bill. This amendment 
reduced the general fund by the same amount. Please reinstate the $144,000 
in general funds and delete the $144,000 added to estimated income. Also, see 
amendment to delay effective date for increase in supervision fees. 

TOTAL FIELD SERVICES DIVISION 

General Fund 
Estimated Income 

March 8, 1999 

$1,942 

$8,981 

$412,616 

$423,539 

$567,539 
(144,000) 
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ADULT SERVICES (Continued) 

risons Division 

Support Sen'ices 

2 percent salary increases per year instead of 3 percent 
Reinstate capital improvements listed below 

$ 58,942 

a. Funding for extraordinary repairs 
b. Funding for security improvements at JRCC 
c. Funding for forensic bldg, lobby, front entrance 

and other JRCC improvements 
d. Funding for parking lot (JRCC) 
e. Funding for security fence around RRI bldg 
f. Funding for Admin. Seg. Unit at Pen 
g. Funding for parking log improvements at Pen 
h. Funding for 5th & 6th Floor (JRCC) 

(Of this, $2,093,531 is Federal Funds and 
$259,469 is General Fund) 

Total 

$353,700 
21,000 

125,000 
31,000 

198,000 
188,000 
225,000 

2,353,000 

Also adds Section 4, which provides legislative intent that during the 
1997-99 biennium, the department monitor growth of inmate population 
and number of correctional beds available to depaiiment to contract for 
inmate housing. Department to present report to Legislative Council or 
interim conu11ittee prior to 2001 on department's plans to renovate 
5th & 6th floors of JRCC. Unnecessary if 5th & 6th floors restored. 

Program Services 

2 percent salary increases per year instead of 3 percent 

Securitv and Safetv 

2 percent salary increases per year instead of 3 percent 

3.494.700 

$213,452 

The House reduced funding for contracting for i1m1ate housing by 
$1,424.760 to reflect an anticipated grmv1h in the inmate population of 
10 percent for FY2000. If the JRCC 5th & 6th floors are reinstated, based 
on revised inmate population projections, we believe the amount necessary 
for contracting out of inmates will be S2.049,760. (See attached schedule.) 
Based on the revised projections, an additional $611.280 
($4,085,300 - 2,049,760 - 1,424,260) can be taken from the Governor's 
recommended budget for contracting out of imnates. ($611,280) 

March 8, 1999 

$3,553,642 

$26,700 
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Securitv and Safetv (continued) 

Eliminated the following twenty (20.00) FTE's and associated 
operating expenses for 5th & 6th floors of JRCC $1,463,679 

a. Two (2 .00) Correctional Unit Case Managers 
b. Six (6.00) Correctional Case Workers 
c. Twelve ( 12.00) Correctional Officer II positions 
d. Reduced associated operating expenses 

The House amendment eliminated five (5.00) FTE's and 
associated operating expenses. We are recommending 
that three (3) of the FTE's be reinstated. 

a. Two (2.00) Correctional Officer II positions 
relating to JRCC 
Related operating expenses 

b. One (1.00) Correctional Officer II position 
relating to Pen front lobby security 
Related operating expenses 

c. Increases funding for Temporary Salaries 
Not necessary if positions reinstated 

Rough Rider Industries 

Total 

2 percent salary increases per year instead of 3 percent 
Other Funds 

TOTAL PRISONS DIVISION 

General Fund 
Other Funds 

TOTAL ADULT SERVICES DIVISION 

Total All Funds (Adult Services) 
Total FTE's (Adult Services) 
General Fund 
Estimated Income 

DEPARTMENTAL GRAND TOTAL 

General Fund 
Estimated Income 

$ 87,906 
234,048 
411 ,540 
730,185 

$110,910 
4,480 

55,455 
2,240 

(35,000) 

27.00 

28.53 

138.085 

$2,690,747 
2,124,585 

March 8, 1999 

$1 ,203 ,936 

$31.054 

$4,815,332 

3,258,286 
1,980,585 

$3 ,988,081 
1,996,486 

S5,238,871 

$5,984,567 
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Program Legend March 26, 1999 
:o = Central Office Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation >JS = Division of Juvenile Services (Community) 
'CC= Youth Correctional Center House Changes and Requested Senate Amendments 
S = Field Services Division (Parole & Probation) 1999-2001 Biennium 
'D = Prisons Division 

(In Priority Order) :RI = Rough Rider Industries 

House Changes 
Increase DOCR Reguest for Senate Net Reg ested Change from SUBTOTALS 

Description Program (Decrease) Amendment~ i Ori inal Bill (Running Totals) 
General Other General Other 'Gene al Other General Other 

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund 
1. Equipment (Interconnectivity) co ($ 6,750) $ 6,750 $ 6,750 
2. Operating Expenses co (3,682) 3,682 10,432 
3. Medical Expenses YCC (32,200) 32,200 42,632 
4. Extraordinary Repairs YCC (39,500) 39,500 82,132 
5. *Changed Supervision Fee Program: FS (144,000) 144,000 108,000 (108,000) : (36 000) 36,000 190,132 ($ 108,000) 
6. DJS Community Programs DJS (83,000) 83,000 273,132 
7. 1 CO Work Supervisor - JRCC PD (57,695) 57,695 330,827 
8. 2 Admin. Secretaries FS (137,284) 137,284 468,111 

Temp Salary Dollars for cut sec FS 38,436 (38,436) 429,675 
9. Equipment (tractor, computers) YCC/DJS (19,250) 19,250 (19 250) 19,250 (88,750) 
0. 51h & 6th Floor Renovation PD (259,469) (2,093,531 l 439,469 1,913,531 18 ,000 (180,000) 869,144 1,824,781 
1. 5th & 6th Floor Positions & Operating PD (1,463,679) 857,345 ; (606 334) 1,726,489 

'2. Contracting For Inmate Housing PD (1,424,260) 262,420 ~1, 161 840) 1,988,909 
3. Fence Around N Pen Perimeter PD (198,000) 198,000 ! 2,186,909 
4. Community Corrections Agent FS (55,555) 55,555 2,242,464 

15. Parole Officer (2nd Year of Biennium) FS (47,079) 47,079 2,289,543 
7. Switch 12-Month Funding Source YCC 12,094 (12,094) (12,094) 12,094 2,277,449 1,836,875 
8. Less Parking Lot Funding PD (100,000) 2,177,449 

w. 1 CO Work Supervisor - JRCC PD (57,695) 57,695 2,235,144 
!3. Funding for JRCC Parking Lot PD (31,000) 31,000 2,266,144 
!5 . JRCC Forensic, Entrance Renovation PD (125,000) 125,000 2,391,144 
!6. Security Improvement at JRCC PD (21,000) 21,000 2,412,144 
!9. JRCC Ventilation PD (23,000) 23,000 2,435,144 

Total All Funds ($4,178,568) (1,961.625) $2,435,144 1,836,875 (1,643,424) (124,750} $2,435,144 $1,836,875 
' Also, the DOCR requests that Section 6 of the bill be amended to reflect a supervision fee increase of $6 per month rather than $5 per month and to add an effect iii e date of January l, 2001, rather than July 1 ~ 1999 as 
,rovided by the engrossed bill. I 



• 

• 

• 

March 22, 1999 

Narrative For Priorities 

1. Equipment for Central Office - $6,750 

2. 

3. 

The equipment included for Central Office all relates to technology. The proposed 
$6,750 cut in the equipment line would impact the JRCC facility's ability to connect 
to the DOCR inmate information system. The JRCC would not have the ability to 
input, change, or report on inmates currently housed, or perform admissions into the 
facility. The JRCC would, in fact, be isolated from any capability to manage the 
JRCC inmate population through automation. The existing JRCC server hardware 
must be upgraded to meet both Y2K and related connectivity issues. 

Operating Expenses for Central Office - $3,682 

The House indicated the cuts were to be identified by the Department. Since many of 
the operating expenses are for fixed costs or to meet legal responsibilities, such as 
training, the proposed $3,682 cut in operating expenses would impact professional 
fees included for the DOCR Y2K efforts in upgrading the current inmate information 
system software. The $3,682 would help to cover the cost of redesigning the 
algorithm and system code for the inmate sentence calculation module. The current 
sentence calculation methodology used in the inmate information system will fail in 
2000. The cost of fixing Y2K issues in the inmate information system is proving to be 
a continuing burden on both manpower and fiscal resources. If we fail to ensure the 
inmate information system is 100 percent Y2K compliant, then we could be open to 
any host of problems for both the DOCR and the State. The DOCR has been 
contacted by the DOJ and other DOC's questioning whether the North Dakota 
Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation inmate information systems will be 100 
percent Y2K compliant. 

Medical Expenses for YCC - $32,200 

It is critical that these medical fees are restored in order that we can maintain the 
same level of medical services to the juveniles at YCC. 

Psychiatric Psychological Institutional 
*Medical Prescriotions Services Services Nurse Fees Total 

Adjusted 
Expenditures 
1997-1999 100,059 85,568 57,600 19,200 ***49,695 309,092 
Budget 
1999-2001 94,918 77,366 57,600 48,000 **41,600 319,484 

* Includes doctor, dentist, clinics, lab work, x-rays, optometrist, eye glasses 
* * Purchase LPN services for two years 
* * * Moved institutional medical fees to medical and prescriptions. This gives more 

flexibility 



• 
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4. Extraordinary Repairs at YCC - $39,500 

There are three (3) projects included: 

Life Safety System - Administration Building - $19,000 

March 22, 1999 

The Fire Marshall's report states the 1960's Fire Alarm System in the 
Administration, School, Building is outdated and should be upgraded. Additional 
audible fire detectors need to be added to the system. Strobe lights (visual 
warning lights) need to be added to meet Americans with Disabilities Act 
Guidelines. 

Parking Lot - $9,000 

The parking lot is lower in some areas and accumulates water during rain or 
snowmelt. It is also cracking. 

Removal of Asbestos from Hickory Cottage - $11,500 

Hickory has a large amount of asbestos in it because it is an older cottage. This 
allocation of dollars would remove it. Whenever any repairs are made in a 
building, any asbestos present must be removed . 

5. Supervision Fee Program - Field Services 

We ask that the Senate reinstate $108,000 in general funds (reduce $108,000 in other 
funds), which was removed by the House from the supervision fee program, so that 
we may begin the recommended change to the fee program 18 months after the 
beginning of the biennium (delayed effective date of January 1, 2001.) This will allow 
us to prepare the court, staff, and the offender population for the expected change. 
More importantly, it will increase the population of eligible offenders (under the 
present amendment any offenders already on probation on July 1, 1999 would not be 
affected by the increased fee), thereby reducing confusion by both staff and the 
offenders that we supervise. We believe that we will have the opposite of the desired 
effect in our collections rate if we try to implement the program any sooner in the 
biennium. We ask also that the fee be increased to $36.00 for the last six months of 
the biennium. This rate corresponds with the $6 per hour rate used for community 
service worked in lieu of paying the fee. Section 6 of the bill must be amended to 
reflect the fee change to $36 and the delayed effective date. 

6. DJS Community Programs - $83,000 

The three (3) prevention programs where the House cut $83,000 were in the 
following areas. 

Intensive In-Home Match: $114,000 
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7. 

8. 

Day Treatment 
Diversified Occupations 

Total 

480,000 
206,820 

$800,820 

March 22, 1999 

Because these are community and all match either local or Federal Funds, it is 
impossible to cut without discontinuing ongoing programs in a particular community. 
This cut would, for example, cut two (2) day treatment programs in two (2) schools 
for the biennium. 

CO Work Supervisor - JRCC (PD) - $57,695 

We did not adequately fund work and educational programs during the first year of 
operation, and, because of that, we have a problem with too little activities to keep 
the inmates productive during the day. Rough Rider Industries recently opened their 
operations and we are using a temporary position to provide security in that coed 
area. Another temporary position is being used to oversee a coed Arts and Crafts 
room, which keeps 38 inmates active for 6 hours each day. Without adding back this 
position, we won't have staff available to supervise the yard crew and the 
paint/maintenance crew. The yard crew will employ about 10 inmates maintaining 
the lawn and outside grounds and completing much needed recreation yard 
improvements such as walking tracks and basketball courts. The maintenance/paint 
crew will employ 6 inmates to work on interior projects that can be completed with 
inmate labor, as opposed to hiring outside contractors. The supervisor is needed to 
oversee the use of tools required for completion of these projects. 

Two Administrative Secretaries - Field Services - $137,284 
Temporary Salary Dollars for Secretaries - ($38,436) 

We ask that the Senate reinstate two FTE secretary positions removed by the House, 
with a related increase of $137,284 in general funds. We also ask that the Senate 
reduce the temporary salary dollars added by the House for temporary secretarial 
services ($38,436). We are in great need of secretarial support in the two regions 
(Grand Forks and Fargo) that we had planned to assign the two new secretarial 
positions. The work required is too technical for temporary help. Without the 
additional help, officers would be required to do work better suited for the lower paid 
secretarial staff. More importantly, officers would not be available to supervise 
offenders as closely if they are required to do secretarial work. 

9. Equipment - YCC and DJS - $19,500 (Only requesting the authority to spend other 
funds (a grant) if received during the biennium.) 

Tractor - $5,000 

We are using an early 1960's tractor as our institutional large tractor. We cannot 
find parts for it and are asking to purchase a used tractor to replace it. We'd 
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received estimates that a replacement tractor would cost from $15,000 to 
$18,000. We requested $15,000 and the House reduced the request to $10,000. 

Computers - $14,500 

We are presently converting our data collection system. It is critical that we are 
able to purchase the proposed new and replacement computers in order that both 
YCC and the Community can efficiently utilize the updated system. 

10. 5th and 6th Floor Renovation 

Remodeling the top two floors of the ET building will allow us to house 110 more 
inmates at a cost of $2,353,000. $1,913,531 of the costs will be funded with federal 
"crime bill" dollars, leaving $439,469 in general funds money needed to complete 
the project. We estimate renovation to be completed in time for us to move the 
inmates into the building by November 1, 2000. 

Considering the population projections, this project makes economic sense for the 
North Dakota taxpayers. It would cost an additional $1,597,200 to rent space at a 
private prison for 110 inmates during the last 8 months of the biennium. We project 
the salaries ($440,096) and operating ($417,249) expenses for us to operate these 
floors to be $857,345 during this time frame. Even if you include the $439,469 
general funds for the construction costs, we would still save about $300,386 by 
completing the project and keeping these inmates in state, versus the private 
contacting option. The estimated savings in the future biennium would be 
$2,306,500. Section 4 of the engrossed bill needs to be amended or deleted. 

11. 5th & 6th Floor Positions - $857,345 

The renovation of the 5th and 6th floors will require 20 new staff to supervise the 
additional 110 inmates that will be housed there. We expect this renovation will 
give us beds for an additional 80 inmates on the 5th floor and 30 inmates on the 
smaller 6th floor area, bringing the total usable beds at the JRCC to 350. The 20 
positions will allow us to have 2 officers per floor during the night shift and a case 
manager on each floor 8 hours per day, 5 days per week. The positions requested 
will begin around October 1, 2000, orfor 9 months of the biennium. 

12. Contracting Housing for Inmates - PD - $262,420 

The amount included in the engrossed bill by the House for contracting represents 
the House version of assumptions for inmate growth and assumes that the 5th and 6th 

floors not be renovated. If we use the DOCR assumptions for inmate population 
growth and assume that the 5th and 6th floors are renovated, we need to add $262,420 
to the contradicting line ($2,923,460 - 2,661,040) - see schedules . 
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13. Fence Around the N Penitentiary Perimeter - PD - $198,000 

Money was included in the 97-99 biennium to add fencing and electronic detection 
devices on the north perimeter of the penitentiary, but due to unexpected costs for 
the JRCC completion, that money went to complete the Jamestown project. We have 
a security concern with our current practice of using the exterior wal I of the Industries 
building as our secure perimeter. The fencing project would place a double fence 
around that building, completing our goal of needing a double fence around the 
entire institution. There is also money to complete the second phase of adding 
electronic detection devices to the fence perimeter in areas on the north, south, and 
west fences. Since the building was completed in 1983, there have been two escape 
attempts through the backside air vents. If the inmates had been successful, there is 
no fence, or other impediment, to the free world. The metal shop occupies the 
building and it contains a number of "hot tools" and cutting torches that could be 
used to cut through the metal bars that secure the vents. These tools are accounted 
for twice each day, but the human error factor in this inventory, or the possibility of 
taking the shop supervisor hostage allowing uncontrolled access to these tools, make 
this area our weakest link in our perimeter security. It is imperative that funding for 
this double fence be reinstated in our budget request. 

(0 Community Corrections Agent - $55,555 

We ask that the Senate reinstate one FTE Community Corrections Agent (CCA) position 
removed by the House, with a related increase of $55,555 in general fund. The original 
plan was to have the CCA FTE split between Rolla and Devils Lake. The CCA would be 
assigned to low risk cases, allowing our Parole officers to concentrate on their high-risk 
cases. This is critical in Rolla and Devils Lake because both districts have only one 
parole officer assigned to it and each has a very large caseload of high-risk offenders. 

@ Parole Officer (2nd Year of Biennium) - $47,049 

We ask that the Senate reinstate one FTE Parole officer position (for the second year of 
the biennium) removed by the House, with a related increase of $47,049 in general 
fund. The Parole Officer would be assigned to the Fargo district. Fargo's offender base 
grows at over 15 percent each year. Even with the additional position, we will see case 
loads of high-risk offenders grow in Fargo. 

16. Fire Suppression System - Brown and Maple Cottages - $101,000 

This life safety system in Brown and Maple Cottages will include the installation of 
sprinkler heads located at strategic locations throughout the buildings. Zone controls 
for the systems, annunciatory panels for fire alarm control and signaling, and the 
connection to the main water supply . 
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17. YCC 12-month School and 1.5 FTE - $128,135 

With this funding restored, we would teach the following classes: computer science, 
JTPA, library, automotive technology, welding, technology education, carpentry/ 
building trades, vocational resources education/health. 

18. Funding for Penitentiary Parking Lot - PD - $225,000 

We requested $325,000 to renovate the parking lot of the Penitentiary, but the House 
reduced funding $225,000, leaving $100,000 in the budget. The existing parking lot 
at the Penitentiary has 78 parking spaces, but during business and visiting hours there 
are 100 + vehicles parked in the lot and on the adjacent roadway. There is a safety 
concern because there is no walkway from the lot to the entrance, meaning people 
must walk in the roadway. The renovation would increase the size of the lot to 125 
spaces, increase the lighting, and construct sidewalks to safely convey employees and 
visitors to the entrance. In order to maximize the limited space available, the plans 
call for a complete re-grading of the current lot, utilizing dirt from the higher areas to 
fill in the low spots to the south. The $100,000 given this project by the House will 
not begin to cover the costs associated with re-constructing the lot the proper way. 
An alternate plan that would cost the $100,000 given this project would be to 
construct a 50 to 60 car lot to the south and west of the Deputy Warden's residence. 
This would meet our space needs, but is a greater walking distance from the facility 
and does nothing to correct the safety deficiencies or lighting problems associated 
with the current lot. This is the only state building that we are aware of that still has 
the roadway running through the middle of its parking lot. We have many visitors 
with small children leaving the visiting room after dark, walking to their cars on the 
road through a poorly lit parking lot. We do not have space for a sidewalk without 
losing places for cars to park. This is a very unsafe condition and a potential liability 
for the State. We have studied the best way to maximize our space and increase 
safety for the employees and visitors, and it will cost $325,000 to reconstruct the lot. 
The $100,000 given us is only a band-aid. 

19. MRCC Road Repair - PD - $116,500 

We had asked for $116,000 in Extraordinary Repairs to re-grade and pave the gravel 
road entrance to the MRCC. This .4 mile section becomes extremely muddy and 
rutted during wet seasons, and there is a concern with access for staff, visitors, and 
delivery vehicles. To our knowledge, there is not another State institution that uses 
gravel as its only entrance to the facility. 

20. One (1) Correctional Officer Work Supervisor JRCC - PD - $57,695 

The House cut 2 work supervisor positions from the JRCC budget. We have asked for 
1 of these positions back in our priority #7 narrative. We would probably hire the 
priority #7 position to supervise the yard crew. If this priority #21 position is funded, 
this person would supervise the interior paint and maintenance crew . 
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A> One (1) CO Front Lobby for Penitentiary - PD - $57,695 

The Governor's budget included three CO II positions to operate the front lobby 
position at the Penitentiary. One of these positions was removed through action 
taken by the House. This leaves two people to operate a post that needs to be 
operated 14 hours per day, seven days a week. Their responsibilities include 
screening all persons who come inside the secure facility. This screening includes 
checking identification, passing visitors through the metal detector, pat searching 
when indicated, and running background checks on all visitor or volunteer 
applications. They also search all the inmates that come to the institution from the 
MRCC for sick call or to use the law library. Eliminating contraband entering the 
prison is vital to keeping the staff and inmates safe, and we have found that those 
times when we can free a security officer to operate the front lobby, their presence is 
a deterrent to the introduction of contraband. The three positions are needed to fill 
this post during all the operating hours, and to provide for a relief factor for illness 
and vacation days. At those times when their shift may overlap, or when there is little 
front lobby traffic, these officers will be needed for general inmate supervision in the 
dining hall or recreation areas. 

22. Temp Salary for Cut CO's - PD - $35,000 

The House added in $35,000 in temporary dollars to offset some of the problems 
caused by not funding 3 CO II positions that were included in the Governor's budget. 
If you can fund priorities 7, 21, and 22, this $35,000 will not be needed, and can be 
removed from the budget. 

23. Funding for JRCC Parking Lot - PD - $31,000 

We have requested $71,000 to pave and install lighting to an existing staff parking 
lot, and then to construct a 20-space visitor parking lot across the road from the front 
gate. The House cut $31,000 funding from this project, leaving $40,000 in the 
budget. Inadequate parking at the JRCC has caused considerable inconvenience for 
staff and visitors. With the addition of the 51h and 6th floors, the problem will only 
become worse. Visitor parking is presently adjacent to the inmate recreation yard, 
making contraband smuggling and unauthorized communication a real security 
concern. The funding left in the budget will only provide enough funds to pave the 
employee parking lot. Without the additional $31,000, we will not be able to 
properly light that lot, or construct the visitor parking lot on a portion of the hospital 
grounds that is more accessible from public roads, closer to the front entrance, and 
away from the inmate recreation areas. 

J'<§), Funding for Administrative Segregation Renovation - PD - $188,000 

The Administrative Segregation (AS) unit is our "jail within the jail", where we must 
house those inmates who are a threat to harm themselves or others. These predators 
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are a proven risk to the safety of other inmates and staff, and therefore, we segregate 
them from the rest of the population by placing them in a maximum-security housing 
unit. The AS unit started with the 20 cells on the west side, first floor of the West Cell 
House. Last biennium, we took over the east side of the tier, adding another 20 cells, 
but still find ourselves in the position of having to choose the least risky inmate to 
release to the general population when a new inmate requires placement. The cells 
we are using were not designed to hold this type of prisoner. The front of the cells 
are open bars, allowing inmates to throw objects, food, or body waste on staff making 
rounds on the tier, or into other inmates cells during their tier recreation. The 97-99 
budget has $300,000 to allow us to convert the original 20, open-fronted cells on the 
east side of the first floor into maximum-security cells with cinder block front and 
steel doors. Electronic audio detection devices and camera surveillance are also 
included in this project and work on this conversion has already begun. The 
Governor's budget held $433,000 to similarly renovate the west side 20 cells on the 
first floor. It also has funds to make some modifications to the 2nd floor West Cell 
House to allow for less violent inmate placement on that floor and to move the East 
Cell House office from out of 2 cells and into an area in the back of the laundry. The 
House reduced our request by $198,000 (from $433,000 to $245,000). This may be 
enough money to place solid steel doors on the west side cells, but there will not be 
enough funds for any of the much needed electronic surveillance like we are 
installing on the east side. It also means that there will be no modifications for the 
second floor and that we will not be able to free up 2 additional cells by moving the 
East Cell House office. For all the reasons previously stated, we believe we need 
more than a 40 cell AS unit, and strongly request that you put back in the $198,000 
that was removed by the House. 

25. JRCC Forensic, Entrance Renovation - PD - $125,000 

We had requested $325,000 to complete 3 small projects at the JRCC. The House 
removed $125,000 from our request, leaving $200,000 to make these three 
renovations. Those projects were: (1) construct a building to process visitors through 
the front gate and provide microwave detection system by the front gate ($180,000); 
(2) develop security barriers between the inmates and the inmate visitors in the 
Forensic Unit ($75,000); and (3) replace the twenty-year old camera system in the 
Forensic Unit ($70,000). Our top priority for the remaining $200,000 is to build a 
reception area at the front gate for processing inmate visitors and other people 
entering the facility. We have received a number of complaints from the general 
public that they are required to stand outside in the elements while their visiting 
cards are being filled out and they are waiting for an officer to escort them from the 
front gate to the visiting area in the Forensic Unit building. Any money remaining 
after this project is completed will be used to construct part of the barrier we need in 
the Forensic Unit to separate the visiting public from the inmates housed there. We 
are requesting that the $125,000 be reinstated so we can replace the camera system 
and complete the rest of the proposed renovation to the Forensic Unit lobby. 
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26. Security Improvements at JRCC - PD - $21,000 

The Governor's budget included $121,000 to construct a separate recreation yard for 
the female inmates at the JRCC, add security man-barrier and cameras along the top 
of the Forensic Unit building and adjacent tunnel, and to install security grid ceiling 
tiles in hallways and the dayrooms on the housing floors. The House removed 
$21,000 from this request. This will mean that we will not have funds to replace the 
acoustic ceiling tiles with the more secure grid tiles. Drop-down ceilings have no 
place in a medium security prison, as they provide easy access for the inmates to hide 
contraband inside the false ceiling, and they are not sturdy enough to withstand the 
abuse from this type of population. Funding to replace the false ceiling during the 
renovation was not provided, even though many of the original acoustic tiles were 
missing. Staff have already salvaged all the tiles from the unfinished 5th and 6th floors 
to replace the damaged ceiling, and have now been purchasing replacement acoustic 
tiles as more become damaged. This expense would be unnecessary if we had a 
more sturdy and secure ceiling. The grid system tiles are more resistant to vandalism, 
and the tiles "lock" into place, making it very difficult for inmates to lift the tiles to 
hide contraband. We ask that you reinstate the $21,000 into our budget so we can 
improve the security, and wear and tear, on our ceilings. 

27. Extraordinary Repairs Contingency - PD - $127,000 

The Governor's budget called for an increase in our funding for extraordinary 
expenses to $1,003,700. The House recommends reducing this amount to 
$650,000, but we believe there is good justification for the Governor's plan. With 
the addition to the JRCC, we now have more square footage to maintain. Also, this 
line item has not received the same level of funding the past two biennia to keep up 
with the repair needs. There was $669,121 funded in the 93-95 biennium, but that 
decreased to $362,700 in 95-97, and fell even farther in the present biennium to 
$286,250. 

The proposed cuts by the House means that we will not be able to complete some of 
the more costly projects. We would ask that you reinstate $127,000 to our 
contingency fund. Maintenance specialists recommend that we budget .25 percent of 
our total building value to account for unexpected emergencies. For example, in 
1995 we needed over $100,000 in Emergency Commission approval to make repairs 
to our boiler. In 1997 we needed to replace an electrical transformer. Since we did 
not have funding for these unexpected emergencies to our infrastructure, we had to 
use monies from other projects to make the repairs. The contingency fund will allow 
us to better meet these unexpected emergencies. 

28. TC Sprinkling - PD - $85,470 

The TC unit houses 60 inmates who are undergoing chemical addiction treatment. 
The building was constructed in 1982 as a minimum-security building outside the 
prison, and because it was minimum-security, we did not include a fire sprinkling 
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system, as the doors to the building did not need to be locked. In 1992, we 
converted this to medium security and constructed a double fence around the 
perimeter. Because the building is not sprinkled, we must, by fire code, leave the 
exit doors with panic bars (unsecured) in case of a fire. This causes security 
concerns, and medium-security inmates can now exit the building. We did have one 
inmate escape from that facility in 1998. The sprinkler system would allow us to 
secure all the exits during evening hours when less staff are present. We are asking 
that you reinstate the $85,470 so we can install the sprinkling system for safety 
reasons and to improve security to the area. 

29. JRCC Ventilation - PD - $23,000 

The House also cut $23,000 from our request to improve air ventilation to the west 
side of the ground floor of the ET building at JRCC. This building is not air 
conditioned for the administrative staff who must work in that area and the $23,000 
will allow for cooling, plus provide adequate make-up air and ventilation. 

30. Alternatives to Incarceration - $149,800 

We ask that the Senate reinstate $149,800 in general fund to the Alternatives to 
Incarceration program that was removed by the House. The House arbitrarily removed 
the money. We will not be able to divert as many people from prison as we had hoped 
with less money available to us (6-7 prison bed days) . 

31. Extraordinary Repairs - YCC - $76,400 

Caulking of Various Buildings - $10,000 

Caulking of the administration/school building, Maple Cottage, powerhouse, 
and Hickory Cottage. 

Asbestos Removal - $29,000 

The removal of asbestos from Pine Cottage and the old apartments so they can 
be demolished. 

Demolition of Campus Buildings - $37,400 

The buildings included in this demolition include old staff apartments west of 
the campus. It also includes the tearing down of a house and garage on the 
north side of the campus. 

32. Divine Hall Renovations - $120,000 

The improvements in Divine Hall include the following: tuck pointing, windows, a 
heating system, downspouts, and re-roofing . 
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Narrative For Priorities 

1. Equipment for Central Office - $6,750 The equipment included for Central Office all relates 
to technology. The proposed $6,750 cut in the equipment line would impact the JRCC 
facility's ability to connect to the DOCR inmate information system. 

2. Operating Expenses for Central Office - $3,682 The House indicated the cuts were to be 
identified by the Department. Since many of the operating expenses are for fixed costs or to 
meet legal responsibilities, such as training, the proposed $3,682 cut in operating expenses 
would impact professional fees included for the DOCR Y2K efforts in upgrading the current 
inmate information system software. 

3. Medical Expenses for YCC - $32,200 It is critical that these medical fees are restored in order 
that YCC can maintain the present level of medical services to the juveniles during the next 
biennium. This includes physician services, prescriptions, psychiatric services, psychological 
services and nursing coverage. 

4. Extraordinary Repairs at YCC - $39,500 This includes three (3) projects; 

5. 

Life safety system - Administration Building - $19,000; Parking Lot Repair - $9,000 and the 
removal of asbestos from Hickory Cottage - $11,500 

Supervision Fee Program - Field Services - $108,000 We ask that the Senate reinstate 
$108,000 in general funds (reduce $108,000 in other funds),. This will allow the department 
to begin the recommended changes to the program on January 1, 2001. By January 1, 2001 
approximately 81 % of offenders will be subject to the higher supervision fee of $36.00. This 
rate will correspond with the $6 per hour rate that will be used for community service worked 
in lieu of paying the fee. Section 6 of the bill must be amended to reflect the fee change to 
$36 and the delayed effective date. 

6. DJS Community Programs - $83,000 The House cut $83,000 (approximately 10%) from the 
following three prevention programs; Intensive In-Home Match - $114,000; Day Treatment -
$480,000; and Diversified Occupations - $206,820, for a total of $800,820. Because these 
are community programs and all match either local or Federal Funds, it is impossible to cut 
funding without discontinuing ongoing programs in a particular community. This cut would, 
for example, eliminate two (2) day treatment programs in two (2) schools for the biennium. 

7. CO Work Supervisor - JRCC (PD) - $57,695 We did not adequately fund work and 
educational programs during the first year of operation, and, consequently, the JRCC has a 
problem with too few activities to keep the inmates productive. Without adding back this 
position, we won't have staff available to supervise the yard crew. 

8 Two Administrative Secretaries - Field Services - $137,284 

9 . 

Temporary Salary Dollars for Secretaries - ($38,436) Field Services is in great need of 
secretarial support in the two regions (Grand Forks and Fargo) where it had planned to assign 
the two new secretarial positions. The work required is too technical for temporary help. 

Equipment - YCC and DJS - $19,500 (Only requesting the authority to spend other funds (a 
grant) if received during the biennium.) Tractor - $5,000 YCC had received estimates that a 
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replacement tractor would cost from $15,000 to $18,000. YCC requested $15,000 and the 
House reduced the request to $10,000. Computers - $14,500 DJS is presently converting its 
data collection system. It is critical that DJS is able to purchase the proposed new and 
replacement computers in order that both YCC and DJS Community can efficiently utilize the 
updated system. 

10. 5th and 6th Floor Renovation Remodeling the top two floors of the JRCC housing unit at a cost 
of $2,353,000 will allow the Department to house 110 more inmates. Of this cost, 
$1,913,531 is federal "crime bill" dollars, and $439,469 is general fund money. Renovation 
is estimated to be completed by November 1, 2000. Completing this project rather than 
contracting for inmate housing will result in general fund savings of $548,367 in the 1999-
2001 and $2,615,100 savings in the 2001-2003 biennium. Section 4 of the engrossed bill 
needs to be amended or deleted. 

11. 5th & 6th Floor Positions - $857,345 The renovation of the 5th and 6th floors will require 20 
new staff to supervise the additional 110 inmates that wi II be housed there. The 20 positions 
will provide for 2 officers per floor during the night shift and a case manager on each floor 8 
hours per day, 5 days per week. Staff will be hired to begin employment (training) October 1, 
2000. 

12. Contracting Housing for Inmates - PD - $262,420 The amount included in the engrossed 
bill by the House for contracting represents the House version of assumptions for inmate 
growth and assumes that the 5th and 6th floors not be renovated. Using the DOCR 
assumptions for inmate population growth and assuming that the 5th and 6th floors are 
renovated, $262,420 must be added to the contradicting line ($2,923,460 - 2,661,040) - see 
schedules. 

13. Fence Around the N Penitentiary Perimeter - PD - $198,000 Funding was included in the 
Department's 1997-99 biennium appropriation to add fencing and electronic detection 
devices on the north perimeter of the penitentiary, but due to unexpected costs for the JRCC 
completion, this funding was needed to complete the Jamestown project. There continues to 
be a security concern with the current situation of using the exterior wall of the Industries 
building as the penitentiary's secure perimeter. The fencing project would place a double 
fence around that building, completing the double fence around the entire institution. This 
also includes funding to complete the second phase of adding electronic detection devices to 
the fence perimeter in areas on the north, south, and west fences. 

14. Community Corrections Agent (CCA) - $55,555 Based upon Field Service's need for CCA 
positions, this CCA FTE would be split between Rolla and Devils Lake. The CCA would be 
assigned to low risk cases, allowing Parole officers to concentrate on their high-risk cases. This is 
critical in Rolla and Devils Lake because both districts have only one parole officer assigned to it 
and each has a very large caseload of high-risk offenders. 

15. Parole Officer (2nd Year of Biennium) - $47,049 This Parole Officer would be assigned to the 
Fargo district. Fargo's offender base grows at over 1 5 percent each year. Even with the 
additional position, we will see case loads of high-risk offenders grow in Fargo. 

16. Reduce penitentiary parking lot funding-($100,000) The House left $100,000 in funding to 
construct a new parking lot next to the deputy warden's house. This would only be a bandage 
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solution and would not address our safety concerns with the current parking lot. We 
recommend cutting this funding. 

17. YCC 12-month School and 1.5 FTE - $12,094 - Funding Source Change This amendment 
will correct a funding source change. It adds $12,094 in other funds and reduces general 
funds by $12,094. 

20. Correctional Officer Work Supervisor JRCC - PD - $57,695 This position would supervise 
the interior paint and maintenance crew. 

23. Funding for JRCC Parking lot - PD - $31,000 Without the additional $31,000, we will not 
be able to properly light the employee lot, or construct the visitor parking lot on a portion of 
the hospital grounds that is more accessible from public roads, closer to the front entrance, 
and away from the inmate recreation areas. 

25. JRCC Forensic, Entrance Renovation - PD - $125,000 We had requested $325,000 to 
complete 3 projects at the JRCC. The House removed $125,000 from the request, leaving 
$200,000 to make these three renovations. Those projects were: (1) construct a building to 
process visitors through the front gate and provide microwave detection system by the front 
gate ($180,000); (2) develop security barriers between the inmates and the inmate visitors in 
the Forensic Unit ($75,000); and (3) replace the twenty-year old camera system in the 
Forensic Unit ($70,000).. We are requesting that the $125,000 be reinstated so we can 
replace the camera system and complete the rest of the proposed renovation to the Forensic 
Unit lobby 

26. Security Improvements at JRCC - PD - $21,000 The Governor's budget included $121,000 
to construct a separate recreation yard for the female inmates at the JRCC, add security man
barrier and cameras along the top of the Forensic Unit building and adjacent tunnel, and to 
install security grid ceiling tiles in hallways and the dayrooms on the housing floors. The 
House removed $21,000 from this request. This would eliminate the funds to replace the 
acoustic ceiling tiles with the more secure grid tiles. 

29. JRCC Ventilation - PD - $23,000 The House also cut $23,000 from our request to improve 
air ventilation to the west side of the ground floor of the ET building at JRCC. This building is 
not air conditioned for the administrative staff who must work in that area and the $23,000 
will allow for cooling, plus provide adequate make-up air and ventilation . 

3 



ARY REPAIRS 
530 DEPT OF CORRECTIONS & REHABILITATION 

Version: 1999-0530-A-01 

I Program: EXTRAORDINARY REPAIRS 

Priority Project Description 

101 Forensic Unit Cell Improvements 
102 Contingency Fund Based on 25 percent of Building Values 
103 Chiller Retrofit and Overhaul 
104 Roof Repairs, Gym and Building B 

105 Black Top Road to MRCC and Miscellaneous Road Repairs 

106 Tuck Point Repairs W.H. and E.C.H. 
107 Utility Metering - JRCC 

108 Surveillance, Perimeter, Tunnels 
109 Asbestos Abatement and Recarpet - Administration Building 
110 Generator Set Repairs - MRCC 
111 T.C. Unit Perimeter Improvements 
112 Server Backbone to Purchasing Building 
113 ADA - Pen JRCC, MRCC 
114 Life Safety Update and Retrofits 
115 Master Plan - JRCC 
116 Paint Projects 

117 Surge and Brown Out Protection - DOCR 
118 Lighting Retrofit - RRI - B 
119 Ventilation, Isolation Cells, Medical Unit, Pharmacy 
120 Emergency Management System Computer JC8500, Update 
121 Simplex Fire Alarm System Upgrade 
122 Ventilation System - JRCC, Administration Area 
123 Recreation Lighting - MRCC 

124 T.C Ugjt Sprinkler System 
125 Infirmary Improvements - Operating Rooms for Minor Surgery 

126 Food Service, Floor Covering and Ceiling Repair, Dish Tank 

127 Temperature Controls - T.C. Unit 

128 Roof and Gutter, Protection - T.C. Unit 

129 Duct Cleaning 
130 Security Cameras - MRCC 

131 Resurface Black Top - Recreation Area 

Office of Management and Budget 

I Reporting Level: 01-530-500-03-54-70-74 

Funding Request 
Line General Federal Special 

75 49,500 

75 127,000 

75 36,200 

75 28,500 

75 116,500 

75 23,000 

75 21 ,000 

75 134,000 

75 35,000 

75 5,700 
75 19,000 
75 13,300 
75 27,700 

75 16,000 

75 18,000 

75 62,000 

75 28,750 
75 18,700 
75 13,500 
75 40,100 
75 44,000 

75 23,000 

75 5,100 

75 85,470 
75 65,000 

75 14,800 

75 19,200 

75 11 ,000 

75 22,200 

75 60,500 
75 17,900 

Pa of 2 
Date: 8/14/98 

Time: 16:13:35 

Total 

R235X 



EXTRAORO ARY REPAIRS 
530 DEPT OF CORRECTIONS & REHABILITATION 

Version: 1999-0530-A-01 

! Program: EXTRAORDINARY REPAIRS 

Priority Project Description 

132 Replace Carpet - MRCC - Commons Area/Lobby 

REPORTING LEVEL TOTAL 

Office of Management and Budget 

C 

Time: 16:13:35 

j Reporting Level: 01-530-500-03-54-70-74 

Funding Request 
Line General Federal Special Total 

75 14,000 

1,215,620 0 0 0 

R235X 



DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 
AND REHABILITATION 

3303 East Main, PO Box 1898 • Bismarck, ND 58502-1898 
(701) 328-6390 • FAX (701) 328-6651 • TDD 701-366-6888 

MEMO 

TO: urces Division of the House Appropriations Committee 

RE: Status of FTE's Shown as Vacant for the DOCR 

I have reviewed the position listings from the December 1998 payroll and will address the 
vacancies in each Division. 

Prisons Division 

Division 519 ND State Penitentiary 
1) 530-519-0611 Correctional Officer II 1.00 FTE 
• vacated 10/1/98 

filled 1/1/99 

2) 530-519-0627 Correctional Officer II 1.00 FTE 
• vacated 11/30/98 

will fill by 2/1/99 from pool of existing staff 

3) 530-519- 0495 Licensed Practical Nurse .20 FTE 
The incumbent in this position is a .80 FTE. The rest of the position has been filled with 
temporary staff as it is difficult to recruit a .20 FTE and the NDSP uses the additional 
temporary nursing staff to provide for 24 hour coverage . 

Division of Juvenile Services -701-328-6390 
North Dakota Youth Correctional Center - 701-667-1400 

State Penitentiary - 701-328-6 l 00 
Parole and Probation - 701-328-6190 



Division 518 tames River Correctional Center 
1) 530-518-0835 Registered Nurse II 1.00 FTE 
• vacated 11/20/98 

filled 1/4/99 

2) 530-518-0861 Addiction Counselor II 1.00 FTE 
This is a new position for the JRCC. It is funded with a recently acquired grant. The 
The Emergency Commission approved the additional FTE and the Hiring Council gave 
approval to hire in 12/98. The position has been advertised and the expected hire date is mid 
February 99. This is position 0988 in the new biennium. 

3) 530-518-0862 Addiction Counselor II 1.00 FTE 
(same as position 530-518-0861) This is position 0989 in the new biennium. 

4) 530-518-0950 Correctional Officer I 1.00 FTE 
• vacated 11/26/98 

Temporary staff is currently performing these duties. It has been the practice of the Prisons 
Division to use temporary staff to underfill the Correctional Officer positions for a couple of 
months, in order to observe their performance and fit for the job, prior to placing them in an 
authorized position. 

5) 530-518-0953 Correctional Officer I 1.00 FTE 
• vacated 11/16/98 

(same as position 530-518-0950) 

Division 520 Penitentiary Industries 
(see enclosure) 

502 Division of Field Services 
1) 530-502-0040 Community Corrections Agent .50 FTE (Not a Vacant Position) 

This position is being split (.50&. 50) between the Division of Field Services and the 
Division of Juvenile Services both divisions within the Department of Corrections. We have 
been told by the 0MB payroll office that we cannot issue two checks to one individual within 
the same Department. Therefore we have assigned the individual in the positions to the Field 
Services Division as a full-time FTE (530-502-0040) for 97/98 and to the Juvenile Services 
Division as a full-time FTE (530-530-0191) for 98/99. Thus the Division of Juvenile 
Services shows a l .00FTE on the Agency Position Listing for position 530-530-0191 in 
12/98 and the Division of Field Services shows a vacancy of.SO FTE (although filled) for 
position 530-502-0040. 

Division of Juvenile Services -70 l-328-6390 
North Dakota Youth Correctional Center - 701-667-1400 

State Penitentiary - 701-328-6 I 00 
Parole and Probation - 701-328-6190 



2) 530-502-0060 Parole and Probation Officer II 1.00 FTE · 
This is a new position for the Division and the Hiring Council in 12/98 approved filling it. It 
has been advertised externally and the Division is in the interviewing process. It is anticipated that 
the position will be filled by 2/1/99. This is position 0076 in the new biennium. 

Division of Juvenile Services 
530 Community Services 
1) .50 FTE 

This portion of an FTE is assigned to other existing part-time FTEs (Juvenile Corrections 
Specialists) based on caseload need. Plans are to assign this to the Grand Forks office once 
caseloads for that area are reassessed based on post flood numbers. This is position O 193 in the 
new biennium (.50 of the 1.00 has been assigned to position 0190 in the current biennium). The 
additional FTE will be assigned by 4/1/99. 

223 Youth Correctional Center 
1) .17 FTE 

In the new biennium this has been added to an existing part-time teacher position to 
increase the FTE for that position. This is assigned to position 0296 in the new biennium. 

DOCR Central Office {530} 
1) 530-530-2003 Administrative Officer II .50 FTE 
• vacated 1/97 

This position has been unfunded for the new biennium. 

If you have any questions on this information, please call me at 86102. 

Division of Juvenile Services -701-328-6390 
North Dakota Youth Correctional Center - 701-667-1400 

State Penitentiary - 701-328-6100 
Parole and Probation - 701-328-6190 
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POS# 

0352 

0375 

0379 

0380 

0381 

0382 

- -- - -

Rough Rider Industries 
Vacant Positions 

1/20/99 

Class Description Date Vacated 

DP Coordinator I 5/19/98 

lndust. Production Apprentice New 

Administrative Secretary Ill New 

New 

New 

New 

Anticipated Fill Date 

7 /1 /99 

7/1/99 

1/22/99 

11/1/99 

3/1/00 

12/1/99 

Since Rough Rider Industries operates with self-generated revenue, a 
prime consideration in filling these positions is making sure that the 
funds are there to support the new people hired. With the increased 
prison population, RRI is working to find employment for more 
inmates . As inmate job numbers grow, RRI will fill the above positions 
to provide supervision and security as necessary. 

Comments 

Reclass to supervise new industry at the MRCC 

Fill when activity warrants at the JRCC 

Interviews are in progress . 

Fill when activity warrants at the JRCC 

Fill when activity warrants at the JRCC 

Fill as Storekeeper I when a driver is needed 
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DJUSTMENTS SUMMARY 

530 DEPT OF CORRECTIONS & REHABILITATION 

Version: 1999-0530-8-01 

Priority Optional Adjustment 

40 Rsrch Analyst Ill/Assoc Exp. - Centi Ofc 

41 Prison Population Forecast Module - DOCR 

57 Satellite System-DOCR Training Program 

58 Satellite Sys. Enhance. - DOCR Trng Prog 

59 Video Conferencing - DOCR 

18 Extraordinary Repairs - YCC 

19 Equipment - YCC 

67 Technology Coordinator - YCC 

68 Tech Operating - YCC 

96 Major RepairProjects - YCC 

6 Inst. Med. Fees - YCC 

7 Psychiatrist Services - YCC 

8 Psychologist Services - YCC 

9 Medical Expenses - YCC 

11 Nurse (LPN) - YCC 

31 Twelve Month School - YCC 

42 Target Teacher Salary Schedule - YCC 

12 Tracking Services - Juv Comm Srvcs 

13 Diversified Occupations - Juv Comm Srvcs 

14 ND Partnership Project - Juv Comm Srvcs 

15 Delinq. Prev. Consortium - Juv Comm Svcs 

35 Release Team - FS 

39 Crime Victim Coordinator - FS 

32 Low-Risk Supervision - FS 

33 Admin Secretaries - FS 

34 3 New Parole Officer II - FS 

36 Revocation Center - FS 

37 Alternatives to Incarceration - FS 

38 LAC for Fargo - FS 

<"lffi~e nf M?n::inf'!mPnt ::inn Budoet 

Reporting Level 

01-530-130-00-00-00-00 

01-530-130-00-00-00-00 

01-530-130-00-00-00-00 

01-530-130-00-00-00-00 

01-530-130-00-00-00-00 

01-530-200-23-24-00-00 

01-530-200-23-24-00-00 

01-530-200-23-24-00-00 

01-530-200-23-24-00-00 

01-530-200-23-24-00-00 

01 -530-200-23-25-00-00 

01 -530-200-23-25-00-00 

01-530-200-23-25-00-00 

01-530-200-23-25-00-00 

01-530-200-23-25-00-00 

01-530-200-23-26-00-00 

01-530-200-23-26-00-00 

01-530-200-28-00-00-00 

01-530-200-28-00-00-00 

01-530-200-28-00-00-00 

01-530-200-28-00-00-00 

01-530-500-02-52-00-00 

01-530-500-02-52-00-00 

01-530-500-02-53-00-00 

01-530-500-02-53-00-00 

01-530-500-02-53-00-00 

01-5 3 0-500-02-53-00-00 

01 -530-500-02-53-00-00 

01-530-500-02-53-00-00 

FTE Federal Special General 
Change Fund Fund Fund 

1.00 0 0 80,767 

0.00 0 0 37,000 

0.00 3,600 0 1,400 

0.00 2,880 0 1,120 

0.00 0 0 30,000 

0.00 0 0 190,800 

0.00 0 0 119,771 

1.00 0 0 63,681 

0.00 0 0 30,081 

0.00 0 0 75,000 

0.00 0 0 50,000 

0.00 0 0 57,600 

0.00 0 0 48,000 

0.00 0 0 95,000 

0.00 0 0 41,600 

3.57 0 0 320,912 

0.00 0 0 156,986 

0.00 0 0 170,000 

0.00 0 0 206,820 

0.00 0 0 74,080 

0.00 100,000 100,000 0 

3.00 0 0 241 ,633 

1.00 72,977 0 18,244 

3.50 0 0 602,735 

3.00 0 0 202,735 

3.00 0 0 211 ,375 

3.00 360,000 0 891 ,800 

0.00 0 0 2,149,800 

1.00 0 0 87,678 

Page: 1 of 4 
Date: 1/20/1999 

Time: 8:36:06 

Total 
Adjustment 

80,767 

37,000 

5,000 

4,000 

30,000 

190,800 

119,771 

63,681 

30,081 

75,000 

50,000 

57,600 

48,000 

95,000 

41,600 

320,912 

156,986 

170,000 

206,820 

74,080 

200,000 

241,633 

91 ,221 

602,735 

202,735 

211 ,375 

1,251,800 

2,149,800 

87,678 

R?7f; 



DJUSTMENTS SUMMARY 

530 DEPT OF CORRECTIONS & REHABILITATION 

Version: 1999-0530-B-01 

Priority Optional Adjustment 

10 Institutional Medical Fees 

16 Equipment - Prisons Division 

17 Extraordinary Repairs - Prisons Division 

20 JRCC 5th & 6th Floor - Staff & Operating 

25 Account Technician II - JRCC 

27 Registered Nurse II - NDSP 

44 Administrative Secretary II - NDSP 

45 Cook II - MRCC 

47 Painter II - NDSP 

49 Stores Clerk - NDSP 

50 Pharmacist I - NDSP 

51 Administrative Secretary II - JRCC 

52 Heating Plant Operator II - NDSP 

53 Administrative Secretary Ill - NDSP 

56 Medical Records Clerk II - NDSP 

60 JRCC Accreditation 

61 Computers & ISO Chrgs - MRCC, Tng Dept. 

62 DOCR Server Connection - MRCC 

63 Computers & ISO Charges - NDSP/lnfirmary 

64 DOCR Server Connection - NDSP/lnfirmary 

65 Inmate Info System Upgrade 

66 Data Processing Coard. II - Prisons Dvsn 

69 Electronic Equipment Tech. II - NDSP 

72 Debit Card System 

73 AFIS Maintenance Agreement 

76 Food Svc Operator Supervisor II - NDSP 

77 Safety Officer - JRCC 

79 Medical Records Clerk II - JRCC 

80 Remain. Extraord. Repairs - Prisons Dvsn 

Office of Manaqement and Budget 

FTE Federal 
Reporting Level Change Fund 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 0.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 0.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 0.00 

01 -530-500-03-54-00-00 20.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 1.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 2.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 0.25 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 0.50 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 1.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 0.50 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 0.50 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 1.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 0.50 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 1.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 0.50 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 0.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 0.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 0.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 0.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 0.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 0.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 1.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 1.00 

01 -530-500-03-54-00-00 0.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 0.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 3.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 1.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 0.50 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 0.00 

Special General 
Fund Fund 

0 0 150,000 

0 0 124,219 

0 0 382,320 

0 0 1,453,833 

0 0 55,047 

0 0 138,207 

0 0 17,689 

0 0 26,029 

0 0 55,698 

0 0 22,893 

0 0 51,402 

0 0 47,183 

0 0 31,492 

0 0 51 ,503 

0 0 24,526 

0 0 13,000 

0 0 26,487 

0 0 17,200 

0 0 5,886 

0 0 4,000 

0 0 35,000 

0 0 70,308 

0 0 59,396 

0 0 2,000 

0 0 15,000 

0 0 144,054 

0 0 76,999 

0 0 28,269 

0 0 224,600 

Page: 2 of4 
Date: 1/20/1999 
Time: 8:36:06 

Total 
Adjustment 

150,000 

124,219 

382,320 

1,453,833 

55,047 

138,207 

17,689 

26,029 

55,698 

22,893 

51,402 

47, 183 

31,492 

51 ,503 

24,526 

13,000 

26,487 

17,200 

5,886 

4,000 

35,000 

70,308 

59,396 

2,000 

15,000 

144,054 

76,999 

28,269 

224,600 

R276 



1o..;ONA DJUSTMENTS SUMMARY 
530 DEPT OF CORRECTIONS & REHABILITATION 

Version: 1999-0530-8-01 

Priority Optional Adjustment 

81 Telemedicine 

82 Registrd Nurse II - NDSP 

84 Training Officer Ill - JRCC 

85 Administrative Secty Ill - NDSP 

89 Computer/Cyclical Rplcemnt - Prisons Div 

90 Printer/Cyclical Rplcmnt - Prisons Divsn 

93 Dentist - DOCR 

94 Dental Assistant - DOCR 

95 Computers & ISO Chrgs - Prisons Division 

102 Pharmacist I - JRCC 

3 Treatment Services - Salaries & Operatin 

4 Education Dept - Salaries & Operating 

5 Institutional Work Programs 

24 Addiction Counselor II - JRCC 

28 Addiction Counselor II - NDSP 

43 Social Worker - JRCC 

48 Social Worker - NDSP 

55 LO Instructor - JRCC 

70 Legal Assistant II - NDSP 

71 Social Wrkr - JRCC 

74 Institutional Recreation Spec. - NDSP 

78 Addiction Couns. II - NDSP 

83 Mental Health Care Spec. II - NDSP 

91 Social Worker II - NDSP 

98 MMPI Software - Treatment Dept. 

99 Choice Site License - Education Dept. 

100 Optical Char. Recognition Machine - NDSP 

101 Addiction Counslr II - NDSP 

103 Computer Labs - NDSP 

Office of Management and Budget 

FTE 
Reporting Level Change 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 0.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 1.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 1.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 1.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 0.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 0.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 1.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 1.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 0.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 0.50 

01-530-500-03-57-00-00 14.00 

01-530-500-03-57-00-00 6.37 

01-530-500-03-57-00-00 0.00 

01-530-500-03-57-00-00 2.00 

01-530-500-03-57-00-00 1.00 

01-530-500-03-57-00-00 1.00 

01-530-500-03-57-00-00 1.00 

01-530-500-03-57-00-00 1.00 

01-530-500-03-57-00-00 1.00 

01-530-500-03-57-00-00 1.00 

01-530-500-03-57-00-00 2.00 

01-530-500-03-57-00-00 1.00 

01-530-500-03-57-00-00 1.00 

01-530-500-03-57-00-00 2.00 

01-530-500-03-57-00-00 0.00 

01-530-500-03-57-00-00 0.00 

01-530-500-03-57-00-00 0.00 

01-530-500-03-57-00-00 1.00 

01-530-500-03-57-00-00 0.00 

Federal Special General 
Fund Fund Fund 

0 0 230,000 

0 0 69,803 

0 0 79,969 

0 0 51,503 

0 0 20,700 

0 0 1,500 

0 0 150,239 

0 0 46,357 

0 0 44,145 

0 0 51,665 

0 0 1,788,901 

250,363 0 658,111 

0 0 300,000 

0 0 147,470 

0 0 73,735 

0 0 67,967 

0 0 67,967 

0 0 70,573 

0 0 62,292 

0 0 67,967 

0 0 121 ,404 

0 0 73,735 

0 0 50,691 

0 0 135,934 

0 0 40,000 

0 0 10,435 

0 0 1,000 

0 0 73,735 

0 0 60,000 

Page: 3 of 4 
Date: 1/20/1999 

Time: 8:36:06 

Total 
Adjustment 

230,000 

69,803 

79,969 

51 ,503 

20,700 

1,500 

150,239 

46,357 

44,145 

51,665 

1,788,901 

908,474 

300,000 

147,470 

73,735 

67,967 

67,967 

70,573 

62,292 

67,967 

121,404 

73,735 

50,691 

135,934 

40,000 

10,435 

1,000 

73,735 

60,000 

R276 · 



DJUSTMENTS SUMMARY 

530 DEPT OF CORRECTIONS & REHABILITATION 

Version: 1999-0530-B-01 

Priority Optional Adjustment 

1 Correctional Officer I & II - Security 

2 Correctional Caseworker - Unit Managemen 

21 External Housing - Unit Management 

22 Correctional Officer II - MRCC 

23 Correctional Officer II - JRCC 

26 Correctional Officer II - NDSP 

29 Correctional Ofer II - JRCC 

30 Correctional Unit Case Manager - NDSP 

46 Correctional Offer II - JRCC 

54 Correctional Ofer II - MRCC 

75 Correctional Officer II - NDSP/JRCC 

86 Correctional Caseworker - NDSP 

87 Corr. Officer II - NDSP 

88 Corr. Caseworker - NDSP 

92 Correct'! Officer II - NDSP 

97 PVC Card System 

TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS 

Office of Manaaement and Budget 

FTE 
Reporting Level Change 

01-530-500-03-59-00-00 39.00 

01-530-500-03-59-00-00 9.00 

01-530-500-03-59-00-00 0.00 

01-530-500-03-59-00-00 5.00 

01-530-500-03-59-00-00 4.00 

01-530-500-03-59-00-00 3.00 

01-530-500-03-59-00-00 2.00 

01-530-500-03-59-00-00 1.00 

01-530-500-03-59-00-00 3.00 

01-530-500-03-59-00-00 1.00 

01-530-500-03-59-00-00 2.00 

01-530-500-03-59-00-00 1.00 

01-530-500-03-59-00-00 3.00 

01-530-500-03-59-00-00 1.00 

01-530-500-03-59-00-00 1.00 

01-530-500-03-59-00-00 0.00 

174.19 

Federal Special General 
Fund Fund Fund 

0 0 2,398,034 

0 0 625,822 

0 0 4,085,300 

0 0 281 ,600 

0 0 225,280 

0 0 168,960 

0 0 112,640 

0 0 74,140 

0 0 168,960 

0 0 56,320 

0 0 112,640 

0 0 68,541 

0 0 168,960 

0 0 71 ,541 

0 0 56,320 

0 0 8,500 

789,820 100,000 22,912,214 

Page: 4 of 4 
Date: 1/20/1999 
Time: 8:36:06 

Total 
Adjustment 

2,398,034 

625,822 

4,085,300 

281,600 

225,280 

168,960 

112,640 

74,140 

168,960 

56,320 

112,640 

68,541 

168,960 

71 ,541 

56,320 

8,500 

23,802,034 

R276 



OPTION JUSTMENTS SUMMARY 

530 DEPT OF CORRECTIONS & REHABILITATION 

Version: 1999-0530-8-01 

Priority Optional Adjustment 

Correctional Officer I & II - Security 

2 Correctional Caseworker - Unit Managemen 

3 Treatment Services - Salaries & Operatin 

4 Education Dept - Salaries & Operating 

5 Institutional Work Programs 

6 Inst. Med. Fees - YCC 

7 Psychiatrist Services - YCC 

8 Psychologist Services - YCC 

9 Medical Expenses - YCC 

10 Institutional Medical Fees 

11 Nurse (LPN) - YCC 

12 Tracking Services - Juv Comm Srvcs 

13 Diversified Occupations - Juv Comm Srvcs 

14 ND Partnership Project - Juv Comm Srvcs 

15 Delinq . Prev. Consortium - Juv Comm Svcs 

16 Equipment - Prisons Division 

17 Extraordinary Repairs - Prisons Division 

18 Extraordinary Repairs - YCC 

19 Equipment - YCC 

20 JRCC 5th & 6th Floor - Staff & Operating 

21 External Housing - Unit Management 

22 Correctional Officer II - MRCC 

23 Correctional Officer II - JRCC 

24 Add iction Counselor II - JRCC 

25 Account Technician II - JRCC 

26 Correctional Officer II - NDSP 

27 Registered Nurse II - NDSP 

28 Addiction Counselor II - NDSP 

29 Correctional Ofer II - JRCC 

Office of Management and Budget 

FTE 
Reporting Level Change 

01 -530-500-03-59-00-00 39.00 

01 -530-500-03-59-00-00 9.00 

01-530-500-03-57-00-00 14.00 

01 -530-500-03-57-00-00 6.37 

01-530-500-03-57-00-00 0.00 

01-530-200-23-25-00-00 0.00 

01-530-200-23-25-00-00 0.00 

01-530-200-23-25-00-00 0.00 

01-530-200-23-25-00-00 0.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 0.00 

01-530-200-23-25-00-00 0.00 

01-530-200-28-00-00-00 0.00 

01-530-200-28-00-00-00 0.00 

01-530-200-28-00-00-00 0.00 

01-530-200-28-00-00-00 0.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 0.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 0.00 

01-530-200-23-24-00-00 0.00 

01-530-200-23-24-00-00 0.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 20.00 

01-530-500-03-59-00-00 0.00 

01-530-500-03-59-00-00 5.00 

01-530-500-03-59-00-00 4.00 

01 -530-500-03-57-00-00 2.00 

01 -530-500-03-54-00-00 1.00 

01-530-500-03-59-00-00 3.00 

01 -530-500-03-54-00-00 2.00 

01-530-500-03-57-00-00 1.00 

01-530-500-03-59-00-00 2.00 

Federal Special General 
Fund Fund Fund 

0 0 2,398,034 

0 0 625,822 

0 0 1,788,901 

250,363 0 658,111 

0 0 300,000 

0 0 50,000 

0 0 57,600 

0 0 48,000 

0 0 95,000 

0 0 150,000 

0 0 41 ,600 

0 0 170,000 

0 0 206 ,820 

0 0 74,080 

100,000 100,000 0 

0 0 124,219 

0 0 382,320 

0 0 190,800 

0 0 119,771 

0 0 1,453,833 

0 0 4,085,300 

0 0 281 ,600 

0 0 225,280 

0 0 147,470 

0 0 55,047 

0 0 168,960 

0 0 138,207 

0 0 73,735 

0 0 112,640 

of 4 
Date: 2/13/1999 

Time: 11 :42:02 

Total 
Adjustment 

2,398,034 

625,822 

1,788 ,901 

908,474 

300,000 

50,000 

57,600 

48,000 

95,000 

150,000 

41 ,600 

170,000 

206,820 

74,080 

200,000 

124,219 

382,320 

190,800 

119,771 

1,453,833 

4,085,300 

281,600 

225,280 

147,470 

55,047 

168,960 

138,207 

73,735 

112,640 

R276 



OPTION JUSTMENTS SUMMARY 

530 DEPT OF CORRECTIONS & REHABILITATION 

Version: 1999-0530-B-01 

Priority Optional Adjustment 

30 Correctional Unit Case Manager - NDSP 

31 Twelve Month School - YCC 

32 Low-Risk Supervision - FS 

33 Admin Secretaries - FS 

34 3 New Parole Officer II - FS 

35 Release Team - FS 

36 Revocation Center - FS 

37 Alternatives to Incarceration - FS 

38 LAC for Fargo - FS 

39 Crime Victim Coordinator - FS 

40 Rsrch Analyst Ill/Assoc Exp. - Centi Ofc 

41 Prison Population Forecast Module - DOCR 

42 Target Teacher Salary Schedule - YCC 

43 Social Worker - JRCC 

44 Administrative Secretary II - NDSP 

45 Cook II - MRCC 

46 Correctional Offer II - JRCC 

47 Painter II - NDSP 

48 Social Worker - NDSP 

49 Stores Clerk - NDSP 

50 Pharmacist I - NDSP 

51 Administrative Secretary II - JRCC 

52 Heating Plant Operator II - NDSP 

53 Administrative Secretary Ill - NDSP 

54 Correctional Ofer II - MRCC 

55 LO Instructor - JRCC 

56 Medical Records Clerk II - NDSP 

57 Satellite System-DOCR Training Program 

58 Satellite Sys. Enhance. - DOCR Trng Prag 

Office of Management and Budget 

FTE 
Reporting Level Change 

01-530-500-03-59-00-00 1.00 

01-530-200-23-26-00-00 3.57 

01-530-500-02-53-00-00 3.50 

01-530-500-02-53-00-00 3.00 

01-530-500-02-53-00-00 3.00 

01-530-500-02-52-00-00 3.00 

01-530-500-02-53-00-00 3.00 

01-530-500-02-53-00-00 0.00 

01-530-500-02-53-00-00 1.00 

01-530-500-02-52-00-00 1.00 

01-530-130-00-00-00-00 1.00 

01-530-130-00-00-00-00 0.00 

01-530-200-23-26-00-00 0.00 

01-530-500-03-57-00-00 1.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 0.25 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 0.50 

01-530-500-03-59-00-00 3.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 1.00 

01-530-500-03-57-00-00 1.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 0.50 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 0.50 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 1.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 0.50 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 1.00 

01-530-500-03-59-00-00 1.00 

01-530-500-03-57-00-00 1.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 0.50 

01-530-130-00-00-00-00 0.00 

01-530-130-00-00-00-00 0.00 

Federal Special General 
Fund Fund Fund 

0 0 74,140 

0 0 320,912 

0 0 602,735 

0 0 202,735 

0 0 211 ,375 

0 0 241 ,633 

360,000 0 891,800 

0 0 2,149,800 

0 0 87,678 

72,977 0 18,244 

0 0 80,767 

0 0 37,000 

0 0 156,986 

0 0 67,967 

0 0 17,689 

0 0 26,029 

0 0 168,960 

0 0 55,698 

0 0 67,967 

0 0 22,893 

0 0 51,402 

0 0 47,183 

0 0 31,492 

0 0 51 ,503 

0 0 56,320 

0 0 70,573 

0 0 24,526 

3,600 0 1,400 

2,880 0 1,120 

of 4 
Date: 2/13/1999 
Time: 11 :42:02 

Total 
Adjustment 

74,140 

320,912 

602,735 

202,735 

211 ,375 

241,633 

1,251 ,800 

2,149,800 

87,678 

91,221 

80,767 

37,000 

156,986 

67,967 

17,689 

26,029 

168,960 

55,698 

67,967 

22,893 

51 ,402 

47,183 

31,492 

51 ,503 

56 ,320 

70 ,573 

24,526 

5,000 

4,000 

R276 



JUSTMENTS SUMMARY 

530 DEPT OF CORRECTIONS & REHABILITATION 

Version: 1999-0530-8-01 

Priority Optional Adjustment 

59 Video Conferencing - DOCR 

60 JRCC Accreditation 

61 Computers & ISO Chrgs - MRCC, Tng Dept. 

62 DOCR Server Connection - MRCC 

63 Computers & ISO Charges - NDSP/lnfirmary 

64 DOCR Server Connection - NDSP/lnfirmary 

65 Inmate Info System Upgrade 

66 Data Processing Coord. II - Prisons Dvsn 

67 Technology Coordinator - YCC 

68 Tech Operating - YCC 

69 Electronic Equipment Tech . II - NDSP 

70 Legal Assistant II - NDSP 

71 Social Wrkr - JRCC 

72 Debit Card System 

73 AFIS Maintenance Agreement 

74 Institutional Recreation Spec. - NDSP 

75 Correctional Officer II - NDSP/JRCC 

76 Food Svc Operator Supervisor II - NDSP 

77 Safety Officer - JRCC 

78 Addiction Couns. II - NDSP 

79 Medical Records Clerk II - JRCC 

80 Remain. Extraord. Repairs - Prisons Dvsn 

81 Telemedicine 

82 Registrd Nurse II - NDSP 

83 Mental Health Care Spec. II - NDSP 

84 Training Officer 111 - JRCC 

85 Administrative Secty Ill - NDSP 

86 Correctional Caseworker - NDSP 

87 Corr. Officer II - NDSP 

Office of Management and Budget 

FTE 
Reporting Level Change 

01-530-130-00-00-00-00 0.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 0.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 0.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 0.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 0.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 0.00 

01 -530-500-03-54-00-00 0.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 1.00 

01 -530-200-23-24-00-00 1.00 

01-530-200-23-24-00-00 0.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 1.00 

01 -530-500-03-57-00-00 1.00 

01-530-500-03-57-00-00 1.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 0.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 0.00 

01-530-500-03-57-00-00 2.00 

01-530-500-03-59-00-00 2.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 3.00 

01 -530-500-03-54-00-00 1.00 

01-530-500-03-57-00-00 1.00 

01 -530-500-03-54-00-00 0.50 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 0.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 0.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 1.00 

01-530-500-03-57-00-00 1.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 1.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 1.00 

01-530-500-03-59-00-00 1.00 

01-530-500-03-59-00-00 3.00 

Federal Special General 
Fund Fund Fund 

0 0 30,000 

0 0 13,000 

0 0 26,487 

0 0 17,200 

0 0 5,886 

0 0 4,000 

0 0 35,000 

0 0 70,308 

0 0 63,681 

0 0 30,081 

0 0 59,396 

0 0 62,292 

0 0 67,967 

0 0 2,000 

0 0 15,000 

0 0 121,404 

0 0 112,640 

0 0 144,054 

0 0 76,999 

0 0 73,735 

0 0 28,269 

0 0 224,600 

0 0 230,000 

0 0 69,803 

0 0 50,691 

0 0 79,969 

0 0 51 ,503 

0 0 68,541 

0 0 168,960 

of 4 
Date: 2/13/1999 

Time: 11 :42:02 

Total 
Adjustment 

30,000 

13,000 

26,487 

17,200 

5,886 

4,000 

35,000 

70,308 

63,681 

30,081 

59,396 

62,292 

67,967 

2,000 

15,000 

121 ,404 

112,640 

144,054 

76 ,999 

73 ,735 

28,269 

224,600 

230,000 

69,803 

50,691 

79,969 

51 ,503 

68,541 

168,960 

R276 



I 

L 

OPTION JUSTMENTS SUMMARY 

530 DEPT OF CORRECTIONS & REHABILITATION 

Version: 1999-0530-B-01 

Priority Optional Adjustment 

88 Corr. Caseworker - NDSP 

89 Computer/Cyclical Rplcemnt - Prisons Div 

90 Printer/Cyclical Rplcmnt - Prisons Divsn 

91 Social Worker II - NDSP 

92 Correct'! Officer II - NDSP 

93 Dentist - DOCR 

94 Dental Assistant - DOCR 

95 Computers & ISO Chrgs - Prisons Division 

96 Major RepairProjects - YCC 

97 PVC Card System 

98 MMPI Software - Treatment Dept. 

99 Choice Site License - Education Dept. 

100 Optical Char. Recognition Machine - NDSP 

101 Addiction Counslr II - NDSP 

102 Pharmacist I - JRCC 

103 Computer Labs - NDSP 

TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS 

Office of Management and Budget 

FTE 
Reporting Level Change 

01-530-500-03-59-00-00 1.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 0 00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 0.00 

01 -530-500-03-57-00-00 2.00 

01-530-500-03-59-00-00 1.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 1.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 1.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 0.00 

01-530-200-23-24-00-00 0.00 

01-530-500-03-59-00-00 0.00 

01-530-500-03-57-00-00 0.00 

01-530-500-03-57-00-00 0.00 

01-530-500-03-57-00-00 0.00 

01-530-500-03-57-00-00 1.00 

01-530-500-03-54-00-00 0.50 

01-530-500-03-57-00-00 0.00 

174.19 

Federal Special General 
Fund Fund Fund 

0 0 71 ,541 

0 0 20,700 

0 0 1,500 

0 0 135,934 

0 0 56,320 

0 0 150,239 

0 0 46,357 

0 0 44,145 

0 0 75,000 

0 0 8,500 

0 0 40,000 

0 0 10,435 

0 0 1,000 

0 0 73,735 

0 0 51 ,665 

0 0 60,000 

789,820 100,000 22,912,214 

of 4 
Date: 2/13/1999 

Time: 11 :42:02 

Total 
Adjustment 

71 ,541 

20,700 

1,500 

135,934 

56,320 

150,239 

46,357 

44,145 

75,000 

8,500 

40,000 

10,435 

1,000 

73,735 

51 ,665 

60,000 

23,802,034 
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• 

• 

Prepared by the North Dakota Legislative Council 
staff for House Appropriations 

February 4, 1999 

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS AND REHABILITATION - DETAIL OF 
HISTORIC AND BUDGETED UTILITY COSTS 

The attached schedules provide detailed information regarding historic and budgeted utility usage and costs at 
the institutions of the Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation . 

ATTACH:4 



• UTILITIES COSTS - PENITENTIARY 

Estimated Estimated 
Total Total 

Actual Actual Estimated 1997-99 Estimated Estimated 1999-2001 
1996-97 1997-98 1998-99 Biennium 1999-2000 2000-2001 Biennium 

Coal: 
1. Quantity (ton) 2,565 2,531 2,900 5,431 3,100 3,100 6,200 
2. Unit Cost $17.49 $17.95 $18.00 $17.50 $18.00 

·---- ----
Subtotal $44,862 $45,431 $52,200 $97,631 $54,250 $55,800 $110,050 

Heating Oil : 
1. Quantity (gallons) N/A NIA 4,000 4,000 N/A 4,100 4,100 
2. Unit Cost 0.92 0.94 

------- -------
Subtotal $3,680 $3,680 $3,854 $3,854 

Natural Gas: 
1. Quantity (dkt) 17,031 16,108 18,000 34,108 18,000 18,000 36,000 
2. Unit Cost 3.81 3.74 3.65 4.25 4.68 

------

Subtotal $64,909 $60,308 $65,700 $126,008 $76,500 $84,170 $160,670 

Electricity 
1. Quantity (kwh) 5,063,350 5,201,480 5,400,000 10,601,480 5,400,000 5,400,000 10,800,000 
2. Unit Cost $0.051 $0.050 $0.051 $0.052 $0.055 

Subtotal $258,167 $260,074 $275,400 $535,474 $280,800 $297,000 $577,800 

Water/Sewer/Solid Waste Removal $117,327 $113,437 $159,000 $272,437 $126,980 $126,980 $253,960 

Telephone $55,657 $57,397 $58,232 $115,629 $58,658 $58,658 $117,316 
- --~-

Total Utilities $496,060 $491,216 $562,012 $1,053,228 $542,938 $570,662 _ j1,113,600 



• • UTILITIES COSTS - JAMES RIVER CORRECTIONAL CENTER 

Estimated Estimated 
Total Total 

Actual Actual Estimated 1997-99 Estimated Estimated 1999-2001 
1996-97 1997-98 1998-99 Biennium 1999-2000 2000-2001 Biennium 

Coal: 
1. Quantity N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
2. Unit Cost 

Subtotal 

Heating Oil : 
1. Quantity (gallons) N/A N/A N/A NIA N/A NIA NIA 
2. Unit Cost (per gallon) 

Subtotal 

Natural Gas: 
1. Quantity (dkt) N/A N/A 
2. Unit Cost 

Subtotal\1 $59,352 $59,352 $71,352 $96,352 $167,704 

Electricity 
1. Quantity (kwh) N/A N/A 
2. Unit Cost 

Subtotal\1 $64,380 $64,380 $70,380 $116,076 $186,456 

Water/Sewer/Solid Waste Removal\ 1 N/A N/A $12,922 $12,922 $15,000 $20,000 $35,000 

Telephone N/A N/A $23,670 $23,670 $26,509 $26,508 $53,017 

Total Utilities $0 $0 $160,324 $160 324 $183,241 $258,936 -- j442,177 

1 Separate utility meters have not been installed for the James River Correctional Center. Actual and estimated utility costs are based on a percentage 
of State Hospital utility costs. The rate has been determined to be 20 percent for water, sewer, electricity, and heat, 50 percent for solid waste 
removal. 



• UTILITIES COSTS - MISSOURI RIVER CORRECTIONAL CENTER 

Estimated Estimated 
Total Total 

Actual Actual Estimated 1997-99 Estimated Estimated 1999-2001 
1996-97 1997-98 1998-99 Biennium 1999-2000 2000-2001 Biennium 

Coal: 
1. Quantity N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
2. Unit Cost 

Subtotal 

Propane: 
1. Quantity (gallons) 21,070 4,130 NIA 4,130 N/A N/A N/A 
2. Unit Cost $0.792 $0.572 

Subtotal $16,696 $2,366 $2,366 

Natural Gas: 
1. Quantity (dkt) N/A 2,454 4,000 6,454 4,000 4,000 8,000 
2. Unit Cost 4.13 4.22 4.29 4.49 

Subtotal $10,132 $16,880 $27,012 $17,160 $17,960 $35,120 

Electricity 
1. Quantity (kwh) 1,003,015 1,047,250 1,125,000 2,172,250 1,176,000 1,176,000 2,352,000 
2. Unit ·Cost $0.052 $0.052 $0.052 $0.054 $0.058 ----

Subtotal $52,157 $54,457 $58,500 $112,957 $63,504 $68,208 $131,712 

Water/Sewer/Solid Waste Removal $17,390 $18,065 $19,680 $37,745 $23,064 $23,064 $46,128 

Telephone\ 1 NIA N/A N/A NIA N/A N/A NIA 
-~·---- - ---- -

Total Utilities $86 243 $85,020 $95 060 $180,080 $103,728 $109,232 _ ~?12,960 

1 Telephone costs are included in the Penitentiary budget and are not accounted for separately. 



• UTILITIES COSTS - YOUTH CORRECTIONAL CENTER 

Estimated Estimated 
Total Total 

Actual Actual Estimated 1997-99 Estimated Estimated 1999-2001 
1996-97 1997-98 1998-99 Biennium 1999-2000 2000-2001 Biennium 

Coal: 
1. Quantity N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A NIA N/A 
2. Unit Cost 

Subtotal 

Heating Oil : 
1. Quantity (gallons) 2,017 1,080 2,000 3,080 2,000 2,000 4,000 
2. Unit Cost $0.867 $1 .15 $1 .15 $1 .00 $1 .00 

------- ---
Subtotal $1 ,749 $1,242 $2,300 $3,542 $2,000 $2,000 $4,000 

Natural Gas: 
1. Quantity (dkt) 18,211 .2 22,320.2 22,320.0 44,640.2 23,000.0 23,000.0 46,000.0 
2. Unit Cost $2.66 $2.52 $2.52 $2.55 $2.55 

Subtotal $48,503 $56,138 $56,246 $112,384 $58,650 $58,650 $117,300 

Electricity 
1. Quantity (kwh) 1,080,000 1,089,600 1,089,600 2,179,200 1,083,600 1,137,780 2,221,380 
2. Unit Cost $0.053 $0.052 $0.053 $0.055 $0.055 

Subtotal $57,360 $56,941 $57,749 $114,690 $59,598 $62,578 $122 ,176 

Water/Sewer/Solid Waste Removal $18,982 $21,271 $26,554 $47,825 $23,940 $25,137 $49,077 

Telephone $31 ,415 $33,311 $49,380 $82,691 $49,360 $49,360 $98,720 

Total Utilities $158,009 $168,903 $192,229 $361,132 $193,548 _ $197,Z_g_§_ _ $39J ,__~73 
----



• 

• 

HOUSE APPROPRIATIONS COMMITTEE 
JACK DALRYMPLE, CHAIRMAN 

JANUARY 7,1999 

WARREN R. EMMER, DIRECTOR 
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

FIELD SERVICES DIVISION 
TESTIMONY IN SUPPORT OF HB 1016 

I. OVERVIEW - THE COMMUNITY SIDE OF THE DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

A. Serve the District Court 

B. 

1. Supervise 2,650 probation offenders 
2. Conduct 739 ordered investigations 
3. Collect fees, fines and costs (all costs including supervision fees and in-kind 

services) GRAPH (see attachment #1) 

Serve the Parole and Pardon Advisory Boards 
1. Supervise 168 parole offenders 
2. Conduct 2,770 ordered investigations 

C. Serve the Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation (DOCR) 
1. Manage and supervise 77% of all DOCR offenders 
2. Manage contract halfway house and revocation center programming 
3. Provide 2,770 offender sentencing reports to prison division 

D. Serve Victims 
1. Pass through agency for $450,199 crime victims compensation, $1,261,683 

VOCA and $200,000 CV A 
2. Collect $1,539,898 restitution 
3. Primary contact to provide victims with offender information 
4. Provide victim forum at Parole and Pardon Advisory Boards 

E. Serve Community 
1. Serve as a partner with law enforcement and social service agencies to enhance 

public safety 

2 . 

a. Arrest/return 704 offenders annually 
b. Conduct 13,350 urinalysis annually 
c. Conduct hundreds of warrantless searches annually 
d. Assist agencies with important information 

Develop and provide $400,000 in funding for local/regional community service 
and restitution programs 



• II. DOCR RISK MANAGEMENT PHILOSOPHY 

A. Offender Placement 

• 

• 
L 

1. Riskiest offenders need to be in prison 
2. Less risky offenders should not be in prison 
3. DOCR believes current population placement is skewed 

a. Some of the riskiest offenders are not in prison 
b. Some low risk offenders are in prison 
c. Need to move low risk offenders out of prison to make room for high 

risk offenders 

B. Community Offender Supervision 
1. Deprioritize low risk offenders (bottom 20%) 
2. Enhance supervision/programming for high risk offenders (middle 60-70%) 
3. Prioritize surveillance for highest risk offenders (10-20%) 

III. SPECIALIZED PROGRAMMING THAT COMPLIMENTS DOCR'S RISK MANAGEMENT 
PHILOS<t,PHY (see attachment #2) 

A. 
B . 
C. 
D. 
E. 
F. 
G. 
H. 
I. 

Revocation Center 
Last Chance Program 
Community Placement Program 
Jail for Parole Violators 
House Arrest/Home Detention 
Halfway House 
Three Day Parole Detention 
Day Reporting 
¾ House (DOCR Rooms) 

IV. ADDITIONAL STAFFING (see attachment #3) 

A. 
B. 
C. 
D. 
E. 
F. 
G. 
H . 

3 FTE Secretaries 
3.5 FTE Community Corrections Agents 
3 FTE Parole/Probation Officers 
1 FTE Addiction Counselor 
3 FTE Release Team 
1 FTE Crime Victim Coordinator 
Budgetary Changes (see attachment #4) 
Montana and Wyoming Comparisons 

H:\WARREN\99-0 I BUD\HB I 016.DOC 
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ATl'1IQ-IMENT #3 

1999 - 2001 Biennial Budget New FTE by Optional Adjustment - 12/30/98 

! 
Community Offender Services Program 

: 
3 FTE 1 Administrative Secretaries 

I : ! 
I i I 
I I 

i I 

3.5 FTE , Community Corrections Agents 

I 
I 

: I 

I 

i 
' 
i 

3 FTE I Parole Officer II 
I 
I 

i 
1 FTE !LAC l ' I 

I : l l 

10.5 FTE :Total New COSP FTE ! 
' i i 

! i 
Institutional Offender Services Program 

I ! 
3 FTE 1 Release Team I 

' I 

1 FTE : Crime Victim Coordinator 

I I 
I 

4 FTE iTotal New IOSP FTE ! 

I 
I 

I 
i 
l 1 FTE Grand Forks 
j 1 FTE Fargo 
1 1 FTE Bismarck I 

l 
.1 FTE West Fargo 
.5 FTE Rolla 
.5 FTE Devils Lake 
.5 FTE Grafton 
1 FTE Mandan 

2 FTE starting 7-1-99 
1 FTE starting 7 -1-00 

! 1 FTE Fargo 

I 

I 

2 FTE PO Ill 
1 FTE Admin Sec 

1 FTE Bismarck 

i 

General Fund 
Salary/Benifts 

49,206 
49,206 · 
49,206 / 

I 
54,590 
31,377 1 
32,458 
32,458 
54,590 

151,641 
37,420 -

e:f§_'v~-
81 ,772 ;.) .1 ----

623,924 ~-c; -

a&l~
) ia,~ _,a)~t,f'~ ./ 

I/ 
/ 

178,595 / 
49,206 

! 
16,2071 ----

I 

I 

244,008 1 



ATl'ACHMENI' #5 

Wyoming Parole & Probation Montana Community Corrections 

Jerry Pieper - 307-777-7470 Becky Buska - 406-444-6949 

7/1/98 to 7/1/97 to 7/1/99 to 
Biennial Budget 6/30/00 FTE Biennial Budget 6/30/99 FTE 6/30/01 FTE 
Total 17,415,534 123 Total 30,424,415 183.0 41 ,371 ,1 90 228.0 
General 17,415,534 General 30,424,415 41 ,342,390 
Federal 0 Federal 0 0 
Special 0 Special 0 28,800 

7/1/98 to 7/1/97 to 7/1/99 to 
Program 6/30/00 FTE Program 6/30/99 FTE 6/30/01 FTE 

Admin/Traditional P & P 7,964,892 101 Pardon Board 580,889 6.0 623 ,067 8.0 
Four 1/2 Way Houses 6,1 59,270 Pre-Release 12,453,350 0.0 18,581 ,430 0.0 

County Jail Sentences 820,000 0 Admin 1,332,963 8.0 1,508,733 8.0 

ISP 2,471 ,372 21 Boot Camp 2,244,126 25.5 2,593,710 25.5 
Total by Program 17,415,534 123 Parole/Probation 13,813,087 143.5 18,064,250 186.5 

Total 30,424,415 183.0 41 ,371 ,190 228.0 

Montana Parole & 
Wyoming Parole & Probation Probation Count 
Count as of 6/30/98 6,797 as of 6/30/98 5,729 

ND Field Services Division 

• 
Charles Placek - 701-328-6198 

7/1/97 to 7/1/99 to 

Biennial Budget 6/30/99 FTE 6/30/01 FTE 

Total 9,590,889 55.25 13,468,545 69.75 

General 5,481 ,758 9,490,660 

Federal 3,309,131 2,718,620 

Special 800,000 1,259,265 

7/1/97 to 7/1/99 to 

Program 6/30/99 FTE 6/30/01 FTE 
Victim Services 3,104,399 1.50 2,610,550 1.50 

Institutional Offedner Services 321 ,991 4.05 828,335 8.05 

Community Offender Services 6,1 64,499 49.70 10,029,660 60.20 

Total 9,590,889 55.25 13,468,545 69.75 

North Dakota Parole & 
Probation Count as of 6/30/98 3,160 

• 
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ADULT SERVICES 

Division of Field Services 

A) Victim Services 

> 2 percent salary increases per year instead of 3 percent 

B) Institutional Offender Services 

> 2 percent salary increases per year instead of 3 percent 

C) Community Offender Services 

1) 2 percent salary increases per year instead of 3 percent 

2) Reduced funding for various programs that provide 
alternatives to incarceration (see attached report). 

3) Eliminated the following four (4.00) FTE's and 
associated operating expenses . 

a) Two (2.00) Admin. Secretary III positions 
Removed related operating expenses 
Added funding for Temporary Salaries 

b) One (1.00) Community Corrections Agent 
Removed related operating expenses 

c) One (1.00) Parole & Probation Officer II 
Removed related operating expenses 

Total 

D) Parole Supervision Fees 

$95,436 
41,848 

(38,436) 

$53,024 
2,531 

36,657 
10,422 

$61,334 

149,800 

201,482 

>An amendment was included that increased by $144,000 the anticipated 
revenue from Parole supervision fees based on increasing fees from $30 
to $3 5 per month as provided in Section 6 of the bill. This amendment 

$1,942 

$8,981 

$412,616 

reduced the general fund by the same amount (please see our proposed amendment). 

E) TOT AL FIELD SERVICES DIVISION 

1) General Fund 
2) Estimated Income 

$423,539 

$567,539 
(144,000) 

3 
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DOCR - FIELD SERVICES DIVISION 
ALTERNATIVES TO INCARCERATION 

The Department of Corrections has developed a strategic plan that is designed to 
efficiently serve the state in the years ahead. In keeping with the intent of that plan, the 
department's Field Services Division must develop and implement viable alternatives to 
incarceration. It is important that the division accomplishes this task not only as a benefit 
to the offender but also to provide relief for the prison's division. 

Field Services Division is in the process of developing a program that, when 
implemented, will better serve the offender as well the Department of Corrections. The 
division's program is predicated on providing the necessary services for its clientele while 
being mindful of potential risk programming may impose on the public. 

The elements of the division's program now follows: 

PROGRAM 

Release Team: Consists of three FTE's. This team would be 
responsible to target inmates meeting established program criteria 
and coordinating their movement to the designated community
based programs. 

Revocation Center: Non-prison beds contracted for revocated 
community-based offenders as well as offenders participating in 
the intermediate measures program. The revocation center would 
deli ver appropriate treatment and cognitive restructuring 
programming. This program targets probation cases being 
revocated that would otherwise face incarceration. This program 
would be designed to complete treatment intervention within an 
average time period of 60 days, and return the offenders to the 
community. Calculations for the cost of this program are based on 
developing a contract 30-bed facility at $45 per day. The 
revocation center would be staffed by three licensed addiction 
counselors. This program will save 167 prison days for every 
successful candidate. The calculation is as follows: 

• Average sentence 461 
• Max parole cut -245 
• Return rate of 30% after 100 days -35 
• Orientation - i 4 
• Net savings 167 

240 offenders x 167 days= 40.080 / 730 = 55 

BUDGET & 
PRISON BEDS 

$241,633 

$658.709 

40,080 prison days 

BEDS SAVED 
Now 99-01 

0 55 
add ' l 



Last Chance Program: This will be a pilot program. It is an 
intermediate measures intervention designed for offenders in the 
Fargo area. This program will target parole and probation cases 
that have technically violated terms of their supervision and 
would, if an intervention was not implemented, face revocation. 
This program would require participating offenders to reside in a 
structured home confinement program. A licensed addiction 
counselor would also provide necessary treatment related 
intervention as well as cognitive restructuring programming. The 
calculation is as follows: 

• Candidates 75.0 
• Return rate of 30% after 100 days -22.5 

52.5 

• 167 days x 52.5 8,760 

Alternatives to Incarceration: 

• Community Placement Program: We anticipate having 30 
offenders daily serving their sentences in the community using 
any variety of placement options ranging from residential half
way house to home confinement and day reporting. 

• Jail/Parole Violators - Parole violators determined 
inappropriate for the revocation center program or other 
programming would face revocation and serve their sentence 
in jail. We anticipate five parole violators in county jails 
serving their sentence at an average cost of $45 per day. 

• House Arrest/Home Detention: This program would include 
contract services to effectively account for the movement and 
activity of higher risk offenders using technology such as EMS 
and tracking systems. We anticipate 25 offenders in residence 
per day averaging $25 per day. 

• Halfway House: The existing program calculating 25 
offenders in residence per day at a rate of $40. 

2 

$87,678 

8,760 prison days 

BEDS SAVED 
Now 99-01 

0 13 
add' l 

$2,149,800 

21,900 prison days 

BEDS SAVED 
Now 99-01 

10 20 
add'l 

3,650 prison days 

BEDS SAVED 
Now 99-01 

5 0 
add'l 

18,250 prison days 

BEDS SAVED 
Now 99-01 --

15 10 
add'! 

18,250 prison days 

BEDS SAVED 
Now 99-01 

10 15 
add'! 



I 

Alternatives to Incarceration ( continued): 

• Three-Day Parole Hold: We intend on utilizing jail as an 
intermediate measure for parole violators. We anticipate one 
offender in jail custody status at any one time at a rate of $45 
per day. 

• Day Reporting: An existing program that would provide 
greater application under the new strategy of the enhanced 
supervision policy. We anticipate 15 offenders in the 
programming daily at a rate of $12 per day. 

• DOCR Rooms: We intend on expanding our existing program 
to include 12 beds at a cost of $10 per bed. 

• TOTAL beds saved for Alternatives to Incarceration 

Now 
46 

99-01 
67 additional 

- 30% violation rate 
32 

- 30% violation rate 

TOT AL PRISON BEDS SAVED 
Now --

Revocation Center 0 
Last Chance Program 0 
Alternatives to Incarceration 32 -

TOTAL 32 

PROJECTED 1999-2001 TOTALS 

4 7 additional net prison 
beds saved 

99-01 Total 
-- --

55 55 
13 13 
47 79 - -

115 147 

730 prison days 

BEDS SAVED 
Now 99-01 --

0 1 
add 'l 

10,950 prison days 

BEDS SAVED 
Now 99-01 --

0 15 
add ' 1 

8,760 prison days 

BEDS SAVED 
Now 99-01 

6 6 
add'! 

$3,1 37.820 
General Fund 

H:\WA RREN\BUDGET\ALTER3 .DOC 
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Fifty-sixth 
Legislative Assembly 
of North Dakota 

PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO . 1016 

Page 1, line 3, after "probationers", insert "and to 
provide an effective date" 

Page 3, line 29, replace "thirty-fiveu with "thirty-

Page 3 , after line 31, insert: 

SECTION 7. EFFECTIVE DATE . Section 6 of this act 
becomes effective July 1, 2001 for criminal offenses 
committed after July 1, 1999. 

Page No. 1 



HOUSE APPROPRIATIONS 
Human Resources Division 

Representative Ken D . Svedjan, Chairman 
JANUARY 13, 1999 

WARREN R. EMMER, DIRECTOR 
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

FlELD SERVICES DIVISION 
TESTIMONY IN SUPPORT OF HB 1016 

I. OVERVIEW -THE COMMUNITY SIDE OF THE DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

A. 

B . 

C. 

D. 

E. 

Serve the District Court 
1. Supervise 2,650 probation offenders 
2. Conduct 739 ordered investigations 

-, 
.) . 

a. Sample report (see attachment # 1) 
b . Report discussion 
Collect fees, fines and costs (all costs including supervision fees and in-kind 
services) GRAPH (see attachment #2) 

Serve the Parole and Pardon Advisory Boards 
1. Supervise 168 parole off enders 
2. Conduct 2,770 ordered investigations 

Serve the Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation (DOCR) 
1 . Manage and supervise 77% of all DOCR off enders 
2. Manage contract halfway house and revocation center programming 
3. Provide 2,770 offender sentencing reports to prison division 

Serve Victims 
1. Pass through agency for $450,199 crime victims compensation, $1,261,683 

VOCA and $200,000 CV A 
2. Collect $1,539,898 restitution 
3. Primary contact to provide victims with offender information 
4. Provide victim forum at Parole and Pardon Advisory Boards 
5. Victim(s) response (see attachment #3) 

Serve Community 
1. Serve as a partner with law enforcement and social service agencies to enhance 

public safety 
a. Arrest/return 704 offenders annually 
b. Conduct 13 ,350 urinalysis annually 
c. Conduct hundreds of warrantless searches annually 
d. Assist agencies with important information 



1- - · 

- II . 

2. Develop and provide $400,000 in funding for local/regional community service 
and restitution programs 
a. Bulletin board discussion 

DOCR RISK MANAGEMENT PHILOSOPHY 

A. Off ender Placement 

B. 

1. Riskiest offenders need to be in prison 
2. Less risky offenders should not be in prison 
3. DOCR believes current population placement is skewed 

a. Some of the riskiest off enders are not in prison 
b. Some low risk offenders are in prison 
c. Need to move low risk offenders out of prison to make room for high 

risk offenders 

Community Offender Supervision 
1. Deprioritize low risk off enders (bottom 20%) 
2. Enhance supervision/programming for high risk offenders (middle 60-70%) 
3. Prioritize surveillance for highest risk offenders (10-20%) 
4. How it works (see attachment #4) 

a. Review risk of re-offense (see attachment #5) 
1) Utilize intensive supervision 
2) Utilize drug testing 
3) Utilize surveillance officers 
4) Util ize electronic monitoring 

b. Review criminogenic needs (see attachment #6) 
1) Family dynamics 
2) Alcoho1/drug 
3) Education 
4) Employment 
5) Cognitive restructuring .. . ( discussion with Rick Hoekstra) 

c. Demonstration by Officer Terry Grumbo 

III . SPECIALIZED PROGRAMMING THAT COMPLIMENTS DOCR'S RISK MANAGEMENT 
PHILOSOPHY (see attachment #7) 
FURTH ER DISCUSSION BY PROGRAM MANAGER, TRACY STEIN (see attachment #8) 

A. Revocation Center 
B. Last Chance Program 
C. Community Placement Program 
D. Jail for Parole Violators 
E. 
F. 
G. 
H . 
I. 

House Arrest/Home Detention 
Hal fway House 
Three Day Parole Detention 
Day Reporting 
¾ House (DOCR Rooms) 



IV. ADDITIONAL STAFFING (see attachment #9) 

A. 3 FTE Secretaries 
B. 3.5 FTE Community Corrections Agents 
C. 3 FTE Parole/Probation Officers 
D. 1 FTE Addiction Counselor 
E. 3 FTE Release Team 
F. 1 FTE Crime Victim Coordinator 
G. Budgetary Changes (see attachment #10) 
H. Montana and Wyoming Comparisons (see attachment #11) 

H :\ W ARREN\99-0 I B UD\HB IO 16. DOC 
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PRE-SENTENCE INVESTIGATION REPORT III ATI'ACHMENT #1 

NORTH DAKOTA DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS AND REHABILITATION 
FIELD SERVICES DIVISION 
SFN 16396 (1-98) 

(Deleted Official Court Information) 

*****PRIOR RECORD***** 

Offense Arresting Agency 

(Deleted actual dates and location) 

Driving w/ o License 

Drunk and Dis orderly 

DUI ,an d 
Ca rry ing A Concealed Weapon 

Fa ilure to Comply 

Se xu a l Explo itation 

Disposition 

Convicted 

Convicted 

Convicted 

Dismissed 

Pending 

• 
~ditional Data (Deta i ners , Charges Pending, Previous Parole/Probation, I ns t . Hi s tory, and 
:esent Status) : 

The above of fenses are the only known prior record o f the Defendant. It shou ld be n o ted 
that the of fenses listed in (blank cities)were reporte d by the Defendan t. 

As indicated above, Mr. Bl ank also ha s one pend ing c harge for Se xual Exploita t i on. He has 
pled gui lty t o this offense, and is currently a wait ing sentencing in ..................... blank city. 

Offense 
Mur der (C l a ss AA Felony ) 

Date of Offense 
?? 

Complainant 
The p o lice officer 

Address 
North Dakota 

A. De fendant's Version of t he Crime: 

Arresting Officer 
N. D. Police officer 

At the time of the Pre-Sentence inter view , Mr. Bl ank was asked i f he wished to submit his 
version o f the crime currently before the Court. (the defendant refused t o submit his 
version but did make a statement that we must delete) . 

B. Vic t i m's Version o f the Crime: 
We routinely i nterview the v ictim and / or t he vict i m(s) family to obtain a version from the 
·· ictim or their family . We deleted the version provided us . 

. Invest igating Officer ' s Version o f the Crime: 
The complaint in this case alleges tha t on ....... .. 
enforcement, and did in chis case but must delet e 

(We r outinely obtain 
it) . 

a version from l aw 

J 



• 
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D. Othe r Information Regarding the Crime: 
In some special instances, we obtain additional information that aggravates or medicates 
the crime , we needed this information in this case but must delete it . 

* * * * * PERSONAL AND FAMILY DATA * .* * * * 

Previous Addresses 
Information has been deleted 

How Long at Each Address 

Family Background (Includes home, neighborhood, interests, support of family, associates, 
attitude of family members toward defendant, home atmosphere, etc.): 
We spend a lot of time in this area , when necessary, we did in this case but must delete 
it . 

*****NAMES OF IMMEDIATE FAMILY (Include all living and deceased) * * * * * 

Name 
Dad Blank 
Mom Blank 
Sibling Blank 
Sibling Blank 
Sibling Blank 

Relationship 
Father 
Mother 
sibling 
sibling 
sibling 

Present Address Occupation 

*****MARITAL (Present and previous marriages, including co-habitation) * * * * * 

Name of Spouse Age No. Children Date/Place of Marriage 
(We have deleted this information) 

Problems with Marriage: (This information has been deleted) 

**** * CHILDREN (Including those from previous marriages) * 

Age Custody 
(We have deleted this information) 

Education (Name & Address of School) 
(We have deleted this information) 

Other Training Received) : deleted 

Address 

Marriage Outcome 

* * * * 
If Under 18 yrs. 
Support (Yes/No) 

Summary of School Data (Behavior, Academic Standing, Desire to Return, Present Status: 
We have deleted this information 

* * * * * EMPLOYMENT * * * * * 

Occupation: deleted 

Employe r Employer's Address 
Deleted 

. 2revious Employer 
De l eted 

How Long Employed 
? year 

Reason For Leaving 
We deleted this information 

Beginning Income 
$??????/year 

Ending Income 
$?????? / year 



Previous Employer 
Deleted 

1eason For Leaving 

. Jeleted 

Other Job Skills: 

Beginning Income 
$?????/year 

We deleted this information 

*****HEALTH***** 

How Long Employed 
? years 

Ending Income 
$?????/year 

Physical Description (Height, weight, scars, illnesses being treated; health problems ; all 
past and present medication; name of physician) 
Deleted 

Drug Abuse, Narcotics, Alcohol (Age use began, frequency/ cost, type of drug, past and 
present treatment : 
The Defendant has a significant history with the abuse of alcohol. His first use of 
alcohol was around the age of ?? , but his abuse began primarily approximately ??? years 
ago. During that time, the Defendant was involved in binge drinking, and consuming alcohol 
on a daily basis. As a result of the abuse, he received addiction and psychiatric services 
through?????????????????????????. A copy of the evaluation from the facility is included 
and made a part of the Pre-Sentence. It should be noted that the Defendani does not feel 
that he has an addiction to alcohol, but believes that his major problem is when he mixes 
his use of alcohol with his psychiatric medications . The Defendant did admit that his 
drinking became worse after ????????????????, and that it had become out of control. The 
Defendant admits to trying marijuana, but never abused the chemical, nor was it ever a 
problem for him . 

• Marital & Emotional (Self evaluation, personality traits, disorders, treatment!, 
The Defendant suffers from some emotional problems. He has been diagnosed with severe 
depression , anxiety, and psychosis. He has had some counseling and treatment for these 
conditions. While at ???????????? he did receive an evaluation and received services 
through that facility. The Defendant has also been receiving services through ???????? 
Human Service Center in??????. These services came about after his arrest on his current 
charges . He did have a psychiatric evaluation completed by Dr . ????????????. Copies of 
the evaluation and notes from ???????? Human Service Center have been attained and are 
attached to this report. It should be noted that the Defendant is currently taking 
medications for his mental health problems. 

Branch & Dates 
u. s. ????????? 

kill Acquired: 

* * ***MILITARY SERVICE***** 

Type of Discharge 
Honorabl e 

Preference & Extent of Involvement: ?????? ???????? 

Paqe 3 



COMMENTS J>..l\'D RECOMMENDATIONS (Conununity Servic e and/or Treatment. Proposals, etc.): 
We give very de tailed recommendations .......... . 

Johnny Law 

ND Parole/Probation Officer 

MANDATORY ATTACHMENTS: 
Criminal Information/Complaint 
Law Enforcement Investigation Report 
Victim's Impact Statement (If applicable ) 

Date 

Page 4 
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A'ITACHMENT #2 

DOCR- FIELD SERVICES DIVISION 
ALTERNATIVES TO INCARCERATION 

The Department of Corrections has developed a strategic plan that is designed to 
efficiently serve the state in the years ahead. In keeping with the intent of that plan, the 
department's Field Services Division must develop and implement viable alternatives to 
incarceration. It is important that the division accomplishes this task not only as a benefit 
to the offender but also to provide relief for the prison's division. 

Field Services Division is in the process of developing a program that, when 
implemented, will better serve the offender as well the Department of Corrections. The 
division's program is predicated on providing the necessary services for its clientele while 
being mindful of potential risk programming may impose on the public. 

PROGRAM BUDGET/ 
PRISON BEDS 

Revocation Center: Non-prison beds contracted for revocated $1,018,709 
community-based offenders as well as offenders participating in $658,709 General 
the intermediate measures program. The revocation center would $360,000 Federal 
deliver appropriate treatment and cognitive restructuring 
programming. This program targets probation cases being 40,080 prison days 
revocated that would otherwise face incarceration. This program 
would be designed to complete treatment intervention within an 
average time period of 60 days, and return the offenders to the 
community. Calculations for the cost of this program are based on 
developing a contract 30-bed facility at $45 per day. The 
revocation center would be staffed by three licensed addiction 
counselors. This program will save 167 prison days for every 
successful candidate. The calculation is as follows: 

• Average sentence 461 

• Max parole cut -245 

• Return rate of 30% after 100 days -35 

• Orientation -14 
~ Net savings 167 
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Last Chance Program: This will be a pilot program. It is an 
intermediate measures intervention designed for offenders in the 
Fargo area. This program will target parole and probation cases 
that have technically violated terms of their supervision and 
would, if an intervention was not implemented, face revocation. 
This program would require participating off enders to reside in a 
structured home confinement program. A licensed addiction 
counselor would also provide necessary treatment related 
intervention as well as cognitive restructuring programming. The 
calculation is as follows: 

• Candidates 
• Return rate of 30% after 100 days 

• 167 days x 84 

Other Alternatives to Incarceration: 

120 
-36 
84 

14,028 

$87,678/14,028 
prison days 

$2,149,800 

• Community Placement Program: We anticipate having 30 21,900 prison days 
offenders daily serving their sentences in the community using 
any variety of placement options ranging from residential half-
way house to home confinement and day reporting. 

• Jail/Parole Violators - Parole violators determined 
inappropriate for the revocation center program or other 
programming would face revocation and serve their sentence 
in jail. We anticipate five parole violators in county jails 
serving their sentence at an average cost of $45 per day. 

3,650 prison days 

• House Arrest/Home Detention: This program would include 18,250 prison days 
contract services to effectively account for the movement and 
activity of higher risk offenders using technology such as EMS 
and tracking systems. We anticipate 25 offenders in residence 
per day averaging $25 per day. 

• Halfway House: The existing program calculating 25 18,250 prison days 
offenders in residence per day at a rate of $40. 

• Three-Day Parole Hold: We intend on utilizing jail as an 730 prison days 
intermediate measure for parole violators. We anticipate one 
offender in jail custody status at any one time at a rate of $45 
per day. 
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Other Alternatives to Incarceration (continued): 

• Day Reporting: An existing program that would provide 10,950 prison days 
greater application under the new strategy of the enhanced 
supervision policy. We anticipate 15 offenders in the 
programming daily at a rate of $12 per day. 

• DOCR Rooms: We intend on expanding our existing program 8,760 prison days 
to include 12 beds at a cost of $10 per bed. 

PROJECTED 1999-2001 TOTALS $2,896,187 
General Fund 

H :\ WARREN\BUDGET\AL TER2.DOC 

• 
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ATI'ACHMENT #3 

CRIME VICTIMS COMPENSATION 

BRJEF CASE SUMMARJES 

I. THE VICTIM WAS A PASSENGER IN A VEHICLE DRJVEN BY A PERSON UNDER THE 
INFLUENCE OF ALCOHOL. THE DRJVER WAS CHARGED WITH VOLUNTARY 
MANSLAUGHTER WHEN THE VICTIM WAS KILLED AS A RESULT OF THE DRJVER 
LOSING CONTROL AND HITTING AN APPROACH. WE HELPED WITH BURJAL RELATED 
EXPENSES. 

$3,000 PAID 

2. THE 14 YR. OLD VICTIM HAD BEEN SEXUALLY ABUSED BY AN UNCLE SINCE SHE 
WAS 9 YEARS OF AGE. SHE WAS FINALLY ABLE TO REPORT THE ABUSE TO HER 
MOTHER AND THE UNCLE WAS CHARGED WITH GSI. THE VICTIM REQUIRED AN 
EXTENSIVE MEDICAL EXAM ALONG WITH MENTAL HEALTH THERAPY. IT IS POSSIBLE 
FURTHER COUNSELING SESSIONS WILL BE REQUIRED. 

$2,000 PAID (SO FAR) 

3. IN A ROBBERY, THE 67 YR. OLD VICTIM WAS ASSAULTED, TIED UP, BEATEN 
SEVERELY AND THEN LEFT TO LAY THERE ALL NIGHT. A FRJEND FOUND HIM IN THE 
MORNING AND HE WAS PROVIDED THE NECESSARY MEDICAL CARE. A SMALL 
AMOUNT OF MEDICAL COST WAS PAID SINCE HE WAS COVERED BY MEDICARE AND 
ANOTHER INSURANCE. AS A RESULT OF THE INJURJES, THE VICTIM WAS UNABLE TO 
DO THE WORK THAT WAS NECESSARY TO CARE FOR HIS CATTLE ETC. WE PAID FOR 
THE HELP REQUIRED TO MEET THE NEEDS. 

$25,000 PAID (MAXIMUM BENEFIT) 

4. IN A DOMESTIC VIOLENCE SITUATION, THE VICTIM WAS CHOKED AND PUSHED 
THROUGH A PLATE GLASS WINDOW, CAUSING SEVERE INJURJES . THE HUSBAND WAS 
CHARGED WITH AGGRAVATED ASSAULT. AL THOUGH THE VICTIM BECAME ELIGIBLE 
FOR MEDICAL ASSISTANCE TO COVER THE EXTENSIVE MEDICAL EXPENSES, WE ARE 
COVERING LOST WAGES UNTIL SHE CAN RETURN TO WORK. 

$4,000 PAID (SO FAR) 



Paul Coughlin 
Crime Victims Compensation 
Parole and Probation 
PO Box 5521 
Bismarck, ND 58506-5521 

Mr. Coughlin: 

February 5, 1998 

I wanted to take a few minutes and let you know how much the Crime Victims 
Compensation program has helped my brother. As you know, I am my brother' s Durable 
Power of Attorney. His traumatic brain injury was a result of being victimized in a 
violent crime. 

He was working and making good wages and supporting his family . Then he entered the 
hospital with head injury. Social Security Disability Determination takes ninety or more 
days to make a determination and then more months of appeals. The Medicaid Program 
eligibility is based on Social Security eligibility. Because he had no insurance benefits, 
he not only had no income, he also faced more than thirty thousand dollars of medical 
bills and he is still doctoring. 

I don ' t know how he and his family would have lived without victims compensation. I 
wish I could make every state legislator aware of how necessary this program is for 
citizens of North Dakota that have been victims of a crime. 

Again, thank you for all you have done. 

Respectfully, 

Signed by writer 

-- AGGRAVATED ASSAULT -
We paid $25 ,000 in Lost Wages 
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ATI'ACHMENT #4 

Risk-Needs Assessment and Treatment 

One of the major tasks of any correctional agency is to enhance the protection of the public by managing 
the risk offenders pose for harmful acts. At a simple level, this can mean separating offenders from the 
community through imprisonment. Within North America, and for most offenders, this approach serves 
as a temporary measure. Sanctions that confine individuals indefinitely are reserved usually for the most 
serious crimes. The vast majority of offenders receive less restrictive sentences and they are eventually 
returned to the community. 

Re-integrating offenders into the community or, in the case of probation and parole, maintaining offenders 
within the community depends upon two important strategies. One strategy involves making sound release 
decisions and the second involves effective treatment programming. The first strategy relies upon risk 
assessments and, as it is typically used in practise, seems to have little relevance to the second strategy, 
the planning and delivery of effective treatment or rehabilitation programming. The purpose of this paper 
is to show that risk assessment, along with other forms of assessment, are not only related to rehabilitation, 
but they are essential for good correctional practises. 

The Assessment of Off enders 

The assessment of offenders has long been appreciated as an essential task for those who work with 
offenders. Many of the early criminologists and students of human behaviour have recognized the 
importance of differentiating criminal offenders and they have developed complex models to assign 
offenders to different categories. Lombroso described "atavistic" features, Freud outlined differences in 
personality structure, and sociologists categorized deviance as a function of social values and structure. 
What is common to all is the view ·that not all offenders are alike and that the differences are important 
in terms of assessing their "criminality" and defining the approach for dealing with them. 

Beginning with Burgess' (1928) classic ~tudy of parole releases we see the origins of efforts to 
systematically and empirically develop objective offender assessment tools; the so called "risk assessment 
instruments." I will refer to these as the "second generation" offender assessment approaches. The "first 
generation" of offender assessments has probably been with us since the first man (or woman) killed 
another human being. First generation assessments are described by various terms such as "subjective 
assessment", "professional judgement", "intuition" and "gut-level feelings". They are assessments that 
involve decision rules not easily observable and difficult to replicate. The second generation assessment 
instruments publicly identify the factors that contribute to the assessment process. 

Using the terms "first generation" and "second generation" does not mean that subjective, professional 
1dgement type assessments are no longer.practised nor are they completely undesirable. First generation 

<1Ssessments are still used today and they play an important role in offender assessment. However, as I 
· will soon argue, an over-reliance on these measures is wrought with problems and it has played an 
inhibiting role in the furthering of knowledge on criminal behaviour and ·effective interventions. This is 
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not to say that second generation assessments are wholly satisfactory. They are an improvement, but there 

• 
is a "third" generation form of assessment, risk-needs assessments that finally link the assessment process 
to rehabilitation and advance us still further. Without a doubt, someday there will be a fourth generation. 
All we can say right now is that advances in offender assessment ·are proceeding at an exponential rate. 
It took a millennium to progress to the second generation, 50 years to the third (1928 to 1979), and we 
are on the verge of a fourth generation, less than 15 years from the beginning of risk-needs instrumentation. 

First Generation Assessment. First generation assessments involve the collection of information on the 
offender and his/her situation and then interpreting this information in a meaningful manner (usually with 
respect to the propensity for violent behaviour and treatment needs). The most serious weakness of this 
approach is that the rules for collecting the information and formulating interpretations of the "data" are 
subject to considerable personal discretion. Correctional agencies may have policy manuals and proce
dures to guide them as to what information is important and where to place the emphasis but these 
guidelines are often vaguely defined. As a result, the correctional worker can too easily overlook or 
overemphasize information based upon personally held knowledge of criminal behaviour (which may or 
may not be correct) rather than upon empirically defensible theories of crime. 

A dependency upon first generation type of assessments makes accountability and fairness difficult. 
Outside observers find it a challenge to identify the specific reasons why decisions are made and why 
sometimes offenders who appear similar are treated so differently by various professionals. Research on 
the inter-rater reliability of professional judgements·has frequently shown that professionals are just as 
likely to disagree on the key features of a case as they are to agree. 

Finally, the evidence as to how well clinicians and other experts can predict future criminal behaviour 
based upon their professional judgement clearly shows that their accuracy is legally, ethically and 
practically, unacceptable (Andrews & Bonta, 1993 ). This sorry state of affairs has fuelled the critics who 
argue that criminal behaviour cannot be predicted. In addition, the anti-prediction arguments have created 
the impression that research into individual differences is a wasteful exercise and that the focus on the 
person is misguided. Rather, it is argued, social factors are the true roots of crime. Fortunately, some 
researchers have continued to conduct studies that recognize the importance ofindividual differences and 
that the measurement of these factors must be done in an objective manner. This attitude has produced 
the second generation of offender assessments. 

Second ieneration assessments Objective, empirically based offender risk assessments can be traced back 
to Burgess' (1928) study of over 3,000 parolees. Burgess identified 21 factors that differentiated parole 
successes from parole failures and he used these factors to construct a risk scale. The presence of a factor 
was assigned a score of one and the higher the score, the greater the likelihood of failure while on parole. 
For example, the offenders who fell in the highest risk category had a failure rate of76% and those in the 
minimum range had a failure rate of 1.5%. Burgess' empirical approach to offender assessment and his 
simple scoring system remains today the equal to modem day offender assessments (Gottfredson & 
Gottfredson, 1979). 

The next major step in the development and use of second generation offender assessments is seen in 
Sheldon and Eleanor Glueck's ( 1950) prediction tables. Variables that differentiated delinquents and 
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,ndelinquents fonned the basis for empirically derived estimates of the probability of delinquent 
ehaviour. The new twist to the objective assessment process was that weights were assigned to the 

different variaples (the Burgess method is simply a 0-1 scoring format). Today, nearly all objective risk 
instruments use either a 0-1 scoring method or a weighting methodology. 

In the 1970's research on risk assessments virtually exploded. On a national scale we see the development 
of the Salient Factor Score (SFS; Hoffman, 1983) in the United States and, in Canada, there was the 
development of the Statistical Index of Recidivism (SIR; Nuffield, 1982). These risk scales were based 
on sound empirical research and they performed satisfactorily in differentiating lower risk offenders from 
the higher risk offenders. Their major weakness, however, was that the instruments provided little direction 
for treatment And why? Mainly because the items comprising the scales are historical in nature. For 
example, six of the seven SFS items and 13 of the 15 SIR items deal with historical factors such as criminal 
history. Rehabilitation is based upon the premise that people can change and if assessment is to contribute 
to rehabiiitation efforts it must be capable of measuring change. This notion of the measurement of change 
is what fundamentally separates the second generation assessment tools from the third generation. 

Third generation assessments. Risk-needs assessments form what I call the third generation of assessment. 
These classification instruments go beyond statistical risk prediction where the major purpose is to make 
decisions about the degree of freedom an offender is granted. There is an acceptance of the need to deliver 
rehabilitation services if we are to manage risk. Furthermore, treatment services cannot be given to 
!veryone because of the costs involved nor can they be randomly assigned as in a lottery. Treatment must 
be matched to the "needs" of the offender. 

Although psychologists, psychiatrists, social workers and other social service providers have long noted 
the need to identify and attend to offender needs, wide scale application of needs assessment in the criminal 
justice system is only a recent phenomenon. Early applications, such as the Megargee MMPI classification 
system, Quay's AIMS and the I-level system attempted to classify offenders into groups assumed to differ 
in their treatment needs and therefore requiring different types of intervention. Studies of these classifi
cation systems showed some differentiation with respect to treatment responsiveness but evidence for 
their predictive validity was scant (Andrews & Bonta, 1993; Andrews, Bonta & Hoge, 1990). That is, 
they claimed to identify needs but whether or not they predicted criminal behaviour was unanswered. 

The psychological classification systems reflected a belief that needs assessments were somehow 
fundamentally different from risk assessments. They were like apples and oranges. Scholarly discussions 
of offender needs assessments rarely raised the question of risk prediction (Clements, 1986; Duffee & 
Duffee, 1981). This tradition is best mirrored in the most widely used offender classification system in 
the United States: the Wisconsin classification system (Baird, 1981 ). 

Wisconsin's classification system is composed of three parts: risk assessment, needs assessment, and 
client management classification (CMC). CMC involves its own assessment of offenders and a prescribed 
treatment strategy. The three parts operate relatively independently. The only overlap between the risk 
and needs scales is that the offender is assigned to supervision levels depending upon which scale he or 
she receives the highest score. In the published research with the Wisconsin classification instruments, 
information on predictive validity is available only for the risk scale. There is no information as to whether 
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the needs items and scale also predict future criminal behaviour. It seems as if nobody thought it was 
worth investigation - that needs assessment have little to do with criminal behaviour. 

Recent research has identified a category of needs referred to as "criminogenic" needs (Andrews et al., 
1990). Criminogenic needs are those needs that are linked to criminal behaviour. If we alter these needs, 
then we change the likelihood of criminal behaviour. Criminogenic needs are dynamic wk predictors. 
Perhaps the Wisconsin needs assessment is tapping criminogenic needs. If so, then use of the needs scale 
for treatment purposes would receive a added boost. 

We have recently completed a project that provides some insight into the Wisconsin needs scale (Bonta, 
Parkinson, Pang & Barkwell, 1993). The province of Manitoba adopted the Wisconsin risk-needs scales 
and implemented it across the province in 1982 for use in probation services. Our research using seven 
years of data on over 14,000 probationers found, as expected, that the risk scale predicted failure on 
probation (rs in the low .3 range). More importantly, we also examined the predictive validity of the needs 
scale. Although the magnitude of the relationship was not as large as with the risk scale (rs in the .2 range), 
the combined scores of the needs assessment did predict failure on probation. That is, the needs assessment 
of the Wisconsin classification system showed predictive validity. 

To our knowledge, there are only two offender classification instruments intentionally designed to 

• 
measure criminogenic needs: the Level of Supervision Inventory or LSI (Andrews & Bonta, 1993) 
presently used in the Province of Ontario and the Correctional Services of Canada's Community 
Risk/Needs Management Scale (Motiuk, 1993). In fact, the need items are integrated with the more 
traditional risk items to form one scale (an example of some of the items is shown in Table I). Furthermore, 
both scales are systematically re-administered to offenders in order to measure changes that may result 
from intervention. 

Table 1. Examples of items comprising risk-needs classification 

Level of Supervision Inventory 

Historical Risk Items: 

- prior convictions 

- violent offence 

Dynamic Need Items: 

- financial management 

- antisocial friends 

- alcohol/drug abuse 

Community Risk/Needs Management 

- criminal history 

- sex offence 

- marital/family relationships 

- living arrangement 

- attitude 
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Both offender assessment instruments have consistently shown that they can predict recidivism across a 
wide range of offenders (cf., Andrews & Bonta, 1993; Motiuk, 1993 ). Some of the subcomponents of the 
LSI that identify needs have also demonstrated predictive validity (Banta & Motiuk, 198S). Recently, the 
Correctional Services of Canada has embarked on an ambitious assessment project that has as a central 
feature a Case Needs Identification and Analysis protocol. That is, the identification of criminogenic needs 
is a central feature of offender classification in Canada's major correctional system .. 

A good example of the value placed on criminogenic needs in the LSI system is research measuring 
changes in LSI scores and future criminal behaviour. In a study by Andrews and Robinson (1984), 57 
probationers were assessed at intake and 12 months later. During this time period, some probationers 
decreased in risk level (as measured by the LSI), some increased, and some stayed the same. A 
post-probation follow-up of these probationers (minimum of six months) found that these changes were 
associated with criminal behaviour. That is, those who showed reductions in risk level also showed 
reductions in criminal behaviour. Those who increased in risk level showed increases in recidivism and 
those who did not change in LSI scores showed no change in future criminal behaviour (see Table 2). 

Table 2. Percent Recidivated by Changes in Risk Level (N) 

At Intake Low 
Very High 

High 

Mod 00 

Low 00 

Overall 00 

(19) 

(From Andrews & Robinson, 1984) 

At Reassessment 

Moderate Hi ~h 
so 

00 27 

33 40 

00 00 

10 32 

(10) ( 19) 

Yeo: Hi"h 

100 

100 

(9) 

Overall 
75 (4) 

41 (22) 

27 (11) 

05 (20) 

28 

(57) 

The importance of criminogenic needs or dynamic risk factors lies in the fact that they may serve as targets 
for correctional intervention. They are the treatment goals for staff who counsel offenders, run treatment 
programs and who, in general, attempt to reduce the · risk of future criminal behaviour. Thus, third 
generation offender assessments are inextricably linked to rehabilitation efforts. These assessments are 
not only concerned about such questions as to who should be paroled or how closely to monitor the 
offender but also what must be changed about the offender or the offender's situation to minimize the risk 
for re-off ending. 

One note of caution: do not abandon risk assessments. Risk assessments are important from a treatment 
perspective in assigning intensive intervention programming to higher risk offenders and minimal 
interventions to low risk offenders. This matching of risk level to treatment services appears to be an 
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important factor in reducing recidivism (Andrews et al., 1990). However, once risk level is assessed and 
decision is made as to how much treatment to provide, the assessment of criminogenic needs tells us 

mla1 needs to be changed. 

In summary, third generation assessments recognize types of offender needs that are related to criminal 
behaviour. In this regard criminogenic needs are also risk predictors, but they are dynamic risk predictors. 

What is Effective Rehabj)jtation? 

I will not review in detail the major characteristics of effective correctional rehabilitation programming. 
I leave that review to the papers by Paul Gendreau and Ted Palmer. However, I also cannot simply stop 
because the "assessment" function of the correctional process is complete. As noted in the previous 
paragraph, risk-needs assessment is directly linked to correctional treatment. For this reason, a few further 
comments need to be voiced. 

Correctional rehabilitation can be defined as an intervention which reduces recidivism. Criminogenic 
needs are the intermediary links to recidivism. For the correctional interventionist, programs that target 
criminogenic needs form one of the basic approaches to reducing crime ( other factors such as risk and 

•
responsivity are also important and discussed in more detail in Andrews & Bonta, 1993~ Andrews et al., 
1990). In other words, if criminogenic needs are not targeted then reductions in recidivism are unlikely . 

Evidence for the importance of targeting criminogenic needs for effective rehabilitation have been 
documented by meta-analyses of the rehabilitation literature (Andrews, Zinger et al ., 1990, Gendreau, 
this volume). I will not comment on this literature. However, what I do wish to emphasize is the general 
failure of criminal sanctioning to reduce recidivism (see Gendreau, 1993). The main reason for this failure 
is, quite simply, sanctions do not target criminogenic needs. Offenders are not classified as to their 
criminogenic needs and then assigned to different sanctions based on their needs. Can electronic 
monitoring programs, boot camps, intensive supervision programs really change the substance abuse of 
some offenders or their antisocial attitudes, etc? Beyond some general selection parameters (usually 
involving low risk offenders) how specific are the assignments? Not very. 

Conclusions and FuturePicectjons 

Students of history like to say that the pendulum always swings back. It appears that we are returning to 
the rehabilitation days that were predominant in the 1960s and 1970s. It is no longer embarrassing to say 
the word "treatment" in public; interest in delivering rehabilitation programs, especially from front-line 
workers is on the rise. However, are we simply witnessing history repeating itself? Twenty years from 
now will the pendulum swing back to punishment? 
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If this emerging pro-rehabilitation climate is to be more than a blip on history's radar screen, then 
researchers, practitioners, and policy-makers must capitalize on the present climate by abandoning old 
models of criminal behaviour and embracing new approaches that are empirically-based. I emphasize 
"empirically-based"' because the field of criminology has been notoriously anti-empirical (Andrews & 
Bonta, 1993). Research that failed to support favoured theories on the causes of criminal behaviour has 
been ignored while weak evidence that supported traditional theory was promoted. With such disrespect 
for evidence, is it little wonder that many past assessment and rehabilitation methodologies showed weak 
effects? 

In order to build upon the present research, I would recommend the following steps: 

I) Administer to offenders the best validated risk-needs assessment instruments. As we approach 
the 21st cenrury it is becoming incomprehensible that so many jurisdictions still depend almost 
entirely on "professional judgement" to guide them with decisions affecting individual liberties. 

2) Some agencies already may use well-validated risk instruments. These assessments may be 
quite appropriate for release and supervision decisions but they can also be helpful for planning 
interventions that reduce risk. Match the intensity of services to the risk level of the offender. 

3) The "needs" in risk-needs assessments must include crimioo~enjc needs. One of the major goals 
of corrections is to protect the public. In the short-term, this is accomplished through intensive 
monitoring and restrictions of liberty. However. in the long-term we can reach this goal by reducing 
the risk for recidivism through treatment. Effective treatment depends upon targeting those needs 
of offenders that are related to their offending behaviour and the assessment of those needs in a 
systematic and objective manner is highly desired. 

4) Monitor changes in the offender and his/her situation by conducting re-assessments of their 
criminogenic needs. This serves two purposes. First. re-assessments assist the correctional agency 
in protecting the public by alerting the agency to changes in the offender's situation that may signal 
increased risk and a responsibility to intervene. Second, re-assessments facilitate evaluations of 
the agency's effectiveness. For example. demonstrable reductions in criminogenic needs at 
re-assessment indicate that something is going right. 

5) Following from the fourth point. once we attend to measuring changes in offenders we are 
naturally led to inquiring into the practises that bring change. If we see reduced risk in our clients 
(or increased risk), then we ask what is it exactly that we are doing to produce such changes? The 
answer to this question is important in a time of fiscal restraint for choosing which rehabilitation 
programs to keep and which to discard. Even if we see no changes in our offender clientele we 
are further ahead for the alternative is to continue what we are doing in blissful and misleading 
ignorance. 

6) In this paper I have emphasized the assessment of risk and criminogenic needs. There is a third 
aspect of assessment that is not as well understood but may play an important role in maximizing 
the effectiveness of a treatment program. This third aspect is what we refer to as "responsivity" 
(Andrews et al., 1990). Individuals differ not only in risk and needs but also in responsiveness to 
various therapists and treatment modalities. An agency may deal with high risk offenders with the 
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same criminogenic needs but within that group of offenders there are individuals differing along 
such dimensions as anxiety, intelligence, self-esteem, etc. These factors affect how well the client 
responds to the style and modes of therapy and necessitates a matching of client characteristics 
with treatment. For example, withdrawn and shy clients may respond best when treatment is given
on an individual basis while extroverted, self-confident clients may respond well to group 
treatment. The assessment of possible "responsivity" factors can guide these decisions (perhaps 
the fourth generation assessment?). 

All of the previous six points are held together a healthy respect for evidence. Continue asking yourselves 
if research supports your assessment methodology and intervention practices. Assessing risk, needs and 
responsivity must be rooted in research. Invoking re-assessments and investigating the practises that 
promote offender change is truly research in action. It is also research that has tremendous practical 
significance since it carries correctional agencies beyond the control of offenders in the immediate 
situation to reducing risk beyond the judicially mandated period. 
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ADMISSION TO CASELOAD 
NORTH DAKOTA PAROLE AND PROBATION DEPARTMENT 
SFN 13374 Page 1 (3-95) 

nder ' s Name: Last First Ml Offender ' s SID Number Offender ' s Soc. Sec. No. Officer's No./Radio No . 

The following information must be used to open up a case and then placed in the offender's case 
file: 

( 1) Admission to Caseload 
(2) Criminal Judgment/Court Order 
(3) Appendix A (If not included in Criminal Judgment) 
(4) Criminal Information or Criminal Complaint (Class A Misdemeanors) 
(5) Copy of North Dakota B.C.I. Criminal Rap Sheet and Drivers License Rap Sheet 
(6) Case Supervision Plan 

H - EMPLOYMENT 

1 Unemployed and Not Looking 
2 Unemployed and Looking 
3 Full-time (35 hrs/week and overl 
4 Full-time but Seasonal 
5 Part-time 
6 Not Employable 

A - RACE/ETHNICITY 7 Student 

1 White 
8 Homemaker 

A 2 Black 
9 Retired 

3 American Indian I - JOB CLASSIFICATION 
4 Asian 
5 Hispanic 1 Professional. Technical, Managerial 

2 Clerical, Sales or Service 

B-SEX 
3 Farming 
4 Skilled Trade 

B 1 Male 5 Unskilled Labor 
2 Female 6 Student/Homemaker 

7 Not Employable 
C - MARITAL STATUS 

C 1 Single J - LAST GRADE COMPLETED 
2 Married 1-12 (Enter Specific Numberl 
3 Divorced or Separated 
4 Widowed 13 High School Graduate 

14 Some College 
15 College Graduate 

D - NUMBER OF DEPENDENTS 16 Some Graduate Work 
D 17 Graduate Degree 

18 GED or HED 
E - LIVING ARRANGEMENTS 19 Technical or Vocational School 

1 Alone 
2 With Spouse Only K - CURRENTLY ON PUBLIC ASSISTANCE 
3 With Child(renl and Spouse 1 Yes 

E 4 With Child(renl Only 2 No 
5 With Parent(sl 
6 With Sibling(sl L - Number of Prior Adult Misdemeanor 
7 With Friendlsl Convictions 
8 Non-legal Alliance 
9 Correctional Facility M - Number of Prior Adult Felony Convictions 10 Other 

F -VETERAN 
N - Number of Previous Adult Probations 

F 1 Yes 
2 No 

G - GROSS MONTHLY INCOME 0 - Number of Times Previously Released on 

G 1 None Parole 
2 $1-$499 
3 $500-$999 P - Number of Prior Incarcerations in a Federal or 
4 $ 1 ,000-$ 1 .499 
5 $ 1 ,500-$ 1,999 State Institution 
6 $2,000 or more 

H 

J 

K 

L 

M 

N 

0 

p 
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ATI'ACHMENT #8 

HOUSE APPROPRIATIONS 
Human Resources Division 

Representative Ken D. Svedjan, Chairman 
JANUARY 13, 1999 

TRACY STEIN, PROGRAM MANAGER 
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

FIELD SERVICES DIVISION 
TESTIMONY IN SUPPORT OF HB 1016 

Community Placement Program (CPP): 

This program was designed to identify offenders that are sentenced to a 
Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation (DOCR) Facility for potential placement in 
the community. The offenders qualifying for this program are assessed at the time of 
their entry into a DOCR Facility, as lower risk offenders. They must have 1 year or less 
sentence or 1 year or less of a sentence to serve. Most of these offenders are identified by 
the Field Service Release Team, as potential candidates for the CPP within about three to 
four weeks after their entry into a DOCR Facility. Others are identified once they have 
reached the 1 year sentence left to serve of incarceration. 

The Release Team accumulates file material that includes legal documents, 
chemical drug evaluation/treatment, medical information, and cell house behavior. They 
also meet with the offenders for information as to any residential/work plan they may 
have. In some cases, half-way houses and county jails are used once the placement 
occurs to accomplish offender treatment needs and/or work release. 

Once the material is compiled, an offender packet is sent to the Field Service 
Office in that location for an investigation. Once the investigation is returned to Tracy 
Stein, Elaine Little gives final approval for release of the offender to the plan. If the 
offender is placed into a residential home confinement, the supervising officer may use 
curfews or electronic monitoring as tools to supervise the offender. 

At the present time, DOCR has about 15 to 20 offenders on CPP in North Dakota. 

Revocation Center or Revocation Treatment Program {RTP): 

This program is new, in fact, on Thursday, January 14, 1999 we are moving about 
18 offenders to the TRP located at the Stutsman County Corrections Center (SCCC) in 
Jamestown, ND. In March 1999, we plan on housing 30 offenders in the RTP. 

The program is a contractual effort between ND DOCR Field Services, ND State 
Hospital and SCCC. The State Hospital will provide the treatment, component and 



i. 
I 

Stutsman County provides the building for custody, along with offender cell house case 
management. 

The ND DOCR Release Team identifies offenders for this program that are 
sentenced to a DOCR Facility. The offenders will be identified within three to four 
weeks after their arrival at the DOCR Facility; just prior to classification. 

Those that qualify will be first time revocated probationers. They will likely have 
violated their probation supervision due to technical violations, such as; continued 
alcohol/drug use, failure to report to the Parole Officer. Some may have minor 
misdemeanor convictions, such as; possession of Drug Paraphernalia, Disorderly 
Conduct, etc; 

These off enders would be placed into the R TP for up to 60 days. In that 60 days, 
the offenders participate in up to 30 plus hours of treatment programming which involves 
chemical programming, cognitive restructuring, and other self-help programs. 

If the offender completes the program successfully; prior to their release, the 
Release Team will attempt to reinstate the offender into the community by asking the 
Sentencing Court to return the offender onto probation supervision, ask the Parole Board 
to parole him/her, or place the offender on the CPP program with Elaine Little's 
approval. 

Field Sanctions Program: 

At the present time, officer's in the field use sanctions, prior to the revocation of 
an offender's parole or probation supervision. Sanctions are used instead of full 
revocation in front of the District Judge. The decision to use a sanction is determined by 
the severity of the behavior and the type of violation. The supervising officer and his/her 
supervisor makes a determination as to what type of sanction will occur. 

The offender may have committed a technical violation such as using alcohol or 
drugs by violating their conditions of supervision. With the sanction, the officer and 
offender agree to modify the offender's supervision, which may include chemical 
programming or curfew restrictions and other conditions. An option the supervising 
officer and supervisor would have at the time of the implementation of the sanction is 
placement within the RTP, half-way houses and county jails. The supervising officer, 
with the approval of the supervisor would contact the Release Team for appropriate 
placement of the offender in those facilities. Final approval of the sanction would have to 
be order by the District Court or Parole Board depending on the type of supervision the 
offender was on. 

H:\CPP\HB IO 16.DOC 
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TRACY G. STEIN 
RELEASE TEAM PROGRAM COORDINATOR 

ND DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS, FIELD SERVICES DIVISION 
~AROLEANDPROBATION) 

Mr. Steins current role with the Division of Field Services is involved with coordinating 
offender placement into various community release programs and personnel duties within 
the Department of Corrections (DOCR). These programs involve the Community 
Placement Program (CPP) and the Revocation Treatment Center (RTP) located at the 
Stutsman county Correction Center, Jamestown, ND. 

One of his previous duties with the Field Service Division, from 1994 to 1998, involved 
completing sentencing report investigations for the ND Parole Board and Pardon 
Advisory Board along with coordinating the functions of the those Boards. 

From 1991 to 1994 Mr. Stein was a Regional Supervisor with the Bismarck Field Service 
Office supervising 10 to 11 staff. Tasks involved the daily supervision of field staff on 
job functions along with interaction with the District Courts and Parole Board. 

Prior to 1991 Mr. Stein was a parole officer in Williston and Bismarck, ND. His 
employment started with NDDOCR in July 1981. 

Mr. Stein has attended many various training seminars throughout his career. Some of 
the training has included Management and Personnel schools with the National Institute 
of Corrections in Longmont, CO. He is a certified peace officer in ND. He attended the 
Law Enforcement Training Academy in Bismarck, ND from January through March 
1982. 

Mr. Stein attended NDSU from 1976 to 1981 and attained a BS degree in Sociology, 
Criminal Justice Emphasis with a Minor in Business Management. He has lived in 
Mandan, ND since 1983. Mr. Stein is originally from Forman, ND (Sargent Co.) were 
family members currently reside with some family members involved with fanning and 
in the teaching fields . 



• 

EDUCATION: 

RICHARD M. HOEKSTRA 
RELEASE TEAM SUPERVISOR 

DIVISION OF ADULT FIELD SERVICES 

Effective Interventions with High Risk Offenders, National Institute of 
Corrections; Longmont, CO. 36 hours completed March 15, 1996. 
Cognitive Restructuring, National Institute of Corrections; 
Longmont, CO. 36 hours completed November 18, 1994. 
Correctional Leadership Development, National Institute of 
Corrections; Longmont, CO. 82 hours completed February 14, 1992. 
Train the Trainers, National Institute of Corrections, 36 hours completed 
May 24, 1991. 
Bachelor of Arts Degree: Major, Criminal Justice; Minor, Sociology. 
Moorhead State University, Moorhead, MN. Graduated May 23, 1980. 

Mr. Hoekstra is a 1984 graduate of the North Dakota Law 
Enforcement Academy. He has also been a Certified Law Enforcement 
Instructor since April, 1992. Since February 1991 he has been 
responsible for North Dakota's development and implementation of 
such alternative corrections programs as electronic monitoring, 
on-site drug testing, the Intensive Supervision Program to manage 
high risk offenders, and community confinement of inmates. In 
1991, 1992, 1994, and 1996 the National Institute of Corrections 
Academy selected Mr. Hoekstra to attend specialized training as 
stated above. 

Mr. Hoekstra has worked closely with others developing and 
managing many of the Di vision's contracts and grants enhancing 
community corrections in North Dakota. His current assignment as 
Supervisor is with the Community Confinement Program and 
Revocation Center Program. 

Mr. Hoekstra began his career in juvenile group home care at the 
Dakota Boys Ranch in Minot and Charles Hall Youth Services in 
Bismarck between 1980 through 1983. In September 1983, Mr. 
Hoekstra began work in Adult Corrections in Williston as a State 
Parole/Probation Officer. As a Federal Probation/Pretrial Service 
Officer from November 1985 through December, 1990, Mr. Hoekstra 
served northeastern North Dakota, including the Turtle Mountain 
and Spirit Lake Reservations, the U.S./Canadian border, and North 
Dakota in Devils Lake and Grand Forks. 



ATI'ACHMENT J.10 

ND FIELD SERVICES DIVISION, 97-99 AND 99-01 EXECUTIVE BUDGET RECOMMENDATIONS 12/21/98 -
I - -

I I 

' 
PROGRAM - GENERAL FUNDS l 

I 

I 
Increase 

I i I 

197-99 over ' 
:Biennial 

I I ' 
!99-01 Biennial present 97t8udget 

General ,General Fund 99 !Change ' 
! 

Fund Recommendation biennium Reason : 
- .. • · --

297,935 : 
-·- -- -·· -

VICTIM SERVICES 313,311j 15,3761 ; --· 
I 

--·· - ·-
8,252 I Continue Program 
7. 124 . Gov. Salary /Benefit Increase . I 

.. - ·-----· -- ---- - --
; 

IOSP ' 316,991 i 701 ,115 384,124 1 I 
' -

! 93,556 1Continue Program 
-· -··--

30,691 'Gov. Salary/Benefit Increase 
·-·- - -- --- --- ---

18,244 ! Crime Victim Coordinator ---- - --- - · ·-
241,633 !Release Team 

---------
' i 
' ----- -

COSP 4,866,832 8,476,234 : 3,609,402 ' 
-- ---- -- --------

118,525 ! Continue Program 
- -- -------·-·--

239,746 1 Gov. Salary/Benefit Increase _ .: ______ 
------· - -

2,149,800 1Alternative to Incarceration 
-- - - - - ----

• 402,375 l Low Risk Supervision 
-

211,375 i3 new PO II 
' ---· -
I 202,735 !Admin Secretaries 

- ----
658,709 i Revocation Center 

--· · 

I -136, 919 ! Converted to Special 
- --- -- --

i -324,622 ; Eliminated Community Service 
--- -- -------- ·----

87,678 \LAC Fargo 
. .. ··•·- ·----- ·----- ---

-·- --- ----- - -- ------ .... - ------- ··· - ·· .. - . ---- - - --

- - -----·--- ---- ----- ----- -·----- - - ..... --
Total Field Services 5,481,758 9,490,660 : 4,008,902 : __________ , __ 

.. --- - ····- · •· ·· ·- ·· . - · - --



• PROGRAM - SPECIAL FUNDS -- ---------·-

·increase 
97-99 ,over 

1Biennial l 99-01 Biennial i present 97 t Budget i ! 

:Special :special Fund 199 IChange I 

iFund · Recommendation biennium Reason I 
VICTIM SERVICES I 348,964 389,239 40,275 I I 

I 

i 40,275 Off Set Federal eve apparent decrease 
I I I i 

- - I I I 

' ; I 
I i I --- -- -

IOSP 5,000 51,000 ! 46,000 
•· -- -- -·--··- ---

6,600 :Continue Program 
-··- --

39,400 1Additional work at JRCC 
- . ·---

' i ! 
I 

I 

COSP 446,036 819,026 ! 372,990 ! I 
I 25,975 Continue Program 

I i 
147,0151Convert to Special Funds ' 

·· -· 
i 200,000 I Overcrowding 
! ' --

--- ·---·---- ---
Total Field Services 800,000 ' 1,259,265 459,265 

-· ---
- - ---

1- - - --

PROGRAM-FEDERAL FUNDS I -
11ncrease I I 

97-99 ·over : 
I 

I 

I present 97 tBudget 
i 

iBiennial i 99-01 Biennial I i I 
! ; 

iFederal ! Federal Fund 199 Change i 
'Fund : Recommendation I biennium iReason i : 

- ---
VICTIM SERVICES 2,457,500 ' 1,908,000; -549,500 ! : 
--- --

-549,500 1 Federal apparent decrease 
-· ----- ------·--··-· - -

I 

. - - - -
I 

.. ------ · . 
IOSP 0 76,220 ! 76,220 ' 

- -- --
3,243 , Gov. Salary/Benefit Increase 

-- -
72,977 'Crime Victim VOCA Grant 

- - - ---
- --- I 

! --- --
: 

COSP 851,631 ; 734,400 ! -117,231 i 
---· 

-10 ,096 Converted to Special Funds __ ___ 
·· - - -- -- . 

-117 ,231 -82,390 Loss of COPS Grant_ _ ___________ -- ·-__ -- --
-309,367 . Edward Bryne Loss 

---
-75 ,378 . Loss of Community Service Edward Bryne 

- - - . -- ·-
360,ooo : Edward Bryne Funds 99-01 

Total Field Services 3,309,131 - 2,718,620 1 -590,511 • 



I I ! I 

i I 
; 

PROGRAM - TOTAL AUTHORITY ! i i 

t I Increase i I 

! I I ! 
over 

197-99 199-01 Biennial present 97f 
!Biennial Budget 99 I 

I 
:Budget I Recommendation biennium I i 

I 

VICTIM SERVICES / 3,104,3991 2,610,550 -493,849 1 i i 
i 
' 

IOSP I 321,991 i 828,335, 506,344 i 
COSP : 6, 164,4991 10,029,660 3,865,161 I ' I 

Total Field Services 9,590,889 I 13,468,545 3,877,656 ! I 

• 



ATI'ACHMENT # 11 

Wyoming Parole & Probation Montana Community Corrections 
Jerry Pieper - 307-777-7470 Becky Buska • 406-444-69-19 

7/1/98 to 7/1/97 to 7/1/99 to 
B1enn1al Budget 6/30/00 FTE Biennial Budget 6/30/99 FTE 6/30/01 FTE 
Total 17,415,534 123 Total 30,424,415 183.0 41,371 ,190 228.0 
General 17,415,534 General 30,424,-115 41,342,390 
Federal 0 Federal 0 0 
Special 0 Special 0 28,800 

7/1/98 to 7/1/97 to 7/1/99 to 
Program 6/30/00 FTE Program 6/30/99 FTE 6/30/01 FTE 

AdminfTradit1onal P & P 7,964,892 101 Pardon Board 580,889 6.0 623,067 8.0 
Four 1/2 Way Houses 6,159,270 1 Pre-Release 12,453,350 0.0 18,581,430 0.0 
County Jail Sentences 820.000 0 Admin 1,332.963 8.0 1,508,733 8.0 

ISP 2,471 ,372 21 Boot Camp 2,244,126 25.5 2,593,710 25.5 
Total by Program 17,415,534 123 Parole/Probation 13,813.087 143.5 18,064,250 186.5 

Total 30.424,415 183.0 41,371 ,190 228.0 

Montana Parole & 
Wyoming Parole & Probation Probation Count 
Count as of 6/30/98 6,797 as of 6/30/98 5,729 

• South Dakota Probation South Dakota Parole 
Jack Ellenbecker• 605-773-4873 Richard Decker - 605-773-3478 

Annual Fisca l Budgets FTE Annual Fiscal Budgets FTE 
FY 99 3,969,925 100.2 FY99 1,614,932 37 

General 3,969.925 General 1,614,932 

Federal 0 Federal 0 
Special 0 Special 0 

FY 00 • Does not 
include Gov 

F Y 00 • Does not ,ncluOe Gov compensation 
compensation package 4,088,206 103.2 Package 1,672,316 39 

General 4,088,206 General 1,672,316 

Federal 0 Federal 0 

Special 0 Special 0 

South Dakota 

South Dakota Probation Count Parole Count as 
as of 6/30/98 3,380 of 6/30/98 953 



NO Field Services Division 

Charles Placek - 701 -328-6198 

7/1/97 to 7/1/99 to 

Biennial Budget 6/30/99 FTE 6/30/01 FTE 

Total 9,590,889 55.25 13,468,545 69.75 

General 5,481,758 9,490,660 

Federal 3,309,131 2,718,620 

Special 800 ,000 1,259,265 

7/1/97 to 7/1/99 to 

Program 6/30/99 FTE 6/30/01 FTE 
Victim Services 3,104,399 1.50 2,610,550 1.50 

1nst1tut1onal Otfedner Services 321,991 4.05 828,335 8.05 

Community Offender Services 6,164,499 49.70 10,029,660 60.20 
Total 9,590,889 55.25 13,468,545 69.75 

North Dakota Parole & 
Probation Count as of 6/30/98 3,160 



CRIME VICTIM SPECIALIST 
Paul J. Coughlin 

DIRECTOR 
Warren R. Emmer 
701-328-61 93 701-328-61 95 

1-800-445-2322 

CRIME VICTIM COORDINATOR 
PROGRAM MANAGER/ 
INTERSTATE COMPACT 
COORDINATOR 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

Field Services Division 
P.O. Box 5521 

Bismarck, North Dakota 58506-5521 
701-328-6190 

Fax 701-328-6651 

Elaine Little 
Director DOCR 

Charles R. Placek 
Program Manager 

February 10, 1999 

eve Questions 

Charles II. Placek 
701 -328-6 I 98 

I understand that the House Appropriation sub committee asked the following questions 
regarding my response to their earlier questions on eve expenditures: 

1. How do we determine the percentage of payment of the presented bill? 
Following the 93 -95 biennium the Division implemented a procedure to only pay 80% of 
the presented bill. That procedure was implemented following a review of payment 
practices of other 3rd party medical bill payers. We have asked our medical vendors to 
accept 80% payment for presented medical bills for North Dakota Crime Victims. 

2. How is the funding source for eve expenditures computed? 
The information provided in my January 20, 1999 response showed expenditures but I 
failed to show the actual budgeted amount. The budgeted amount for eve expenses has 
remained constant at 426,403 for the 95 - 97, 97 - 99, 99 - 01 biennium. 

GENERAL FUNDING FOR THE CRIME VICTIM PROGRAM includes Admin , VOCA, eve, CVA 

Biennium Actual Only eve 99 - 01 
93 - 95 638,544 Total 426,403 
95 - 97 348,204 General 129,164 

Federal 108,000 
Biennium Budgeted Special 189,239 
97 - 99 297,935 
99 - 01 306,187 



House Appropriations 
Human Resources Division 

Representative Ken D. Svedjan, Chairman 
January 13, 1999 

Richard M. Hoekstra, Supervisor 
Field Services Division 

701-328-6144 
Testimony in Support of HB 1016 

I am a Supervisor for the Division of Field Services in the Release Team 
Program. My duties include the further develop of the Division's Cognitive Approach. 
Most of this work will initially involve the Revocation Center Program and the offender's 
return to their community. 

The concepts and theory surrounding the Cognitive Restructuring model initially 
can create questions. I will be brief in this testimony but will be available to respond to 
questions today or in the future concerning Cognitive Restructuring Programs in the 
Division. 

Attached are 3 items to summarize an approach to manage risk and offenders to be most 
effective: 

• The Power of Choice 
• The Steps of Cognitive Self Change 
• Risk management Strategies 

I am excited about our future in Community Corrections. This approach will help 
all of us concerned about crime, punishment, and public safety move closer toward our 
goals. 



The process of Cognitive Self Change / Cognitive Restructuring does not, in any 
manner, attempt to force an offender to change. The process does, however, require 
an off ender to fully participate in the techniques, exercises and/or assignments 
established by the individual program expectations. In short, the client does not have 
to prove that heishe has "changed," but they do have to demonstrate the following 
basic Cognitive Self Change Skills: 

.,, The ability to practice objective self-observation 

.,, Ownership of Crime, other offending behaviors 

.,, Clear identification of Risk Thinking & Risk Cognitive structures 

.,, Fully understanding of the relationship between risk cognition and Criminal, 
Antisocial or harmful behaviors 
.,, Ability to create realistic, meaningful cognitive interventions that reduce risk 
.,, Demonstrate an ability to practice interventions in role plays and "real life" situations 
.,, Ability to work collaboratively with Correctional staff by maintaining an open channel 
of communication that includes the reporting of risk openly and honestly 

The motivation to change can only come from the offender. The process of Cognitive 
Self Change I Cognitive Restructuring has the client see themselves for what and who 
they are, in total detail, without distortion, in full reality. It requires the client to look at 
how the see and do the world, what effect that has on their behavior, their lives and the 
lives of others. Staff are needed to guide off enders through the process of self 
discovery and challenge them to choose - stay the same, continue to operate as you 
always have or change your life- YOU CHOOSE. 

The process of seH change can be explained this way: 

We don't lead the horse to water ...... 

We don't tell the horse where the water is ....... 

We work on developing a thirst in the horse. 

Change only comes through choice; choice only is made when one sees the need -
motivation only comes from seeing the need and having the choice. Challenge every 
step of the way, but avoid coercion. Coercion can bring compliance, but compliance is 
not real, lasting self-change. 

Brian M. Bilodeau 



STEPS OF COGNITIVE SELF CHANGE 

1) SEE THE BEHAVIOR -

2) OBSERVE THE THINKING/FEELINGS ASSOCIATED 
WITH THE BEHAVIOR 

3) IDENTIFY THE RISK THINKING 

4) UNCOVER UNDERLYING COGNITION: ATTITUDES, 
BELIEFS & MINDSETS 

5) SEE THE SCOPE AND CONSEQUENCES OF THE 
THINKING 

6) DEVELOP INTERVENTIONS: ALTERNATIVE 
THINKING 

7) APPLY NEW THINKING: PRACTICE SELF RISK 
MANAGEMENT 
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Risk Management Strategies 

* Incapacitation / 
Incarceration 
* Direct Contact 
* Supervision of Conditions 
* Electronic Monitoring 
* Drug Testing/Screening 
* Restraints 
* Setting Limits / conditions 
* Graduated Sanctions 

Risk Control 

Short Term 
Control 

* Treatment Programs 
* Cooperation/ Collaboration 
* Challenge Choice 
* Ownership I Responsibility 
* Teaching & supporting Self 
Risk Management 
* Cog Skills / Cog 
Restructuring 
* Setting Limits Clearly 

Risk 
Reduction 

l 
Long Term 
Change 
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DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 
AND REHABILITATION 

PRISONS DIVISION 
3303 East Main Street, Bismarck, ND 58501 

Mailing Address: P.O. Box 5521 
Bismarck, ND 58506-5521 

Tim Schuetzle, Director 
Prisons Division 

HOUSE BILL NO. 1016 
TESTIMONY to FULL HOUSE APPROPRIATIONS COMMITTEE 

JANUARY 7, 1998 

The Prisons Division consists of the three secure facilities, the North Dakota 
State Penitentiary and Missouri River Correctional Center in Bismarck, and the 
James River Correctional Center in Jamestown. As Elaine mentioned, 75% of 
the 20 million-dollar increase to the Department of Corrections budget will go to 
this division. She has touched on some of the major reasons for this increase, 
and I would like to expand a little further. 

I. COSTS TO BOARD INMATES OUTSIDE THE SYSTEM - $4,085,300 (GF) 
We expect to have 1,000 inmates in our system at the start of the new biennium, 
and, if our growth remains at the same 15% rate as the past three years, we 
should add 150 inmates by July 1, 2000. Our projections conservatively drop to a 
10% growth rate during the second year, ending the biennium with a total count 
of 1265 inmates. Since we currently only have beds for 861 inmates in the 
system, we will need funding to contract bed space with county jails or private 
prisons. The chart on the last page illustrates this cost for contracting, based on 
a $55.00/day rate for the first year, and a $60.00/day rate the second year. We 
have included in this illustration the additional 110 beds to our system in May of 
2000 when we project the JRCC 5th and 6th floors will be completed. 

The boarding costs come to $8,912,425. We believe, however, that we can save 
about 115 beds per day through the proposed alternatives to incarceration 
measures such as community placement and the revocation center. If these 
programs are successful, it will mean a reduction of $4,827,125 dollars to our 
total contracting costs. Because of this proposed savings, the total increase 
requested to board inmates is $4,085,300 ($8,912,425 - $4,827,125). 

II. FUNDING JRCC SALARIES and OPERATING for 24 MONTHS - $3,241,124 
(GF). 
Because of the construction time schedule, the new prison at Jamestown was 
only operational for 13 months of the biennium. Now that there will be inmates 
and staff on board for the full 24 months, the amount needed for both salaries 
and operating expenses will increase. 

) State Pen itent iary James River Correctional Center 
PO Box 300 1 

Missouri River Correctional Center 
POBox552 1 

Rough Rider Industries 
PO Box 5521 Box 552 1 

Bi smarck, ND 58506-5521 
Phone: 70 1-328-6100 
Fax: 701-328-6640 

Jamestown, ND 58402-3001 
Phone: 70 1-253-3660 
Fax: 701 -253-3666 

Bi smarck, ND 58506-552 1 
Phone: 701-3 28-9696 
Fax: 701-328-9690 

Bismarck, ND 58506-552 1 
Phone: 701-328-6161 
Fax: 70 1-328-6 164 

TDD 1-800-366-6888 
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Ill. STAFFING INCREASES 

1) JRCC 5th and 6th Floor - $732,233 (GF) 
There are 41 new full time employees requested in this budget, 29 of them at the 
JRCC. The renovation of the 5th and 6th floors will require 20 new staff to 
supervise the additional 110 inmates that will be housed there. We expect this 
renovation will give us beds for an additional 80 inmates on the 5th floor, and 30 
inmates on the smaller 6th floor area, bringing the total usable beds at the JRCC 
to 350. The twenty positions will allow us to have two officers per floor per 
daytime shift, one officer per floor during the night shift, and a case manager on 
each floor, eight hours per day, 5 days per week. The positions requested will 
begin around April 1, 2000, or for 15 months of the biennium. 

2) New staff requests for NDSP, JRCC, and MRCC - $1,239,519 (GF) 
When the decision to construct the JRCC was made, the staffing plan was fairly 
conservative. Now that we have been operating at full capacity for 7 months, 
we've discovered a few areas that need additional supervision. There are 6 more 
Correctional Officer ll's, an Account Technician, and 2 Addiction Counselors in 
this budget. We did not adequately fund work and educational programs during 
the first year of operation, and, because of that, we have a problem with too little 
activities to keep the inmates productive during the day. Four of the new officers 
will help by supervising general work crews, and the 2 Addiction Counselors will 
keep up to 30 inmates busy while undergoing therapy. We need the other two 
officers as support for covering the entrance gate. The officers assigned to that 
post are responsible for perimeter security, and to inspect every vehicle and 
person entering the facility to prevent the introduction of contraband. Our initial 
staffing plan only called for one officer at that post, 8 hours per day. We have 
found that the numbers of staff, visitors, and deliveries into the facility each day 
require that this post be staffed 16 hours daily. 

There are 5 Correctional Officer ll's added to the MRCC staff that will be 
responsible to transport MRCC inmates to offsite work and treatment programs 
and medical appointments. We had been using inmate drivers in the past, but 
our concerns for public safety, contraband smuggling, and accident liability 
forced us to start using staff drivers. We have staffed this post for the last 9 
months by using overtime and filling in with the driver assigned to the prison, as 
time allows. 

The remaining 7 new positions will go to the penitentiary. There are 3 
Correctional Officer ti 's to staff our front entrance 16 hours per day, screening 
visitors, property, and new arrivals. The increase in our population has placed a 
great strain on the medical department. Two Registered Nurses have been 
added to staff to help with the intake screening for new inmate arrivals and 
transfers, increased numbers at doctor and dentist calls, and to provide 
coverage during the night shift. We are also having difficulty providing chemical 
dependency assessments on all the new arrivals, and subsequently meeting 
their treatment needs once in the system. A new Addiction Counselor position is 
needed to keep up with the demand. Finally, we have been operating with 5 case 
managers for 6 housing units, but as we have filled up and begun transferring 



inmates to other facilities and jails, we have discovered it is not possible for 
these managers to successfully manage their workloads. A new Case Manager 
for the third floor unit will solve this problem. 

IV. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS - $1,191,739 (GF) 

1) JRCC 5th and 6th floor renovation- $584,469; Operating - $721,600 (GF) 
Remodeling the top two floors of the ET building will allow us to house 110 
more inmates, at a cost of $2,678,000. Approximately 2.1 million of the costs 
will be funded with federal "crime bill" dollars, leaving $584,469 in general 
fund matching money to complete the project. We estimate renovation to be 
completed in time for us to move the inmates into the building by May 1, 
2000. 

Considering the population projections you've just heard, and the availability 
of the federal funds for prison construction, this project makes economic 
sense for the North Dakota taxpayers. It would cost $2,718,650 to rent space 
at a private prison for 110 inmates during the last 14 months of the biennium 
[110 inmates X ($55.00/day X 61days) + ($60.00/day X 365 days)]. We 
project the salaries ($752,233) and operating expenses ($721,600) for us to 
operate these floors to be $1,453,833 during this time frame. Even if you 
include the $584,469 general fund match for the construction costs, we 
would still save about $700,000 by completing the project and keeping these 
inmates in state, versus the private contracting option. 

2) Security Fence and Man-barrier for NDSP - $198,000 (GF} 
Money was included in the 97-99 biennium to add fencing and electronic 
detection devices on the north perimeter of the penitentiary, but due to 
unexpected costs for the JRCC completion, that money went to complete the 
Jamestown project. We have a security concern with our current practice of 
using the exterior wall of the Industries building as our secure perimeter. The 
fencing project would place a double fence around that building, completing 
our goal of having a double fence around the entire institution. There is also 
money to complete the second phase of adding electronic detection devices 
to the fence perimeter in areas on the north, south and west fences. 

3) MRCC Food Service/Multi-purpose Building- $1,600,000 (Bonding) 
Since the addition of 43 beds in 1992, we have been trying to fund the 
construction of a new food service and multi-purpose area at the MRCC. The 
kitchen and dining area is outdated and too small to meet the 
needs of the 150 residents . The wood frame building was built in the 1930's 
and does not meet any of the local building or life safety codes. The structure 
will be designed so the dining area could be converted to an indoor 
recreation space during non-meal times, improving security by having all 
inmates recreating in a controlled setting . 
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4) Administrative Segregation Renovations- $433,000 (GF) 
The Administrative Segregation unit is our "jail within the jail", where we must 
house those inmates that are a threat to harm themselves or others. These 
predators are a proven risk to the safety of other inmates and staff, and 
therefore, we segregate them from the rest of the population by placing them 
in a maximum security housing unit where they are held in their cells 
continuously except for 1 hour of daily recreation. As recently as five years 
ago we had between 6 to10 inmates housed in our twenty bed AS unit. It is 
to be expected that as our total number of inmates rose, we would also see 
an increase in the people requiring AS placement. However, the number of 
assaultive and unruly inmates has grown at an even faster rate. The biggest 
contributing factor for this is the number of inmates with street gang 
affiliations. These gang members try to use their organization and numbers 
to control black market contraband, theft rings, or to intimidate other inmates 
to "pay for protection". We have a zero tolerance practice for gang activity in 
our facility, and have had success identifying the leaders, and locking them 
up in AS. Another reason for our growth in AS inmates comes from the 
growing number of protection/separation cases. Sometimes these come from 
ex-gang members who want to quit the gang but are then labeled and 
targeted by the gang leaders. Mostly though, these protection cases are drug 
offenders who have testified against others to receive a lesser sentence. 
When their crime partners come to prison, the informant is often no longer 
safe to stay in general population. We have success finding alternative 
housing for these people at another facility, private prison, or county jail in 
about 90% of the cases. Sometimes though, they misbehave at those 
facilities and we must bring them back to the penitentiary, where we have no 
recourse but to place them in this secure unit for their own protection. 

The AS unit started with the 20 cells on the west side, first floor of the West 
Cell House. Last biennium, we took over the east-side of the tier, adding 
another 20 cells, but still find ourselves in the position of having to choose 
the least risky inmate to release to the general population when a new 
inmate requires placement. The cells we are using were not designed to hold 
this type of prisoner. The front of the cells are open bars, allowing inmates to 
throw objects, food, or body waste on staff making rounds on the tier, or into 
other inmates cells during their tier recreation. The 97-99 budget has funding 
that allows us to convert the original 20, open-fronted cells into maximum
security cells with a cinder block front and steel doors. Work on this 
conversion has already begun. This request is to continue with the same 
conversion on the other 20 cells , and to expand the unit into the second floor, 
west side, bringing the total number of cells to 60. Included in this proposal is 
funding for electronic surveillance alarms, controlled movement barriers, and 
plumbing for a shower. This will allow us to break this unit into 5 mini-units, 
providing greater security and flexibility in keeping certain inmates separated 
from each other . 
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5) JRCC improvements- $437,960 (GF) 
During the construction of the JRCC, agreements were made with the 
Jamestown building inspectors to postpone adding fire suppression devices 
in the Forensic Unit and the Amusement Hall until the 99-01 biennium, as 
funds were not available . The waiver we were granted enabled us to open 
the facility despite these building code issues. $181,000 is requested for fire 
protection devices in both buildings, and to add smoke alarms in the Forensic 
Unit cells. 

Due to the JRCC construction, the access to the pool via the tunnel system 
for the State Hospital patients was lost. An agreement with the hospital was 
reached where we would provide a new access for them during the 99-01 
biennium. In order to become compliant with ADA, we also need to install a 
wheel-chair lift in the ET building, so handicapped inmates can have access 
to the recreation yard. Costs for these projects will be $135,960. 

There were some operational changes for the JRCC when it was determined 
that it would be in the Department's best interests to house the female 
inmates there. $121,000 is requested to provide for fencing around a 
recreation yard, which would be separated from the male yard. This money 
would also be used for interior building security improvements, segregating 
female and male inmate movements, and for additional perimeter security 
devices. 

6) Parking Lot Improvements for NDSP and JRCC-$396,000 (GF) 

Inadequate parking at the JRCC has caused considerable inconvenience for 
staff and visitors, and with the addition of the 5th and 6th floors, the problem 
will only become worse. Visiting parking is presently adjacent to the inmate 
recreation yard, making contraband smuggling and unauthorized 
communication a real security concern. Funding will allow us to construct a 
parking lot on a portion of the hospital grounds that is more accessible from 
public roads, closer to the front entrance, and away from the inmate 
recreation areas. 

The existing parking lot at the penitentiary has 78 parking spaces, but during 
business and visiting hours there are 100+ vehicles parked in the lot and on 
the adjacent roadway. There is a safety concern because there is no 
walkway from the lot to the entrance, meaning people must walk in the 
roadway. The renovation would increase the size of the lot to 125 spaces, 
increase the lighting, and construct sidewalks to safely convey employees 
and visitors to the entrance. 

V. EXTRAORDINARY REPAIRS and EQUIPMENT - $750,413 

There is an increase in the repair line item by about $667,000 dollars from the current 
biennium , but there are good reasons for this increase. With the addition of the 
JRCC, we now have more square footage to maintain. Also, this line item has not 
received t11e same level of funding the past two biennia to keep up with the repair 
needs. There was $669,121 funded in the 93-95 biennium, but that decreased to 
$362,700 in 95-97, and fell even farther in the present biennium to $286,250. This 
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has meant that projects we have requested for 5 years have finally made the budget, 
most notably $62,000 to paint the cell houses and $116,500 to pave the .4 mile 
entrance to the MRCC . 

Our top priority is to add electrical outlets and toilets in the cells of the 400 and 500 
wing of the Forensic Unit ($49,000). Presently, there is one common bathroom in 
each wing's dayroom. Since the inmates must have unimpeded access to a restroom, 
staff are prohibited from locking the inmates in their cells during sleeping hours. 
Adding toilets will allow staff to secure these cells, increasing safety for both staff and 
other inmates living in the wing . Other projects that must be addressed, are ADA 
upgrades at the penitentiary and MRCC ($27,700}, sprinkling the Therapeutic 
Community building ($85,470), installing utility metering at the JRCC ($21,000}, and 
upgrading surveillance cameras and electronic security devices in the tunnels, attics, 
and on the perimeter of the NDSP ($134,000). 

The equipment line item will increase from $170,000 to about $250,000. A high dollar 
item included in the budget is an X-ray scanner to screen property items and supplies 
entering the facility. 

VI. OTHER GENERAL FUND INCREASES 

1) Institutional Medical Fees - $362,500 (GF). 
Medical costs continue to rise, and the projected increase to the population at the 
JRCC will require additional money to provide for medical and dental care . 

2) Funding Source Changes from Federal/Special to General Funds - $577,141 
(GF). 
In the past the prison was able to generate some income by filling our empty 

beds with boarders from other prisons. Unfortunately, our growing population has 
forced us to discontinue this practice, as we don't even have enough space for 
our own North Dakota inmates. The 99-01 budget no longer includes expectations 
of revenue from boarding the15 Federal Bureau of Prisons, and Alaskan State 
inmates that was in the 97-99 budget. This means that the $520, 130 that was 
supposed to have been generated this biennium must now be replaced with 
general funds for 99-01. We also lost a federally funded grant that provided for 
librarian services ($57,011), and this funding must now come from the general 
fund. 

3) Compensation Package for Existing Staff- $1,174,593 (GF). 
The proposed salary increases, and inflationary increases to the health benefits 
package for the existing staff result in this general fund increase. 

4) Increase for Inmate Pay Based on Higher Population - $229,950 (GF) 

5) General Fund Match Requirement for RSAT Federal Grant - $99,134 (GF) 

6) Miscellaneous Increases in Operating Expenses - $562,700 (GF) 
These our caused by inflationary increases and other cost increases for food , 
supplies, utilities, and computer link/telephone lines that we expect in the 99-01 
biennium . 
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HOUSE BILL 1016 
Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation Appropriation Request 

Testimony on Prisons Division Funding 
Human Resources Division of the House Appropriation Committee 

January 12,1999, 10:00 am 

I. Agency Mission and Goals 

This budget is submitted by the Governor's office to fund the operations of the 
Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation Prisons Division for the 99-01 
biennium. This is our first year as a performance based budget, and is developed to 
meet the statewide goals: 

II B: Foster the development of responsible, productive, and self-sufficient citizens. 
IV C: Promote the distribution and use of ND goods and services. 
VA: Provide adequate, secure correctional facilities to keep repeat high-risk offenders incarcerated. 
VB: Strive to reduce recidivism. 
V H: Employ qualified and effective corrections, safety, and law enforcement personnel. 

The mission of the Prisons Division is to protect the public by maintaining proper 
custody of the offenders sentenced by the courts; to provide a safe and healthy 
environment for staff and inmates; and to offer the best work, education, and 
treatment programs possible, encouraging inmates to make the needed changes to 
be law abiding and successful in society. This mission can be achieved through two 
major agency goals: 1) safety and security, and 2) rehabilitation. All the funding 
requested here is devoted to either protecting the public, staff, and inmates; meeting 
the legal requirements for prison operations set by the courts and the North Dakota 
Century Code; or providing programming to correct inmate's behavior so they don't 
return to the prison. 

II. Overview of Current Biennium. 

I believe the prisons division did an outstanding job of meeting its goals of public 
safety and rehabilitation, despite a biennium during which our prison population 
increased at an unprecedented rate. We started the biennium with 770 inmates, and 
reached an all time high of 970 inmates in early December of 1998. A major reason 
for this increase comes from more inmates being sentenced to prison on drug 
offenses, and for violent crimes. Today's count is 945, but we expect to have 1000 
inmates by the start of the new biennium. Despite this growth, North Dakota 
continues to be the smallest prison system in the country. At 104 sentenced inmates 
per 100,000 state residents , we also have the lowest incarceration rate of any other 
state. 

We continued to do a good job of protecting staff, inmates, and the general public. 
We are proud to report that there were no major inmate disturbances, homicides, or 
serious injuries to inmates or staff during the biennium. We are especially proud that 
there were no suicides. The number of assaults on staff was constant compared to 
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the previous biennium, but the rate of inmate on inmate assaults increased by 25%, 
corresponding to the higher number of inmates entering our system for violent 
crimes. Nonetheless, we continue to have one of the safest prison systems in the 
nation in terms of the above categories. There were three minimum security inmates 
that walked away from a community work project in October of 1997, and one 
medium security inmate escaped from the Therapeutic Community section of the 
main Penitentiary in July of 1998. All inmates were apprehended and returned to the 
facility. There is funding requested to improve the perimeter security of the 
Therapeutic Community to prevent a reoccurrence of this July, 1998 incident. 

I am also proud to report that our recidivism rate for the biennium continued between 
22 and 23%, once again one of the lowest in the nation. This shows that our 
rehabilitative programs are having a positive impact on keeping inmates from 
returning to prison. We continued to offer sex offender treatment, and intensified our 
efforts on gambling treatment, anger management therapy and cognitive 
restructuring. We also began a pilot program with the Department of Human 
Services to assist in preparing release plans for mentally ill inmates as they are 
returned to their community. This program showed some initial success in lowering 
the recidivist rate for this group. We again did a fine job of making sure that inmates 
leave prison with at least a GED, graduating over 125 inmates so far this biennium. I 
am concerned however, how the increased number of inmates strained these 
programming efforts. Since we have a limited number of inmate jobs, and suddenly 
more inmates, the number of unassigned inmates rose. This increase in inmate 
idleness and boredom is dangerous, and we must somehow increase employment at 
Rough Rider Industries so they can once again employ 25% of our population. Also, 
for the first time in my tenure, because of staff shortages we were unable to provide 
addiction treatment services for all the inmates that wanted to participate. This could 
possibly have a negative effect on our recidivism rate in the years to come. 

There were three major changes to our operations during the current biennium, 
which impact our budget request. The greatest accomplishment for the past two 
years was the addition of a new prison in Jamestown. Don Redmann was named 
director of the James River Correctional Center, and opened that facility on June 1 of 
1998 with 50 female inmates. The prison had a high percentage of staff with little or 
no corrections experience, but other than some growing pains the first six weeks, the 
unit has run smoothly. By the end of August we had filled the capacity of 240 
inmates, and were again contracting for 50 beds at the private prison in Appleton, 
Minnesota. The cost of contracting for beds to house the higher number of inmates 
than projected was about 3 million dollars, but through savings and efficiencies in 
other budget areas, our expected deficiency will be approximately $2,500,000. 

Another change in our operations was the implementation of a tobacco ban in 
October of 1997. This has accomplished its desired results by eliminating the 
incidents of cell fires and providing a healthier environment for non-smoking inmates. 
It is also hoped that by keeping long-sentenced inmates tobacco free, it will save on 
future medical costs for the state taxpayers. Although initially the inmates were not 
happy with the change, now that it has been in place for 14 months, there is a 
general acceptance. The drawback to the tobacco ban has been the development of 
a black market for contraband, and a dramatic rise in the number of attempts to 
smuggle contraband into our prisons. 



- - --- - - - -

The last change to our operations was again related to the increase in population. In 
the past we would average 30 to 40 new arrivals each month, and we had room 
available in the Orientation Unit to handle those numbers. During the past 8 months, 
the number of new arrivals has averaged over 60 each month. A decision was made 
to move our intake unit into the area vacated by the female inmates. By double 
bunking, we could place up to 63 inmates in that space, an increase of 23 beds. This 
change helped meet the need for physical space, but even with the additional 
transportation officers and clerical positions we were given last biennium, we didn't 
have sufficient human resources to process all the inmates we had going through the 
system. By law, we must compile a legal, social, medical and treatment file for each 
inmate. All new arrivals must have entrance physicals within 24 hours of their arrival 
at the facility, whether as a new arrival to the system, or as a transfer from a facility 
we contract with to house our overflow. Education, psychological, and chemical 
addition evaluations must be compiled. Even though the inmates may not be staying 
in our facility very long, processing each new arrival is very staff intensive. We also 
discovered that transferring inmates between three "in-house" facilities, plus county 
jails and an out-of-state private prison, is also more staff intensive than was 
anticipated. Choosing which inmates to transfer, based on their custody level, 
programming needs, medical concerns etc. was a full time job for one staff person. 
Each move into or out of the prison requires staff time to pack and inspect the 
inmate's property for contraband. This unanticipated extra workload forced us to hire 
temporary staff in security and clerical positions, and caused our overtime to be 50% 
over budget. 

Ill. The 99-01 Budget Request 

The agency goals for the next biennium will remain the same; however, additional 
funding is needed if we hope to continue to protect the public and yet effect change 
on inmate behavior. The Prisons Division 99-01 budget requests an additional 12.1 
million dollars, with an increase in general funds of 14.9 million dollars. As was the 
case in the 97-99 biennium, the greatest causative factor for this is the expected 
increase to our inmate population. The major changes to our general fund dollar 
increase are listed below. 

A. Costs to board inmates outside the system- $4,085,300 

We expect to have 1,000 inmates in our system at the start of the new 
biennium, and, if our growth remains at the same 15% rate as the past 
three years, we should add 150 inmates by July 1, 2000. Our projections 
conservatively drop to a 10% growth rate during the second year, ending 
the biennium with a total count of 1265 inmates. Since we currently only 
have beds for 861 inmates in the system, we will need funding to contract 
bed space with county jails or private prisons. The chart on the last page 
illustrates this cost for contracting, based on a $55.00/day rate for the first 
year, and a $60.00/day rate the second year. We have included in this 
illustration the addition of 110 beds to our system in May of 2000 when 
we project the JRCC 5th and 6th floors will be completed. 

The boarding costs come to $8,912,425. We believe, however, that we 
can save about 115 beds per day through the proposed alternatives to 
incarceration measures such as community placement and the revocation 
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center. If these programs are successful, it will mean a reduction of 
$4,827, 125 dollars to our total contracting costs. Because of this 
proposed savings, the total increase requested to board inmates is 
$4,085,300 ($8,912,425 - $4,827,125). 

8. Funding JRCC salaries and operating expenses for 24 months-
$3,241, 124 (GF). 

Because of the construction time schedule, the new prison at Jamestown 
was only operational for 13 months of the biennium. Now that there will 
be inmates and staff on board for the full 24 months, the amount needed 
for both salaries and operating expenses will increase. 

C. Staffing Increases 

1) Twenty staff to operate the 5th and 6th floor at the JRCC - $732,233 
There are 41 new full time employees requested in this budget, 29 of 
them at the JRCC. The renovation of the 5th and 6th floors will require 20 
new staff to supervise the additional 110 inmates that will be housed 
there. We expect this renovation will give us beds for an additional 80 
inmates on the 5th floor, and 30 inmates on the smaller 6th floor area, 
bringing the total usable beds at the JRCC to 350. The twenty positions 
will allow us to have two officers per floor per daytime shift, one officer per 
floor during the night shift, and a case manager on each floor, eight hours 
per day, 5 days per week. The positions requested will begin around April 
1, 2000, or for 15 months of the biennium. 

2) New staff requests for NDSP, JRCC, and MRCC - $1,239,519 (GF) 
When the decision to construct the JRCC was made, the staffing plan 
was fairly conservative. Now that we have been operating at full capacity 
for 7 months, we've discovered a few areas that need additional 
supervision. There are 6 more Correctional Officer ll's, an Account 
Technician, and 2 Addiction Counselors in this budget. We did not 
adequately fund work and educational programs during the first year of 
operation, and, because of that, we have a problem with too little activities 
to keep the inmates productive during the day. Four of the new officers 
will help by supervising general work crews, and the 2 Addiction 
Counselors will keep up to 30 inmates busy while undergoing therapy. 
We need the other two officers as support for covering the entrance gate. 
The officers assigned to that post are responsible for perimeter security, 
and to inspect every vehicle and person entering and leaving the facility 
to prevent escapes or the introduction of contraband. Our initial staffing 
plan only called for one officer at that post, 8 hours per day. We have 
found that the numbers of staff, visitors, and deliveries into the facility 
each day require that this post be staffed 16 hours daily. 

There are 5 Correctional Officer ll's added to the MRCC staff that will be 
responsible to transport MRCC inmates to offsite work and treatment 
programs and medical appointments. We had been using inmate drivers 
in the past, but our concerns for public safety, contraband smuggling, and 
accident liability forced us to start using staff drivers. We have staffed this 



post for the last 9 months by using overtime and filling in with the driver 
assigned to the prison, as time allows. 

The remaining 7 new positions will go to the main penitentiary in 
Bismarck. There are 3 Correctional Officer ll's to staff our front entrance 
16 hours per day, screening visitors, property, and new arrivals. The 
increase in our population has placed a great strain on the medical 
department. Two Registered Nurses have been added to staff to help with 
the intake screening for new inmate arrivals and transfers, increased 
numbers at doctor and dentist calls, and to provide coverage during the 
night shift. We are also having difficulty providing chemical dependency 
assessments on all the new arrivals, and subsequently meeting their 
treatment needs once in the system. A new Addiction Counselor position 
is needed to keep up with the demand. Finally, we have been operating 
with 5 case managers for 6 housing units, but as we have filled up and 
begun transferring inmates to other facilities and jails, we have 
discovered it is not possible for these managers to successfully manage 
their workloads. A new Case Manager for the third floor unit will solve this 
problem. 

D. Capital Improvements- $1,191,739 (GF) 
The total amount requested for Capital Improvements is $5,742,960. Of 
this amount, $2,049,429 will come from general fund, an increase in 
general fund money of about 1.9 million dollars from last biennium. The 
remaining 3.6 million dollars are funded with federal and special (bonding) 
funds. 

1) JRCC 5th and 6th floor renovation- $584,469; Operating - $721,600 
(GF) 
Remodeling the top two floors of the ET building will allow us to house 
110 more inmates, at a cost of $2,678,000. Approximately 2.1 million 
of the costs will be funded with federal "crime bill" dollars, leaving 
$584,469 in general fund matching money to complete the project. 
We estimate renovation to be completed in time for us to move the 
inmates into the building by May 1, 2000. 

Considering the population projections and the availability of the 
federal funds for prison construction, this project makes economic 
sense for the North Dakota taxpayers. It would cost $2,718,650 to rent 
space at a private prison for 110 inmates during the last 14 months of 
the biennium [110 inmates X ($55.00/day X 61days) + ($60.00/day X 
365 days)]. We project the salaries ($752,233) and operating 
expenses ($721,600) for us to operate these floors to be $1,453,833 
during this time frame. Even if you include the $584,469 general fund 
match for the construction costs, we would still save about $700,000 
by completing the project and keeping these inmates in state, versus 
the private contracting option. 
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2) Security Fence and Man-barrier for NDSP - $198,000 (GF) 

Money was included in the 97-99 biennium to add fencing and 
electronic detection devices on the north perimeter of the penitentiary, 
but due to unexpected costs for the JRCC completion, that money 
went to complete the Jamestown project. We have a security concern 
with our current practice of using the exterior wall of the Industries 
building as our secure perimeter. The fencing project would place a 
double fence around that building, completing our goal of having a 
double fence around the entire institution. There is also money to 
complete the second phase of adding electronic detection devices to 
the fence perimeter in areas on the north, south and west fences. 

3) MRCC Food Service/Multi-purpose Building- $1,600,000 (Bonding) 
Since the addition of 43 beds in 1992, we have been trying to fund the 
construction of a new food service and multi-purpose area at the 
MRCC. The kitchen and dining area is outdated and too small to meet 
the needs of the 150 residents. The wood frame building was built in 
the 1930's and does not meet any of the local building or life safety 
codes. The structure will be designed so the dining area could be 
converted to an indoor recreation space during non-meal times, 
improving security by having all inmates recreating in a controlled 
setting. 

4) Administrative Segregation Renovations- $433,000 (GF) 
The Administrative Segregation (AS) unit is our "jail within the jail", 
where we must house those inmates that are a threat to harm 
themselves or others. These predators are a proven risk to the safety 
of other inmates and staff, and therefore, we segregate them from the 
rest of the population by placing them in a maximum security housing 
unit where they are held in their cells continuously except for 1 hour of 
daily recreation. On a national average, wardens can expect to house 
between 6 to 10% of their prison populations in segregation. As 
recently as five years ago we only had between 6 to 10 inmates 
housed in our twenty bed AS unit. It is to be expected that as our total 
number of inmates rose, we would also see an increase in the people 
requiring AS placement. However, the number of assaultive and 
unruly inmates has grown at an even faster rate. The biggest 
contributing factor for this is the number of inmates with street gang 
affiliations. These gang members try to use their organization and 
numbers to control black market contraband, theft rings, or to 
intimidate other inmates to "pay for protection". We have a zero 
tolerance practice for gang activity in our facility, and have had 
success identifying the leaders, and locking them up in AS. Another 
reason for our growth in AS inmates comes from the growing number 
of protection/separation cases . Sometimes these come from ex-gang 
members who want to quit the gang but are then labeled and targeted 
by the gang leaders. Mostly though, these protection cases are drug 
offenders who have testified against others to receive a lesser 
sentence. When their crime partners come to prison, the informant is 
often no longer safe to stay in general population. We have success 
finding alternative housing for these people at another facility, private 



prison, or county jail in about 90% of the cases. Sometimes though, 
they misbehave at those facilities and we must bring them back to the 
penitentiary, where we have no recourse but to place them in this 
secure unit for their own protection. 

The AS unit started with the 20 cells on the west side, first floor of the 
West Cell House. Last biennium, we took over the east-side of the 
tier, adding another 20 cells, but still find ourselves in the position of 
having to choose the least risky inmate to release to the general 
population when a new inmate requires placement. The cells we are 
using were not designed to hold this type of prisoner. The front of the 
cells are open bars, allowing inmates to throw objects, food, or body 
waste on staff making rounds on the tier, or into other inmates cells 
during their tier recreation. The 97-99 budget has funding that allows 
us to convert the original 20, open-fronted cells into maximum
security cells with a cinder block front and steel doors. Work on this 
conversion has already begun. This request is to continue with the 
same conversion on the other 20 cells, and to expand the unit into the 
second floor, west side, bringing the total number of cells to 60. 
Included in this proposal is funding for electronic surveillance alarms, 
controlled movement barriers, and plumbing for a shower. This will 
allow us to break this unit into 5 mini-units, providing greater security 
and flexibility in keeping certain inmates separated from each other. 

5) JRCC improvements- $437,960 (GF) 
During the construction of the JRCC, agreements were made with the 
Jamestown building inspectors to postpone adding fire suppression 
devices in the Forensic Unit and the Amusement Hall until the 99-01 
biennium, as funds were not available. The waiver we were granted 
enabled us to open the facility despite these building code issues. 
$181,000 is requested for fire protection devices in both buildings, and 
to add smoke alarms in the Forensic Unit cells. 

Due to the JRCC construction, the access to the pool via the tunnel 
system for the State Hospital patients was lost. An agreement with the 
hospital was reached where we would provide a new access for them 
during the 99-01 biennium. In order to become compliant with ADA, 
we also need to install a wheel-chair lift in the ET building, so 
handicapped inmates can have access to the recreation yard. Costs 
for these projects will be $135,960. 

There were some operational changes for the JRCC when it was 
determined that it would be in the Department's best interests to 
house the female inmates there. $121,000 is requested to provide for 
fencing around a separate recreation yard, which would be separated 
from the male recreation yard. This money would also be used for 
interior building security improvements, segregating female and male 
inmate movements, and for additional perimeter security devices. 



6) Parking Lot Improvements for NDSP and JRCC-$396,000 (GF) 
Inadequate parking at the JRCC has caused considerable 
inconvenience for staff and visitors, and with the addition of the 5th and 
6th floors, the problem will only become worse. Visiting parking is 
presently adjacent to the inmate recreation yard, making contraband 
smuggling and unauthorized communication a real security concern. 
Funding will allow us to construct a parking lot on a portion of the 
hospital grounds that is more accessible from public roads, closer to 
the front entrance, and away from the inmate recreation areas. 

The existing parking lot at the penitentiary has 78 parking spaces, but 
during business and visiting hours there are 100+ vehicles parked in 
the lot and on the adjacent roadway. There is a safety concern 
because there is no walkway from the lot to the entrance, meaning 
people must walk in the roadway. The renovation would increase the 
size of the lot to 125 spaces, increase the lighting, and construct 
sidewalks to safely convey employees and visitors to the entrance. 

D. Extraordinary Repairs and Equipment- $750,413 

The extraordinary repair budget is $953,700, an increase of about 
$667,000 dollars from the current biennium, but there are good 
reasons for this increase. With the addition of the JRCC, we now have 
more square footage to maintain. Also, this line item has not received 
the same level of funding the past two biennia to keep up with the 
repair needs. There was $669,121 funded in the 93-95 biennium, but 
that decreased to $362,700 in 95-97, and fell even farther in the 
present biennium to $286,250. This has meant that projects we have 
requested for 5 years have finally made the budget, most notably 
$62,000 to paint the cell houses and $116,500 to pave the .4 mile 
entrance to the MRCC. 

Our top priority is to add electrical outlets and toilets in the cells of the 
400 and 500 wing of the Forensic Unit ($49,000). Presently, there is 
one common bathroom in each wing's dayroom. Since the inmates 
must have unimpeded access to a restroom, staff are prohibited from 
locking the inmates in their cells during sleeping hours. Adding toilets 
will allow staff to secure these cells, increasing safety for both staff and 
other inmates living in the wing. Other projects that must be 
addressed, are ADA upgrades at the penitentiary and MRCC 
($27,700) , sprinkling the Therapeutic Community building ($85,470), 
installing utility metering at the JRCC ($21,000), and upgrading 
surveillance cameras and electronic security devices in the tunnels, 
attics, and on the perimeter of the NDSP ($134,000). 

The equipment line item will increase $88,000, from $170,000 to about 
$258,000. High dollar items included in the budget are an X-ray 
scanner to screen property items and supplies entering the facility and 
self-contained breathing apparatus units for the cell houses. 

J 
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F. OTHER GENERAL FUND INCREASES 

Institutional Medical Fees - $362,500 (GF). 
We have noticed a trend over the past few years that our new inmates 
arrive with more serious ailments, and believe this is directly related to 
needle sharing by methamphetamine addicts. There has been a dramatic 
increase in the number of Hepatitis and HIV infected prisoners coming into 
our system, which has put an additional strain on our medical staff. 
Medical costs continue to rise, and the projected 110-bed increase at the 
JRCC will require additional money to provide medical and dental care. 
Increased funding for medical operating expenses is included in our 
request. 

Funding Source Changes from Federal/Special to General Funds -
$577,141 (GF). 
In the past the prison was able to generate some income by filling our 
empty beds with boarders from other prisons. Unfortunately, our growing 
population has forced us to discontinue this practice, as we don't even 
have enough space for our own North Dakota inmates. The 99-01 budget 
no longer includes expectations of revenue from boarding the15 Federal 
Bureau of Prisons, and Alaskan State inmates that was in the 97-99 
budget. This means that the $520,130 that was supposed to have been 
generated this biennium must now be replaced with general funds for 99-
01. We also lost a federally funded grant that provided for librarian 
services ($57,011}, and this funding must now come from the general 
fund. 

Compensation Package for Existing Staff- $1,174,593 (GF1 
The proposed salary increases, and inflationary increases to the health 
benefits package for the existing staff result in this general fund increase. 

Increase for Inmate Pay Based on Higher Population - $229,950 (GF) 

General Fund Match Requirement for RSA T Federal Grant - $99,134 
(GF) 

Miscellaneous Increases in Operating Expenses - $562,700 (GF) 
These are caused by inflationary increases and other cost increases for 
food, supplies, utilities, and computer link/telephone lines that we expect in 
the 99-01 biennium. 

IV. Future Concerns 

I am concerned that we may have underestimated the population growth 
potential for our system. We have experienced more than a 15% increase in 
each of the past three years, but we only used a 10% growth rate for our second 
year projections. The proposed increase of 14 drug enforcement agents are 
certainly needed to help deter the growing methamphetamine problem, but this 

6) 



• 
will undoubtedly add more inmates to our system. Any increase above our 
projections will add to numbers of inmates we must house outside our system. 
And increase the likelihood we will be deficient again next biennium. 

I am concerned that we have not included enough administrative support 
personnel in our request to operate the JRCC. We will be housing 350 inmates 
there in 16 months, yet we will have only two clerical staff, one maintenance 
worker, two account technicians, 1 teacher, 5.5 nurses, and 3 counselors to 
support the running of that facility. 

I am concerned with the changing, more violent type of inmate coming into our 
prison, and the effect that will have on the maximum-security penitentiary. As we 
move our less risky, medium-security inmates to the JRCC, we are left with a 
higher percentage of more violent, anti-social inmates at the original penitentiary. 
Having a more balanced mix of custody levels has been a major reason why we 
have been able to keep control of the inmate violence here. The proposed 
addition to our administrative segregation unit will certainly give us better options 
to maintain control, but maximum security prisons are more staff intensive, and 
therefore, expensive, to operate. 

I am concerned about the increased idleness at all three facilities. It is imperative 
that we find more work programs to keep our inmates busy during the day, and 
that responsibility falls squarely on Rough Rider Industries. I have directed 
Rough Rider Director Dennis Fracassi to increase the percentage of inmates he 
can employ in the industry program from its current 11 %, to 25% over the next 
biennium. The difficulty of this task is for him to find projects for inmates that will 
not compete with private sector companies in our state. Mr. Fracassi has 
therefore been working with many private sector companies to form joint 
ventures with them, where our inmates would produce goods or perform services 
directly for these companies, rather than being in competition with them. He will 
explain some of these projects during his testimony shortly. 

Finally, and most importantly, I am concerned about the effects this continuous 
growth of our prison population is having on my staff. While we appreciate the 
additional positions we have received over the past biennium to help supervise 
the inmates, it has not always been adequate, especially in the administrative 
support, and programming positions. As the inmates kept coming, our only option 
was to ask these employees to increase their production and efficiency to meet 
the needs. I am extremely proud of how they have met this challenge, and 
presently the morale among staff is high. It takes a different type of person to 
work with these negative people in this high stress environment, but I still believe 
the staff enjoys coming to work each day. But you can only expect people to 
continue to assume more work for so long before they begin to break down. I 
sense they are becoming tired. I think when the public looks at our budget, they 
hate seeing so much money being spent on criminals. But they forget that there 
are over 300 state employees who work with criminals every day to try to keep 
our state safe, and they need resources to do their jobs. These people have 
worked very hard the past three years, and the state is getting their money's 
worth from the prison employees. 



v. Final Comments 

I have heard legislators call this budget discouraging, distressing, and even 
disgusting! I choose to believe that is not because they don't recognize the need 
to fund corrections and public safety, but because the growing cost of corrections 
is cutting into the state's ability to fund other important programs such as 
education, social services, and transportation. However, the situation we now find 
ourselves in is the result of a growing addiction problem in this state, and 
legislation passed in recent years to curb that problem. As Governor Schafer 
stated in his budget address, we can be tough on crime, but we also need to be 
smart on crime as well. It is possible that the creation of prevention programs, or 
changes to our statutes passed this biennium may turn around our growing prison 
population. I caution you though, that the impact of those changes will take some 
time to work through our system and will not be felt over the next two years. There 
is no fat in this budget, and we do not have a "Cadillac" prison system in North 
Dakota. Our costs per day are still below the average spent by other states, yet 
our emphasis on rehabilitation and our safe environment make us one of the best 
systems in the country. I urge your full support of this appropriation request. 
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ESTIMATED 1999-2001 
INMATE HOUSING COSTS 

Month and Estimated Prisons Contracted Housing 
Year Population System Housing Rate Cost 

July 1999 1,000 861 139 $55 $ 236,995 
August 1,012 861 151 $55 $ 257,455 
September 1,024 861 163 $55 $ 268,950 
October 1,036 861 175 $55 $ 298,375 
November 1,048 861 187 $55 $ 308,550 
December 1,060 861 199 $55 $ 339,295 
January 1,072 861 211 $55 $ 359,755 
February 1,085 861 224 $55 $ 344,960 
March 1,098 861 237 $55 $ 404,085 
April 1,111 861 250 $55 $ 412,500 
May 1,124 971 153 $55 $ 260,865 
June 1,137 971 166 $55 $ 273,900 

July 2000 1,150 971 179 $60 $ 332,940 
August 1,160 971 189 $60 $ 351,540 
September 1,170 971 199 $60 $ 358,200 
October 1,180 971 209 $60 $ 388,740 
November 1,190 971 219 $60 $ 394,200 
December 1,200 971 229 $60 $ 425,940 
January 1,210 971 239 $60 $ 444,540 
February 1,221 971 250 $60 $ 420,000 
March 1,232 971 261 $60 $ 485,460 
April 1,243 971 272 $60 $ 489,600 
May 1,254 971 283 $60 $ 526,380 
June 2001 1,265 971 294 $60 $ 529,200 

Total Cost: $8,912,425 

Contracting Cost With Alternatives to Incarceration: 

1999-2001 
Daily beds saved by alternatives to incarceration = 115 beds per day 

1999-2000 = 115 beds X $55 per day X 365 days = $2,308,625 
2000-2001 = 115 beds X $60 per day X 365 days = 2,518,500 

Total: $4,827,125 

Total projected cost without alternatives = $8,912,425 
Savings through use of alternatives = 4,827,125 

Remaining contracting cost = $4,085,300 
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Tim Schuetzle, Director 
Prisons Division 
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DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 
AND REHABILITATION 

PRISONS DIVISION 
3303 East Main Street, Bismarck, ND 58501 

Mailing Address: P.O. Box 5521 
Bismarck, ND 58506-5521 

HOUSE BILL NO. 1016 
TESTIMONY TO SENATE APPROPRIATIONS COMMITTEE 

PRISONS DIVISION BUDGET REQUEST 
MARCH 8, 1999 

The Prisons Division consists of the three secure facilities, the North Dakota 
State Penitentiary and Missouri River Correctional Center in Bismarck, and the 
James River Correctional Center in Jamestown. The House Appropriations 
Committee made a number of cuts to our proposed budget, most significantly in 
our request for Capitol Improvements and for Extraordinary Repairs. As Elaine 
has mentioned, renovation of the 5th and 6th floors at the JRCC makes sound 
economic sense for our state, and that is our top priority for reinstatement. There 
are other needs however, that should not have been deleted from the Governor's 
budget that deserve your attention. 

I. STAFFING 

The house removed 25 positions from our budget request. 20 of these are for the 
operation of the 5th and 6th floor at the JRCC, and will need to be put back into 
the budget if you agree this renovation is necessary for our operations. Of the 
other 5 positions that were removed, the governor has agreed to the removal of 
two COIi "drivers" positions for the MRCC from the budget. I respectfully request 
that this committee add money back into the budget for the remaining 3 positions 
that were cut by the house. 

The Governor's budget included three COIi positions to operate the front lobby 
position at the penitentiary. One of these positions was removed through action 
taken by the House. This leaves two people to operate a post that needs to be 
operated 14 hours per day, seven days a week. Their responsibilities include 
screening all persons who come inside the secure facility. This screening 
includes checking identification, passing visitors through the metal detector, pat 
searching when indicated, and running background checks on all visitor or 
volunteer applications. They also search all the inmates that come to the 
institution from the MRCC for sick call or to use the law library. Eliminating 
contraband entering the prison is vital to keeping the staff and inmates safe, and 
we have found that those times when we can free a security officer to operate 
the front lobby, their presence is a deterrent to the introduction of contraband. 
The three positions are needed to fill this post during all the operating hours, and 
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to provide for a relief factor for illness and vacation days. At those times when 
their shift may overlap, or when there is little front lobby traffic, these officers will 
be needed for general inmate supervision in the dining hall or recreation areas . 

The other two positions that need to be reinstated are for COll's at the JRCC 
supervise inmate work crews The original budget included four positions for this 
function . We did not adequately fund work and educational programs during the 
first year of operation, and , because of that, we have a problem with too little 
activities to keep the inmates productive during the day. Rough Rider Industries 
recently opened their operations, and we are using a temporary position to 
provide security in that coed area. Another temporary position is being used to 
oversee a coed Arts and Crafts room, which keeps 38 inmates active for 6 hours 
each day. These two temporary employees will take the two remaining positions, 
but without adding back the two positions that were in the original budget we 
won't have staff available to supervise the yard crew and the painUmaintenance 
crew. The yard crew will employ about 10 inmates maintaining the lawn and 
outside grounds, and completing much needed recreation yard improvements 
such as walking tracks and basketball courts. The maintenance/paint crew will 
employ 6 inmates to work on interior projects that can be completed with inmate 
labor, as opposed to hiring outside contractors . The supervisor is needed to 
oversee the use of tools requ ired for completion of these projects . 

II. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 

Not including the cost for renovating the 5th and 6th floors at JRCC, the House cut 
$780,000 from other, much needed capitol improvement projects for the Prisons 
Division . It is concerning to me that our top three priorities, the 110 additional 
beds at the JRCC, the construction of the food service building at MRCC, and 
security fencing on the north side of the NDSP, were all deleted by the House. 
The food service building was part of HB1022, to be funded with bonding money, 
and I will be asking this committee to reconsider funding during testimony on 
1022. Elaine has addressed the need for the JRCC renovation , so the next item, 
which was actually our top priority , is security fencing for the penitentiary . 

A. Security Fence and Man-barrier for NDSP - $198,000 (GF) 
Money was included in the 97-99 biennium to add fencing and electronic 
detection devices on the north perimeter of the penitentiary , but due to 
unexpected costs for the JRCC completion, that money went to complete 
the Jamestown project . We have a security concern with our current practice 
of using the exterior wall of the Industries bui lding as our secure perimeter. 
The fencing project would place a double fence around that bu ilding, 
completing our goal of needing a double fence around the enti re institution . 
There is also money to complete the second phase of adding electronic 
detection devices to the fence perimeter in areas on the north , south and 
west fences Since the building was completed in 1983 there have been two 
escape attempts th rough the backside air vents If the inmates had been 
successful , there is no fence, or other impediment, to the free world . The 
metal shop occupies the building , and it contains a number of "hot tools" and 
cutting torches that could be used to cut through the metal bars that secure 
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• the vents These tools are accounted for twice each day, but the human 
error factor in this inventory , or the possibility taking the shop supervisor 
hostage allowing uncontrolled access to these tools , make this area our 
weakest link in our perimeter security . It is imperative that funding for this 
double fence be reinstated in our budget request. 

• 

8. Security Improvements - JRCC 
Our fifth priority Capitol Improvement was for $121,000 to construct a 
separate recreation yard for the female inmates at the JRCC, add security 
man-barrier and cameras along the top of the forensic unit building and 
adjacent tunnel, and to install security grid ceiling tiles in hallways and the 
dayrooms on the housing floors. The House removed $21,000 from this 
request. This will mean that we will not have funds to replace the acoustic 
ceiling tiles with the more secure grid tiles . Drop-down ceilings have no 
place in a medium security prison, as they provide easy access for the 
inmates to hide contraband inside the false ceiling, and they are not sturdy 
enough to withstand the abuse from this type of population. Funding to 
replace the false ceiling during the renovation was not provided , even 
though many of the original acoustic tiles were missing . Staff have already 
salvaged all the tiles from the unfinished 5th and 6th floors to replace the 
damaged ceiling, and have now been purchasing replacement acoustic tiles 
as more become damaged. This expense would be unnecessary if we had a 
more sturdy and secure ceiling. The grid system tiles are more resistant to 
vandalism, and the tile "lock" into place , making it very difficult for inmates to 
lift the tiles to hide contraband. We ask that you reinstate the $21,000 into 
our budget so we can improve the security , and wear and tear, on our 
ceilings . 

C. JRCC Improvements as part of 5th and 6th floor renovation 
Our budget requested a total $2,678,000, $2,353 ,000 was to renovate the 
top floors at JRCC, and $325,000 was for three other projects. Those 
projects were: 1) construct a building to process visitors through the front 
gate and provide microwave detection system by the front gate ($180,000); 
2) develop security barriers between the inmates and the inmate visitors in 
the Forensic Unit ($75,000); and 3) replace the twenty-year old camera 
system in the Forensic unit ($70,000) The House eliminated the $2 ,353,000 
or the top floor renovation, and cut back $125 ,000 of the $325,000 
requested for the other projects. Our top priority for the remaining $200,000 
is to build a reception area at the front gate for processing inmate visitors 
and other people entering the facility . We have received a number of 
complaints from the general public that they are required to stand outside in 
the elements while their vi siting cards are being filled out and they are 
waiting for an officer to escort them from the front gate to the vis iting area in 
the forensic unit building Any money remaining after thi s project is 
completed will be used to construct pari of the barrier we need in the 
forensic unit to separate the visiting public from the inmates housed there. 
W e are requesting that the $125 ,000 be reinstated so we can replace the 
camera system and complete the re st of the proposed renovation to the 
Forensic Unit lobby 
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D. Administrative Segregation Renovations 
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The Administrative Segregation unit is our "jail within the jail", where we 
must house those inmates that are a threat to harm themselves or others. 
These predators are a proven risk to the safety of other inmates and staff, 
and therefore, we segregate them from the rest of the population by placing 
them in a maximum security housing unit where they are held in their cells 
continuously except for 1 hour of daily recreation. As recently as five years 
ago we had between 6 to10 inmates housed in our twenty bed AS unit. It is 
to be expected that as our total number of inmates rose, we would also see 
an increase in the people requiring AS placement. However, the number of 
assaultive and unruly inmates has grown at an even faster rate. The biggest 
contributing factor for this is the number of inmates with street gang 
affiliations. These gang members try to use their organization and numbers 
to control black market contraband, theft rings, or to intimidate other inmates 
to "pay for protection". We have a zero tolerance practice for gang activity in 
our facility, and have had success identifying the leaders, and locking them 
up in AS. Another reason for our growth in AS inmates comes from the 
growing number of protection/separation cases. Sometimes these come 
from ex-gang members who want to quit the gang but are then labeled and 
targeted by the gang leaders. Mostly though, these protection cases are 
drug offenders who have testified against others to receive a lesser 
sentence. When their crime partners come to prison, the informant is often 
no longer safe to stay in general population. We have success finding 
alternative housing for these people at another facility, private prison, or 
county jail in about 90% of the cases. Sometimes though, they misbehave at 
those facilities and we must bring them back to the penitentiary, where we 
have no recourse but to place them in this secure unit for their own 
protection. 

The AS unit started with the 20 cells on the west side, first floor of the West 
Cell House. Last biennium, we took over the east-side of the tier, adding 
another 20 cells, but still find ourselves in the position of having to choose 
the least risky inmate to release to the general population when a new 
inmate requires placement. The cells we are using were not designed to 
hold this type of prisoner. The front of the cells are open bars, allowing 
inmates to throw objects, food, or body waste on staff making rounds on the 
tier, or into other inmates cells during their tier recreation. The 97-99 budget 
has $300,000 to allow us to convert the original 20, open-fronted cells on the 
east side of the first floor into maximum-security cells with cinder block front 
and steel doors. Electronic audio detection devices, and camera surveillance 
is also included in this project, and work on this conversion has already 
begun. The Governor's budget held $433,000 to similarly renovate the west
side 20 cells on the first floor. It also has funds to make some modifications 
to the 2nd floor West Cell House to allow for less violent inmate placement on 
that floor, and to move the East Cell House office from out of 2 cells and into 
an area in the back of the laundry. The House reduced our request by 
$198,000 (from $433,000 to $245,000). This may be enough money to place 
solid steel doors on the west-side cells, but there will not be enough funds 
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for any of the much-needed electronic surveillance like we are installing on 
the east side. It also means that there will be no modifications for the second 
floor, and that we won't be able to free up 2 additional cells by moving the 
East Cell House Office. For all the reasons previously stated, we believe we 
need more than a 40 cell AS unit, and strongly request that you put back in 
the $198,000 that was removed by the house. 

E. Parking Lot Improvements for NDSP and JRCC 
We asked for $325,000 to remodel the parking lot at the penitentiary, and 
$71,000 to black top the staff parking lot, and construct a 20-vehicle visitor 
parking lot at the JRCC. The House cut funding for these projects to 
$100,000 for the penitentiary, and $40,000 for the JRCC. 

The existing parking lot at the penitentiary has 78 parking spaces, but during 
business and visiting hours there are 100+ vehicles parked in the lot and on 
the adjacent roadway. There is a safety concern because there is no 
walkway from the lot to the entrance, meaning people must walk in the 
roadway. The renovation would increase the size of the lot to 125 spaces, 
increase the lighting, and construct sidewalks to safely convey employees 
and visitors to the entrance. In order to maximize the limited space 
available, the plans call for a complete re-grading of the current lot, utilizing 
dirt from the higher areas to fill in the low spots to the south. The $100,000 
given this project by the house will not begin to cover the costs associated 
with re-constructing the lot the proper way. An alternate plan that would cost 
the $100,000 given for this project would be to construct a 50 to 60 car lot to 
the south and west of the Deputy Warden's residence. This would meet 
our space needs, but is a greater walking distance from the facility and does 
nothing to correct the safety deficiencies, or lighting problems associated 
with the current lot. This is the only state building that I'm aware of that still 
has the roadway running through the middle of it's parking lot. We have 
many visitors with small children leaving the visiting room after dark, walking 
to their cars on the road through a poorly lit parking lot. We don't have space 
for a sidewalk without losing places for cars to park. This is a very unsafe 
condition, and a potential liability for the state. We have studied the best way 
to maximize our space, and increase safety for the employees and visitors, 
and it will cost $325,000 to reconstruct the lot. The $100,000 given us is only 
a band-aid. I encourage you to do the right thing, and reinstate the money 
that was in the Governor's budget. 

Inadequate parking at the JRCC has caused considerable inconvenience for 
staff and visitors, and with the addition of the 5th and 6th floors, the problem 
will only become worse. Visiting parking is presently adjacent to the inmate 
recreation yard, making contraband smuggling and unauthorized 
communication a real security concern. The funding left in the budget will 
only provide enough funds to pave the employee parking lot. Without the 
additional $31,000, we won't be able to properly light that lot, or construct 
the visitor parking lot on a portion of the hospital grounds that is more 
accessible from public roads, closer to the front entrance, and away from the 
inmate recreation areas. 
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Ill. EXTRAORDINARY REPAIRS . 

The Governor's budget called for an increase in our funding for 
extraordinary expenses to $1 ,003,700. The house recommends reducing 
this amount to $650,000, but we believe there is good justification for the 
governor's plan. With the addition of the JRCC, we now have more square 
footage to maintain. Also, this line item has not received the same level of 
funding the past two biennia to keep up with the repair needs. There was 
$669,121 funded in the 93-95 biennium, but that decreased to $362,700 in 
95-97, and fell even farther in the present biennium to $286,250. This has 
meant that projects we have requested for 5 years have finally made the 
budget, most notably $62,000 to paint the cell houses and $116,500 to pave 
the .4 mile entrance to the MRCC. 

The proposed $353,700 reduction by the house will mean we will only be 
able to fund down to our 14th priority, as opposed to funding to the 24th 

priority with the Governor's budget. Items that will not be funded include a 
master construction plan for the JRCC, money to paint the cell houses, 
recreation lighting at the MRCC, fire protection sprinkling system at the 
Therapeutic Community, and computer upgrades to our emergency 
management and fire alarm systems. 



Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation 

Prepared for the 
House Appropriations Cammi ttee 

Representative Jack Dalrymple, Chairman 

January 7, 1999 

By Elaine Little, Director 
DOCR 



Overview 

Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation 

January 7, 1999 

Outline: 

1. Analysis of the inmate population growth 

2. Analysis of the $21.6 million general fund increase in 1999-2001 
recommended budget 

3. Explanation of the 1997-99 Deficiency Appropriation Request 



I 

• 

NDSP Inmate Population Information 
Population on December 31, 1998 is 942 

NDSP 518, JRCC 222, MR.CC 142 (The NDSP count includes 50 at Appleton, 15 in Jails and 7 on CPP) 

Average Inmate Population, Arrivals, Releases and One Day Counts 

CY93 CY94 CY95 CY96 CY97 CY98 %Change 

Average Daily Population 567 571 619 707 819 902 59% 
Annual New Arrivals 452 482 473 581 572 778 72% 
Annual Releases 459 481 451 514 519 657 43% 
Inmate Count on June 3 0 573 592 677 694 770 910 59% 

Inmate Admissions of Selected Offenses By Calendar Year 

CY93 CY94 CY95 CY96 CY97 CY98 %Change 

Violent (Non-Sexual) 74 90 81 124 109 153 107% 
Sex Offenders 41 43 30 37 43 55 34% 
Drug Offenders 41 58 74 95 142 232 466% 
Property Offenders 234 225 225 256 217 296 26% 

Average Sentence (In Months) By Calendar Year 

CY93 CY94 CY95 CY96 CY97 CY98 %Change 

All Inmates 42 49 42 43 46 38 -10% 
* 85% Truth-in-Sentencing ** 47 41 34 60 87 40 -15% 
Violent Off enders 58 56 59 59 56 59 2% 
Sex Offenders 71 85 99 87 91 93 31% 
Drug Off enders 40 42 49 40 48 50 25% 
* 85% TIS numbers not included in the Violent Offenders row; ** 85% TIS law passed in 1995 and these numbers reflect 
the inmates who would have been in this category had the law existed in 1993 and 1994 

Current Inmate Count and Average Sentence 

Offense Inmate Count Average Sentence 
Violent Offenders (Excluding Sexual 263 57 Months 
Sex Off enders 123 122 Months 
Drug Offenders 187 55 Months 

149 Inmates Sentenced for Delivery, Manufacture or Intent 
3 8 Inmates Sentenced for Simple Possession of Drugs 

m:\Foley.pat\Research\Factshet.xls 
Last Updated: 01/07/99 7:58 am 
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Number of Admissions By Sentence Length (Each Calendar Year) 

CY94 CY95 CY96 CY97 CY98 
Less Than One Year 49 50 54 43 68 
One Year to Less Than Five Years 299 282 356 329 492 
Five Years to Less Than Ten years 115 120 138 156 160 
Ten Years to Less Than Twenty Years 30 29 20 31 31 
Twenty Years or More 16 9 11 8 8 

Current Inmate Population By Sentence Len2th 

Percent (Number) oflnmates Average Sentence 
Less Than One Year 5% (45) 6 Months 
One Year to Less Than Five Years 48% (445) 30 Months 
Five Years to Less Than Ten years 27% (248) 82 Months 
Ten Years to Less Than Twenty Years 11% (101) 131 Months 
Twenty Years or More 9% (85) 413 Months 

Minimum mandatory sentenced inmates break out as follows (on Dec 31, 98): 

Offense Inmate Count Average Sentence 
DUI 32 21 Months 
Drug Offenses 67 63 Months 
Aggravated Assault (2 Year) 1 48 Months 
Aggravated Assault (4 Year) 4 42 Months 
Robbery 29 59 Months 
Terrorizing 1 60 Months 
Life With No Parole 4 *** 15% of the inmate population 

on 12-31-98 had a minimum 
Total *** 138 mandatory sentence. 

85% (Truth-in-Sentence) inmates break out as follows (on Dec 31, 98): 

Inmate Count 
88 

Average Sentence 
77 Months 

m:\Foley.pat\Research\Factshet.xts 
Last Updated: 01 /06/99 11 :32 am 
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Profile of Drug and r .... "o ffenders 
ND DOCR Prisons Division 

One Day Count on December 31, 1998 

Drug Offense With Sentence Ranges 
Number of Shortest 

Offense Cases Sentence 
Possession of Controlled Substance By Driver 1 12 
Actual Physical Control 5 6 
DUI 27 1 
Unlawful Possession of a Controlled Substance 3 24 
Delivery of an Imitation Controlled Substance 2 12 
Possession of a Controlled Substance 22 12 
Unlawful Delivery of a Controlled Substance 5 18 
Delivery of a Controlled Substance 80 4 
Conspiracy to Deliver a Controlled Substance 20 12 

Possession of a Controlled Substance With Intent 37 6 

Average Longest 
Sentence Sentence 

12 12 
19 48 
21 60 
34 42 
36 60 
39 72 
50 72 
55 240 
58 180 
60 240 

m:\Foley.pat\Research\1999010 l.xls 
Last Modified: 01/06/99 4:55 pm 



Profile of Dn,g and , . ffenden 
ND DOCR Prisons Division 

One Day Count on December 31, 1998 
• 

Number of Cases Per County and Average Sentence (by 
month) 

COUNTY CASES 
Adams 1 
Barnes 2 
Burleigh 31 
Cass 71 
Grand Forks 23 
McIntosh 1 
McKenzie 2 
Morton 22 
Pembina 1 
Pierce 1 
Ramsey 2 
Richland 4 
Rolette 2 
Stark 1 
Stutsman 7 
Walsh 4 
Ward 19 
Williams 8 

SENTENCE 

12 
48 
59 
48 
46 
1 

66 
41 
48 

12 
96 
60 
24 
48 
41 
36 
47 
47 

Number of Cases by Specific Drug 
Number of 

Cases 
32 
5 
43 
2 
1 
5 
2 
3 
91 
53 
1 
1 
1 
1 

Drug of Sentence 
Alcohol (DUI or APC) 
Amphetamine 
Cocaine 
Codeine 
Diazepam 
Heroin 
Imitation Controlled Substance 
LSD 
Marijuana 
Methamphetamine 
Mushroom 
Prescription Drug 
Ritalin 
Steroids 

m:\Foley. pat\Research\19990 IO l .xls 
Last Modified: 01/06/99 4:55 pm 
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Admissions 
Property & Status Admits 
Drug Admits 
DUI Admits 
Violent Admits 
Releases 
Release to Parole 

Admissions 
Property & Status Admits 
Drug Admits 
DUI Admits 
Violent Admits 
Releases 
Release to Parole 
% Released to Parole 

1997 - 1998 Admissions and Releases 
(Total Admissions, Admissions for Drug Offenses, Alcohol Offenses and Violent Offenses) 

Jan-97 Feb-97 Mar-97 Apr-97 May-97 Jun-97 Jul-97 
42 46 49 44 51 36 48 
20 18 21 14 24 23 22 

7 11 11 12 9 3 12 
3 2 2 3 3 2 5 

12 15 15 15 15 8 9 
38 45 48 44 55 36 48 
11 18 17 11 28 9 15 

0.29 0.40 0.35 0.25 0.51 0.25 0.31 

Jan-98 Feb-98 Mar-98 Apr-98 May-98 Jun-98 Jul-98 
69 45 84 58 74 67 76 
29 16 37 30 30 29 30 
11 13 21 11 21 20 21 
4 2 7 4 3 3 5 

25 14 19 13 20 15 20 
51 52 49 61 54 42 52 
24 16 21 22 27 10 21 

0.47 0.31 0.43 0.36 0.50 0.24 0.40 

1997 
Admissions 572 

Property &.Status Admits 261 
Drug Admits 119 
DUI Admits 41 
Violent Admits 151 
Releases 519 
Release to Parole 193 
% Released to Parole 37% 

Aug-97 Sep-97 
38 48 

9 29 
9 9 
3 1 

17 9 
45 33 
20 12 

0.44 0.36 

Aug-98 Sep-98 
67 60 
37 22 

10 15 
3 7 

17 16 
62 58 
27 31 

0.44 0.53 

1998 Change 

778 36% 
334 28% 
186 56% 
50 22% 

208 38% 
658 27% 
286 48% 

43% 

Oct-97 Nov-97 Dec-97 1997 
51 57 62 572 
30 22 29 261 

8 16 12 119 
4 4 9 41 
9 15 12 151 

47 37 43 519 
20 19 13 193 

0.43 0.51 0.30 0.37 

Oct-98 Nov-98 Dec-98 1998 
64 61 52 778 
27 22 25 334 
17 15 11 186 

1 6 5 50 
19 18 12 208 
40 67 70 658 
18 36 33 286 

0.90 0.54 0.47 0.43 

01/06/99 3:39 pm 
m:\foley,t)at\research\19981222.xls 



• 
Average Sentence Length in Months 

(Minimum Mandatory and TIS) 

20 ___j__.r---,__------1 

10 -I~ 

• 

-

0 -+--_.______.__~I ___.___.____,....I _____.___._____,.....I __.______.___,..I __.____.-----,-1--A.._..._____,_l_____,__.____,i 



January 7, 1999 

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS AND REHABILITATION 
1997-99 GENERAL FUND BUDGET AS COMPARED TO THE 

1999-2001 GENERAL FUND EXECUTIVE RECOMMENDATION 

1997-99 Biennial 
Budget 

$45,480,097 

1999-2001 Executive 
Recommendation 

$67,120,012 

Increase Over Present Budget 
(Including Governor's Salary Package) 

$21,639,915 

Analysis of Major Increases: 

Division of Juvenile Services ): 

$1,233,780 
252,925 
184,600 

175,900 

$1,847,205 

Funding Source Change from Special to General Fund for Foundation Aid (YCC) 
Twelve (12) month school at YCC 
Contracting fees for psychiatric, psychological, nursing, and medical services at 
YCC 
DJS Community Programming (Tracking, Intensive In:..Home, Partnership 
Program) 

Subtotal - Major Increases DJS 

Division of Adult Services (Prisons Division and Field Services Division): 

$4,085,300 
3,241,124 
1,453,833 

1,191,739 
717,347 
522,172 
750,413 
577,141 
362,500 

2,149,800 
658,709 

1,164,040 

$16,874,118 

Departmentwide: 
$1,953 ,399 

965,193 

$21,639,915 

Contracting for external housing of inmates 
JRCC Salary and Operating Increases to fund operation for 24 months 
JRCC 5th and 6th Floor Addition (20 FTE's - $732,233 and 
operating - $721,600) 
Capital Projects - Prisons Division 
New FTE's for State Penitentiary and MRCC (12 FTE's) 
New FTE's for JRCC (9 FTE's) 
Extraordinary Repairs and Equipment - Prisons Division 
Loss of Revenue from housing federal/other state inmates 
Institutional Medical Fees 
Alternatives to Incarceration - Field Services 
Revocation Center 
New FTE's (14.5)- Field Services (salaries and operating) 

Subtotal Adult Services Division - Major Increases 

Governor's Salary/Benefit Funding 
Miscellaneous operating adjustments systemwide (food, utilities, etc.) 

Total General Fund Increase 1999-2001 

_ J 



DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 
AND REHABILITATION 
3303 East Main, PO Box 1898 • Bismarck, ND 58502-1898 

(701) 328-6390 • FAX (701) 328-6651 • TDD 1-800-366-6888 

January 7, 1999 

Explanation of Deficiency Appropriation 

The Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation estimates that expenditures for the 
Prison's Division will exceed its 1997-1999 biennium appropriation by $2.5 million. The 
primary reasons for this deficiency include the delay of the renovation of the James River 
Correctional Center (JRCC) and the need to house excess inmates in jails and a private 
prison for the majority of the biennium. The prison's 1997-99 appropriation did not 
include any funding for the contracting of inmates to other facilities. Our current budget 
estimated that the James River Correctional Center would be operational and ready to 
house inmates by October 1997, however, because of construction delays we were not 
able to house inmates at the JRCC until June 1998. Costs incurred to contract out inmates 
until the JRCC was operational were $1,708,874. Also, $1,355,306 of the total estimated 
contracting costs for the biennium will be attributable to the higher than estimated inmate 
population for the biennium. Following is an analysis of the costs of housing inmates in 
facilities outside of our system (also see attached schedule) and for operational costs for the 
JRCC. 

1997-99 salary and operating appropriation for the JRCC. .................. $6,316,611 
Actual & estimated salary and operating 1997-99 for JRCC .. ...... ......... 5,356,674 
Balance in JRCC appropriation ......................................................... $ 959,937 

External housing/contracting costs to date ......................................... $2,009,678 
Estimated housing/contracting costs for remainder of biennium .......... 1,450,259 
Total external housing costs ....... ............... .. .................................... $3, 459,937 

Total external housing costs .............................................. ...... ........ .. $3,459,937 
Less the balance in the JRCC appropriation ........................................... 959,937 
Deficiency appropriation required ..................................................... $2,500,000 

Estimated Income .......... ..... ............ ............. ....... ........ .... ........... ....... $ 250,000 
General Fund ..................................................................................... $2,250,000 

Division of Juvenile Services - 701-328-6390 
North Dakota Youth Correctional Center - 701-667-1400 

State Penitentiary• 701-328-6100 
Parole and Probation• 701-328-6190 



• 7, 1999 

DOCR PRISONS DIVISION 1997-1999 EXTERNAL HOUSING OF INMATES 

Original Actual 
Projected Average Inmates Inmates Placed In Total Inmates 

Inmate Daily Placed at Jails/Community Contracted 
MonthNear Population Population Appleton Placement Program Externally TOTAL 

July 1997 813 774 0 70 70 $ 81,634 
August 817 768 0 70 70 82,587 
September 822 771 50 53 103 136,583 
October 827 779 50 61 111 147,963 
November 832 794 50 75 125 159,892 
December 837 820 70 73 143 199,266 
January 1998 842 837 70 79 149 208,811 
February 847 840 80 75 155 177,583 
March 852 851 84 77 161 219,834 
April 857 864 95 68 163 228,850 
May 862 878 93 73 166 241,460 
June 1998 867 878 0 52 52 125,215 
TOTAL FY1998 $2,009,678 
July 1998 873 928 0 40 40 49,215 
August 876 942 50 40 90 99,017 
September 879 938 50 17 67 97,103 
October 882 955 50 19 69 89,939 
November 885 956 50 19 69 92,635 
December 888 954 50 20 70 104,160 
January 1999 891 964 50 30 80 117,490 
February 895 1000 50 66 116 149,464 
March 899 1000 50 66 116 165,478 
April 903 1000 50 66 116 160,140 
May 907 1000 50 66 116 165,478 
June 1999 912 1000 50 66 116 160,140 
TOT AL FY1999 $1,450,259 

97-99 GRAND TOTAL "'$3,459,937 
* Actual expenditures are shown for July 1997 through November 1998. 



DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 
AND REHABILITATION 

August4, 1998 

Elaine Little 
Director, DOCR 
PO Box 1898 
Bismarck, ND 58502-1898 

3303 East Main, PO Bo1 1898, Bismarck, ND 58502-1898 
• TDD 1-800-366-6888 • (701) 328-6390 • FAX (701) 328-6651 

RE: Inmate Population Projections for 1999-2001 Biennium 

Dear Director Little: 

Preparation of the budget for the upcoming biennium requires certain assumptions about the 
inmate population under the care and custody of the Department of Corrections and 
Rehabilitation (DOCR). Absent an expensive array of tools to accurately predict future 
populations, staff uses their best judgment and experience to develop estimates. Even with 
sophisticated methods of prediction, estimates of future populations are just that. . . predictions. 
Since no predictions involving human behavior can be totally accurate, we attempt to do the best 
we can. The attached table (page 3) shows possible inmate populations during the next 
biennium. The methodology for determining these numbers follows: 

The inmate population for each day of fiscal years 1997 and 1998 (July 1, 1996 through June 30, 
1998) was taken from the monthly population rollup published by inmate records. The number 
of federal and Alaskan borders was removed, leaving an "adjusted population." These numbers 
were entered on an Excel spreadsheet. Each day was then assigned a number, starting with one 
for July 1, 1996, two for July 2 and so on throughout the two years . 

Three pools from this data set were analyzed. The first consisted of data from the entire two
year period. The second was data from only fiscal year 1998. The third was data from the last 
six months of fiscal year 1998. 

The Pearson Product Moment Correlation was established for each of the three pools. The r2 for 
each group was very high and is shown below: 

0.891 FY 97 & FY 98 
0.948 FY 98 
0.928 Last six months of FY 98 

A scatter plot for the FY 97 & FY 98 pool was created and the line of best fit was graphed (page 
4). 
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Regression analysis was conducted on each of the three pools (pages 5-7). The predictor 
variable (x) was the number assigned to represent the date. The predicted variable (y) was the 
adjusted population. A slope (b) and y-intercept (c) were calculated. Then a linear regression 
equation for each pool was established. 

Exponential smoothing was performed on the FY 97 & FY 98 pool, followed by an additional 
regression analysis. They-intercept, slope and r2 were similar to the initial analysis of the raw 
data of the FY 97 & FY 98 pool (page 8). 

Based on the scatter plot and associated correlation, the data was determined to be adequately 
linear to use linear regression to project future population. 

Finally, the equation for linear regression (y = bx +c) was used to predict the population at 
selected six and 12 month intervals. These results are provided in the table on page 3. 

The table shows actual "adjusted populations" at six-month intervals from July 1, 1996 through 
July 1, 1998. It also shows selected population estimates made by DOCR management staff, 
independent of this research. It then shows the projections based on characteristics of each of the 
three pools. 

Examination of the scatter plot clearly shows periods of rapid population growth as well as fairly 
flat growth periods. Use of the two-year data pool projects lower population growth than either 
the one-year or the six-month data set. The management staff projection is somewhere in the 
middle. Although each method of population projection used here has limitations, it seems 
reasonable that the management staff projection (which is a middle-of-the-road projection) is 
likely to be the closest estimate available at this time. It falls between the FY 97 & FY 98 
analysis and the analysis using the shorter-term data sets. 

Previous models using regression (linear growth) and auto-regressive integrated moving average 
time series analysis (logistic growth) (Meredith, 1996) have under predicted the inmate 
population in North Dakota. The Meredith study examined average populations over a four-year 
period. The current study examines actual daily populations for each of the data pools, but over 
a shorter period of time. I expect that this study will give us a reasonable estimate of the 
population for the next biennium and recommend that we construct our budget using populations 
no lower than those projected by management staff 

It is important that the DOCR eventually develop a sophisticated population projection model 
that can control for a variety of fluctuating variables. This would require an extensive 
investment and should provide a more reliable model that can be manipulated as the variables 
change. 

Sincerely, 

Gl 1=-u(e,7 
Patrick W. Foley 

· Program Coordinator 
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Comparison of Population Projections for Different Models and Comparison Pools 

Estimated Population 
Estimated Population Estimated Population Estimated Population (Linear Regression 
(Management Team (Linear Regression based (Linear Regression based on last 6 months 

Target Date Actual Population Estimates) on FY 97 & FY 98) based on FY 98 only) of FY 98) 

July 1, 1996 644 666 
January 1, 1997 739 716 

July 1, 1997 759 765 732 
January 1, 1998 809 815 809 810 

July 1, 1998 899 865 886 888 
January 1, 1999 915 963 967 

July 1, 1999 1,000 964 1,040 1,045 
January 1, 2000 1,014 1,117 1,124 

July 1, 2000 1,150 1,064 1,194 1,203 
January 1, 2001 1,113 1,271 1,281 

June 30, 2001 1,265 1,163 1,348 1,359 

m:\Foley.pat\Research\Forecast.xls Page #3 



Scatterplot (x = date, y = adjusted count) 

900.00 --+--------------------------+------------~ 

Adjusted Popu 
R--Square a 0.89 

600.00-+--t-------------+--------------+-------------+l 

0 

0.00 250.00 500.00 750.00 

Day Number 

Regression 

Page~ 



• 

Elaine Little, Director, DOCR 
P. 0 . Box 1898 
Bismarck, ND 58502-1898 

Dear Director Little, 

DEC 31 1998 

DEPT. Of CORRECTIONS 

Lorraine T. Fowler, Ph.D. 
116 Seafarer Lane 

Columbia, SC 29212-8060 
(803) 781-2088 (H) 

(803) 896-1748 (SCDC) 

December 29, 1998 

Reviewing Pat Foley's letter of August 4, 1998, RE: Inmate Population Projections 
for 1999-2001 Biennium and talking with Pat twice ( once at some length) to date have 
assured me that Pat has worked what is available to him very responsibly. I agree that 

"Absent an expensive array of tools to accurately predict 
future populations, staff [ used] their best judgement and 
experience to develop estimates." 

Using actual inmate population for each day of FYs '97 and ' 98; adjusting by 
removing federal and Alaskan numbers; portioning the two-year pool further into the 
most recent one year (FY '98), and six-month (last of FY '98) pools; comparing 
estimates resulting from analyses of these three pools with population estimates made by 
DOCR management staff - all show ingenuity and conscientious planning. 

Pat's analytic tools were certainly "heavy" enough, given the short time-frames 
utilized and the (relatively) small numbers involved. Indeed, purists could question the 
usefulness of subjecting these data sets to even this level of analysis. However, I believe 
that the "scatter plot" created (with "line of best fit. .. graphed") should be very useful as 
you meet with the legislature regarding biennial NDDOCR plans and budgets. Further, it 
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indeed shows why Pat chose such short time periods for analysis: "Examination of the 
scatter plot clearly shows periods of rapid population growth as well as fairly flat growth 
periods." When 1) statutes (e.g., affecting violent offenders-truth-in-sentencing), 2) 
revocations and post-release recidivism, 3) offender characteristics per se are suddenly 
changing significantly - often, at the same time - analysis based on longer time periods 
will "under" predict ( or, conceivably, "over" predict, if the changes are in "reverse"). 

In summary, Pat appears to have been exceptionally thoughtful and to have benefited 
from reviewing a previous study (which this reviewer has not seen), "Meredith, 1996," 
that did use four years of data, average (rather than actual daily) population, and more 
sophisticated analytic tools but -- probably as a result of its approach - under predicted. 
That the data analyses done this year provide upper and lower parameters around the 
"management staff projection" makes considerable sense. I would certainly make a point 
of that fact when sharing this information because while "subjective" judgments without 
corroboration from empirical data are less good than chance, conversely, when combined 
with "objective" analyses, they are usually considerably better than chance. 

Why, then, develop a more "sophisticated population projection model" as Pat 
suggests at the end of his letter/report to you? 

As Pat and I talked, several points emerged that made particular kinds of 
improvements make investment sense for NDDOCR. Precisely because 1) numbers are 
relatively small and, thus, per unit costs are probably comparably high (especially in 
regard to capital and fixed costs); 2) your jurisdiction includes community placements as 
well as incarceration and (Pat tells me) you are, and will be, getting more "returns" 
and/or fewer "send offs," as the case may be; 3) tougher" statutes, judicial policies, and 
program guidelines do not look like "easing up" - you need to be looking not only at base 
population numbers, but at other characteristics. 

I've included in this package SCDC's "presentation" that discusses how-currently-we 
"project": we look at how base population is affected by number of admissions and 
number of releases year-by-year and also at who those folks are. For example, revocators 
(now about 20% of our admissions of 11,000 per year) require very different types of 
beds and lengths of time-to-serve than do the majoritv of new admissions each year (see 
enclosed Annual Report for a descriptive picture). At the release end, Truth-in
Sentencing (passed here in 1995) offenders are now truly serving 85%, rather than 40% 
to 60% of their (usually, long) sentences as their com parables did in the past. 
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That said, the more Pat and I talked, the more clear it seemed to me that DOCR's first 
priority regarding both internal and external information ( operational, management, 
policy) is not more sophisticated methodologies or "fancy" consultants (!), but a good, 
solid infom1ation system, probably, an on-line, offender-based system that follows an 
offender from ( conviction to) commitment to institutional placement to community 
placement (or any order and combination thereof) to release from (total) jurisdiction. 
Cathy (Jensen) and David (Huhncke) kindly supplied information I requested through 
Pat. I'll leave it to Pat to discuss apparently serious and long-standing problems with 
AIMS; I am impressed with David's DOCSTAR - these are the kinds of screens and the 
types of data elements that should provide you and your staff (at several levels -- our 
third-shift "count" officers enter, check, and balance directly on their post tem1inals, e.g.) 
with what you need on a dailv basis. Collecting, using, and monitoring day-to-day data 
then enables your staff to produce such reports (weekly or monthly) as the NDPP Census 
Pat sent. 

In short, I believe the very best, and first investment North Dakota could make for 
you would be a coordinated, perhaps even an integrated, offender management system 
that could certainly ultimatelv provide you with a database useful for more sensitive 
projections, as Pat suggests, but - meanwhile -- ,vould provide all (levels of) staff with 
the data each needs to do her/his job daily, weekly, and monthly (as well as biennially) . 

Pat was rather startled to hear from "CIT" that my division at SCDC has 51 staff -
we've been "building" our 83-site (32 institutions + Attorney General's Office + 
Department of Social Services Regional Offices + etc.) network since 1976 (I, since 
1982); 1 is our ( only) administrative assistant; 5 are analysts, primarily statisticians; the 
other 45 are network technicians (lay "wire", maintain 4,000 devices for over 5,000 
users, install equipment), system developers and programmers (for not only Offender 
Management but also Fiscal, and Human Resource Systems), and "24/7" computer 
operators and "help-desk" personnel. (We've over 7,300 staff and 21,000 inmates on any 
given day.) 

Clearly, your system could NOT justify such a level of resources. But it is now 
possible to have either a client-server, intranet/intemet or a combination-based system, 
especially in a smaller jurisdiction, that can tie all, or most of the necessary pieces 
together in a cost-efficient, as well as a cost-effective way. Thus, while I am awaiting 
Pat's "other pieces" for the January 7, 1999, presentation because I think that how you 
" frame" Pat's work is probably critical, I'm going to recommend strongly to you and to 
CJI/OJP that a first-rate corrections system developer (I have a young fellow that has 
been our primary "Offender Management" person for the last 13 years, originally from 
Michigan) come see Pat, Cathy and David "ASAP", his primary purpose being to assess 
what may, or may not actually be "salvageable" from your current system(s). 



I plan to talk with Pat again and do a follow-up letter to you after he sends me his 
additional material. Meanwhile, I shall be sending CJI a copy of this letter with 
attachments and talking with John Blackmore about a possible change in near-tem1 
visiting plans. (More "complex" projections need, above all, verv £ood data.) 

The reason I've attached all these "products" from SCDC's Division of Resource and 
Information Management is that I wanted you to see what I mean when I say that a good, 
basic "client"-based system can give you from the simplest (Annual Report) data through 
more complex (Data Summaries), to very sophisticated (our "Propensity to Commitment 
Projection Model") infomrntion. The point is that the last product, like the second, is 
only as sound and useful as the basic data are 1) timelv. 2) accurate. and 3) complete. 
(See enclosed speech given to ACA Congress in 1979.) 

I've much enjoyed working with Pat; he's a real asset. I also hope that this (and my 
follow-up) letter will be helpful to you and your staff. 

Sincerely, 

Lorraine T. Fowler, Ph.D. 
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DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 
AND REHABILITATION 

3303 East Main, PO Box 1898 • Bismarck, ND 58502-1898 
(701) 328-6390 • FAX (701) 328-6651 • TDD 1-800-366-6888 

March 30, 1999 

Overview - Increases in the North Dakota Corrections Populations 

The prison population in North Dakota grew by 59% from 1993 through 1998 (567 to 
902). From just 1997 to 1998 the number of inmate admissions increased by 36%. 
Also, the parole and probation population has grown by 32% (from 2386 to 3161) 
since 1993. 

The data indicates that there are three primary reasons for the growth in the prison 
population; 1. Generally judges are sentencing more harshly resulting in more people 
being sentenced to prison for longer periods of time; 2. The number of drug offenders 
sentenced to prison has increased dramatically. The penitentiary admitted 232 drug 
offenders in 1998, up from 41 in 1993 (466% increase). At least some of this increase 
is due to the mandatory sentencing drug laws enacted in 1995; and 3. The number of 
admissions in comparison to the number of releases over the years has increased. In 
1993 there were seven more releases than admissions whereas the number of releases 
in 1998 were 121 less than the number of admissions. 

The increase in the inmate population has required the addition of new prison beds to 
the corrections system. The 1997 legislative assembly approved the renovation of 
three State Hospital buildings to serve as a 240-bed medium custody prison (the James 
River Correctional Center). Even with this increase in prison beds the inmate 
population has again grown beyond the prison's bed capacity of 861. The prisons 
division is presently contracting for 43 prison beds to house inmates over its capacity. 

The DOCR projects that the inmate population will continue to grow during the 1999-
2001 biennium so that by July 1, 2001, the estimated population will be 230 over the 
present bed capacity. Based upon these numbers, the Governor's budget included 
funding to renovate the 5th and 6th floors of the James River Correctional Center ORCC) 
which would provide an additional 110 beds to the prison's capacity. The cost analysis 
shows that $548,367 in general funds would be saved during the next biennium by 
renovating the 5th and 6th floors compared to the cost of contracting for housing for the 
inmates over the prison's capacity. During the 2001-2003 biennium the cost savings 
would be $2,615,100 . 

Division of Juvenile Services - 701-328-6390 State Penitentiary- 701-328-6100 
Parole and Probation - 701-328-6190 North Dakota Youth Correctional Center - 701-667-1400 
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The Governor's budget also included $2, 149,800 to fund alternative to incarceration 
programs. It is estimated that through the alternative programs there will be an 
average of 115 prison bed days saved each day of the next biennium. It is the DOCR's 
goal that through the next two biennia the prison population be stabilized through 
alternative programs so that the state will not need to build additional prison beds after 
the completion of the 5th and 6th floors at the JRCC. The alternative programs as well 
as the additional staff and resources provided in the Governor's budget to the Field 
Services Division of the DOCR will be critical to controlling the growth of the prison 
population . 

Division of Juvenile Services - 701-328-6390 State Penitentiary - 701-328-6100 
Parole and Probation - 701-328-6190 North Dakota Youth Correctional Center - 701-667-1400 



A'ITACHI 1 • 
FY 97 & FY 98 FISCAL OBLIGATIONS COLLECTED BY FIELD SERVICES DIVISION 

3,500 ,000 -

3,000 ,000 

2 ,500 ,000 

2 ,000 ,000 

1,500 ,000 
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,SUPERVISION NON CASH COMMUNITY 
TOT AL FISCAL 

jCOURT COSTS FINES "-- -- FEES · RESTITUTION OBLIGATION 
I \ . FEE CASH CREDITS SERVICE 
' ....___ -----~-~· . COLLECTED 

m!FY 97 : 35,761 88,102 64,253 723,763 395,010 193,376 652 ,155 2 ,152,420 

■ FY98 53,992 110,646 64,352 816,135 459,970 314 ,551 1,067 ,022 2 ,886 ,668 



Comparison of Boarder States Prison Population and Expenses 
Looked at the cost of running the prisons taking out expenditures for construction costs and industries. 

Average Daily 
Inmate Prison Expenses (exclude 

Population construction and Annual Cost Per 

State & Fiscal Year (ADP) industries) Inmate 

North Dakota FY 98 821 $13,842,909.00 $16,861.03 
South Dakota FY 98 2,267 $26,954,013.00 $11,889.73 
Montana FY 98 1,804 $36,854,592.48 $20,429.37 
Wyoming FY 98 1,373 $26,295,757.00 $19,152.04 
Minnesota FY 98 5,425 $179,375,000.00 $33,064.52 

Annual Cost Per 
State & Fiscal Year ADP Prison Budget Inmate 

North Dakota FY 97 749 $11,752,750.00 $15,691.26 
South Dakota FY 97 2,119 $23,769,107.00 $11,217.13 
Montana FY 97 1,637 $30,180,986.12 $18,436.77 
Wyoming FY 97 1,328 $26,295,757.00 $19,801.02 
Minnesota FY 97 5,047 $182,810,000.00 $36,221.52 

Points of Contact for Information 
Bev Johnson & Kim Kary ND 328-6135 & -6101 
Mike Winder & State Finance (Lori & Jami) SD 605-773-3438 & -3411 
DweyHall MT 406-444-4907 
Pat Stata & Jeny Piper WY 307-777-7470 
Margaret (Adult Facilities Division) MN 651-642-0257 

Each state calculates budget differently and this represents the closest we can get to replicating the way North 
Dakota computes the prisons division budget. We attempted to get at the cost of running the prisons without 
counting construction or industries expenses. 
Minnesota: Only general fund appropriations reported 
Minnesota: FY 98 reporting structure changed from FY 97 
South Dakota: ADP reoorted on telephone differs slightly from adding the faxed numbers (not big) 

Does not include cost of construction or industries. m:\Foley.pat\Research\19990111 



Prison Admissions by County (1992 through 1998) 

County 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 Tot 92-98 
Adams 2 1 3 1 1 1 2 11 
Barnes 5 10 12 9 10 10 12 68 
Benson 3 1 5 4 6 1 0 20 
Billings 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 2 
Bottineau 6 5 1 3 7 3 4 29 
Bowman 0 1 0 0 1 2 1 5 
Burke 1 0 0 0 0 2 0 3 
Burleigh 55 60 70 90 123 130 139 667 
Cass 96 127 148 90 129 126 289 1005 
Cavalier 2 1 3 2 4 2 1 15 
Dickey 2 5 2 3 0 2 5 19 
Divide 2 0 1 1 0 0 1 5 
Dunn 1 3 2 1 1 0 0 8 
Eddy 1 3 6 7 3 2 4 26 
Emmons 4 5 0 3 1 2 5 20 
Grand Forks 37 42 49 63 65 47 56 359 
Foster 0 1 4 4 0 1 0 10 
Grant 0 0 1 1 2 0 2 6 
Griggs 1 2 0 2 2 1 1 9 
Golden Valley 1 2 3 0 0 0 0 6 
Kidder 1 3 2 0 1 3 2 12 
Lamoure 1 1 1 3 3 6 1 16 
Logan 1 2 1 2 0 1 0 7 
McHenry 3 2 0 4 2 2 6 19 
McIntosh 2 0 2 2 3 1 4 14 
McKenze 4 5 6 3 4 6 5 33 
McLean 1 0 5 4 8 4 5 27 
Mercer 1 3 3 5 3 6 3 24 
Morton 14 18 14 19 37 36 34 172 
Mountrail 0 0 2 2 0 2 2 8 
Nelson 1 I 1 3 1 0 1 8 
Oliver 0 I 0 0 0 2 0 3 
Pembina 3 4 3 4 2 8 11 35 
Pierce 5 6 4 4 6 4 3 32 
Ramsey 26 27 20 29 41 33 39 215 
Ransom 5 4 5 3 3 2 1 23 
Renville 0 1 3 0 1 2 0 7 
Richland 11 5 4 7 6 6 5 44 
Rolette 16 2 4 2 2 6 5 37 
Sargent 0 1 0 0 0 2 1 4 
Sheridan 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 2 
Stark 21 11 7 10 11 10 13 83 
Steele 0 0 0 2 1 1 0 4 
Stutsman 21 20 17 7 21 20 17 123 
Towner 4 1 4 6 6 5 4 30 
Traill 3 5 5 6 3 4 2 28 
Walsh 4 5 8 5 11 12 15 60 
Ward 28 42 36 30 37 41 54 268 

Wells 0 2 0 0 0 0 2 4 

Williams 10 11 14 27 13 14 20 109 

TOTALS 406 452 482 473 581 572 778 3744 

m:\Foley.pat\19990111.xls 



HUMAN RESOURCES DIVISION 

Questions For 
Field Services Division 

(Community Offender Services) 

1. Number, percentage of low-risk inmates and description of proper placements 

2. What is age differences among inmates? 

a. differences in treatment by age 

3. Number of offenders expected to process through the revocation center? 

4. Provide information on the Wahpeton employment example 

5. Further explanation on victim restitution (compensation) fund 

a. demand for funds 
b. carry over 

6. Comparative costs of tracing offenders on home confinement vs. other community 
offender proposals 



CRIME VICTIM SPECIALIST 
/'au/ .I. Coughlin 

DIRECTOR 
fVarren R. Emmer 

701-328-6 195 70 I -328-6 I 93 
1-800-445-2322 

E VICTIM COORDINATOR 
L. Vorachek 

PROGRAM MANAGER/ 
INTERSTATE COMPACT 
COORDINATOR 

-328-6183 
-445-2322 

Charles R. Placek 
701 -328-6 I 98 

TO: 

Field Services Division 
P.O. Box 5521 

Bismarck, North Dakota 58506-5521 
701-328-6190 

Fax 701-328-6651 

Warren R. Emmer 
Director 

FROM: Charles R. Placek @ 
Program Manager 

DATE: January 20, 1999 

RE: HB 1016 

The Division's response to the House Appropriation's Committee's questions of January 
14, 1999. 

1. Number, % of low risk inmates and description of proper placements? 

On January 18, 1999 we had 872 (33%) offenders that had a risk score within 
established Low Risk range. Proper placements of these offenders would be with 
Community Corrections Agents or Low Risk Contract agencies. 

2. What is the age differences among inmates? See "DOB of Community Offenders" 

a. Differences in treatment by age? None 

3. Number of offenders expected to process through the revocation center? 

97 - 99 Biennium - 60 
99 - 01 Biennium - 200 

4. Provide information on the Wahpeton employment example. See Wahpeton 
material 

5. Further explanation on victim restitution (compensation) fund 

a. demand for funds 
b. carry over 



January 20, 1999 
Page 2 

Crime Victims Compensation Expenditures 1 /18/99 
Biennium General Federal Special Total Reimburse 

ments 
Presented 
by Victims 

93 - 95 
95 - 97 
97 - 99 
as of 

11/30/98 

Fund Fund Fund 

334,403.00 
51,570.09 

103,310.53 

76,000 .00 0.00 410,403.00 469,411.18 
156,000.00 276,758.91 484,329.00 425,320.82 
98,880.02 123,829.38 326,019.93 326,019.93 

Carry 
Forward 

59,008 .18 
0.00 

Projected 
33 ,860 

6. Comparative cost of tracking offenders on home confinement vs. other 
community offender proposals? 

The Division proposes to utilizes the following alternatives to incarceration : 

Type 
a. House Arrest/ Home Detention 
b. Community Placement Program 
c. Jail/Parole Violators 
d. Halfway House 
e. Three-Day Parole Hold 
f. Day Reporting 
g. DOCR Room 

Projected Daily Cost 
$25 
$25 
$45 
$40 
$45 
$12 
$10 



AGE OF COMMUNITY BASED OFFENDERS ON JANUARY 19, 1999 

Total Total 
Number of Number of 

AGE Offenders AGE Offenders 
17 3 59 5 
18 12 60 6 
19 71 61 10 
20 140 62 4 
21 180 63 6 
22 189 64 2 
23 175 65 3 
24 156 66 4 
25 146 67 3 
26 123 68 2 
27 107 69 3 
28 122 70 3 
29 94 71 0 
30 110 72 4 
31 92 73 1 
32 89 74 0 
33 73 75 3 
34 86 76 0 
35 74 77 0 
36 72 78 0 
37 82 79 1 
38 90 80 0 
39 78 81 0 
40 60 82 1 
41 60 3,003 
42 58 
43 54 
44 44 
45 46 
46 48 
47 32 
48 29 
49 18 
50 26 
51 19 
52 17 
53 13 
54 8 
55 16 
56 19 
57 8 
58 3 

1/20/994:04 PM 



Month and Year 
July 1999 
August 1999 
September 1999 
October 1999 
November 1999 
December 1999 
January 2000 
February 2000 
March 2000 
April 2000 
May 2000 
June 2000 

July 2000 
August 2000 
September 2000 
October 2000 
November 2000 
December 2000 
January 2001 
February 2001 
March 2001 
April 2001 
May 2001 
June 2001 

July 2001 

l 51 Year - 15 percent 
2nd Year - 10 percent • Human Resources S. ittee 

House Appropriations "'_,..1ittee 
January 18, 1999 

PROJECTED INMATE POPULATION 
1999-2001 BIENNIUM 

~ ,,~- bacl.) Inmates 
Estimated Adjusted for Contracted/Housed 

Population Alternatives Prison Capacity Outside of System Cost 
1000 (63) 937 861 76 (x31 x$55) = $129,580 
1012 (73) 939 861 78 (x31 x$55) = 132,990 
1024 (84) 940 861 79 (x30x$55) = 130,350 
1036 (95) 941 861 80 (x31 x$55) == 136,400 
1048 (107) 941 861 80 (x30x$55) = 132,000 
1060 (109) 951 861 90 (x31 x$55) == 153,450 
1072 ( 112) 960 861 99 (x31 x$55) = 168,795 
1085 (114) 971 861 110 (x28x$55) = 169,400 
1098 (117) 981 861 120 (x31 x$55) - 204,600 
1111 ( 119) 992 861 131 (x30x$55) == 216, 1 so 
1124 (121) 1003 971 32 (x31 x$55) -= 54,560 
1137 (122) 1015 971 44 (x30x$55) == 72,600 

1150 (123) 1027 971 56 (x31 x$60) == $ 104,160 
1159 (124) 1035 971 64 (x31 x$60) = 119,040 
1168 (126) 1042 971 71 (x30x$60) == 127,800 
1177 (127) 1050 971 79 (x31 x$60) == 146,940 
1186 (128) 1058 971 87 (x30x$60) == 156,600 
1195 (128) 1067 971 96 (x31 x$60) == 178,560 
1205 (128) 1077 971 106 (x31 x$60) == 197,160 
1215 (128) 1087 971 116 (x28x$60) == 194,880 
1225 (128) 1097 971 126 (x31 x$60) = 234,360 
1235 (128) 1107 971 136 (x30x$60) == 244,800 
1245 (128) 1117 971 146 (x31 x$60) = 271,560 
1255 (128) 1127 971 156 (x30x$60) = 280,800 

1265 
TOTAL CONTRACTING COST *i3t957t535 

*This number will vary somewhat depending upon the scenario used for adjusting the inmate population for the alternative to 
incarceration impact. 



Month and Year 
July 1999 
August 1999 
September 1999 
October 1 999 
November 1999 
December 1999 
January 2000 
February 2000 
March 2000 
April 2000 
May 2000 
June 2000 

July 2000 
August 2000 
September 2000 
October 2000 
November 2000 
December 2000 
January 2001 
February 2001 
March 2001 
April 2001 
May 2001 
June 2001 

July 2001 

1st Year - 14 percent 
2nd Year - 9 ercent • Human Resources Su. ittee 

House Appropriations '"' nittee 
January 18, 1999 

PROJECTED INMATE POPULATION 
1999-2001 BIENNIUM 

Inmates 
Estimated Adjusted for Contracted/Housed 

Population Alternatives Prison Capacity Outside of System Cost 
1000 (63) 937 861 76 (x31 x$55) = $129,580 
1011 (73) 938 861 77 (x31 x$55) = 131,285 
1022 (84) 938 861 77 (x30x$55) = 127,050 
1033 (95) 938 861 77 (x31 x$55) = 131,285 
1044 (107) 937 861 76 (x30x$55) = 125,400 
1056 (109) 947 861 86 (x31 x$55) = 146,630 
1068 ( 112) 956 861 95 (x31x$55) = 161,975 
1080 (114) 966 861 105 (x28x$55) == 161,700 
1092 (117) 975 861 114 (x31 x$55) = 194,370 
1104 (119) 985 861 124 (x30x$55) = 204,600 
1116 (121) 995 971 24 (x31 x$55) = 40,920 
1128 (122) 1006 971 35 (x30x$55) = 57,750 

1140 (123) 1017 971 46 (x31 x$60) = $ 85,560 
1148 (124) 1024 971 53 (x31 x$60) = 98,580 
1156 (126) 1030 971 59 (x30x$60) = 106,200 
1164 (127) 1037 971 66 (x31 x$60) = 122,760 
1172 (128) 1044 971 73 (x30x$60) = 131,400 
1180 (128) 1052 971 81 (x31 x$60) = 150,660 
1189 (128) 1061 971 90 (x31 x$60) = 167,400 
1198 (128) 1070 971 99 (x28x$60) = 166,320 
1207 (128) 1079 971 108 (x31 x$60) = 200,880 
1216 (128) 1088 971 117 (x30x$60) = 210,600 
1225 (128) 1097 971 126 (x31 x$60) == 234,360 
1234 (128) 1106 971 135 (x30x$60) = 243,000 

1243 
TOTAL CONTRACTING COST *i3i530i265 

*This number will vary somewhat depending upon the scenario used for adjusting the inmate population for the alternative to 
incarceration impact. 



Month and Year 
July 1999 
August 1999 
September 1999 
October 1 999 
November 1999 
December 1 999 
January 2000 
February 2000 
March 2000 
April 2000 
May 2000 
June 2000 

July 2000 
August 2000 
September 2000 
October 2000 
November 2000 
December 2000 
January 2001 
February 2001 
March 2001 
April 2001 
May 2001 
June 2001 

July 2001 

l st Year - 13 percent 
2nd Year - 8 ercent • Human Resources Su- ittee 

House Appropriations~ ittee 
January 18, 1999 

PROJECTED INMATE POPULATION 
1999-2001 BIENNIUM 

Inmates 
Estimated Adjusted for Contracted/Housed 

Population Alternatives Prison Capacity Outside of System Cost 
1000 (63) 937 861 76 (x31 x$55) = $129,580 
1010 (73) 937 861 76 (x31 x$55) = 129,580 
1020 (84) 936 861 75 (x30x$55) = 123,750 
1031 (95) 936 861 75 (x31 x$55) = 127,875 
1042 (107) 935 861 74 (x30x$55) = 122,100 
1053 (109) 944 861 83 (x31 x$55) = 141,515 
1064 (112) 952 861 91 (x31 x$55) = 155,155 
1075 (114) 961 861 100 (x28x$55) .... 154,000 
1086 (117) 969 861 108 (x31 x$55) = 184,140 
1097 (119) 978 861 117 (x30x$55) = 193,050 
1108 (121) 987 971 16 (x31 x$55) = 27,280 
1119 (122) 997 971 26 (x30x$55) = 42,900 

1130 (123) 1007 971 36 (x31 x$60) = $ 66,960 
1137 (124) 1013 971 42 (x31 x$60) = 78, 120 
1144 (126) 1018 971 47 (x30x$60) = 84,600 
1151 (127) 1024 971 53 (x31 x$60) -= 98,580 
1158 (128) 1030 971 59 (x30x$60) = 106,200 
1165 (128) 1037 971 66 (x31 x$60) = 122,760 
1172 (128) 1044 971 73 (x31 x$60) = 135,780 
1180 (128) 1052 971 81 (x28x$60) = 136,080 
1188 (128) 1060 971 89 (x31 x$60) = 165,540 
1196 (128) 1068 971 97 (x30x$60) = 174,600 
1204 (128) 1076 971 105 (x31 x$60) = 195,300 
1212 (128) 1084 971 113 (x30x$60) = 203,400 

1220 
TOTAL CONTRACTING COST *i3,098,845 

*This number will vary somewhat depending upon the scenario used for adjusting the inmate population for the alternative to 
incarceration impact. 



Month and Year 
July 1999 
August 1999 
September 1999 
October 1999 
November 1999 
December 1999 
January 2000 
February 2000 
March 2000 
April 2000 
May 2000 
June 2000 

July 2000 
August 2000 
September 2000 
October 2000 
November 2000 
December 2000 
January 2001 
February 2001 
March 2001 
April 2001 
May 2001 
June 2001 

July 2001 

I st Year - IO percent 
2nd Year - IO ercent 

Human Resources Subcommir 
House Appropriations Committee _ 

January 25, 1999 

PROJECTED INMATE POPULATION 
1999-2001 BIENNIUM 

(Average 115 Beds) Inmates 
Estimated Adjusted for Contracted/Housed 
Population Alternatives Prison Capacity Outside of System Cost 

1000 (63) 937 861 76 (x31 x$55) = $129,580 
1008 (73) 935 861 74 (x31 x$55) = 126,170 
1016 (84) 932 861 71 (x30x$55) = 117,150 
1024 (95) 929 861 68 (x31 x$55) = 115,940 
1032 (107) 925 861 64 (x30x$55) = 105,600 
1040 (109) 931 861 70 (x31 x$55) = 119,350 
1048 ( 112) 936 861 75 (x31 x$55) = 127,875 
1056 ( 114) 942 861 81 (x28x$55) = 124,740 
1064 (117) 947 861 86 (x31 x$55) = 146,630 
1073 (119) 954 861 93 (x30x$55) = 153,450 
1082 ( 121) 961 971 (10) (x31 x$55) = 0 
1091 (122) 969 971 (2) (x30x$55) -= 0 

1100 (123) 977 971 6 (x31 x$60) = $ 11, 160 
1109 (124) 985 971 14 (x31 x$60) = 26,040 
1118 (126) 992 971 21 (x30x$60) - 37,800 
1127 (127) 1000 971 29 (x31 x$60) - 53,940 
1136 (128) 1008 971 37 (x30x$60) = 66,600 
1145 (128) 1017 971 46 (x31 x$60) = 85,560 
1154 (128) 1026 971 55 (x31 x$60) = 102,300 
1163 (128) 1035 971 64 (x28x$60) = 107,520 
1172 (128) 1044 971 73 (x31 x$60) = 135,780 
1181 (128) 1053 971 82 (x30x$60) = 147,600 
1190 (128) 1062 971 91 (x31 x$60) = 169,260 
1200 (128) 1072 971 101 (x30x$60) = 181,800 

1210 
TOTAL CONTRACTING COST *~213911845 

*This number will vary somewhat depending upon the scenario used for adjusting the inmate population for the alternative to 
incarr 1tion impact. 



Estimated Growth 

Month and Year 
July 1999 
August 1999 
September 1999 
October 1 999 
November 1999 
December 1999 
January 2000 
February 2000 
March 2000 
April 2000 
May 2000 
June 2000 

July 2000 
August 2000 
September 2000 
October 2000 
November 2000 
December 2000 
January 2001 
February 2001 
March 2001 
April 2001 
May 2001 
June 2001 

July 2001 

I" Year - 10 percent 
2nd Year - IO percent • Human Resources Subco 

House Appropriations C 
January 2 , 

PROJECTED INMATE POPULATION 
1999-2001 BIENNIUM 

Inmates 
Estimated Adjusted for Contracted/Housed 

Population Alternatives Prison Capacity Outside of System 
1000 (75) 925 861 64 (x31 x$55) = 
1008 (95) 913 861 52 (x31 x$55) -
1016 (115) 901 861 40 (x30x$55) -
1024 (135) 889 861 28 (x31x$55) = 

1032 (135) 897 861 36 (x30x$55) = 
1040 (135) 905 861 44 (x31x$55) -
1048 (135) 913 861 52 (x3lx$55) -
1056 (135) 921 861 60 (x28x$55) = 

1064 (135) 929 861 68 (x31 x$55) = 
1073 (135) 938 861 77 (x30x$55) -
1082 (135) 947 971 (24) (x31x$55) -
1091 (135) 956 971 ( 15) (x30x$55) = 

1100 (135) 965 971 (6) (x31 x$60) = 
1109 (135) 974 971 3 (x3 l x$60) -
1118 (135) 983 971 12 (x30x$60) = 
1127 (135) 992 971 21 (x31 x$60) = 
1136 (135) 1001 971 30 (x30x$60) = 
1145 (135) 1010 971 39 (x31x$60) = 
1154 (135) 1019 971 48 (x31x$60) = 
1163 (135) 1028 971 57 (x28x$60) = 
1172 (135) 1037 971 66 (x31 x$60) = 
1181 (135) 1046 971 75 (x30x$60) = 
1190 (135) 1055 971 84 (x31 x$60) = 
1200 (135) 1065 971 94 (x30x$60) = 

1210 

Cost 
$109,120 

88,660 
66,000 
47,740 
59,400 
75,020 
88,660 
92,400 

115,940 
127,050 

0 
0 

$ 0 
5,580 

21,600 
39,060 
54,000 
72,540 
89,280 
95,760 

122,760 
135,000 
156,240 
169,200 

TOTAL CONTRACTING COST *i1,831,010 

*This number will vary somewhat depending upon the scenario used for adjusting the inmate population for the alternative to 
incarceration impact. 



• -"'Es""-'ti.,_,_,m.,,.,at::::.,:cd,.._,G"-"ro,:..:""-"'tl'-'-1 ____ _,2=--"d_,Y'-"-ea,,,.,_r_- .::,,.8-""pe::.e..:rc=ent 
1" Year-13 percent • Human Resources Subcomm,. 

House Appropriations Comm 
January 25, I 

Estimated 
Month and Year Population 

July 1999 1000 
August 1999 1010 
September 1999 1020 
October 1999 1031 
November 1999 1042 
December 1 999 1053 
January 2000 1064 
February 2000 1075 
March 2000 1086 
April 2000 1097 
May 2000 1108 
June 2000 1119 

July 2000 1130 
August 2000 1137 
September 2000 1144 
October 2000 1151 
November 2000 1158 
December 2000 1165 
January 2001 1172 
February 2001 1180 
March 2001 1188 
April 2001 1196 
May 2001 1204 
June 2001 1212 

July 2001 1220 

PROJECTED INMATE POPULATION 
1999-2001 BIENNIUM 

Inmates 
Adjusted for Contracted/Housed 
Alternatives Prison Capacity Outside of System 

(75) 925 861 64 (x31 x$55) 
(95) 915 861 54 (x31 x$55) 
(115) 905 861 44 (x30x$55) 
(135) 896 861 35 (x31x$55) 
(135) 907 861 46 (x30x$55) 
(135) 918 861 57 (x31 x$55) 
(135) 929 861 68 (x31 x$55) 
(135) 940 861 79 (x28x$55) 
(135) 951 861 90 (x31x$55) 
(135) 962 861 101 (x30x$55) 
(135) 913 971 2 (x31x$55) 
(135) 984 971 13 (x30x$55) 

(135) 995 971 24 (x31 x$60) 
(135) 1002 971 31 (x31 x$60) 
(135) 1009 971 38 (x30x$60) 
(135) 1016 971 45 (x31x$60) 
(135) 1023 971 52 (x30x$60) 
(135) 1030 971 59 (x3 lx$60) 
(135) 1037 971 66 (x31 x$60) 
(135) 1045 971 74 (x28x$60) 
(135) 1053 971 82 (x31 x$60) 
(135) 1061 971 90 (x30x$60) 
(135) 1069 971 98 (x31 x$60) 
(135) 1077 971 106 (x30x$60) 

TOTAL CONTRACTING COST 

Cost 

= $109,120 

= 92,070 

- 72,600 

- 59,675 

- 75,900 
= 97,185 
= 115,940 

- 121,660 

- 153,450 

- 166,650 

- 3,410 

- 21,450 

- $44,640 

- 57,660 
= 68,400 
= 83,700 
= 93,600 
= 109,740 
= 122,760 

- 124,320 

- 152,520 
= 162,000 

- 182,280 
= 190,800 

*i2,481,530 

*This number will vary somewhat depending upon the scenario used for adjusting the inmate population for the alternative to 
incar.CP.ration impact. 



• Estimated Growth 

Month and Year 
July 1999 
August 1999 
September 1999 
October 1999 
November 1999 
December 1999 
January 2000 
February 2000 
March 2000 
April 2000 
May 2000 
June 2000 

Julv 2000 
August 2000 
September 2000 
October 2000 
November 2000 
December 2000 
January 2001 
February 2001 
March 2001 
April 2001 
May 2001 
June 2001 

July 2001 

I" Year - 14 percent 
2nd Year - 9 percent 

Human Resources Sub 
House Appropriations 

January 

PROJECTED INMATE POPULATION 
1999-2001 BIENNIUM 

Inmates 
Estimated Adjusted for Contracted/Housed 
Population Alternatives Prison Capacity Outside of System 

1000 (75) 925 861 64 (x31 x$55) = 

1011 (95) 916 861 55 (x31 x$55) -
1022 (115) 907 861 46 (x30x$55) = 
1033 (135) 898 861 37 (x31x$55) = 
1044 (135) 909 861 48 (x30x$55) = 
1056 (135) 921 861 60 (x31 x$55) = 
1068 (135) 933 861 72 (x31x$55) = 

1080 (135) 945 861 84 (x28x$55) = 
1092 (135) 957 861 96 (x31x$55) = 

1104 (135) 969 861 108 (x30x$55) -
1116 (135) 981 971 10 (x31 x$55) -
1128 (135) 993 971 22 (x30x$55) -
1140 (135) 1005 971 34 (x3 lx$60) = 
1148 (135) 1013 971 42 (x31x$60) = 
1156 (135) 1021 971 so (x30x$60) -
1164 (135) 1029 971 58 (x31 x$60) -
1172 (135) 1037 971 66 (x30x$60) = 
1180 (135) 1045 971 74 (x31 x$60) = 

1189 (135) 1059 971 83 (x31 x$60) = 
1198 (135) 1063 971 92 (x28x$60) = 

1207 (135) 1072 971 101 (x31 x$60) = 
1216 (135) 1081 971 110 (x30x$60) = 
1225 (135) 1090 971 119 (x31x$60) = 
1234 (135) 1099 971 128 (x30x$60) = 

1243 
TOT Al CONTRACTING COST 

Cost 
$109,120 

93,775 
75,900 
63,085 
79,200 

102,300 
122,760 
129,360 
163,680 
178,200 

17,050 
36,300 

$63,240 
78,120 
90,000 

107,880 
118,800 
137,640 
154,380 
154,560 
187,860 
198,000 
221,340 
230,400 

•i21912,950 

*This number will vary somewhat depending upon the scenario used for adjusting the inmate population for the alternative to 
incarceration impact. 



• Est im;i1cd Growth 

Month and Year 
July 1999 
August 1999 
September 1999 
October 1999 
November 1999 
December 1999 
January 2000 
February 2000 
M arch 2000 
April 2000 
M ay 2000 
June 2000 

July 2000 
August 2000 
September 2000 
October 2000 
November 2000 
December 2000 
January 2001 
February 2001 
March 2001 
April 2001 
May 2001 
June 2001 

July 2001 

l" Yc.ir - 15 percent 
2"J Y c;i r - IO pcrcc111 

I tum;in Resources SulJCDI 
I-l ouse Appropriation~ C 

January 

PROJECTED INMATE POPULATION 
1999-2001 BIENNIUM 

Inmates 
Estimated Adjusted for Contracted/Housed 
Population Alternatives Prison Capacity Outside of System 

1000 (75) 925 861 64 (x31 x$55) ~ 

1012 (95) 917 861 56 (x31 x$55) = 
1024 (115) 909 861 48 (x30x$55) = 
1036 (135) 901 861 40 (x31 x$55) = 
1048 (135) 913 861 52 (x30x$55) -
1060 (135) 925 861 64 (x31 x$55) -
1072 (135) 937 861 76 (x31 x$55) -
1085 (135) 950 861 89 (x28x$55) = 

1098 (135) 963 861 102 (x31 x$55) = 

1111 (135) 976 861 115 (x30x$55) -
1124 (135) 989 971 18 (x31x$55) = 

1137 (135) 1002 971 31 (x30x$55) -
1150 (135) 1015 971 44 (x3 lx$60) -
1159 (135) 1024 971 53 (x31 x$60) = 

1168 (135) 1033 971 62 (x30x$60) = 

1177 (135) 1042 971 71 (x31x$60) = 
1186 (135) 1051 971 80 (x30x$60) = 

1195 (135) 1060 971 89 (x3 lx$60) = 
1205 (135) 1070 971 99 (x31 x$60) -
1215 (135) 1080 971 109 (x28x$60) = 

1225 (135) 1090 971 119 (x31 x$60) = 
1235 (135) 1100 971 129 (x30x$60) = 

1245 (135) 1110 971 139 (x31x$60) = 

1255 (135) 1120 971 149 (x30x$60) = 

1265 

Cost 
$109,120 

95,480 
79,200 
68,200 
85,800 

109,120 
129,580 
137,060 
173,910 
189,750 

30,690 
51,150 

$81,840 
98,580 

111,600 
132,060 
144,000 
165,540 
184,140 
183,120 
221,340 
232,200 
258,540 
268,200 

TOTAL CONTRACTING COST *i31340,220 

*This number will vary somewhat depending upon the scenario used for adjusting the inmate population for the alternative to 

incaveration impact. 



Month and Year 
July 1999 
August 1999 
September 1999 
October 1 999 
November 1999 
December 1999 
January 2000 
February 2000 
March 2000 
April 2000 
May 2000 
June 2000 

July 2000 
August 2000 
September 2000 
October 2000 
November 2000 
December 2000 
January 2001 
February 2001 
March 2001 
April 2001 
May 2001 
June 2001 

July 2001 

l st Year - IO percent 
2nd Year - 15 ercent • Human Resources Subcommi-t 

House Appropriations Commi 
February l 0, E 

PROJECTED INMATE POPULATION 
1999-2001 BIENNIUM 

Inmates 
Estimated Adjusted for Contracted/Housed 

Population Alternatives Prison Capacity Outside of System Cost 
950 (75) 875 861 14 (x31 x$55) = $ 23,870 
957 (95) 862 861 1 (x31 x$55) = 1,705 
965 ( 11 5) 850 861 0 (x30x$55) = 0 
973 (135) 838 861 0 (x31x$55) = 0 
981 ( 13 5) 846 861 0 (x30x$55) = 0 
989 ( 13 5) 854 861 0 (x31x$55) = 0 
997 (13 5) 862 861 1 (x31 x$55) = 1,705 
1005 (135) 870 861 9 (x28x$55) = 13,860 
1013 (135) 878 861 17 (x31 x$55) = 28,985 
1021 ( 135) 886 861 25 (x30x$55) = 41,250 
1029 ( 13 5) 894 971 0 (x31 x$55) = 0 
1037 ( 135) 902 971 0 (x30x$55) = 0 

1045 ( 1 35) 910 971 0 (x31 x$60) = $ 0 
1058 ( 1 35) 923 971 0 (x31 x$60) = 0 
1071 ( 135) 936 971 0 (x30x$60) = 0 
1084 (135) 949 971 0 (x31 x$60) = 0 
1097 (13 5) 962 971 0 (x30x$60) = 0 
1110 ( 135) 975 971 4 (x31 x$60) = 7,440 
1123 (1 35) 988 971 17 (x31 x$60) = 31,620 
1136 (135) 1001 971 30 (x28x$60) = 50,400 
1149 ( 135) 1014 971 43 (x31 x$60) = 79,980 
1162 ( 135) 1027 971 56 (x30x$60) = 100,800 
11 75 ( 135) 1040 971 69 (x31 x$60) = 128,340 
1188 (135) 1053 971 82 (x30x$60) = 147,600 

1202 
TOTAL CONTRACTING COST *$6571555 

*This number will vary somewhat depending upon the scenario used for adjusting the inmate population for the alternative to 
incar~p1,tation impact. 



wth 

Month and Year 
July 1999 
August 1999 
September 1999 
October 1 999 
November 1999 
December 1999 
January 2000 
February 2000 
March 2000 
April 2000 
May 2000 
June 2000 

July 2000 
August 2000 
September 2000 
October 2000 
November 2000 
December 2000 
January 2001 
February 2001 
March 2001 
April 2001 
May 2001 
June 2001 

July 2001 

!"Year- IO percent 
2nd Year - 13 ercent 

Human Resources Subcommi , 
House Appropriations Commi 

February I 0, I . 

PROJECTED INMATE POPULATION 
1999-2001 BIENNIUM 

Inmates 
Estimated Adjusted for Contracted/Housed 

Population Alternatives Prison Capacity Outside of System Cost 
950 (75) 875 861 14 (x31 x$55) = $ 23,870 
957 (95) 862 861 1 (x31 x$55) = 1,705 
965 ( 11 5) 850 861 0 (x30x$55) = 0 
973 (135) 838 861 0 (x31 x$55) = 0 
981 (135) 846 861 0 (x30x$55) = 0 
989 (13 5) 854 861 0 (x31 x$55) = 0 
997 (1 35) 862 861 1 (x31 x$55) = 1,705 
1005 (135) 870 861 9 (x28x$55) = 13,860 
1013 (135) 878 861 17 (x31 x$55) = 28,985 
1021 (135) 886 861 25 (x30x$55) = 41,250 
1029 ( 13 5) 894 971 0 (x31 x$55) = 0 
1037 (13 5) 902 971 0 (x30x$55) = 0 

1045 (135) 910 971 0 (x31 x$60) = $ 0 
1056 (135) 921 971 0 (x31 x$60) = 0 
1067 ( 135) 932 971 0 (x30x$60) = 0 
1078 ( 135) 943 971 0 (x31 x$60) = 0 
1089 (135) 954 971 0 (x30x$60) = 0 
1100 ( 1 35) 965 971 0 (x31 x$60) = 0 
1111 (135) 976 971 5 (x31 x$60) = 9,300 
1122 (135) 987 971 16 (x28x$60) = 26,880 
1133 (135) 998 971 27 (x31 x$60) = 50,220 
1144 ( 13 5) 1009 971 38 (x30x$60) = 68,400 
1156 (135) 1021 971 50 (x31 x$60) = 93,000 
1168 (135) 1033 971 62 (x30x$60) = 111,600 

1180 

TOTAL CONTRACTING COST *$4701775 

*This number will vary somewhat depending upon the scenario used for adjusting the inmate population for the alternative to 
incarc~tion impact. 



I -

wth 

Month and Year 
July 1999 
August 1999 
September 1999 
October 1999 
November 1999 
December 1999 
January 2000 
February 2000 
March 2000 
April 2000 
May 2000 
June 2000 

July 2000 
August 2000 
September 2000 
October 2000 
November 2000 
December 2000 
January 2001 
February 2001 
March 2001 
April 2001 
May 2001 
June 2001 

July 2001 

I" Y car - 9 percent 
2nd Year - 12 ercent 

Hum an Resources Subcomm i 
House Appropriations Cammi 

February I 0, I _ 

PROJECTED INMATE POPULATION 
1999-2001 BIENNIUM 

Inmates 
Estimated Adjusted for Contracted/Housed 

Population Alternatives Prison Capacity Outside of System Cost 
950 (75) 875 861 14 (x31 x$55) = $ 23,870 
957 (95) 862 861 1 (x31 x$55) = 1,705 
964 ( 11 5) 849 861 0 (x30x$55) = 0 
971 (135) 836 861 0 (x31x$55) = 0 
978 ( 135) 843 861 0 (x30x$55) = 0 
985 (135) 850 861 0 (x31 x$55) = 0 
992 (135) 857 861 0 (x31 x$55) = 0 
999 ( 135) 864 861 3 (x28x$55) = 4,620 
1006 (135) 871 861 10 (x31 x$55) = 17,050 
1013 (135) 878 861 17 (x30x$55) = 28,050 
1020 (135) 885 971 0 (x31x$55) = 0 
1028 (135) 893 971 0 (x30x$55) = 0 

1036 ( 1 35) 901 971 0 (x31 x$60) = $ 0 
1046 (135) 911 971 0 (x31 x$60) = 0 
1056 (135) 921 971 0 (x30x$60) = 0 
1066 ( 13 5) 931 971 0 (x31 x$60) = 0 
1076 (135) 941 971 0 (x30x$60) = 0 
1086 (135) 951 971 0 (x31 x$60) = 0 
1096 (135) 961 971 0 (x31 x$60) = 0 
1106 ( 13 5) 971 971 0 (x28x$60) = 0 
1116 (135) 981 971 10 (x31 x$60) = 18,600 
1127 (135) 992 971 21 (x30x$60) = 37,800 
1138 (135) 1003 971 32 (x31 x$60) = 59,520 
1149 (135) 1014 971 43 (x30x$60) = 77,400 

1160 

TOTAL CONTRACTING COST *$2681615 

*This number will vary somewhat depending upon the scenario used for adjusting the inmate population for the alternative to 
incar~ tion ~pact. 



Month and Year 
July 1999 
August 1999 
September 1999 
October 1999 
November 1999 
December 1999 
January 2000 
February 2000 
March 2000 
April 2000 
May 2000 
June 2000 

July 2000 
August 2000 
September 2000 
October 2000 
November 2000 
December 2000 
January 2001 
February 2001 
March 2001 
April 2001 
May 2001 
June 2001 

July 2001 

1st Year - 8 percent 
2nd Year - 11 ercent 

Human Resources Subcommi 
House Appropriations Commi 

February 10, l '. 

PROJECTED INMATE POPULATION 
1999-2001 BIENNIUM 

Inmates 
Estimated Adjusted for Contracted/Housed 

Population Alternatives Prison Capacity Outside of System Cost 
950 (75) 875 861 14 (x31 x$55) = $ 23,870 
956 (95) 861 861 0 (x31 x$55) = 0 
962 (115) 847 861 0 (x30x$55) = 0 
968 (135) 833 861 0 (x31 x$55) = 0 
974 (135) 839 861 0 (x30x$55) = 0 
980 (135) 845 861 0 (x31 x$55) = 0 
986 (135) 851 861 0 (x31x$55) = 0 
992 (135) 857 861 0 (x28x$55) = 0 
998 ( 135) 863 861 2 (x31x$55) = 3,410 
1005 (135) 870 861 9 (x30x$55) = 14,850 
1012 (135) 877 971 0 (x31 x$55) = 0 
1019 (135) 844 971 0 (x30x$55) = 0 

1026 (135) 891 971 0 (x31 x$60) = $ 0 
1035 ( 135) 900 971 0 (x31 x$60) = 0 
1044 (135) 909 971 0 (x30x$60) = 0 
1053 (135) 918 971 0 (x31 x$60) = 0 
1062 (135) 927 971 0 (x30x$60) = 0 
1071 (135) 936 971 0 (x31 x$60) = 0 
1080 (135) 945 971 0 (x31 x$60) = 0 
1089 (13 5) 954 971 0 (x28x$60) = 0 
1099 (135) 964 971 0 (x31 x$60) = 0 
1109 (135) 974 971 3 (x30x$60) = 5,400 
1119 (135) 984 971 13 (x31 x$60) = 24,180 
1129 (135) 994 971 23 (x30x$60) = 41,400 

1139 
TOTAL CONTRACTING COST *$1131110 

*This number will vary somewhat depending upon the scenario used for adjusting the inmate population for the alternative to 
incarc~tion impact. 



Month and Year 

July 1999 
August 1999 
September 1999 
October 1999 
November 1999 
December 1999 
January 2000 
February 2000 
March 2000 
April 2000 
May 2000 
June 2000 

July 2000 
August 2000 
September 2000 
October 2000 
November 2000 
December 2000 
January 2001 
February 2001 
March 2001 
April 2001 
May 2001 
June 2001 

July 2001 

I st Year - 10 percent 
2nd Year - 15 percent 

PROJECTED IN POPULATION 
1999-2001 BIENNIUM 

(Average 115 Prison Beds 
Estimated Saved) Inmates 
Population Adjusted for Prison Capacity Contracted/Housed 

Alternatives Outside of System 
975 (63) 912 861 51 (x31 x$55) 
983 (73) 910 861 49 (x31 x$55) 
991 (84) 907 861 46 (x30x$55) 
999 (95) 904 861 43 (x31 x$55) 
1007 (107) 900 861 39 (x30x$55) 
1015 (109) 906 861 45 (x31 x$55) 
1023 (112) 911 861 50 (x31 x$55) 
1031 (114) 917 861 56 (x28x$55) 
1039 ( 11 7) 922 861 61 (x31 x$55) 
1047 ( 119) 928 861 67 (x30x$55) 
1055 (121) 934 971 15 (x31 x$55) 
1063 (122) 941 971 15 (x30x$55) 

1072 (123) 949 971 15 (x31 x$60) 
1085 (124) 961 971 15 (x31 x$60) 
1098 (126) 972 971 15 (x30x$60) 
1111 (127) 984 971 15 (x31 x$60) 
1124 (128) 996 971 25 (x30x$60) 
1137 (128) 1009 971 38 (x31 x$60) 
1150 (128) 1022 971 51 (x31 x$60) 
1163 (128) 1035 971 64 (x28x$60) 

1177 (128) 1049 971 78 (x31 x$60) 

1191 (128) 1063 971 92 (x30x$60) 
1205 (128) 1077 971 106 (x31 x$60) 
1219 (128) 1091 971 120 (x30x$60) 

1233 
TOTAL CONTRACTING COST 

February 17 

Cost 

= $ 86,955 
= 83,545 
= 75,900 
= 73,315 
= 64,350 
= 76,725 
= 85,250 
= 86,240 
= 104,005 
= 110,550 
= 25,575 
= 24,750 

= $ 27,900 
= 27,900 

= 27,000 
= 27,900 
= 45,000 
= 70,680 

= 94,860 
= 107,520 

= 145,080 

= 165,600 
= 197,160 
= 216,000 

*$210491760 

*This amount was reduced from $4,085,300 in the Executive Budget pursuant to the revised inmate population projections. 



Esti. rowth 
Is Year - 0 percent 
2nd Year - l 5 percent Revised March 19 

HOUSk SION 
PROJECTED INMATE POPULATION 

1999-2001 BIENNIUM 

(Average 135 Prison Beds 
Estimated Saved) Inmates 

Month and Year Population Adjusted for Prison Capacity Contracted/Housed Cost 
Alternatives Outside of System 

July 1999 950 (75) 875 861 15@ $47 = $21,855 
August 1999 957 (95) 862 861 15@ $47 = 21,855 
September 1999 965 (115) 850 861 15@ $47 = 21,855 
October 1999 973 (135) 838 861 15@ $47 = 21,855 
November 1999 981 (135) 846 861 15@ $47 = 21,855 
December 1999 989 (135) 854 861 15@ $47 = 21,855 
January 2000 997 (135) 862 861 15@ $47 = 21,855 
February 2000 1005 (135) 870 861 15@ $47 = 21,855 
March 2000 1013 (135) 878 861 17@ $47 = 24,769 
April 2000 1021 (135) 886 861 25@ $47 = 36,425 
May 2000 1029 (135) 894 861 33@ $47 = 48,081 
June 2000 1037 (135) 902 861 41 @ $47 = 59,737 

July 2000 1045 (135) 910 861 49@ $47 = $ 71,393 
August 2000 1058 (135) 923 861 62@ $47 = 90,334 
September 2000 1071 (135) 936 861 75@ $47 = 109,275 
October 2000 1084 (135) 949 861 88 (82@$47, 6@$60) = 130,634 
November 2000 1097 (135) 962 861 101 (82@$47, 19@$60) = 154,814 
December 2000 1110 (135) 975 861 114 (82@$47, 32@$60) = 178,994 
January 2001 1123 (135) 988 861 127 (82@$47, 45@$60) = 203,174 
February 2001 1136 (135) 1001 861 140 (82@$47, 58@$60) = 227,354 
March 2001 1149 (135) 1014 861 153 (82@$47, 71@$60) = 251,534 
April 2001 1162 (135) 1027 861 166 (82@$47, 84@$60) = 275,714 
May 2001 1175 (135) 1040 861 179 (82@$47, 97@$60) = 299,894 
June 2001 1188 (135) 1053 861 192 (82@$47, 110@$60) = 324,074 

July 2001 1202 
TOTAL CONTRACTING COST * i216611040 

*The estimated cost is based on the assun ption that an average of 82 beds will be available at county correctional facilities at an average cost of $47 per day. It 
is assumed that any prison beds in excess of 82 would be contracted with out-of-state facilities at a daily rate of $55 for FY2000 and $60 for FY2001 . 



Est. Growth 
1st Year- 0 percent 
2nd Year- 15 percent Revised March 19 

DOC~ ION 
PROJECTED INMATE POPULATION 

1999-2001 BIENNIUM 

(Average 115 Prison Beds 
Estimated Saved) Inmates 

Month and Year Population Adjusted for Prison Capacity Contracted/Housed Cost 
Alternatives Outside of System 

July 1999 975 (63) 912 861 51 (x31 x$55) = $ 86,955 
August 1999 983 (73) 910 861 49 (x31 x$55) = 83,545 
September 1999 991 (84) 907 861 46 (x30x$55) = 75,900 
October 1999 999 (95) 904 861 43 (x31 x$55) = 73,315 
November 1999 1007 (107) 900 861 39 (x30x$55) = 64,350 
December 1 999 1015 (109) 906 861 45 (x31 x$55) = 76,725 
January 2000 1023 (112) 911 861 50 (x31 x$55) = 85,250 
February 2000 1031 (114) 917 861 56 (x28x$55) = 86,240 
March 2000 1039 (117) 922 861 61 (x31 x$55) = 104,005 
April 2000 1047 (119) 928 861 67 (x30x$55) = 110,550 
May 2000 1055 (121) 934 861 73 (x31 x$55) = 124,465 
June 2000 1063 (122) 941 861 80 (x30x$55) = 132,000 

July 2000 1072 (123) 949 861 88 (x31 x$60) = $ 163,680 
August 2000 1085 (124) 961 861 100 (x31 x$60) = 186,000 
September 2000 1098 (126) 972 861 111 (x30x$60) - 199,800 
October 2000 1111 (127) 984 861 123 (x31 x$60) = 228,780 
November 2000 1124 (128) 996 971 25 (x30x$60) = 45,000 
December 2000 1137 (128) 1009 971 38 (x31 x$60) = 70,680 
January 2001 1150 (128) 1022 971 51 (x31 x$60) = 94,860 
February 2001 1163 (128) 1035 971 64 (x28x$60) = 107,520 
March 2001 1177 (128) 1049 971 78 (x31 x$60) = 145,080 
April 2001 1191 (128) 1063 971 92 (x30x$60) = 165,600 
May 2001 1205 (128) 1077 971 106 (x31 x$60) = 197,160 
June 2001 1219 (128) 1091 971 120 (x30x$60) = 216,000 

July 2001 1233 
TOT AL CONTRACT I NG COST *i21923i460 

*This amount is reduced from $4,( 85,300 in the Executive Budget pursuant to the revised inmate population projections and reflects 
an o erational date of Nov. 2000 for the 5th and 6th floors. p 



Est. Growth 
1st Year - 0 percent 
2nd Year - 15 percent March2 

DOCR VERSION (Usin se Contracting Costs) 
PROJECTED INMATE POPULATION 

1999-2001 BIENNIUM 

(Average 115 Prison Beds 
Estimated Saved) Inmates 

Month and Year Population Adjusted for Prison Capacity Contracted/Housed Cost 
Alternatives Outside of System 

July 1999 975 (63) 912 861 51 (x31 x$47) = $ 74,307 
August 1999 983 (73) 910 861 49 (x31 x$47) = 71,393 
September 1999 991 (84) 907 861 46 (x30x$47) = 64,860 
October 1 999 999 (95) 904 861 43 (x31 x$47) = 62,651 
November 1999 1007 (107) 900 861 39 (x30x$47) = 54,990 
December 1999 1015 (109) 906 861 45 (x31 x$47) = 65,565 
January 2000 1023 (112) 911 861 50 (x31 x$47) = 72,850 
February 2000 1031 (114) 917 861 56 (x28x$47) = 73,696 
March 2000 1039 (11 7) 922 861 61 (x31 x$47) = 88,877 
April 2000 1047 (119) 928 861 67 (x30x$47) = 94,470 
May 2000 1055 (121) 934 861 73 (x31 x$47) = 106,361 
June 2000 1063 (122) 941 861 80 (x30x$47) = 112,800 

July 2000 1072 (123) 949 861 88 82@$47, 6@$60 = $130,634 
August 2000 1085 (124) 961 861 100 82@$47, 18@$60 = 152,954 
September 2000 1098 (126) 972 861 111 82@$47, 29@$60 = 167,820 
October 2000 1111 (127) 984 861 123 82@$47, 41@$60 = 195,734 
November 2000 1124 (128) 996 971 25 (x30x$47) = 35,250 
December 2000 1137 (128) 1009 971 38 (x31 x$47) = 55,366 
January 2001 1150 (128) 1022 971 51 (x31 x$47) = 74,307 
February 2001 1163 (128) 1035 971 64 (x28x$47) = 84,224 
March 2001 1177 (128) 1049 971 78 (x31 x$47) = 113,646 
April 2001 1191 (128) 1063 971 92 82@$47, 10@$60 = 133,620 
May 2001 1205 (128) 1077 971 106 82@$47, 24@$60 = 164,114 
June 2001 1219 (128) 1091 971 120 82@$47, 38@$60 = 184,020 

Sub Total $2,434,509 
July 2001 1233 Travel Costs 46,000 

TOTAL CONTRACTING, STAFF, & TRAVEL COST $2AB0,509 
*This amount is reduced from $4,:5,300 in the Executive Budget pursuant to the revised inmate population proJectIons and reflects 
an operational date of Nov. 2000 

1 

r the s• and 6" floors. 
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I. Total cost and number of fnm.tn 

Co.lb 
Contracted 

Co.ttor ........ 
T- Con- Howlngal 

Coot for ....... "°""-... Conlnctad Hou1ing at Coun<y_, - llinnea<Ni c ......... ., -..... facllifr Facilfdea 

Ju4y 1997 $81,634 so $11 ,6>4 
Augwsl 1997 12,587 0 82,517 
Sep\efnbtt 1997 136,583 71 ,900 64 ,683 
Oc:.1obet 1997 147.963 77.500 70,463 
Novembef"1997 159,892 75,000 14,892 
Oec.embec 1997 199,266 95,500 103,766 
.Janu.-ry 1998 208,811 107,590 101,221 
febfuar, 19Sa 177.S8l 98,9SO 78,633 
March 1998 2 19,834 125,400 fiH ,434 
April 1998 221 ,8SO 135.700 513, lSO 
~y 1998 241.460 144,000 97,460 
June 1998 125.215 66 ,7S0 58.46S 
.Aiy1998 49,215 0 49,215 
August 1998 99.017 70,000 29.017 
Seple'mbet-1998 97.103 75,000 22,103 
October 1998 19,939 76.250 13.689 
November 1998 ----~!~ _ !•~54! -- 18,185 

Tola! ---R •f!#!!_ .41293990 .· $1 ~ .. CCKb pet' day per inmata 

Cinnd' ... .,_ Bottineau ...... 
July 1997 $45 '35 
August 1997 45 
September 1997 45 
Ociobet'1997 45 $45 
N~1997 45 .. 
December 1997 45 45 
January 1998 45 45 
f ebfuary 1998 45 .. 
Mard'l 1998 45 45 
Apnl 1998 45 35 45 

• 
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS ANO REHABILITATION COSTS TO CONTRACT FOR INMATE HOUSING 

JULY 1, 1997, TO NOVEMBER 30, 1991 

Nwnberof ......... 
Number of -.... Number of , ........ u_, - __ .., 

c .. -. ......... u- -T- u.- c .. -. --... N_,.af Co- - Communtty 
T- - - Nor111DakOU faclNIIN 

Numbo,o# ......... - c._ (Holfway 
lnmatn\1 E ............ Faclllty\2 fachitlM'2 Ho•n)\Z 

774 70 55 15 
768 70 0 S] 17 
771 103 50 41 12 
779 111 50 49 12 
7M 125 50 67 I 
l20 143 70 .. 
137 149 70 .. I] ... 155 .. 62 I] 
151 161 .. 62 15 ... 163 •• 61 7 
171 166 .. SI 15 
171 52 • 40 12 
921 ... • 25 15 
942 .. 50 25 15 ... 67 50 I • 955 61 50 I 11 
956 69 50 10 

iike 
·-Coat~ Da.r_ Pet Inmate .at Cou~ Correctional Facititin Con~ Willt °"!!!!I Month·---- __ 

R99ion McKonzlo - Pierce Richland R- Stutsman 

$40 $40 $35 $35 $45 
40 35 35 45 
40 $35 35 35 45 40 35 35 45 
40 35 40 35 35 45 
40 35 ,o 35 35 45 
40 40 35 35 45 40 40 35 45 40 

35 45 40 40 us 35 45 

Traill 

$35 
35 
35 

35 
35 

Walsh 

$40 ... 
40 

◄O 

40 

• P,.,,.,.. b1 lhe Notti Dakota legiM.alive Counal 
swr b Rep,eHn&aM S\leqan 

January 21. 1999 

CtMtP.,Oay 
Pertnrn.ta at 

Community Facilities 
(Halfw.,- HouaHJ 
ContrKtlMI With 

Durin9 Month 
Centre, Sharffiovae, 

Wan! WilliM!ts Inc. In<. 

$40 $40 $40 $40 
40 ◄O 40 ◄O 
40 40 40 40 
40 40 40 
40 40 40 
40 40 40 
40 40 ,o .. 40 40 
40 40 40 
40 40 40 

Cosl Per 
OayP..-.......... 

Appte(on. 
Minnesota, 

Prison 

$50 
50 
so 
50 
50 
50 
50 
50 
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M ay 1998 
June 1998 
July 1998 
August 1998 
Septernber 1998 
October 1998 
November 1998 

Bame• Bottineau 

45 35 
45 
45 JS 
45 
45 
45 
4S 

Grand uko ...... Region 

45 40 
45 40 

40 
40 
40 
40 
40 

Cost Per D•y Per lnmat• at County Correctional Facilitie• Contractltd With During Month 

McKenzie Morton Pierce Richtand Rolette 

40 35 35 
JS 40 JS JS 
JS 40 JS 
JS 40 JS 
JS 3S 
JS 
JS 

Ill. Estima.t.d inmAte beds available and coat pet clay - S.-.cted NOf'lh Dakot.a county facilities 

Eatirnatad 
Number of Prison Eatimatad 

Curnnt Number Bede Available Daitr' Rat. 
of Prison Curent for the 1H9-2001 for the 1199-2001 

Beds A<vailable Daily Rat. Bienium\3 Biennh,m 

Barnes 8 $4 5 •-s $4S 
Boutneau 0 $35--$40 $35-$40 

Grand Fcrts 0 $55 $SS 
Lake Region 15 $40 15 $40 
McK.enz.te , .. $JS 2 $JS 
Monon 0-3 $40 0 $4() 

Pterce $40 0-1 S40-S4S 
Richland 0 $40 s $4S 
Rolette •·• $JS • $JS 

Stutsman 10- 15 $45 1~15 $4S 
TraiH 3-4 $JS ... $JS 
wan, 0-S $45 0 $45-$50 
W,,,ams $40 $40 

Sla<k 30 $SO 30 sss 

11 Average daily tnma\e populabOn during month . 

12 Actual number of N'lffl,,ltes. at end of month. 

Cost Per Day 
Per tnmate at 

Communrty Facitities 
(Halfway HoUMal 
Contracted With 

During Month 
Centre, Sharehot.tae, 

Stutsman Traill Walah w ... Will.-m& Inc. ""'· 
45 35 40 40 40 40 
4S JS .. 40 40 40 
4S •s 40 40 
4S JS 40 40 
•s •s 40 •• 
4S •s 40 •• •s •• •• .. 

\l The number shown is the number ot prison beds each faciity indicated coukl ~ provtded fOf hous,ng Penitentiary inmalH if occupancy was guaranteed by the PenilentMa<y. The departmeot's reawnmended budget tor the 1999-2001 bienNum includes $4 .085.300 to contract fOf the housing 
at inmates. Through June 30. 1999. the department has a contractual agreement lo hOuse 50 inma~s per month ata costaf SSO per day with the ApplelOn, Minnesota, pnson. 

For the 1999-2001 blennA.fm , the department has not determined the numbef ci tnmates to be housed in Mmnesota. The department has indicated that inmates wil be housed tnstate with county facilities. ID the ex1ent possibte. occupyng the beds lisled abow:. The depar1ment's budget for 
contracted inmate housing is based on the rencwatK"lf1 of lhe Slh and 6th loot$ ol the Jame:5 Rtvef"CofTeclional Center to provide 110 inmate beds on May 1, 2000. 

The departmeol's budget indudH contracted U1mate housing costs of $55 per day during the fif'Sl year al the 1999-2001 biennium and $60 per day during the second year tor the folowing n1,1mbef" of inmalH; 

19 .. 2000 2001 
July 109 January 96 January 104 
August 106 February 109 February 115 
Septembef 103 M=h 122 March 121 
()ctobe, 95 Ap,i 135 Ap,i 132 
Novembe< 87 May 38 May 143 

Oecen"be< .. June SI June 154 
July •• 
August .. 
Sepo.mbe< .. 
Qdobe, " No,.mbe, .. 
Deoembe< 

qij' 

January 211. 1999 

Cost Per 
Dar Per 

Inmate at 
Appleton, 

Minnesota, 
Prison 

so 

so 
so 
so 
so 



DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 
AND REHABILITATION 

3303 East Main, PO Box 1898 • Bismarck, ND 58502-1898 
(701) 328-6390 • FAX (701) 328-6651 • TDD 701-366-6888 

MEMO 

TO: Human Resources Division committee members 

FROM: Elaine Little 

DATE: February 10, 1999 

RE: Minimum of 15 beds needed for contracting out inmates 

The most recent estimates in the various inmate population growth scenarios show that 
in a number of months throughout the biennium fewer than 15 inmates would need to 
be contracted out to facilities outside of the DOCR prisons division. This raises an 
issue that we have not had to deal with in the past two years or in any of the previous 
scenarios. 

During the past year we have housed an average of 15 inmates in the county jails and 
at Appleton who for various security reasons cannot be housed within our system. The 
most common reason that inmates can't be housed in any of the DOCR facilities is 
because they have testified against other inmates in the system. We have many 
examples of this and for most cases we can either house them in different facilities or 
get the inmates to agree to not act upon their animosities. Sometimes, because of their 
custody level or the nature of the offense, in order to keep them separated and to assure 
their safety we have no other option but to house them outside of the DOCR facilities. 

In order to assure that there would be a minimum of 15 beds available each day for 
inmates we must keep separated, the following dollar amount would need to be added 
to each of the attached scenarios: 

10 percent and 15 percent - $ 367,820 

10 percent and 13 percent -- $393,860 

9 percent and 12 percent - $455,590 

8 percent and 11 percent - $530,015 

Division of Juvenile Services -701-328-6390 
North Dakota Youth Correctional Center - 701 -667-1 400 

(Total scenario cost = $1 ,025,375) 

(Total scenario cost = $ 864,635) 

(Total scenario cost = $ 724,205) 

(Total scenario cost = $ 643,125) 

State Penitentiary - 70 1-328-6 100 
Parole and Probation - 70 1-328-6 190 



Fax No.: 701 328-6651 Number of pages includ ing this one: 3 

inmate placement services, LLc 

BEDSPACE LOCATOR NEWSLETTER 
VOLUME 3, NUMBER 1 JANUARY 1999 

"A bed for every inmate and an inmate for every bed" 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 

Eileen Tremblay , Director 
Inmate Placement Services 
3905 Estes Road 
Nashville: TN 37215 

Phon e: 
Fax : 
E-m ail: 

(615) 292-3345 
(615) 298-2827 
beds pace @aoI.com 



El ED3t'A(.:c: Li., '-~ tun tu;;,, ,;1.. t.., 1 L. n 
JanuHy g~~ 

ADULT: 

REGION ONE 

11 1 1110 1.'-' t-'" l ...,-..,~ , , ..;,., ~QI w,,c;.;;, 1 LLL 

phone 61~-~-~-~:-45 

-- 150 beds. Male and female minimum security inmates. Drug/alcohol programming. 
Halfl'Yay house beds are also a vailable . Per diem is negotiable. 

-- 50 beds. Male medium and min!rnu11 security. ~~evver facili ty with pod ular design, 
util izing di rect supervision . Per diem: $.S0-$55 . 

JUVENILE: 
-- 240 beds. Male minimum to rnaximurn securit . B[arld new resi dential facility with 

boot c2mp 1 intensive secure, and int rm-ediate secure programs on Sq!ne campu s. 
Per diem: $135-$105 . - - - ', 

'·, 

REGION TWO 
/ 

ADULT; / 
-- 180 beds/ rviaie or female, medium security. Newly construc.1ed 12cility just \ 

opened/ Publicly owned with private operator. Per diem: ' ~O'. j 

c;ur1s'l:ucliur;;..illeal fo r ~eri a. lric ur vvorl<. release. TI1eraf)eu lic,; corrnr:u11ily lflulle l. 
Per.diem: :t~O. 

-- GO b~ds. Male or female, community or minirnun securi ty. Brand nevv / 

JUVENILE: 
-- 36 bt:ds. Residential substance abuse treatrne 11t facili ty for males \Vitll accredited 

che deal dependency proqram. Licensed educati on services, vocation&! 
program, and lots of recreation . Per diem : $150-$160. 

REGION THREE ,.. ,... 

ADULT: ~- ,_. 
-- 2SO beds . Female, m1 · mm-secmity:7=fei~~vated facility vvhich meets ACA 

Standards on Adm !nlstratlon e.( Management. Per diem: 535-$45. 

-- 200 tEds. rl:1a!e, medium securi ty. Facility opened July 1997. Prograrnrnin~1 
QVOi lablc dcpcncing on sending ju risdiction's needs. Per diem : $35-S40. 

-- 7 ~b beds. Malt: or :ernale, !iqt1t medium or min imum security. Nev✓ tacil1ty in qreat 
location . Forty single cells and 213 6-person ce lls. Experienced rnanage1r1ent vvill 
provide ta ilored programs in addit ion to standard offerings. Per diem: S/j5 _ 

-- 150 beds. Male medium and minimum security'. Dormitory 11ouslng \'t!tl1 !ocl<dmvn 
ee l is, di rect super \Ji sion, full programming, co rrectional industry coming on iine, 
legal materials on CD mm, variety of recreation activities Per di1?.rn · $L10-$4S 

-- 100 IJecls. fv1ale , medium security. Modem clorrnitory design, located in rural area 
tJut adjacent 10 ai rport. Video con1erencing for t1earings and vi siling. Per diem: 
$35-$40 . 



TESTIMONY ON HB1016 
HOUSE APPROPRIATIONS COMMITTEE 

ROUGH RIDER INDUSTRIES 
DENNIS FRACASSI, DIRECTOR 

JANUARY 12, 1999 

Inmate programs are vital not only in our efforts to change behaviors, but also as a security tool to maintain 

control within the prison. Our three major programming tools consist of treatment, education and work. The 

work program at RRI is the only one of the three that pays for itself without using general fund dollars. 

Inmates who work at RRI earn on the average $1.30 per/hour as opposed to $1 .35 per/day for those 

inmates who work at institutional jobs such as kitchen, laundry or maintenance. This difference in pay 

creates a strong incentive for inmates to work at RRI. That in turn, allows RRI to structure itself as a 

preferred job and place eligibility requirements that force the inmate to address behavioral needs that might 

otherwise be ignored. For example, to be eligible to work at RRI, the inmate must first obtain their GED if 

they haven't completed high school. The inmate must also comply with all treatment recommendations . 

The opportunity to work at RRI provides such incentive that an inmate will agree to comply with treatment 

needs and pursue their GED. 

Equally important to addressing treatment and educational needs, is maintaining good behavior. Inmates 

must also be free of disciplinary infractions to work at RRI. Inmates will think twice about acting out 

against prison rules if it means losing their industry job or the opportunity to work at industries. 

Accordingly, RRI has a significant positive impact on maintaining discipline and security within our prison. 

For reasons the Warden has already discussed, RRI has set a goal to employ 25% of the ND prison 

population. In order to accomplish this goal, RRI must change the way it does business. We can not expect 

our traditional industries to support this kind of growth without complaints from those with whom we 

compete. This is why RRI has, for the past few years, spent considerable resources trying to develop 



relationships with the private sector under the auspices of the federal Prison Industry Enhancement ( or PIE) 

program. We believe the opportunity presents itself today to form partnerships with the private sector using 

inmate labor for products that neither unfairly compete with ND business, nor displace ND workers, while 

simultaneously preparing inmate workers for their eventual return to society. 

Such an arrangement produces many winners, and no losers. The private sector partner wins because they 

get a steady reliable labor pool and building space to operate. Business that does not partner with RRI wins 

because the growth no longer comes from areas in which we compete with them. The prison wins, because a 

large portion of the population is taken off the hands of security for forty hours a week allowing them to use 

their resources elsewhere. The inmates win because they are given a chance to productively occupy their 

day while earning minimum or prevailing wages. The ND taxpayer wins because the program is self

supporting saving hundreds of thousands of general fund dollars that would otherwise be needed for 

additional programming. 

Perhaps the most significant difference between RRI and the private sector is the motivation behind growth. 

A private sector business will expand when the company has financial resources available to pursue and 

capture new business. Their success is measured in terms of dollars. RRI's growth on the other hand, is 

based on the need to reduce idleness within the prison by creating new jobs. Another way of saying this is 

that the private sector adds jobs based on business, whereas RRI adds business based on jobs. The RRI 

approach to expansion defies all business logic. But then again, unlike the private sector, our success is not 

measured in terms of dollars; it is measured by our effectiveness in absorbing inmates into a work program 

and to prepare them for their release. 

Knowing that the prison expansion into Jamestown would require an industry program, RRI spent the last 

year and a half developing relationships with business in Jamestown and the surrounding areas. Our 

message was simple. "If you as a business are looking for a steady reliable labor pool, and are willing 

2 



to use our facility to manufacture your products, then you might want to consider doing business with 

us. However, you must understand that we cannot, and will not form partnerships that result in 

displacing ND private sector workers". 

Because of these efforts, RRI was introduced to two businesses in Fargo. Raslan Kahlil from the ND 

Manufacturing Technology Partnership introduced RRI to Global Electric Motors (GEM). This company 

manufactures road - worthy electric cars for retirement communities and resorts. There are a number of 

fabric and canvas options available with the car and they are all presently manufactured out of state by 

several different companies. GEM would like their suppliers to come from North Dakota. 

John VanMiddlesworth and Rebecca Bosch from ND Economic Development and Finance introduced us to 

John Frappier who owns Acceleration Products, Inc. Mr. Frappier has invented and patented a device called 

the Multi Sport Cord. The product is made from an assortment of elastic materials that needs to be cut and 

sewn together in a variety of sizes . They too, would like their product to be manufactured in North Dakota, 

but they were unable to find a cut and sew operation large enough to meet their needs. They have tried 

companies in Seattle and Red Wing MN, but since learning of RRI, they are giving us the opportunity to 

work for them. 

Since these two companies compliment one another in terms of work (cut and sew), and the fact that there 

are no cut and sew operations located in North Dakota large enough to take on this business, it presents the 

perfect opportunity for us. These operations will not be competing with other business in North Dakota and 

inmates have the opportunity to learn manufacturing processes and more importantly, develop work ethics 

necessary to succeed once they are released. These two companies have the market potential to help us 

achieve our goal of employing 25% of the inmate population. 

3 



The expansion into Jamestown is the reason behind the 6% increase to our budget request from 8.7 to 9.2 

million dollars. Since no general or federal funds are provided, we cannot spend the requested dollars for 

expenditures until we generate the income to pay for it. In other words, our budget is a request for authority 

to spend self -generated revenues derived from the sale of products, up to the limits contained in our budget 

request. Our largest line item request is in raw materials, which accounts for five million dollars or 54% of 

our total budget. 27%, or 2.5 million dollars is requested for staff salaries and benefits. The remaining 19%, 

or 1.7 million dollars is targeted for equipment and operating expenses. 

Any new business generally needs some time to tum the comer to where revenues exceed expenses. They 

must also arrange to ensure that cash flows are protected during the expansion period. RRI is no different. 

Current cash flows are expected to dwindle as a result of start-up operations in Jamestown, and we need to 

be prepared to obtain short - term alternative financing to protect ourselves. We were counting on pledging 

accounts receivables from the general issue of license plates to secure a loan from the Bank of North Dakota, 

but now it is uncertain whether or not a general issue will pass this legislative session. If it doesn't, we will 

have to determine what other forms of collateral can be used to obtain financing to help us tum the corner. 

In closing, the opportunity for RRI to change the way it does business has never looked brighter. There are 

many hurdles to overcome, but we would be remiss in our duties as public servants to tum our backs on 

these opportunities. There are many other correctional industry programs throughout the country that 

experienced difficulty forming partnerships with the private sector. They have overcome the same kind of 

problems we face and are now experiencing successful programs. We have the advantage to learn from their 

mistakes and draw from their knowledge. 

RRI is committed to working with the private sector and to provide work for 25% of the inmate population. 

This is what the legislature has asked for in previous biennia and RR1 is now looking for legislative support 

to make these opportunities a reality. 
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TESTIMONY ON HB 1016 
SENA TE APPROPRIATIONS COMMITTEE 

ROUGH RIDER INDUSTRIES 
DENNIS FRACASSI, DIRECTOR 

MARCH 8, 1999 

HB /(116 
3/~l'l'! 

1Denn ,-s Fra ed. ssi 

As veteran lawmakers, you already have a good understanding of Rough Rider Industries, so I 

will forego talking about the basis of our program and briefly talk about some exciting things that 

are happening at RRI, before I address the numbers in our budget. 

Knowing that the prison expansion into Jamestown would require an industry program, RRI spent 

the past year and a half developing relationships with businesses in Jamestown and the 

surrounding areas. Our message was simple. "If you as a business are looking for a steady 

reliable labor pool, and are willing to use our facility to manufacture your products, then 

you might want to consider doing business with us. However, you must understand that we 

cannot, and will not form partnerships that result in displacing ND private sector workers." 

Because of these efforts, RRI was introduced to two businesses in Fargo. Raslan Kahlil from the 

ND Manufacturing Technology Partnership program introduced us to Global Electric Motors 

(GEM). This company manufactures road-worthy electric cars for retirement communities and 

resorts. There are a number of fabric and canvas options available with the car and their source 
/ 

of suppliers are scattered all over the United States, mostly in the eastern coastal states. Mr. 

Kahlil was helping them find a single source supplier, preferably in ND that could make the 

variety of products they offer with the car. They could not find any company in ND ( or in the 

upper Midwest for that matter), who was set up to meet their needs. That is when we were 

approached to see if we were interested in supplying their products. 
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At about the same time, John VanMiddlesworth and Rebecca Bosch from ND Economic 

Development and Finance introduced us to John Frappier who owns Acceleration Products, Inc. 

Mr. Frappier is well established in the fitness and sports medicine markets. He has invented and 

patented a device called the Multi Sports Cord. This product is made from an assortment of 

materials that need to be cut and sewn together in a variety of sizes. His story is similar to 

GEM's in that he too, was looking for a ND company to supply this product and was unable to 

find one. They have tried companies in Seattle WA and Red Wing MN, but since learning of 

RRI, they are giving us the opportunity to work for them. 

Since these two companies compliment each other in terms of work (cut and sew), and the fact 

that there are no other cut and sew operations in ND large enough to meet their needs, it presents 

the perfect opportunity for us to change the way we do business. These operations will not be in 

competition with other ND businesses and inmates will have the opportunity to learn 

manufacturing processes, and more importantly, develop work ethics necessary to succeed once 

they are released. These two companies have the market potential to employ 50 to 70 inmates 

and possibly even more. 

As far as our budget is concerned, the expansion into Jamestown, and the general issue of license 

plates are the reasons behind the 6% increase from 8.7 to 9.2 million dollars. The dollars to 

support this budget are 100% special funds derived from the sale of products and services we 

provide. Our largest line item request is for raw materials, which account for five million dollars 

or 54 % of the budget. 2. 5 million dollars or 27% is requested for staff salaries and benefits. The 

remaining 1.7 million dollars is targeted for equipment and operating expenses. 

Any new start up business generally needs some time to turn the corner to where revenues exceed 

expenses. It must also arrange to ensure that cash flows are protected during the expansion 
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period. RRI is no different. Current cash flows are expected to dwindle as a result of start-up 

operations in Jamestown, and we need to be prepared to obtain short-term outside financing to 

protect ourselves. We were counting on pledging accounts receivable from the general issue of 

license plates to secure a loan from the Bank of North Dakota. However, the House removed the 

general issue from our budget and 1.7 million dollars in associated costs. We are currently 

working with the bank to determine what other forms of collateral can be used to obtain financing 

to help us turn the corner. 

In closing, the opportunity for RRI to change the way we do business has never looked brighter. 

There are many hurdles we still need to overcome, but I am confident that we are on track in 

building long lasting relationships with the private sector. This is what you have asked for in 

previous biennia and you have my assurances that the RRI staff will continue to work hard in this 

direction. I welcome all of you to visit our Jamestown facility at any time to see for yourself the 

positive changes taking place at RRI. 



To: Tim Schuetzle, Director Prisons Division 
Elaine Little, Director Corrections and Rehabilitation 

M lt)/{p 

~/J/'19 
Se.n · N~+h in j 

From: Dennis Fracassi, Director Rough Rider Industries 

Date: December 20, 1998 

Subj: Summary of Trip to Utah Correctional Industries 

As you know, Bill Goetz, Senator Dave Nething and I recently traveled to Utah to see the Utah 
Correctional Industries program. This trip was funded through the Technical Training Assistance 
Program from the Correctional Industries Association. The purpose of the trip was to allow state 
leaders outside of corrections to see a prison industry program that is certified under the Private 
Sector/Prison Industry Enhancement Program (PIE). Utah was selected because it is the smallest 
of the states that has a successful PIE program. Still, Utah is five times larger than North Dakota. 

Our visit began with a dinner Thursday evening. In attendance was Dick Clasby - director of 
UCI, his deputy director Lilian Anthony, Dan Leatham - Drapper Prison chief of Security, Monty 
Tremont- a private sector partner from U.S. Technologies, Bill Goetz, Senator Nething, and 
myself. Topics discussed during dinner included: 

• The importance to maintain good communication and flexibility between prison 
security and industries. 

• How industries relieve tensions in the cell houses. 
• Challenges of maintaining self-sufficiency under a government umbrella. 
• The importance of public relations as it relates to prison industries. 
• Business interruptions such as callouts, lockdowns and shakedowns. 
• Difficulties encountered with starting a PIE project. 
• PIE success stories/ PIE failures. 
• Opportunities for the private sector using inmate labor and building space. 
• Drawbacks for the private sector using inmate labor and building space. 
• Deductions taken from inmate wages in PIE programs. 
• Comparisons ofUCI to RRI in terms of population and inmates working. 

Based on questions and discussion over dinner, our host prepared an organizational structure of 
UCI to help us absorb the complexity and layout of the prison industries. 

The following morning we met in the UCI conference room. We reviewed the UCI 
organizational structure and discussed the difference between traditional industries and PIE 
industries, as well as internal industries and external industries. Utah, due to their size, have a 
full time marketing representative, a new business development coordinator, a PIE coordinator 
and PIE contract coordinator. These positions are very important for attracting and maintaining 
private sector partnerships. 

After receiving security clearance, we then toured the prison industries at Drapper. One of our 
first stops was a telemarketing PIE shop operated by Sandstar Entertainment. This company sells 
family-oriented videos absent profanity, vulgarity, violence and sexual content. Their telephones 
operate on a predictive dialer so inmates have no way of selecting what number is called. When a 



sale is made the call is transferred to one of Sandstar's operations outside the prison where 
information is collected. The average number of inmates employed is 87. We talked to two of 
the inmate workers to see what they thought of the job. Both inmates were serving long 
sentences for violent crimes and one in particular had recently spent 3 years in maximum security 
where he was locked up 21 hours each day with a cell mate. Although he appeared angry, he 
made it very clear to us that this job was very important to him. He stated that this was the 
closest he could get to some sense of normalcy and fully understood the consequences of any 
misbehavior. The other inmate claimed he loved his job even though he experiences a lot of 
rejection, because it gave him a chance to communicate with a "real person" as opposed to other 
inmates and correctional officers who have the same attitudes every day. He also felt that his 
training was helping him learn communication skills he could put to practice with other inmates 
and staff. Both inmates stated that the opportunity to work and earn some money was important 
to them to overcome boredom in prison. 

We toured several traditional industries including furniture, upholstery, and license plates. An 
interesting note on license plates is that Utah does not have a general issue. They currently have 
three different plates authorized. The first is their "Ski Utah" plate that came out in the early 
90's, and they have a 1996 Centennial plate that is now being replaced with Olympic promotional 
plates. The owner retains plates when vehicles are sold and have the option to convert to new 
plates with any new issue or keep their old up to seven years. This practice enables UCI to 
produce 500,000 pairs of plates each year for a state with a population of2.2 million. In doing 
so, UCI is assured a steady source of profitable income to help offset startup costs for new 
industries. 

From my perspective, the most interesting part of the tour was the PIE cut and sew operation UCI 
has with Northern Outfitters. This partnership arrangement employs 85 inmates and 
manufactures a large variety of high quality winter clothing. Prior to hooking up with UCI, the 
owner experienced a very high turnover after spending significant dollars in training. He was 
considering moving his operation offshore when he heard about prison industries. The thought of 
having a labor pool readily available with free manufacturing space to set up operations was very 
attractive to him. He is also proud of the fact that his products bear a made in the U.S.A. tag, and 
felt that was an important selling feature he would lose by taking his business out of the country. 
He claims that the inmate workforce consistently puts out a higher quality and volume than that 
of his free world workforce. However, he went on to say that working in a correctional facility 
also has its drawbacks. His biggest frustration is the security procedures involved in moving raw 
materials and products in and out of the facility. He stated that ifhe knew then what he knows 
now about working in a prison, that he probably would not have proceeded. Even though he 
expressed frustrations, he also acknowledged that he is making money and with all things 
considered, its been a good business venture. As we were leaving the industry, Dick explained 
the importance of getting a contract with private sector businesses, so they can't just pick up and 
leave when they start experiencing frustration with security procedures that interfere with 
production. Unless contractually bound with dollars on the line, the temptations to give up, 
rather than put up, with security control is often the choice private sector companies will make. 

The other cut and sew operation we wanted to see was shut down for security reasons. Some of 
the inmates that work in that shop were involved in a scuffle the day before. Security placed all 
inmates working in that shop on cell confinement until their investigation was completed. 

The other industries we looked at were a data entry operation for various state agencies, a 
micrographics operation with the Utah State Archives, a print shop, and their sign shop. Utah 



inmates are also trained to assist with the correctional industry operations. Jobs are available in 
construction, maintenance, finance, purchasing, marketing, office work and computer support. 

Utah was one of seven states authorized to develop a PIE program in the early 1980's. Their 
initial goal was to attract an employer model partnership. However, many of the businesses that 
expressed an interest in working with prison industries, incorrectly assumed they could establish 
their markets using "cheap inmate labor". The inherent problems associated to managing a prison 
work force with a company whose markets were not matured resulted in several failures . At one 
point, they were over three million dollars in debt, prompting their legislature to appropriate 
general fund dollars in the form of a loan that has since been paid back in full. 

In closing, the trip from my perspective was very successful. I know that Bill and Senator 
Nething walked away with a much deeper understanding of the challenges prison industries face 
in forming partnerships with the private sector. The amount of flexibility needed between 
security within the prison and industries was a real revelation to them. I think we all walked 
away believing that a private sector partnership with RRI will be difficult, but achievable and the 
right thing to do for North Dakota. 



Crime Bill Analysis * January 21, 1999 

When the 1997 Legislative Assembly met our estimates for the first three 
years of crime bill funding, based on available information at the time were 
as follows: 

FY 1996 award --------------
Estimated FY 1997 award --
Estimated FY1998 award ---

Total available------

$1,349,055 
1,618,864 
1,618.864 

$4,586,783 

Based on these estimates the legislature appropriated $200,000 for 
engineering and architectural costs in the deficiency bill for the 1995-97 
biennium and appropriated $4,386,783 for the renovation of and 
purchase of the JRCC buildings. 

When the bids for the JRCC renovation were $1,501,605 over budget, 
we asked the October 1997 Emergency Commission to approve 
authority to accept and spend 4th year Crime Bill funding (to be 
received in April 1999) in the amount of $1,351,445 and to transfer 
$150,160 (10% match) from salaries and wages to the capital 
improvement line, in order to go ahead with the JRCC project. We also 
asked the October 1998 Emergency Commission to approve $285,077 in 
4th year Crime Bill funding and $31,675 in RRI funding (10% match) to 
complete the RRI building at the JRCC. We estimate that the total 4th 

year funding will be $1,783,449. When the 1997 legislature was in 
session we did not know that the 4th year funding would be received 
during this biennium. Total fifth year funding is also estimated at 
$1,783,449. 

The balance in 4th year funding and the fifth year funding are included in 
the 1999-200 I budget for the 5th and 6th floor renovation at the JRCC. 

* Also see attached page for a more detailed analysis of the crime bill funding 



VOi-TIS GRANT A WARDS AND REQUIRED MATCH 

Grantee IRSNendor Number 450309765 
Award Number 96-CV-VX-0038 
Grant Manager Kimberly Dolise (was Gene Contatore) 

1-800-848-6325 Commercial: (202) 305-2903 
fax 202-307-2019 
e-mail: dolisek@ojp.usdoj.gov 

Required 
Award Date Tier One Tier Two Tier Three TIS Total Match 

09/30/96 1,248,453 1,248,453 138,717 
01/10/97 29,169 0 71,433 100,602 11,178 
06/09/97 1,502,767 1,502,767 166,974 
09/30/97 36,581 0 105,322 141,903 15,767 
04/02/98 1,622,484 1,622,484 180,276 
09/30/98 43,784 0 117,181 160,965 17,885 
Apr-99 0 0 
Sep-99 0 0 
Apr-00 0 0 
Sep-00 0 0 

Total 4,373,704 109,534 293,936 4,777,174 530,797 

Actual Awards plus Projected Awards 
Required 

Award Date Tier One Tier Two Tier Three TIS Total Match 

09/30/96 1,248,453 1,248,453 138,717 
01/10/97 29,169 0 71,433 100,602 11,178 
06/09/97 1,502,767 1,502,767 166,974 
09/30/97 36,581 0 105,322 141,903 15,767 
04/02/98 1,622,484 1,622,484 180,276 
Sep-98 43,784 0 117,181 160,965 17,885 
Apr-99 1,622,484 1,622,484 180,276 
Sep-99 43,784 0 117,181 160,965 17,885 
Apr-00 1,622,484 1,622,484 180,276 
Sep-00 43,784 0 117,181 160,965 17,885 

Total 7,618,672 197,102 528,298 8,344,072 927,119 

L 



5th FLOOR 

17,500 S.F. 
x 64.50 S.F. Based on remodel costs 

$1,128,750 Construction 

$140,000 Lead abatement asbestos (floor tile) 
$75,000 Forensic improvements; lobby 

$180,000 Front entrance checkpoint improvements 

$1,523,750 

$131,042 Fees and Expenses 8.6% 

$1 ,654,792 

$72,000 Cell furniture 80 x $900 

$1,726,792 

$44,800 Electrical Repairs 56 rooms@ $800 per room 

$1,771 ,592 

$50,000 Heating systems repair 

$1,821 ,592 

$145,000 Security improvements, hardware, voice cameras, sallyports, ET and Amusement (io,oo6) 
$1 ,966,592 

$157,327 8% Construction Security & Contingency 

$2,123,920 TOTAL PROJECT COST 

6TH FLOOR 

5,750 S.F. 
x $67.72 5% Escalator S.F. Cost 

$389,390 Construction 

$70,000 Lead abatement asbestos (floor tile) 

$459,390 

$40,886 Fees & Expenses 8.9% 

$500,276 

$28,350 Cell furn iture 30 x $945 

$528,626 

$3,360 Elec. Repairs 4 rooms x $840 

$531,986 

$10,500 Heating systems repairs 

$542,486 

$15,750 Security monitor and surveillance 

$558 ,236 

$55 ,824 Site security and contingency 

$614,060 TOTAL PROJECT COST 
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Responses to Human Resources Division questions for the Prisons Division 

What is our plan for the excess 20 female beds at the JRCC? 

Over the past three years, our female population has grown from 38 in January of 
1996 to 67 today, approximately an 80 percent increase during the past 3 years. 
There are currently 52 women at the JRCC and 15 at the MRCC for a total of 67. 
Based on the rate of growth we have seen for female inmates, we fully expect that 
the 80 bed JRCC will be full by the 1999-2001 biennium. We have searched for 
female boarders from other states and the Federal Bureau of Prisons (BOP). The 
warden spoke to the BOP again last Friday about the possibility of us accepting 
more Federal female boarders. They informed him, however, that there were no 
females available to house outside of their system at this time. 

The reason the female inmates were moved to the JRCC was because we no 
longer had room in the 40 bed women's unit. Before we moved the female 
inmates, we looked at a number of options within the Penitentiary where they 
could be housed, but there were no good options available. For example, the 
South Unit has 60 beds that we have double bunked now to hold 87 beds; 
however, its physical location within the facility does not provide enough 
separation between the female and male inmates to house the women inmates in 
this unit. Also, we would lose the 27 double bunked male beds. The women's unit 
must also be "self contained," requiring its own showers, dining room, and rec 
space, if we are to ensure that male and female inmates do not mix. Only one of 
the newly remodeled floors at the JRCC provided the separation that we required 
and could be turned into the self-contained unit we needed. 

We will continue to contact other states to determine if there are any medium 
custody women available for contracting. 

Projections/Prison Population 
In addition to the 15% and 10% per year inmate growth projections already 
presented to the committee, we have provided alternative projections and 
associated costs for inmate growth rates at 14% and 9%, 13% and 8% and 10% 
and 10%. (see attached schedules) . In these schedules (two sets) we've also 
adjusted the alternatives to incarceration numbers to more accurately reflect the 
phase-in of the impact of these alternatives through the biennium. We've included 
two scenarios for the alternatives to incarceration adjustments; the first scenario 
provides for a savings of 115 beds per day as provided for in the budget and the 
second scenario provides for saving 135 beds per day. The second scenario 
would not include any failure rate of inmates placed in most of the alternatives. 

You asked whether the population growth trend in 1998 was lower than expected. 
The population growth in 1998 grew more rapidly than expected. The population 
was 823 on Jan.1, 1998 and was 941 on Jan. 1, 1999. This represents a 14.3% 
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increase. We had estimated a 10% increase for the first year of the biennium and 
a 5% increase for the second year of the biennium. 

Can we do more with double bunking at the facility? 

We currently double bunk roughly half of the beds in the South Unit and all of the 
beds in our orientation unit. Both of these are relatively new dormitories that meet 
the square foot requirement to place two inmates in a cell. In the past we have 
double bunked 20 cells in the West Cell House, 10 on each floor, but have, from 
experience, found that this is not an acceptable security situation. The physical 
layout of the West Cell House does not allow for direct staff supervision and we 
experienced an increase in the number of fights on the tiers where we double 
bunked inmates as well as an increase in contraband on those floors. 

It is not illegal to double bunk inmates; however, there are conditions of 
confinement issues that we must address. The American Correctional 
Association(ACA) requires that each inmate have a cell that provides 80 square 
feet with 35 square feet to be unencumbered space. The cells in the East Cell 
House are too small and the ceiling too low to provide double bunking, and 
therefore the East Cell House cannot be considered a double bunk option. Cells 
in the West Cell House could be an option even though they do not meet any of 
the square foot standards for a single inmate in a cell, much less two inmates in 
one cell. There is a risk that inmates would file a conditions of confinement law 
suit if we double bunked the West Cell House cells. We decided to take that risk 
in 1997 for approximately 10 months prior to the renovation of the JRCC. We 
believe that it was an appropriate risk to take considering that it was for a short 
period, but would have very definite concerns if we looked at double bunking this 
unit for a longer period of time. We also have concerns that throughout the 
corrections business it is rare that you will find any state that double bunks 
maximum security inmates. It is ACA's position that maximum security inmates 
not be double bunked. Although not all the inmates housed at the State 
Penitentiary are maximum security, it would be difficult to find compatible bunk 
mates from only the few medium security inmates remaining at the penitentiary. 
We also found that the present number of inmates housed at the state 
penitentiary is all that the auxiliary services can accommodate (food service, 
recreation space, etc.) To overcrowd these areas becomes very dangerous for 
staff working in these areas. 

Can we decrease or do a better job of negotiating the daily rate we are 
projecting with the Appleton prison? 

No. As we stated during the appropriation hearing, right now prison bed spaces 
are at a premium and it is a seller's market. (See attached "Bedspace Locator 
Newsletter") Other states that are contracting with the facility at Appleton are 
paying a higher rate than we are; in fact one state is paying $60 a day now. We 



believe our budget request of $55 for the first year of the biennium with an 
increase to $60 for the second year of the biennium is conservative. We were not 
able to contract with three of the class I jails in the state during this biennium 
because their rate requests were $55 and $60 per day. 

Staffing at the JRCC. Is it necessary to have a case manager on the sixth 
floor for 30 inmates? 

We believe it is necessary because of the need for more administrative personnel 
at that prison and because of the type of inmate we plan to house on the sixth 
floor. In our system we have approximately 170 inmates who have an Axis I 
mental illness diagnosis. We also have approximately 25 inmates with learning 
disabilities/mental retardation issues. These inmates seem to be targets from the 
more aggressive prisoners and require special attention from staff. It is our 
intention to take 30 of these people and put them on the same floor at the JRCC, 
away from the daily verbal harassment they receive, but this will not be 
considered a normal case load because of the extra needs this segment of our 
population possess. 

We also have all of our case managers perform administrative functions. We 
need to have experienced/managerial staff provide due process hearings for 
disciplinary reports , classification decisions, housing placements and job 
assignments. The JRCC currently has one director, one unit manager, and one 
chief of security that would be considered the management level staff. They have 
been using the three case managers on the floors to assist in these committee 
hearings; however, they are unable to keep up with the workload. It was hoped 
that the addition of two more case managers, one for each floor, would help 
decrease that workload. Also, the JRCC does not have the administrative 
assistance of captains and a deputy warden as does the state penitentiary. 

Is it necessary that the transportation officers are Correctional Officer ll's or 
could they be hired at a lower grade level? 

It is important that we keep these drivers at the correctional officer II level. They 
are responsible to make sure the inmates are not bringing contraband onto the 
van or back to the facility, and perform random searches and strip searches of the 
inmates as they are loaded and unloaded into the vehicle. We also want to retain 
the flexibility to be able to rotate correctional officer staff through many positions. 
Security suffers when a staff person gets too comfortable in the same role or is 
not trained to fill in for other security positions at the institution. Inmates pick up 
on the staff person's tendencies, habits or abilities and this makes contraband 
smuggling and other inappropriate actions much easier to accomplish . 

JRCC front gate security. Do we really need someone for 16 hours a day or 
could we get by with a half-time person? 



The two officers we are requesting would join the one 8 hour a day post we 
presently have. This would give us three people to man a post 16 hours a day, 7 
days a week. Realistically, we need to have someone at the front gate for 14 
hours a day, to check in staff, delivery people, and visitors, beginning at about 
6:30 a.m. Five days a week we run visiting until 8 p.m. and on those days it is 
necessary to have the gate officer on duty until 8:30 p.m. The officer assigned to 
work that post would fill in the extra two hours each day inside the prison from 
8:30 p.m. until 10:30 p.m. while the inmates are still awake on the floors. It is 
important to note also that there is no shift relief factor built in to this request 
meaning there is no relief for these officers when they use vacation or sick leave 
or are away from their post for annual training . 

Analysis of the Crime Bill funding. (please see attached analysis) 

What is the cost break down between the JRCC 5th and 6th floor? 

The total cost for the project is $2,578,000. The cost to do the 5th floor renovation 
alone would be $2,123,920 and the cost to do the 5th floor renovation at a later 
date would be $514,050. (detail is attached) You can see that when you add 
these two numbers together it adds up to more money than if we requested to 
complete both floors at the same time. This is caused by the contractors needing 
to bring their cranes, heavy equipment, out again to do the 6th floor at a later time 
and because of an inflationary escalator clause. The cost to contract bed spaces 
for 30 more inmates for the last 14 months ($757,550) of the next biennium would 
be more expensive than the staffing and operating costs ($586,940) would be to 
operate the 5th floor for the same 14 months. 

The percentage of the general fund match ($584,469) is greater than the 10% 
required. What would happen if we would just fund the 10% match? 

The federal funds included for the 5th and 5th floor request is $2,093,531 . The 
general fund match on this funding would be $209,353. Therefore, projects 
totaling $375,116 ($584,459 - $209,353) would need to be deleted from the 
proposed renovation . 

Without carefully reading the detail included in the 5th and 5th floor request, we 
were under the impression that the $2,678,000 was entirely for the 5th and 5th floor 
renovation . However, the detail for this request shows that there are several 
smaller projects also included in the request. There is $75 ,000 to improve the 
lobby of the Forensic Unit. Currently, our visiting room is located in the Forensic 
Unit. Visitors from the general public must pass through a day room area that is 
also being used by inmates to reach this room. The $75,000 requested would 
allow us to have a secure pathway so that the general public would not need to 
come in contact with the inmates. 



Also included in this request was $180,000 to construct a front entrance 
checkpoint building. We have received complaints from visitors, vendors, and 
state employees who must wait outside for periods of time up to 15 minutes while 
they are processed into the facility. The building would house a metal detector 
and be a shelter from the elements while visitors are waiting to be admitted . 

Finally, there is $70,000 included for cameras and electronic security devices for 
the Amusement Hall building. This $70,000, along with the $180,000 for the front 
entrance building, and the $75,000 for the Forensic Unit lobby, are all necessary 
improvements for the security of the JRCC. However, the total 5th and 6th floor 
request could be reduced by this $325,000 by delaying these projects. 

Is there another way to accommodate the accessibility by the State Hospital 
residents to their swimming pool without building a new tunnel? 

We have examined all possible options and this proved to be the least expensive 
plan that would still meet the needs of the State Hospital and its residents. 
Disabled residents must be able to get into the building either by the use of an 
elevator or ramp. This walkway must also be enclosed whether it is underground, 
on the ground, or above the ground. The JRCC was constructed without any 
towers because it was more cost efficient to place a perimeter rover in a vehicle to 
drive the fence lines. Because the pool for the State Hospital is only four feet 
from the prison's amusement hall building, it is necessary for this perimeter 
security officer to drive around the pool while making his rounds. If we were to 
build an enclosed handicapped walkway on the ground level, there would be no 
way for this rover to get around the enclosed walkway. We looked at having a 
raised walkway so the patients could walk over the top of the security path but 
there were ADA issues associated with that plan. We also discussed the 
possibility of making a bridge over the enclosed walkway for the vehicle to cross; 
however, the least expensive option was to put the walkway underground. 

Are there any other ways to handle the problems resulting from the loss of 
federal funding for your library operations? 

Not all of the $57,000 loss in federal funds is due to just the loss of the library 
grant. The amount of federal funding received next biennium for JTPA and 
vocational education will also be reduced . Of the total, $30,000 is being requested 
so that we can continue to operate some of the vocational education programs 
that otherwise will cease to function with the loss of federal funding. We did make 
the decision to eliminate the carpentry program at the MRCC, but believe this 
additional $30,000 will enable us to continue with the restaurant management 
program, welding program, and auto mechanics program. Our request to replace 
the federal grant no longer available for the library operations is $10,000. There is 
also a general fund request for $10,191 for GED testing materials for the James 
River Correctional Center GED program. 



Are the additional 20 positions you have asked for to operate the 5th and 6th 

floor funded for the entire biennium or only funded from the time the 
renovation is completed to the end of the biennium? 

We expect that it will take approximately one year to renovate the 5th and 6th 

floors. Therefore we are hoping to be able to move inmates into those areas on 
May 1, 2000. We want to have the staff in place by April 1, 2000 so that they can 
complete the mandatory training and building shakedown prior to bringing the 
inmates onto those floors. Funding for the 20 positions was calculated for the last 
15 months of the biennium, from April 1, 2000 through June 30 , 2001 . 

Minimum and medium security daily rate costs. 
After review of the prisons division expenditures we realized that it would be very 
difficult to calculate a daily rate cost for minimum security. Presently costs are not 
separated by individual inmates for medical costs, inmate pay, food costs or for 
other expenditures like utilities between the MRCC and the penitentiary. These 
costs are included in one cost center for the prisons division and expenditure 
records are not kept separately by facility or inmate. 

We did however calculate a daily cost per inmate for the entire prisons division 
based upon the estimated budget for the 1999-2001 biennium. Our calculations 
indicate that the daily cost per inmate for the next biennium would be $53.99 (this 
excludes the contracting costs for outside inmate housing). 

What was the amount of unanticipated cost to your budget 
for transporting inmates to/from Appleton and the county jails? 

So far this biennium we have made 130 trips on 100 different days. We 
anticipated and used an "on duty" driver for most of these trips, however, 
sometimes more than one driver was needed. For example, when we transported 
50 inmates to Appleton we used 5 large vans, therefore we needed 4 "overtime" 
officers to complete the trip . The need to provide 2 officers per trip, dependent 
upon the custody level of the inmate being transported, has added to our overtime 
costs. We estimate we have spent an additional $38,740 for overtime and 
mileage costs to transport prisoners outside the facility. 

Description of unfilled FTE positions. (see attached schedule) 

Attorney General's opinion/memorandum on mm,mum mandatory drug 
sentences and their eligibility for parole. (attached) We've also included the 
legislative history on this issue. 
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ANALYSIS OF ESTIMATED COSTS FOR CONTRACT INMATE HOUSING WITHOUT RENOVATION OF 
FIFTH AND SIXTH FLOORS OF THE JAMES RIVER CORRECTIONAL CENTER 

Number of 
Additional Total 

Number of Beds Needed Number of 
Estimated Inmates in for Minimum Contracted 
Number of DOCR Excess of Requirement Beds 
lnmates\1 Capacity\2 Capacity of 15 Needed 

Fiscal Year 2000 
July 875 861 14 15 
August 862 861 1 14 15 
September 850 861 15 15 
October 838 861 15 15 
November 846 861 15 15 
December 854 861 15 15 
January 862 861 1 14 15 
February 870 861 9 6 15 
March 878 861 17 17 
April 886 861 25 25 
May 894 861 33 33 
June 902 861 41 41 

Fiscal Year 2001 
July 910 861 49 49 
August 923 861 62 62 
September 936 861 75 75 
October 949 861 88 88 
November 962 861 101 101 
December 975 861 114 114 
January 988 861 127 127 
February 1,001 861 140 140 
March 1,014 861 153 153 
April 1,027 861 166 166 
May 1,040 861 179 179 
June 1,053 861 192 192 

Estimated 1999-2001 biennium cost of contract housing of inmates\3 

Less estimated cost of contract inmate housing assuming 5th and 6th floors of James River Correctional Center 
(JRCC) finished by May 2000\1 

Estimated additional cost of contract inmate housing without renovation of JRCC 5th and 6th floors 

Less estimated 1999-2001 biennium general fund costs to renovate and operate JRCC 5th and 6th floors included in 
1999-2001 biennium executive budget: 

5th and 6th floor renovation\4 
20 FTE positions to staff the 5th and 6th floors 
Operating costs for the 5th and 6th floors 

Total renovation and operating costs 

Estimated 1999-2001 biennium savings to contract for additional inmate housing rather than 
renovate 5th and 6th floors of the James River Correctional Center\5 

$259,469 14 

749,560 
730,185 

Estimated 
Cost for 

Contracted 
Beds\3 

$21 ,855 
21 ,855 
21 ,855 
21 ,855 
21 ,855 
21 ,855 
21 ,855 
21 ,855 
24,769 
36,425 
48,081 
59,737 

71 ,393 
90 ,334 

109,275 
130,634 
154,814 
178,994 
203,174 
227,354 
251 ,534 
275,714 
299,894 
324,074 

$2 ,661 ,040 13 

1,025,375 11 

$1 ,635,665 

$1 ,739,214 

$103,549 15 

11 Based on projections prepared by the Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation and presented to the House Appropriations 
Committee - Human Resources Division on February 10, 1999 (assuming a 10 percent grow1h in the inmate population during fiscal year 
2000 and 15 percent during 2001 and also assuming 135 inmates being removed from the prison for alternative programs). 

12 This number includes the capacity of the Penitentiary, Missouri River Correctional Center, and the James River Correctional Center, but 
does not include the proposed renovation of the fifth and sixth floors of the JRCC, which would add an additional 110 inmate beds. 

13 The estimated cost is based on the assumption that an average of 82 beds will be available at county correctional facilities at an 
average daily cost of $47. It is also assumed that any prison beds needed in excess of 82 would be contracted with out-of-state facil ities 
at a daily rate of $55 for fiscal year 2000 and $60 for fiscal year 2001 . 

,4 The 1999-2001 executive recommendation includes a total of $2 ,678,000 for this project, $584,469 from the state general fund . However, 
the department has indicated that included in the proposed JRCC fifth and sixth floor renovation project is $75,000 for improvements to 
the forensic building lobby, $180,000 for front entrance improvements , and $70,000 for other"improvements. The amounts unrelated to 
the fifth and sixth floors have been deducted to arrive at the estimated general fund cost of the project. 

15 The estimated savings is only applicable to the 1999-2001 biennium. Savings in future bienniums would be less due to the one-time 
costs being considered for the 1999-2001 biennium to renovate the fifth and sixth floors of the JRCC. 



Month and Year 

May 2000 
June 2000 

-
July 2000 
August 2000 
September 2000 
October 2000 
November 2000 
December 2000 
January 2001 

February 2001 
March 2001 
April 2001 
May 2001 
June 2001 

July 2001 

Additional Contracting Out of Inmates From May 2000 - June 2001 
If 5 th and 6th Floors at JRCC are not Renovated 

(Average 115 Prison Beds Prison Capacity 
Estimated Saved) (861) and Inmates That Would Need 

Population Adjusted for Separation Cases to be Contracted/Housed 
Alternatives (15) Outside of System 

1055 (121) 934 876 58 (x31 x$55) 
1063 (122) 941 876 65 (x30x$55) 

1072 (123) 949 876 73 (x31 x$60) 
1085 (124) 961 876 85 (x31 x$60) 
1098 (126) 972 876 96 (x30x$60) 
1111 (127) 984 876 108 (x31 x$60) 
1124 (128) 996 876 120 (x30x$60) 
1137 (128) 1009 876 133 (x31 x$60) 
1150 (128) 1022 876 146 (x31 x$60) 

1163 (128) 1035 876 159 (x28x$60) 

1177 (128) 1049 876 179 (x31 x$60) 

1191 (128) 1063 876 187 (x30x$60) 

1205 ( 1 28) 1077 876 201 (x31 x$60) 
1219 ( 128) 1091 876 215 (x30x$60) 

1233 
TOTAL CONTRA CTI NG COST 

8, 1999 

Cost 

= 98,890 
= 107,250 

= 135,780 
= 158,100 

= 172,800 

= 200,880 
= 216,000 
= 247,380 

= 271,560 

= 267,120 
= 332,940 

= 336,600 

= 373,860 
= 387,000 

*$3l306l 160 



March 4, 1999 

Cost Comparison of Completing 5th and 6th Floor at the JRCC 
Vs. Contracting For Inmate Housing 

Cost to Renovate 5th and 6th Floors 

Renovation of 5th and 6th floor: 
Crime Bill Funding ... ... ....... ... .......... ... ... ......................... .. .. ... ..... $2,093,531 
General Fund Match ........................................................................ 259,469 
Total Cost ...... ........ ............. .. ..... .... .............. ..... ..... .... .............. .. .. $2.353.000 

Staff and Operating Costs: 
Salaries and Wages (20 staff April 2000- June 2001) ... . 
Operating expenses ................. .. ....... ... ... ... ... .................. . 
Total Staff and Operating Costs ....... ... ....... ........ .. ....... .... . 

Grand Total Renovation and Operating Costs ....... .. ...... . 
General Funds ................................................................ . 
Federal Funds ................................................................ . 

Additional 1999-2001 Cost to Contract For Inmate Housing 

$ 733,494 
730,185 

$1,463,679 

$3,816,679 
1,723,148 
2,093,531 

If 5th and 6th Floors are not renovated (see attached schedule) $3,306160 

Savings In General Fund By Renovating 5th and 6th Floors 

Biennium 1999-2001 ($3,306,160- 1,723,148) ......... ..... . 
Biennium 2001 - 2003 ($9,417,000* - 7,110,500**) ........ . 

* 215 inmates x 730 days x $60 per day= $9,417,000 

$1,583,012 
$2,306,500 

** $1,259,755 salaries; $1,251,745 operating costs and $4,599,000 contracting 
costs (inmates that would need to be contracted out even with the 5th and 6th 

floors) = $7,110,500 



ESTIMATED INMATE CONTRACTING COSTS FOR THE 1999-2001 BIENNIUllliiBASEDO'NJfiOT COMPL.:ETING 
THE 5TH AND 6TH FLOORS OF THE JAMES RIVER CORRECTIONAL CENTER.DURING 0TH~1 999-2001 BIENNIUM 

(Based on es timated inmate popu lation growth o f 10 percent the first year and 15 percent the second year; J_uly 1, 1999, estimated 
inmate population of 950; and an average of 115 inmates being removed from the prison for alternative programs) 

Number of 
A dd it ional Total 

Numbe r of Beds Needed Number of 

Estimated Inmates in for Minimum Contrac ted 

N umbe r of DOCR Excess of Requi remen t Beds 

lnmates\1 Capa ci ty\2 Capacity of 15 Beds Neede d 

Fisca l Year 2000 
July 887 861 26 0 26 

August 884 861 23 0 23 

September 881 861 20 0 20 

October 878 861 17 0 17 

November 87 4 86 1 13 2 15 

December 880 861 19 0 19 

January 885 86 1 24 0 24 

February 891 861 30 0 30 

March 896 861 35 0 35 

April 902 861 41 0 41 

May 908 861 47 0 47 

June 915 861 54 0 54 

Fiscal Year 2001 
July 922 861 61 0 61 

August 934 861 73 0 73 

September 945 861 84 0 84 

October 957 861 96 0 96 

November 969 861 108 0 108 

December 982 861 12 1 0 121 

January 995 861 134 0 134 

February 1,008 861 147 0 147 

March 1,021 861 160 0 160 

1,034 861 173 0 173 

1.047 861 186 0 186 

une 1,060 861 199 0 199 

. .,,imated 1999-200 1 biennium cost of contract inmate housing withou t re novation of the JRCC 5th and 6th floors\3 

Less estimated cost of contract inmate housing assuming renova tion of 5th and 6th floo rs of the JRCC during 1999-2001 
biennium (Senate vers ion)\4 

Est1rna1ed additional cos l of contract inmate housing without renovation of the JRCC 5th and 6th floors 

Less est imated 1999-2001 biennium general fund costs to renovate and operate the JRCC 5th and 6th floors (Senate version): 

5th and 6th floor renovation (general fund cost)\4 
20 FTE positions and operating expenses tor Sin and 6th floors\4 

S39.469 14 

857.345 14 

Est imated 
Cost for 

Contra cted 
Beds 

$3 7 .882 
33,511 
28.200 
24,769 
21.150 
27 .683 
34.968 
39.480 
50,995 
57,8 10 
68 .4 79 
76 ,140 

88,877 
106 ,361 
119,220 
t45 ,5 14 
162,420 
192.01 4 
216 ,194 
217 ,112 
264,554 
279.4 20 
312 ,914 
326 ,220 

S2 .93, ,887 

2,923 .460 

·~~---- - -
S8 ,427 

13 

14 

To tal renovation and operating cosls\4 

Esr,mated 1999-2001 biennium additional cost (savings) to contract for inmate housing ra ther than renovate and operate the 5th 
and 6th floors of the JRCC 15 

896.8 14 14 

(S888 ,387) 1s 

\ 1 
Based on project ions prepared by lhe Depanment of Corrections and Rehabilita tion pursuant to Representative Sved1an 's request to u~e tt1e 
following assumptions: 10 percent growth in the ,nma te popula tion du ring fiscal year 2000 and 15 percent during 2001; 115 inmate s be,ng 
removed from the prison for alternative prog rams ; and a July 1, 1999, inmate population of 950 . 

'-2 Th is number includes the capacity of the Pen 11en11a ry, Missouri River Correctional Center , and the JRCC. bu t does not include the proposed 
r,0 novation of t11e 5th and 6th floors of the JR CC which would add an additional 110 inmate beds . 

Pie est imated cost is based on the assumption 1i1at an average of 82 beds wil l be avai lable at county correct,onat fa cll1t1es at an ave raya daily 
cost oi $4 7. It is also assumed that any prison beds needed in excess of 82 will be contracted at a daily rate of $55 for fiscal year 200 0 and S60 
:or 1,sc;il year 2001 

Gased on the Senate version. The estimated ,nrna te population is based on completion of the 5th and 6th floors of t11e JRCC by Nove1nt1er 
2'Jrl0. i O percen l growth in t11e inmate populaw,n u,mng fiscal ye;ir 2000 and 15 perce nt during 2001 , 115 inmates be,ng removed from Ille 
p,rson to, alternative programs; and a .July 1, 1'J'i9 , inmate population of 975 . 

I il:s 2mount does not include $262 ,600 l11e dep,;,1ment l1as indicated will be requ ired for 2 FTE µos11,ons relating to t, ansport,ng and 
CDord1na1ing the transfer of inmates and S46 ,000 lor transpor1at,on cos ts to contract with county lacilit,es for 82 inmate beds II the ':~1111i:11t;d 
s.ivinqs ,s ad1usted by these amounts , the e,; t,ma ted savings is reduced to $57 9,787. 



Revised March 26, 1999 

Cost Comparison of Completing 5th and 6th Floor at the JRCC 
Vs. Contracting For Inmate Housing 

(Assuming a November 2000 Operational Date 
and Assuming House Contracting Rates) 

Cost to Renovate 5th and 6th Floors 

Renovation of 5th and 6th floor: 
Crime Bill Funding ............................................................ . 
General Fund Match .......................................................... . 
Loss of Crime Bill funding ................................................ . 
Total Cost ........................................................................... . 

Staff and Operating Costs: 
Salaries and Wages (20 staffNov. 2000-June 2001) ..... . 
Operating expenses (8 months) ... ................ ..... ................ .. 
Total Staff and Operating Costs ... ..................................... .. 

Grand Total Renovation and Operating Costs .................. . 
General Funds .................................................................. .. 
Federal Funds .................................................................... . 

Additional 1999-2001 Cost to Contract For Inmate Housing 

$1,913,531 
259,469 
180,000 

$2,353,000 

$ 440,096 
417,249 

$857,345 

$3,210,345 
1,296,814 
1,913,531 

If 5th and 6th Floors are not renovated (see attached schedule) $1,536,581 
ADD: Staff & travel for contracting program..................... 308,600 

Total ..................... $1,845,181 

Savings In General Fund By Renovating 5th and 6th Floors 

Biennium 1999-2001 ($1,845,181 - 1,296,814) ............ . $548,367 

Biennium 2001 - 2003 ($9,604,420* - 6,989,320**) ....... . $2,615,100 *** 

* 82@730x$47and 148@730x$60 = $9,2295,820 + $308,600 = $9,604,420 
** $1,259,755 salaries; $1,251,745 operating costs and $4,477,820 contractinf 

costs (inmates that would need to be contracted out even with the 5th and 61 

floors) = $6,989,320 
* * * A more detailed analysis is attached 



• 

November 2000 

December 2000 

January 2001 

February 2001 

March 2001 

April 2001 

May 2001 

June 2001 

Additional Contracting Out of Inmates 
November 2000 - June 2001 

If 5th and 6th Floors Are Not Renovated 

X $47 X 30 days = $35,250 996 - 861 = 

1009 - 971 = 38 inmates X $47 X 31 days = 55,366 1009 - 861 = 

1022 -971 = 51 inmates X $47 X 31 days = 74,307 1022 - 861 = 

1035 - 971 = 6 inmates X $47 X 28 days = 84,224 1035 -861 

1049 - 971 = 7 inmates X $47 X 31 days = 113,646 1049 - 861 

82 X $47 
1063 - 861 = 1063 - 971 = 9 

10 X $60 
X 30 days = 133,620 

82 X $47 
X 31 days = 164,114 1077 - 861 = 

24 X $60 
82 X $47 

X 30 days = 184,020 1091 - 861 = 1091 - 971 = 12 I 
38 X $60 

Total $8441547 

Difference: $2,381,128 
-8441547 

135 = 

148 = 

161 = 

174 = 

188 = 

202 = 

216 = 

230 = 

Department of Correctio. Rehabilitation 
March 26, 1999 

82 X $47 X 30 = $115,620 
53 X $60 X 30 = 95,400 
82 X $47 X 31 = 119,474 
66 X $60 X 31 = 122,760 
82 X $47 X 31 = 119,474 
79 X $60 X 31 = 146,940 
82 X $47 X 28 - 107,912 
92 X $60 X 28 = 154,560 
82 X$47X31 = 119,474 

106 X $60 X 31 = 197,160 
82 X $47 X 30 = 115,620 

120 X $60 X 30 = 216,000 
82 X $47 X 31 = 119,474 

134 X $60 X 31 = 249,240 
82 X $47 X 30 = 115,620 

148 X $60 X 30 = 266,400 

Total $213811128 

$115361581 (Savings in contracting if 5 th and 6th floors are renovated) 
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Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation 
March 26, 1999 

Savings in General Fund By Completing 
S1h and 6th Floors in 2001-2003 Biennium 

Contracting Without 5th and 6th Floors: 

1091 - 861 = 230 inmates need to be contracted 

82 @47@ 730 = 
148@ 60@ 730 = 

Plus Staff & Travel 

$2,813,420 
6,482.400 

$9,295,820 
308,600 

$9,604,420 - Without 5th and 6th 

Contracting With 5th and 6th Floors: 

1091 - 971 = 120 inmates need to be contracted 

82 @47@ 730 = 
38@ 60@ 730 = 

Savings = 

$2,813,420 
1,664.400 

$4,477,820 - With 5th and 6th 

$9,604,420 
- 4,477,820 Contracting 
- 1,259,755 Salaries 
- 1,251,745 Operating 
$2,615,100 
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April 9, 1999 

COMPARISON OF COSTS - COMPLETION OF THE 5TH AND 6TH FLOORS OF THE 
JAMES RIVER CORRECTIONAL CENTER AND CONTRACTING FOR ADDITIONAL 

INMATE BEDS -1999-2001 BIENNIUM 

(Based on inmate population growth of 10 percent/15 percent; July 1, 1999, population of 962; 125 inmates removed from 
the prison for alternative programs; and contracting rates of $4 7 for the first 82 inmate beds and additional beds at the 
rate of $55 the first year and $60 the second year.) 

Estimated cost of contract inmate housing WITHOUT renovation of the James River Correctional 
Center (JRCC) 5th and 6th floors 

Less estimated cost of contract inmate housing WITH renovation of the JRCC 5th and 6th floors by 
November 2000 

Estimated contract savings because of renovation of the JRCC 5th and 6th floors 

Less estimated general fund cost to renovate and operate the JRCC 5th and 6th floors (Senate 
version amounts): 

Renovation (general fund cost) 
20 FTE positions and operating expenses 

Total renovation and operating costs 

Estimated 1999-2001 biennium savings because of renovation of the 5th and 6th floors of the JRCC 

1999-2001 
Biennium 

$3,278,496 11 

1,766,491 12 ·3 

$1 ,512,005 

$39,469 
857,345 

$896,814 

$615,191 14 

11 This amount does not include $308,600 ($262,600 for two FTE positions relating to transporting and coordinating the transfer 
of inmates and $46,000 for transportation costs) the department has indicated will be needed if the 5th and 6th floors of the 
JRCC are not completed and contracting costs are based on rates of $47 for the first 82 beds and additional beds at $55 the 
first year and $60 the second year. 

12 Th is amount does not include $46,000 for transportation costs the department has indicated will be needed if the 5th and 
6th floors of the JRCC are completed and contracting costs are based on rates of $47 for the first 82 beds and additional 
beds at $55 the first year and $60 the second year. 

13 This amount is $1 ,156,969 less than the $2,923,460 included in the Senate version for contracting costs. The Senate version 
was based on the following: 

- Estimated inmate population growth of 10 percent the first year and 15 percent the second year. 
- Estimated July 1, 1999, inmate population of 975. 
- An average of 115 inmates being removed from the prison population for alternative programs. 
- Contracting for inmate housing in excess of capacity at the rate of $55 the first year and $60 the second year. 
- Completion of the JRCC 5th and 6th floors by November 2000. 

14 This amount does not include $262,600 for two FTE positions relating to transporting and coordinating the transfer of inmates, 
which the department has indicated will be needed if contracting costs are based on rates of $47 for the first 82 beds and 
additional beds at $55 the first year and $60 the second year and if the 5th and 6th floors of the JRCC are not completed 
during the 1999-2001 biennium. This amount increases the cost to contract for inmate housing rather than complete 
the 5th and 6th floors of the JRCC and has not been included in this calculation. 

• 
I 

L_ 



APPENDIX 

TE: Based on the following: 

1. Estimated inmate population growth of 1 O percent the first year and 15 percent the second year. 

2. Estimated July 1, 1999, inmate population of 962 . 

3. An average of 125 inmates being removed from the prison population for alternative programs. 

4. Contracting rates for inmate housing in excess of capacity of $47 for the first 82 inmate beds and additional beds at the 
rate of $55 the first year and $60 the second year. 

WITHOUT Completion of the JRCC WITH Completion of the JRCC 
Total Total 

Number of Estimated Number of Estimated 
Estimated Contracted Cost for Contracted Cost for 
Number of DOCR Beds Contracted DOCR Beds Contracted 

Inmates Capacity\1 Needed Beds Capacity\2 Needed Beds 

Fiscal Year 2000 
July 887 861 26 $37,882 861 26 $37 ,882 
August 875 861 15 21 ,855 861 15 21 ,855 
September 863 861 15 21,150 861 15 21 ,150 
October 861 861 15 21 ,855 861 15 21 ,855 
November 869 861 15 21 ,150 861 15 21 ,150 
December 877 861 16 23,312 861 16 23,312 
January 885 861 24 34,968 861 24 34,968 
February 893 861 32 42,112 861 32 42,112 
March 901 861 40 58,280 861 40 58,280 
April 909 861 48 67,680 861 48 67,680 
May 917 861 56 81 ,592 861 56 81 ,592 
June 925 861 64 90,240 861 64 90,240 

Fiscal Year 2001 
July 933 861 72 104,904 861 72 104,904 
August 946 861 85 125,054 861 85 125,054 
September 959 861 98 144,420 861 98 144,420 
October 972 861 111 173,414 861 111 173,414 
November 985 861 124 191,220 971 15 21 ,150 
December 998 861 137 221 ,774 971 27 39,339 
January 1,011 861 150 245,954 971 40 58,280 
February 1,024 861 163 243,992 971 53 69,748 
March 1,037 861 176 294,314 971 66 96,162 
April 1,050 861 189 308,220 971 79 111 ,390 
May 1,064 861 203 344,534 971 93 139,934 
June 1,078 861 217 358,620 971 107 160,620 

Estimated 1999-2001 biennium cost of contract inmate housing $3,278,496 $1 ,766,491 

11 This number includes the capacity of the Penitentiary, Missouri River Correctional Center, and the JRCC, as indicated by the 
department, but does not include the proposed renovation of the 5th and 6th floors of the JRCC, which would add an additional 
11 O inmate beds. 

12 This number includes the capacity of the Penitentiary, Missouri River Correctional Center, and the JRCC, assuming occupancy of 
the 5th and 6th floors of the JRCC in November 2000, which adds an additional 110 inmate beds. 
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.!:~JJ~ . J:~J?,!~~A "fE,CONTRACTING' COSTS FO~ __THJ;.1999-20Qt_Bll=N,t"IU~-~~S~Q..,9,ij_~ O. f,9R~~L~TING 
Tt-ij: _5TH AND 6TH FLOORS OF'THE~JAMES RIVER·CORRECTIONAL CENTER DURING THE 1999-2001 BIENNIUM 

(Based on estimated Inmate population growth of 10 percent the first year and 15 percent the second year; July 1, 1999, estimated inmate population of 950 ; and an ave rage of 115 inmates 
being removed from the prison for alternative programs) 

Number of 
Additional 

Number Beds Needed 
Estimated of Inmates for Minimum 

Number DOCR in Excess Requirement 
of lnmates\1 Capaclty\2 of Capacity of 15 Beds 

Fi'scal Year 2000 
July 887 861 26 0 
August 884 861 23 0 
September 881 861 20 0 
October 878 861 17 0 
November 874 861 13 2 
December 880 861 19 0 
January 885 861 24 0 
February 891 861 30 0 
March 896 861 35 0 
April 902 861 41 0 
May 908 861 47 0 
June 915 861 54 0 

Fiscal Year 2001 
July 922 861 61 0 
August 934 861 73 0 
September 945 861 84 0 
October 957 861 96 0 
November 969 861 108 0 
December 982 861 121 0 
January 995 861 134 0 
February 1,008 861 147 0 
March 1,021 861 160 0 
April 1,034 861 173 0 
May 1,047 861 186 0 
June 1,060 861 199 0 

Estimated 1999-2001 biennium cost of contract inmate housing without renovation of the JRCC 5th and 6th floors\3 

Less estimated cost of contract inmate housing assuming renovation of 5th and 6th floors of the JRCC completed by November 2000 

Estimated additional cost of contract inmate housing without renovation of the JRCC 5th and 6th floors 

Less estimated 1999-2001 biennium general fund costs to renovate and operate the JRCC 5th and 6th floors (Senate version) : 

5th and 6th floor renovation (general fund cost)\4 
20 FTE positions and operating expenses for 5th and 6th floors\4 

Total renovation and operating costs\4 

Total Number 
of Contracted 
Beds Needed 

26 
23 
20 
17 
15 
19 
24 
30 
35 
41 
47 
54 

61 
73 
84 
96 
108 
121 
134 
147 
160 
173 
186 
199 

$39 ,469 14 

--- 857,345 14 

Estimated 1999-2001 biennium additional cost (savings) to contract for inmate housing rather than renovate and operate the 5th and 6th floors of the JRCC 15 

Estimated 
Cost for 

Contracted 
Beds 

$37,882 
33 ,511 
28,200 
24,769 
21,150 
27 ,683 
34 ,968 
39,480 
50,995 
57 ,810 
68 ,479 
76,140 

88 ,877 
106,361 
119,220 
145,514 
162,420 
192,014 
216,194 
217 ,112 
264,554 
279,420 
312,914 

--- 326,220 

$2 ,931 ,887 13 

2,92 3,460 14 
- ----·-----· - --

$8 ,427 

_896 ,814_ 14 

($888 ,387) 15 

Adjusted Costs 
Based on House 
Population and 

Contracting Daily 
Rate Estimates 

$2 ,931 ,887 13 

..!.,'.!~,3_36 11,3 

- $1 ,443,551 

896 ,814 1~ 

$546 ,73 7 16 



• 11 · Based on projections prepared by the Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation pursuant to Represe Svedjan's request to use the following assumptions: 1 0 percent growth in the i 
population during fiscal year 2000 and 15 percent during 2001 ; 115 inmates being removed from the prison for alternative programs; and a July 1, 1999, inmate population of 950. 

12 This number includes the capacity of the Penitentiary, Missouri River Correctional Center, and the JRCC, but does not include the proposed renovation of the 5th and 6th floors of the JRCC, which would 
add an additional 110 inmate beds. 

13 The estimated cost is based on the assumption that an average of 82 beds will be available at county correctional facilities at an average daily cost of $47 . It is also assumed that any prison beds 
needed in excess of 82 will be contracted at a daily rate of $55 for fiscal year 2000 and $60 for fiscal year 2001 . 

14 Based on the Senate version. The estimated inmate population is based on completion of the 5th and 6th floors of the JRCC by November 2000, 10 percent growth in the inmate population 
during fiscal year 2000 and 15 percent during 2001; 115 inmates being removed from the prison for alternative programs; and a July 1, 1999, inmate population of 975 . The estimated cost is 
based on an average of 82 beds being available at county correctional facilities at an average daily cost of $47 and additional beds at the daily cost of $55 and $60 the first and second years of the 
biennium, respectfully . 

15 This amount does not include $262,600 the department has indicated will be required for 2 FTE positions relating to transporting and coordinating the transfer of inmates and $46 ,000 for transportation 
costs to contract with county facilities for 82 inmate beds. If the estimated savings is adjusted by these amounts, the estimated savings is reduced to $579,787. 

16 This amount does not include $262,600 the department indicated will be required for 2 FTE positions relating to transporting and coordinating the transfer of inmates and $46,000 for transportation costs 
to contract with county facilities for 82 inmate beds. This additional $308,600 cost was not included in the estimated contracting costs without completion of the JRCC or the estimated contracting costs with 
completion of the JRCC. Because this amount was excluded from both calculations. no adjustment is required to the additional cost to contract for inmate housing. 
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PEi'vlBINA COUNTY JOB DEVELOP!\tlENT AUTHORITY 

December 16, 1998 

Red River Regional Council 
1004 Hill Avenue 

Grafton, ND 58237 
~.(f{)> 

To: Members of the 56th Legislative Assembly 
State of North Dakota 

The Pembina County Job Development Authority (PCJDA) Correctional Facility Comminee met 
with Elaine Little, Dept. of Corrections (DOC), and Governor Schafer's assistant William Goetz 
at the Capitol on September 3, 1998. As you know. the PCJDA is investigating the possibility of 
establishing a correctional facility in Pembina County. The focus of the meeting was to 
determine the level at which the North Dakota DOC might provide North Dakota prison inmates 
to the proposed facility . 

The PCJDA recognizes that rural North Dakota is experiencing a serious decline in population. 
The PCJDA views the proposed facility as a provider of a good number of higher paying jobs 
and therefore an economic development project worthy of serious attention. 

The meeting discussions resulted in a request from Mr. Goetz to present a brief informational 
statement describing the proposed facility and the economic benefits derived. Also, how the 
State of North Dakota and DOC might facilitate the economic development process in Pembina 
County. 

The proposed facility could be planned, financed, owned and operated under several 
scenarios: 

* The County or sponsoring community would finance. construct, O\vn and operate the 
facility . \:ot likelv . 

* The County or sponsoring community \vould finance . construct. own or partner with J 

private agency. and contract for management of the facility . Most likelv and fa\orabk . 

* The County or sponsoring community would allow financing. O\Vnership . and operat ion 
of the facility by a private agency. Likelv and favorable under certain circumstances . 

..\ny of these scenarios would provide the jobs and population stabilization desired . 
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December 16. 1998 Members of 56th Legislative Council 

Understanding that you will soon consider a proposed budget for the upcoming biennium, we ask 
that you consider our plan for housing inmates as a politically acceptable alternative to spending 
on additional state facilities or out-of-state housing. The success of our plan depends. in part, 
upon your willingness to use our proposed facility as such an alternative. 

For the members of the Pembina County IDA. thank you for your concern. We hope you might 
review the information provided. Should you have any questions, please contact Dennis Dame at 
the Red River Regional Council or any member of the PCJDA Correctional Facility Committee. 

PCJDA Correctional Facility Committee 
Walter Hurst, Chairman, St. Thomas, ND 
Chuck Thacker, Neche, ND 
Wayne Levang, Cavalier, ND 
Leon Dubourt, Walhalla, ND 
Tom Trenbeath, Cavalier, ND 
Dennis Dame, Red River Regional Council 

701-257-6872 
701-265-8981 
701-265-8417(W) 
701-549-376l(W) 
701-265-8800(W) 
701-352-3550(W) 

701-265-4565(8) 
701-265-3621(8) 
701-265-3 l 84(H) 
701-549-3737(8) 
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PEMBINA COUNTY CORRECTIONAL FACILITY 

This report is prepared and intended to be in " brief" form . The information, ideas anc 
concepts prov ided herein are just that, brief . The information is factual, if unsupported 
in some cases, and should give rise to many unanswered questions . The purpose of this 
brief is to promote discussion and debate with any and all interested parties or individuals. 
We fully intend that all information and subsequent debate be apolitical in nature. We 
hope that an understanding of the concept and all possible circumstances can be reviewed 
with reason. Throughout this brief the term "pr ison" , in brevity , will be used to describe 
any or all correctional facilities . 

The concept and reality of prison is both old and new in keeping with our most outdated 
laws and innovations in crime and punishment. We have Alcatraz as our tourist attraction 
and $100,000,000, super maximum 4,400 bed correctional institutions. We still have 
murder, rape and robbery but also drug traff icking, terrorism and computer fraud . As 
communities, states and a nation, we have experienced and attempted to deal with the 
ever-changing concerns of crimes, punishment, and prisons. One constant has remained 
from our earliest civilized attempts to our most recent determinations to resolve these 
concerns ; and that constant is : we want the criminals in prison, the longer the betters : 
Truth-in -sentencing laws and stiffer penalties for drug related offenses have increasec 
prison terms for offenders . 

Our present system of incarcerating criminals, although under constant review and critical 
examination, exists as the underdeveloped remains of an early twentieth century program. 
The reasons for slow growth in prison reform are many are varied , with cost most 
prevalent . Social and political expediencies, however, have become the determinant 
factor for new thinking, new response, and new demand for more prisons. The "I'm mad 
as hell and I'm not going to take it anymore" syndrome has saturated the public wronged 
by criminals . Cost and methods to build cells have become secondary concerns when 
compared to the rampant rise in crime rates. Additional concerns regarding our system 
of jurisprudence and the attendant "right of prisoners or criminals" vs . "rights of victims" 
have added major fuel to an already good-sized blaze. Most citizens view a dramatic 
change in the legal system as dream state but also most agree we can "put them away" 
until the system changes. To this end, we arrive at the purpose of this brief: can we build 
a correctional facility? See the legal definition in ND Code Title 12, Part VIII, Chapter 12-
44.1 . 

The question is not easily answered , or asked . On the surf ace, yes, we can build a 
correctional facility . After all , we have the land , maybe we can find the money, and ther 
there is that great public outcry , "I'm mad as hell. .. . " We should , before we order 
concrete and steel bars, examine several obvious questions or comments and perhaps 
many less obv ious : 
1 . Who says we need a prison or correct ional facility 7 

2 . Where would we put this prison? 
3 . What would this fac ility costs? 



• 
Northeast ND . 

The total concept for the project must originate with cooperation between all existing 
agencies and responsible parties . We would prefer to begin with discussions with the 
Governor's Office and the Department of Corrections. We feel it is essential and foremost 
that wehave approval and support from the Governor and the Department of Corrections . 
They will be instrumental in the decision to pursue the project. They will be crucial to the 
allocation of state inmates to the facility. Without this support the project would most 
likely be doomed from the outset. 

Secondly, and as important, we will need support form county and local officials to 
determine the need and eventual location for the project. 

In the final estimate, we will need public awareness, appreciation and support for the 
project, most importantly in the final phases. 

We hope we can all agree to investigate the possibilities that the project might provide and 
arrive at a joint determination. 

If we agree that this basic concept is sound, we can address the plan directly. We would 
like to provide timely and factual information. Our plan is to focus our attention on 
similar, successful project in other states. We might also review several programs not so 
successful in the learning process . Our initial investigations will attempt to answer basis 
questions : 

1. How do we construct the prison? (size, style, floor plan etc.) 
2 . How do we finance the project? (revenue bonds, loans, grant etc.) 
3. Are there companies that will construct and operate a prison for us, and what are 

the consequences? 
4. How do we establish an inmate population? Contracts? 
5 . How do we secure contracts with other facilities? (states and federal) 
6. What does it cost to house a prisoner? 
7. How do we determine the profitability of a prison? 
8 . Who can answer our questions and provide assistance in our investigation? 

We have answered some these questions and preliminary investigation results indicate we 
are on the right track. 

We hope this brief can provide you with information sufficient to become aware of the 
concerns of the Pembina County Job Development Authority (PCJDA). We anticipate 
questions . suggestions, and offers of assistance to find solutions to these concerns . We 
believe all of North Dakota would benefit from this project. 

f :-.denny 1 pr,son broef 



DIVISION OF JUVENILE SERVICES 

Budget Overview 
and 

Community Services Budget 

HOUSE APPROPRIATIONS 
HUMAN RESOURCES DIVISION 

Representative Ken Svedjan, Chairman 

DJS 
January 13, 1999 
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STATUS OF JUVENILE CORRECTIONS 
IN 

NORTH DAKOTA 

• Tracking the number of juveniles within DJS (Attachment One) 

• Arrest data (Attachment Two) 

• Violent juvenile arrests (Attachment Three) 

• Continuum of Care - Juvenile Corrections in North Dakota (Attachment Four) 

• Breakdown of numbers within the Division by Regional Office (Attachment Five) 

• Common foster system and the implications of that 

• Recidivism studies 

♦ 1994 - 20.4 percent 
♦ 1996 - 20.0 percent 
♦ 1997 - 12.8 percent 
♦ 1998 - 12.4 percent 

• Yearly community office audits (Attachment Six) 

1 



• • • DJS Statewide Custody Analysis 
Juveniles in Custody Over Time 

600 .--------------------------, 
Total Juveniles in Custody - Comparison of One-Day Counts 
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Forelble Rape , 10 

Robbefv 2 7 

Aggravated Assault 26 34 

BUr'lllarv 232 216 

LarcenyfTheft 1,640 1,535 

Motor Vehicle Theft 117 163 

Othel'Assaultl 160 146 

Arson 32 7 

Forgorv and Counterfeiting 51 62 

Fraud 19 11 

Embettiemeot 

Stolen Property Offenses 112 132 

Vandalism 329 377 

We•pona Offenses 67 34 

Prostltutlon 

Othar Sex Offense& 39 38 

Drug Offe~as ee 48 

Gambling 

Off, Agalrm Family/Children 4 17 

Driving Under the Influence 121 74 
Liquor Law Vl:>laticms 1.488 1,179 
Discrderty Col"ld~ 303 311 

Vagrancy 1 

An Other Offenses 809 737 

Suspicion 4 ,a 
C~rfew and Loitering 267 400 

R1.maways ~6 878 

Tatel 8,843 6.427 

Tibia 4 
Juv1nlle.Amrtta 

by 0ffenae 1111d VIII' 
orth Dakota, . N 1988 1997 
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28 34 30 
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17 47 28 
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12 11 13 
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Attachment Two 

1993 1994 1995 1998 1997 

2 9 1 

1 

e 13 16 12 6 

14 e 13 10 13 
47 37 68 45 35 

226 197 208 201 222 
1,900 1,848 2,066 2,056 1,771 

196 223 262 198 205 

368 379 467 517 424 

13 19 24 20 26 

51 77 65 54 46 

23 19 18 2B 20 

1 1 
109 86 83 138 106 
605 609 669 420 654 

64 61 62 50 34 

2 

34 25 31 30 32 
83 84 136 205 229 

126 97 142 109 95 , 

86 77 77 62 )04 
1,291 1,426 1,712 ~ 1,900 1,976 -

366 464 579 575 611 . 

801 975 ,.303 1,636 U43 . 

409 495 414 561 486 

951 1,038 1,109 1,109 1,043 " 

7,743 8,246 9,432 9,938 9,780 



• RATE OF VIOLENT JUVENILE CRIME 
National vs. Area States 
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JUVENILE ARREST DATA - VIOLENT CRIMES• 

1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 
Calendar Year 

National 

Mmnesoth 

South Dakota 

Montana 

North Dakota 

1995 1996 1997 

Violenl Crime - 1989 Violent Crime - 1990 Violent Crime - 1991 Violent Crime - 1992 Violent Crime - 1993 Violent Crime • 1994 Violent Crime - 1995 Violent Crime - 1996 

Arrests Rate/100.000 Arrests Rate/100,000 Arrests Rate/100,000 Arrests Rate/100,000 Arrests Rate/100,000 Arrests Rate/100,000 Arrests Rate/100,000 Arrests Rate/100.000 

UNITED STATES" 84732 164.3 91317 181 .7 95677 198.8 112409 204.2 119678 215.0 125085 252.6 115592 254 .8 102231 206.8 

~;NESOTA 1266 108.5 1352 115.9 1383 118.5 1660 137.6 1767 149.1 2126 178.5 2106 175.7 2026 165.0 

NTANA 38 17.1 52 23.4 101 45.5 116 52.2 109 49.1 178 80.2 218 93.7 232 100.6 

SOUTH DAKOTA na na 100 50.4 118 66.1 93 53.3 145 88.0 173 111.8 180 109.8 202 122.8 

NORTH DAKOTA 51 28.5 44 25. 1 41 23.7 51 29.1 71 40.5 58 33.8 106 63 .6 68 41.6 

• 'Violent Crime· includes murder, rape, robbery, and aggravated assault. 

Nalional statistics for 1997 from 9,271 reporting agencies representing 68.5% of U.S. population. 

h:\aaa\cooperative services~uvenile justice -jjplcrime analysis\arrest data\violent2 
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Violent Crime - 1997 

Arrests Rate/100,000 

86462 181 .6 

2070 166.7 

175 76 .2 

98 72.6 

54 33.0 



Attachment Four 

DIVISION OF JUVENILE SERVICES 
Treatment/Service Continuum 

llndependent Living Program 
Specialized Feater Care 
Community Sanctions 
Diversified Oecupatlon ■ 
Ou1patlent Drug & Aleehol 
Individual Counse ling 
Family Counseling 
Intensive In-Home 
Day Treatment 
Tracking 

Education 
Vo. Education 
Drug & Aleehcl 
Trutment Teams 
T1me Out Program 
Detention ;>rogram 
Sex:.::il 1':c.:::-:ent Pr:.,;. 
Agresalcn Repla~menl 

--~~ 
Stale Hospital 71 1f. I")_ ~ore 
Four Ruidentlal 'i3i er 0,(3...>--\ 

Treatment Facllitlea J 

5 

Community Sanctions 
Diversified Occupations 

Outpatient Drug & Aleehol 
Individual Counaellng 

Family Counaellng 
Intensive In-Home 

Day Treatment 
Tracking 

Ar;.un o Titl e 1\/-E Federal 
Funding cf Common 
Fester Care System 

Most Com,nunlty 
Servic.M Available 

In Client's Home, plus 
Ac.cu■ to TIiie IV-E Feder:il 

Funding cf Comm"On 
Foster Care System 
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STATEWIDE C STODY ANALYSIS 
ONE-DAY COUNT - 1/1/99 - STATEWIDE 

OTHER/JOB CORPS (3.80%) 
DETENTION (0.00%) 

RES.TREAT. (7.20%) 

RES.FOSTER (28.80%) 

CARE & CUSTODY ANALYSIS - DIVISION OF JUVENILE SERVICES 

HOME (39.40%) 

D&A (0.60%) 

FOSTER (8.80%) 

PLACEMENT LOCATION - ONE-DAY COUNT 
DRUG & THERAPEUTI C & RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL 

REGION/1990 YOUTH POPULA. MALE FEMALE TOTAL HOME ALCOHOL FAMILY FOSTE P FOSTER CARE TREATMENT DETENTION 

NORTHWEST 9129 23 7 30 17 0 0 10 2 0 
NORTH CENTRAi 25095 41 13 54 10 0 8 13 9 0 
LAKE REGION 14070 41 11 52 17 0 8 13 4 () 

NORTHEAST 25812 54 12 66 39 I 3 7 5 0 

SOUTHEAST 36238 51 14 65 18 0 9 23 3 0 
SOUTH CENTRAI 16833 37 9 46 16 0 8 16 2 0 
WEST CENTRAL 36175 105 22 127 51 I 5 40 11 0 

SOUTHWEST 12033 51 9 60 29 I 3 22 0 0 

TOTAL 175385 '103 97 .)\JU 197 3 44 144 36 0 
AVERAGE 0.806 0 . 194 I 0.394 0.006 0.088 0.288 · 0~072 0 

(1/1/99) 

OTHER YCC EVAL. & 

J OB COH PS TREATMENT 

0 I 
0 14 

2 8 

3 8 

6 6 

0 4 

6 13 

2 3 

19 57 

0 .038 0.114 

* Other includes other families, independent living, AWOL's, and job corps. Residential Foster Care includes in- and out-of-state 
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REGIONAL CUSTODY ANALYSIS 
TOTAL CASELOAD PER 1000 
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Dick. 
- >- ' ' 

' ' 

Bis ,. .. ,r,,,. . '"' "" .... " .... ., ..... ,, . •. . .,_, ·• 
• ·~//.22u./Hll.ll/✓u.W22u2uu-.hM~ 

-- I I 

' ' ' ' 

D . L. W~h"~..W~,WW,b"~,wQ&r.iiw'.u~~~~..W~h"/,W.,W~,W~,z¼·' " 

' ' ' . 
M i n O t ,, .,,, ''"'"'"'"' '•"'"4 w,• "-' ', • • hN """" ,,, ""' ·~ : : 

' ' 
-'- I I I I 

Wi II ~ ·. .C!it'=1"""''" "••····· ,._, 
0

«s,N,w•'"" ~ w ' ;;:;;rA•'""'Y"''''' ,"'"'""W o • •.• < , " : ''"' ·~• <"' : • WD°....zwh'"?~~~ 0'D".LlZDD2t'~ ,zq//); • 

0 1 2 3 4 
CASELOAD PER 1000 OF POPULATION 

■ 2 Years 1 Year 2 Months (1/1/99) 

5 
)::, 
M
M
Pl 
() 

::r 
3 
CD 
::I 
c-t-

-n 
-'• 
< 
CD 



Attachment Six 

AUDIT PROCESS 

I. Standards Review 
A. Records 

1. Case Files 
a. Compliance with timeframes for completing forms 
b. Compliance with standards for contact with juveniles 
c. Quality of contact with juveniles, family members, professionals, 

etc. 
2. Summary of findings 

II. Staff Review 
A. Direct services to youth and families 
B. Treatment and Rehabilitation Planning process 
C. Supervision/Case Management 
D. Case Review/Staff Supervision and Professional Development 
E. Office Space and Equipment Considerations 

111. Telephone Contacts 
A. Parents 
B. Juveniles 
C. Professionals 

1. Juvenile Court 
2. Human Service Staff: regional supervisors, treatment providers 
3. Trackers 
4. Law Enforcement 
5. Private treatment providers 
6. Foster Care providers : foster parents, group home staff, residential 

center staff 
7. YCC staff 
8. Any other local service provider or agency pertinent to the region 

IV. Summary and recommendations 

8 
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DIVISION OF JUVENILE SERVICES 

COMMUNITY SERVICES 

1999-2001 GOVERNOR'S BUDGET RECOMMENDATIONS 

Salaries and Wages - $2,422,423 

• 30.5 FTE's - No new positions requested in 1999-2001 budget. 

• Governor's Salary Package - $122,422. 

• Salary funding requested to support reclassification of case managers and their 

supervisors. 

• Temporary and overtime salaries reduced based on the filling of all authorized case 

management positions. 

Operating Expenses - $2,380,775 

• Increased funding requested to support case management motor pool and travel 

expenses. 

• Funding requested to relocate Fargo office. 

• Elimination of passthrough funding from the Department of Human Services for the 

Independent Living Projects in Devils Lake and Dickinson - $86,460. 

9 



• Tracking fees increased by $70,000 from $530,000 to $600,000 ($170 of this 

request was moved out of the base budget to an optional adjustment). 

Year 

1997 

1998 

339 

350 

Goals Met 

90 

99 

Goals Partially Met 

79 

92 

Goals Not Met 

34 

31 

• Funding included in base budget to support Day Treatment at six schools around 

the state - $480,000. [Beach, Dunseith, Grand Forks (2), Belcourt, Dickinson, and 
";).CpOD ~d-o,o { ~ 

Jamestown.] 

• Funding included in base budget to support the Intensive In-Home Projects in seven 

regions of the state - $114,000. (Shared with the Juvenile Courts and DJS.) 

• Continuation funding for the Mental Health Partnership Project in Bismarck and 

Fargo - $74,080. (This was an optional adjustment in our budget request.) 

• Information technology funding to support the management information system 

being developed to pull data together from the Community Services offices and the 

Youth Correctional Center. Also supports our involvement in the CCWIPS system 

developed by Children and Family Services. 

• Diversified Occupations Program in six schools - $206,820. (Was an optional 

adjustment in our budget request.) [Williston, Belcourt, Devils Lake, Grand Forks, 

Bismarck, and Dickinson .] This program provides an opportunity for schools, the 

referring agencies, and the business community to work together to educate 

10 



students. The teacher coordinator correlates classroom learning experience with 

practical on-the-job training to assist in developing job skills. 

Equipment - $7,000 

• A large amount of the equipment budget relates to the information technology plan. 

Delinquency Prevention Consortium - $200,000 

• Federal and Special Funds to establish worthy prevention projects - Keep 

youngsters in school , in their home communi ti es, and in the famil y . 

Grants - $2,870,900 

• OJJDP Funding - $1,553,000 

• JAIBG Funding - $1 ,317,900 

11 



What Will We Be Doing? - 1999-2001 

• Continue to more effectively manage, treat, and attempt to rehabilitate juveniles in our 

custody 

• Philosophy - Put juvenile corrections out of business 

• Keep adolescents in school 

♦ Dr. Elliot study 

♦ Grades 7-9 lost contact with school 85 percent chance of being in juvenile 

corrections 

• Continue to assist the reservations in the development of services 

• Increase drug and alcohol services for troubled adolescents and their families 

• Prevention -

♦ Where does it fit with the deepest part of the system? 

♦ How DJS involves itself in prevention. 

12 
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1. Tracking Fees 

a. Amount 
b. Impact on Program 

HUMAN RESOURCES DIVISION 

Questions for 
Division of Juvenile Services 

c. How much time is being spent 

2. Explain two Federal Grants and what they are used for 

3. List number of computers/other technology 

4. Why two-day treatment programs in Grand Forks? 

5. Further justify 12-month school year 

a. plan at a reduced level 
number of courses 
11-month program 

6. Further breakdown on Psychiatry, Psychology, Carpentry 

a. any grants, job corps money to satisfy 

7. Breakout of Equipment request - technology & other 

8. House Building Project/Contract - Can it be done to generate revenue for the division? 

9. Clarification on material costs for shop & garage 

1 0.Justification for increased Temp/OT/OTS 

11 . Full explanation of Pine Cottage, divine and life safety systems 



Responses to Human Resources Division questions for the Division of Juvenile 
Services 

1. Explanation of tracking fees 

a. Amount - $600,000 
b. This is a program we contract with Lutheran Social Services to provide. In 1997-

99 we are paying $15.00 per hour and we will pay $16.0 per hour in 1999-2001 
for the services of a tracker. We have two levels of tracking services. The first 
level is a person who acts as a mentor, role model for the juvenile in our custody. 
The second level is called intensive supervision and the contract provides for 
being able to perform urinalysis and hook offenders up to electronic monitoring. 
The primary responsibility of the tracker is to report directly to the case manager 
the progress of the clients who are assigned to them. They are an extension of 
the services provided by the case manager. Not having a tracker has a direct 
bearing on how many offenders we can manage in the community, which is the 
least costly placement. 

c. The average number of tracker hours assigned an offender is 3 .5 hours per week. 

2. Explain two Federal Grants and how they are used 

OJJDP - $1,553,000 

The allocation of this money is administered by the State Advisory Group, which is 
appointed by the Governor. The dollars are distributed according to criteria 
established by federal guidelines. 

$1,000,000 - funding for statewide (23 locations) county level attendant care and 
detention programs. 

448,000 - grants to schools, cities, counties, and other non-profits to divert 
juveniles from the corrections system. 

105,000 - school based programs to keep juveniles in school. 

JAIBG- $1,317,900 

The allocation of these dollars is based upon allowable federal criteria and on a plan 
approved by the Governor.. 

$200,000 - juvenile courts for intensive tracking 
160,000 - juvenile courts for victim mediation 
240,000 - Tribal court probation officers 

80,000 - Administration (Contract with the Association of Counties) 
637,900 - Pass through to counties and cities 
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3. List Number of Computers/Other technology 

Equipment budget - $7,000 

A three to five year replacement schedule is utilized to adequately support DJS/ 
Community Services needs. Estimated PC replacement costs are $2,300 per unit. 
The budget anticipates the replacement of 3 units. !j() 

4. Why two day treatment programs in Grand Forks? - @{)u{)A ~ rS-,, 
G,,~afs 

In mid-summer of 1998, we were told by the Mayville-Portland consortmm that 
they were not going to continue their day treatment program. It was too late to go 
to a RFP process for the upcoming school year. Grand Forks had asked for funding 
for a high school day treatment model, which we had denied because of a lack of 
funding. We then informed Grand Forks we would fund the high school model for 
one year. 

Grand Forks is one of the most aggressive schools districts when it comes to starting 
and being actively involved in programs that address the needs of at risk students. 
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5. Further justify 12-month school year 
a. Plan at a reduced level 

Number of courses 
11-month program 

A juvenile entering the North Dakota Youth Correctional Center is on the average two 
grade levels behind. Therefore, the ability to immediately address their education problem 
is of utmost importance. Approximately 260 young people pass through the NDYCC in the 
period of one year's time. 

Having the ability to find success in school is one of the most important parts of a troubled 
adolescent's life. 

NDYCC participated in the statewide school testing program in the past year. We are able 
to advance a student two months educationally for every one month they are placed with 
us. This is very important because on the average, each student is 8.5 credits behind when 
they come to us. 

We hope you do not pursue a reduction in the 12-month school program, but if you did, 
each month educationally, costs us approximately $70,000. 

If we taught a basic core curriculum, that would cost us approximately $35,000 per month. 

6. Further breakdown on Psychiatry, Psychology 

1999-2001 Biennium 
Psychiatric Fees 

Psychological Fees 

$2,400/mo 16 hrs/mo $1 50/hr 
* Based on negotiated contract. 
$2,400/mo 16 hrs/mo avg $120/hr 
* Based on survey of local provider costs 

$57,600 

$48,000 

Funding is requested to contract for the services of a child psychologist as follows: 

1. At the request of NDYCC's contract psychiatrist, the services of a psychologist are 
needed to assist in implementing and monitoring juvenile treatment plans and 
programs; and 

2. Many of the treatment facilities juveniles are transferred to upon release from NDYCC 
require a psychological assessment prior to acceptance at that facility. 

We are not aware of any grant funding that is available to fund these services. 



7. Breakout of Equipment Request - Technology & Other 

Biennial Budget Item: 

1. Dust Collector - Tech Ed Shop (Life Safety Issue) 

2. Tractor (Used) - Grounds maintenance 

3. Carpet Cleaning Machine 

4. Thrash Pump - Swimming Pool (Safety Issue) 

5. Refrigerators (2 replacements) 

6. Air Conditioners (5 replacements) 

7. Security Radios (10 replacements) (Security Issue) 

8. Institution Furniture Replacements (Living Units) 

9. Desk Replacements 

10. Replacement computers (Technology Plan) 

(The majority of these computers are for 

classroom use.) 

Amount 

$15,000 

15,000 

1,500 

1,200 

1,800 

4,000 

5,000 

10,000 

6,000 

50,000 

11. Gym Mats/Mat Truck 10,300 

TOTAL: $119,800 

In January 1999, YCC received 

a Vocational Education grant 

to accomplish this purchase 

before the end of the 1997-

1999 biennium. The 

Committee could deduct 

$15,000 from our equipment 

request. 

Included in Technology Plan 

submitted to ISO. Twenty-five 

(25) replacement computers 

on a 3-year cycle. 



8. House Building Project/Contract - Can it be done to generate revenue for the division? 

If the program was required to operate for profit, $50,000 would be required to purchase materials 
up front for the house we just finished building. 

Reasons for not getting into the home building industry: 

1. Risk factor in investing $50,000. 
2. We would need to get into the home selling market. 
3. Home Builder's Association is markedly opposed to this concept. 
4. Taxes on the sale. 

We have been asked to provide homes for the Community Action Agency through UBC. 

Breakdown of CARPENTRY PROGRAM costs 

Teacher Compensation: 

Operating Expenditures to-date: 

Planned: 

97-98 Contract 

98-99 FTE Teach er 

Transportation 

Spiffy Biffy 

Foundation Cement Work 

Small Tools 

Safety Clothing 

$33,633 

36,600 

$70,233 

$2,400 

1,360 

4,000 

1,340 

300 

$9,400 

1) Double Set Cement Pads for New House Construction $5,000 * 

2) Access Door/Slab Addition to accommodate shop access and deliveries 5,000 * 

3) Dust Collector System (Independent from separate request for Tech Ed shops) 15,000 * 

4) Garage/Slab/Driveway 10,000 * 

5) Small Tools 5,367 

* Preliminary estimates from the local contractor. 1997-1999 budget --$120,000 



9. Clarification on material costs for shop & garage. 

UBC has agreed to provide the supplies for the shop/garage from the profit generated from the sale 

of the home at no cost to YCC. This would be our classroom and storage area for the Carpentry 

Program. 

10. Justification for increased T em/OT /OTS. 

In addition to regular overtime required to operate a twenty-four hour a day facility, NDYCC has 
utilized the Temp/Overtime budget to provide staff coverage in special needs areas this biennium, 
without adding new positions. 

Maintenance 

Food Service 

Special Programs 

Seasonal Grounds worker ($7.00/hr) 

Temporary Cook ($7.00/hr) 

Supervisors - Summer Youth Employment Program 

$17,050 

17,600 

23,436 

(Supervisors for this program enabled YCC to accept $63,000 in federal grants 
for juveniles to earn minimum wage for jobs on campus. These paid job 
opportunities enabled juveniles to make $10,362 in restitution payments.) 

Education 

Resident Care 

Substitute Teachers ($75/day) 

Overtime 

Holiday Pay 

Temp: 

Resident Care Workers (2.5) 

Night Security 

Rover 

(.75) 

(7.5) 

74,412 

21,840 

21,840 

$22,000 

70,062 

90,000 

118,092 

$358,240 

Nursing fees are included in the operating budget as contracted services. The increase from the 
1997-1999 to the 1999-2001 biennium in this budget item is spread among the seasonal grounds 
worker, temporary cook, supervisors for the summer youth employment program and the substitute 
eachers. 



11. Full explanation of Pine Cottage, Devine, and Life Safety Systems. 

PINE COTTAGE 

See Testimony by Al Lick delivered on January 18, 1999, to the full House Appropriations 
Committee. (Attached.) 

DEVINE HALL - $120,000 

Campus Administration Center - Remodel Devine Hall (1927) as a Campus Administration Center. 
The campus Administration Center would house the offices of the Superintendent, Assistant 
Superintendent, related support services (finance, data processing, secretarial pool), as well as 
conference rooms. These offices are currently located in the School Administration Building. 

Devine was vacated in 1984. Devine Hall has been nominated by the State Historical Society to be 
placed on the register of historical buildings. 

The space vacated by Administration in the school building would become the Education, Testing, 
and Assessment Center. It would continue to house classrooms and school offices, but in addition, 
would provide office space for testing evaluation and counseling staff, programs currently housed in 
basement facilities throughout the campus. 

Funding is requested at this time to prevent further deterioration of the building structure. The 
following would be accomplished. 

• $60,000 to re-roof the remainder of facility, replace the gutters, downspouts, and to repair the 
fascia boards. 

• $20,000 for exterior weatherproofing, including spot tuckpointing of the mortar joints and 
weatherization or replacement of windows. 

• $30,000 for installation and temporary heat/utilities to prevent freeze-up. 
• $10,000 for professional services to provide preliminary design and cost estimates for 

renovation. 

LI FE SAFETY SYSTEMS 
BROWN AND MAPLE COTTAGES -

$101,000 

Installation of fire suppression systems in Brown and Maple Cottages are at the recommendation 
of the State Fire Marshall (copy of letter attached). 

The installation of the fire sprinkler systems in Brown and Maple Cottage will provide the 
juveniles and staff the required level of life safety that has been recommended by the office of the 
State Fire Marshall. 

The fire sprinkler systems in Brown and Maple Cottages will include the installation of sprinkler 
heads located at all strategic locations throughout the buildings. Zone controls for the systems 
annunciator panels for the fire alarm control and signaling, and connection to the main water 
supply. 
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Bl&marck, ND 5B502·10S4 
701-329,5S00 
900-472•2185 
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F~::r:: 701,'.l:ZB,5510 

Ar• Maral\i,I 
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OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL 
STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA 

June 13, 1995 

Keith Rasrn·cis sen 
P li:!.nt Se . .r v ices 
State Indu3trial School 
701-16th Ave. SW 
Mandan, ND 58554 

Dear Keitj_! 

This is a ~ecap of the ~eeting that was held on June 1, 
1995. 

New bath~oom facilities are being added to resident 
roorr.s in Brow:i Cottage, and t·,.;o bath roo:ns will share 
ventilation. ~ampers wculd be reauired if the buildina 
is r.ot provided with a complete automatic s;,rinkler ., 
.!=!ystem. Erow:1 Cottage is re~ired to be sprin:elered, 
but due to bud~e:ary co~atraints this cannot be done 
until at lP.~st. lgg7, 

Th~s of!ic~ wo~ld approve the above projR~~ without 
dampers, with the assura~ce that the sprinkler system 
will be ~~stalled in 1997. ~~e reason this ~ill h?. 
accep~able for this period of ti~e is that several 
aafety =c~tu=e~ ~re alre~dy present so the lack of the 
sprinkler system should not present a hazard to life 
and safety for a short t~e. The fi:1cility has electr:.c 
doo~ leeks (operated fro3 a remote locaton), s~oke 
ueL~ction in each resident room, an intercom 3y~tc~, 
and visual inspections are done at least every 30 
minutes. 

Again, this is acceptable only if t~e complete 
automatic sprinkler system is installed in 1997, 
otte~~ise the aampers will need to be ins~alled. 

;a:ely, 
Barb S~q!¼"'-) 
Deputy State Fire Marshal 



TESTIMONY ON PINE COTTAGE 

Testimony on HB1022 
January 22, 1999 

The North Dakota Youth Correctional Center (NDYCC) provides the most secure environment 

for juvenile offenders in the state. 

There are many important reasons for the addition and renovation of Pine Cottage. 

When we are implementing our most severe level of discipline, which is lockdown with no 

privileges, we need that individual in isolation in a single housing unit. There are times now, 

when because of our population, we cannot provide that isolation. Because we will be able to 

assure consequences with the addition to Pine Cottage, that enhances our ability to provide 

discipline in other cottages. 

The North Dakota Century Code provides that adolescents 14 and over who commit murder, 

rape, robbery, or aggravated assault, must be waived to adult court, and tried as an adult. In 

some instances, because of the physical maturity or various other reasons, the Department of 

Corrections and Rehabilitation can house that individual at the NDYCC and transfer them to the 

State Penitentiary at a later date. Presently, that cannot be done with solid assurances of 

providing the level of public security with which we feel comfortable. 

We need more space in the cottage to provide both indoor and in-season outdoor recreation. 

Presently, it is next to impossible to provide any type of meaningful form of exercise, which is a 

very important component of maintaining order, discipline, and staff safety. This project would 

provide a completely self-contained environment for individuals whose behavior has shown they 

need it. 

Presently, we are bringing education service to Pine Cottage in the form of one teach committed 

entirely to the cottage. We use teaching carousels so that we can provide some semblance of 

privacy because the teaching is very individualized. The addition would provide a self-contained 

classroom. 

We have been able to obtain $500,000 of federal money to dedicate to this project. The total 

project is 1.975 million, with the remaining $1,475,000 included as bonding money. 

G:\LEGISLAnPINE COTTAGE.DOC 
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Detailed Explanation of Requested Reinstatements 

Salaries and Wages 

The House reduced the twelve-month school program to a basic core curriculum for July and 
August. It means instead of a full curriculum, we would teach the following classes during that 
time period. 

1. Mathematics 3. English 5. G.E.D 7. 
2. Science 4. History 6. Reading/Language 8. 

The following classes would not be taught.* 

1. Computer Science 4. Automotive 6. Technology 8. 
2. JTPA Technology Education 
3. Library 5. Welding 7. Carpentry/Building 

Trades 
*These classes are all very important to clients in the corrections system. 

Operating Expenses 

YCC 
Medical Budget: 

Communitv Services 
Intensive In-Home 
Day Treatment 
Diversified Occupations 

Divine Hall Improvements 

Adjusted 1997-99 Medical Budget 
1999-01 Requested Medical Budget 

Divine Hall - tuck pointing, windows, heating system, downspouts, roof 

Life Safetv Systems 

The installation of fire sprinkler systems in Brown and Maple cottages 
. will include the installation of sprinkler heads located at all strategic 
locations throughout the buildings. Zone controls for the systems, 
annunciatory panels for fire alarm control and signaling, and the 
connection to the main water supply. 

Special Education 
Middle School 

Vocational 
Resources 
Education/Health 

$309,090 
319,484 

$114,000 
480,000 
206,820 

$120,000 

$101,000 

Extraordinary Repairs Requested $180,900 Cut $115,900 $65,000 

$19,000 - Fire Alarm system in Administration Bldg. - Fire Marshall 
30,000 - Remodel front office 
22,000 - Caulking of various buildings 
15,000 -Assistant Superintendent house; roof, siding, sofets, facias 
48,500 - Asbestos removal: Pine, Hickory Cottages and old apartments 
37,400 - Demolition of can1pus buildings 

9,000 - Overlay parking lot 



1 -2 0 - t;9; g: 2 0 .c..~ : r-, u .c.. s s n v -:-- ._uv ,1 1. , "= :::o 

Juvenile Accountability Block Grant Program -- Attachment 2 
Program Purpose Areas 

The purpose of the JAIBG Program is to provide States and units of local 
government with funds to develop programs to promote greater accountability in 
the juvenile justice system. Funds are available for the following eleven program 
purpose areas, as enumerated in H.A. 3. In addition, the Appropriations Act 
provides a twelfth area for which funds may be expended: the implementation of 
a State or local policy of controlled substance testing for appropriate categories 
of juveniles within the juvenile justice system. 

Purpose Area 1 
Building, expanding, renovating, or operating temporary or 
permanent juvenile correction or detention facilities, including 
training of correctional personnel; 

Purpose Area 2 
developing and administering accountability-based sanctions for 
juvenile offenders; 

Purpose Area 3 
hiring additional juvenile judges, probation officers, and court
appointed defenders, and funding pre-trial services for juven iles, 
to ensure the smooth and expeditious administration of the 
juvenile justice system; 

Purpose Area 4 
hiring additional prosecutors, so that more cases involving 
violent juvenile offenders can be prosecuted and backlogs 
reduced; 

Purpose Area 5 
providing funding to enable prosecutors to address drug, gang, 
and youth violence problems more effectively; 

Purpose Area 6 
providing funding for technology, equipment, and training to 
assist prosecutors in identifying and expediting the prosecution 
of violent juvenile offenders; 

Purpose Area 7 
providing funding to enable juvenile courts and juvenile 
probation offices to be more effective and efficient in holding 
juvenile offenders accountable and reducing recidivism; 



Purpose Area 8 
the establishment of court-based juvenile justice programs that 
target young firearms offenders through the establishment of 
juvenile gun courts for the adjudication and prosecution of 
juvenile fire arms offenders; 

Purpose Area 9 
the establishment of drug court programs for juveniles so as to 
provide continuing judicial supervision over juvenile offenders 
with substance abuse problems and to provide the integrated 
administration of other sanctions and services; 

Purpose Area 10 
establishing and maintaining interagency information-sharing 
programs that enable the juvenile and criminal justice system, 
schools, and social services agencies to make more informed 
decisions regard ing the early identification, control, supervision, 
and treatment of juveniles who repeatedly commit serious 
delinquent or criminal acts; 

Purpose Area 11 
establishing and maintaining accountability-based programs that 
work with juvenile offenders who are referred by law 
enforcement agencies, or which are designed, in cooperation 
with law enforcement officials, to protect students and school 
personnel from drug, gang, and youth violence; and, 

Purpose Area 12 
implementing a policy of controlled substance testing for 
appropriate categories of juveniles within the juvenile justice 
system. 



VIOLENT OFFENDER INCARCERATION/TRUTH IN SENTENCING (VOI/TIS) 
L.4 Ql.,""ESTION: Is the Sto.tc required to obtain approval from OJP prior to using grant funds 

A.l\SWER: 

for juYenile facilities for non..,,·iolent juvenile offenders? 

No. The State mu~ provide l certification that exigent circurnst,.nces exist which 
require it to exper.d funds for facilities to confine nv11viuk11tjuvcnile offer.dcr3. 

J .. ~ QUESTION: If funds are to be u.scd to construct facilities for violent juvenile offenders, will 

ANSWER: 

the State be required to submit separate data on juvenile incarceration? 

No. TI1e st3tutorily defined cri:er:a used :o demonstrate el:gibiliry for the Violent 
Orfend-~r Inc.:ircer3.t:on arid Tr:.ith-in-Senttncing Int".f'nt ive Grant's apply only to 
offenders in the adult system, except that under Tier 1 of the Violer.t Offender 
Iw.:c1:t.:c1<.1tion Prcgn:m the S~tc must 11s3;.;rc tho.t it has implen:ented, or will 
im plement, corrcctonal policies and programs, including Truth-in-Sentencing laws, 
tint among otr.er things "are desi~!:d w prnviu.:: ~uffo . .:;cntly severe puni3hmcnt for 
violent offend<!rs, hcluding vio!er.t juvenile offenders.'' The applicatio:1 must 
include a descript:cn of how the St1te has demonstrated or plans to demon mate a 
cc-mmi,ment to this and the oi.r.er criteria ourlL1ed in the assur~ce. States will be 
aske:i i:i future apli:ations to prcvide ir,fonnatio:1 on the number and type of beds 
built with grant funds. includ:ng those in juvenile correctional facilit ies. 

M. Pl"'iv.ate Facilities 

-~ 
t~ M.1 QUESTIO:'.\: 

~ 
Al"{SWER: 

Can grnnt funds be used to engage a private entity to build or expand a 
correctional facility on land owa~d by the State'! 

Yes, as Ieng as o·,;:nersh1p cf11e completed facility resides with the State. 

Can gr:;rnt funds be used to engage a priv:1tP. entity to build or expand a 
correctional facility that will be privately owned? 

No. Ownership cf facilities bu il t or exp;mded with grant fur.ds must reside with the 
pub lic agency. 

J\I.3 QUESTION; Can a unit of local government use grant iunds it receives from the State under 

A._'i'SWER: 

this program for privatization? · 

No. As currently w,irten, the st:itute only pe.rrn its State5 to use the gBnt funds for 
rriv:-H i,;:r in:1 . Although a Stare may use grant funds t•_) privatize a facility or lease 
beds for adult or juvenile offenders, the ~rivatizarion provistons do not apply to the 
15 per::~;-i t that m:iy 61:: made av:i.ihble t ,) im its r:ifl0c;il gnvemmcnt. 

A r .. s,vers lo Freq'.lently Asl:d QucYtions - Revised December 3 I, I 998 j/ 
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NORTH DAKOTA YOUTH CORRECTIONAL CENTER (NDYCC) 
1999-2001 BUDGET PRESENTATION 

I. Introduction 

HOUSE APPROPRIATIONS/HUMAN RESOURCES 
CHAIRMAN: REPRESENTATIVE KEN SVEDJAN 

VICE CHAIRMAN: REPRESENTATIVE LEROY BERNSTEIN 

A. Mr. Chairman and members of the House Appropriations/Human Resource Committee. 
I appreciate the opportunity to meet before you to discuss NDYCC's 1999-2001 Budget 
Proposal. However, before we discuss our budget request for the coming biennium, I 
would also like to take a little time to highlight expenditures from this past biennium. 

B. I realize that you have a monumental task before you and I hope that the information I 
am about to share will be helpful in your decision making process. I'll be happy to 
answer any questions you may have and if I cannot give you an answer today - or if my 
staff present cannot answer, I will research your question and get it to you as soon as 
possible. 

C. As most of you are aware, NDYCC is the most RESTRICTIVE environment within the 
continuum of care provided by the Division of Juvenile Services. The NDYCC has the 
statutory obligations for the care, custody, education, and rehabilitation of juvenile 
offenders. 

D. NDYCC's Mission is "to protect society while providing education and therapeutic 
services to troubled adolescents within a safe and secure environment. " Juveniles at 
NDYCC are prepared to return to a less restrictive placement in their communities with 
the skills to choose more appropriate behavior and to find success in life. 

E. We are accomplishing our mission through good and caring staff who want to make a 
difference and good programming which emphasizes: 

1 ) Structure 
2) Accountability 
3) Relationship 

F. This biennium NDYCC implemented a new treatment modality entitled, "EQUIP" 
which was developed by Granville Potter and Dr. John Gibbs. EQUIP is an identity 
oriented treatment approach focusing on cognitive restructuring, anger management, 
social skills, and social decision making. 



II. Budget Highlights for the 1997-1999 Biennium 

A. Gymnasium. The 1997 Legislature appropriated $1 .4M to renovate the campus 
gymnasium which was constructed in 1925. All work on the renovation was completed 
in December, 1998. The renovation included installation of fire alarm and air handling 
systems, renovated locker and shower facilities, a physical fitness room, office and 
storage space, window replacement, roof replacement, and gym floor surface 
refinishing. Physical recreation appropriately directs the energy of students in a 
positive, competitive way through controlled activities. 

B. Carpentry Program. In conjunction with the North Dakota Association of Builders, 
NDYCC began offering a Carpentry Trades Program in 1997. This program was 
initially supported through a federal grant for adjudicated juveniles through the U.S. 
Department of Labor. The Carpentry Trades Program includes classroom education, a 
360-hour apprenticeship program and the potential of job placement upon release. 

Upon expiration of federal funding , the 1997 Legislature appropriated continuation 
funding for the Carpentry Trades Program. This biennium NDYCC combined its 
financial and personnel resources with the State Penitentiary (MRCC) and offered the 
Carpentry Program half days at both facilities. 

C. Medical Expenses. This biennium, medical expenses for juveniles committed to 
NDYCC have increased significantly. Improved psychiatric services have resulted in 
increased medications and medication reviews to address juveniles' emotional 
disorders . Addressing the emotional problems of juveniles has enabled staff to better 
address the criminal behavior that resulted in placement at NDYCC. Deficiencies in 
medical and dental care for juveniles prior to placement, has required immediate 
attention upon entry into the institution. NDYCC anticipates that these juvenile 
medical, dental, and emotional needs will continue to increase and is reflected in our 
budget proposal. 

D. Capital Improvements and Extraordinary Repairs. 

1. Bank Stabilization. As a result of Spring 1997 flooding, NDYCC received and 
expended $25,061 in Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) funds for 
bank stabilization on the Heart River. 

2. Additional Capital Improvements. Completed this biennium: ( 1) removal of 
the asbestos containing material and re-insulation of the steam lines in Hickory 
Cottage; (2) roof replacements on the School/ Administration building and the 
Heating Plant; and (3) installation of a backup boiler as Phase II of the Boiler 
Replacement Plan. 

3. Extraordinary Repairs. The following projects have been accomplished: (1) 
Fire Alarm/Life Safety System (Hickory Cottage); (2) window replacement 
(Power House and Hickory Conage); (3) sidewalk repair and replacement; (4) 
renovation of the former Laundry Building into a Campus Maintenance Center; 
(5) replacement of overhead doors in the Vocational Education Shop; (6) interior 
painting (School, Centennial, Hickory and Pine Cottages); and (7) remodeling of 
the shower, restroom/laundry area (Maple Cottage) to accommodate a co-ed 
population. 
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III. North Dakota Youth Correctional Center Budget Request-1999-2001 

Line Item 97-99 

SALARIES 
(77% of Total Budget) 
FTE 85 .89 
Salaries 4,662,120 
Temp/OT/OTS 341,740 
Fringe 1,528,206 

Total Salaries $6,532,066 

OPERATING 
Auxiliary Services 983 ,992 
Administration 206,153 
Education 252,341 
Resident Care: 

Cottage Life 190,000 
Sp Programs (Grants) 2,000 
Medical 164 884 

Total Res Care 356,884 

Total Operating $1,799,370 

EQUIPMENT 
Equipment 119,77 1 
Equipment-Grants 18 708 

Total Equipment $ 138,479 

CAPITAL IMPROV 
Capital Improvements 2,175,916 

Total Capital Improv $2,175,916 

TOTAL BUDGET 

Funding: 
General 
Federal 
Special 

$10,695,831 

5,788,669 
1,293 ,331 
3,613,831 

99-01 

89.46 
5,236,726 

358,240 
1,747,566 

$7,342,532 

993,992 
176,570 
183 ,553 

190,000 
20,000 

399 484 
609,484 

$1,963,599 

119,771 
15 000 

$ 134,771 

2,345,900 
$ 2,345,900 

$11,787,802 

8,036,124 
1,671 ,008 
2,080,670 

3 

lnc/(Dec) 

3.57 
574,606 

16,500 
2 I 9,360 

$810,466 

10,000 
(29,583) 
(68,788) 

18,000 
?34,600 
252,600 

$ 164,229 

(3,708) 
$ (3,708) 

170 984 
$ 170,984 

$1,091,971 

2,247,456 
377,677 

(1 ,533 ,161) 

Explanation 

Increase Includes: 
I) 12-Mos School 

Iner FTE 3.57 
296,783 

2) Carpentry Program 68,788 
(transfer from operating) 

3) Sal Inc + Fringe 348,259 
4) Inc Temp/OT/OTS 16,500 

(Night Security) 
5) Health Plan 

Total 

I) Inc Food - Fed Funds 

80,136 
810,466 

2) Education-Carpentry Prog 
(Trans to Sal) 

3) Inc Grant Funding - Fed Funds 
4) lnc Medical Exp - Gen Funds 

Psychiatrist - $57,600 
Psychologist - $48,000 
Med Exp - $95,000 
Nurse - $34,000 

I) Dec Fed Grant Funding 

Approved: 
Special Mgmt Unit- $1,975,000 
(High Security) 
Life Safety Systems - $101,000 
Devine - $120,000 

(Fire Alarm Systems) (Brown) 
Maple Cottages) 

Genera l Funds: 
I) Education Funding Source Chg 

DPl to GF - $1,242,200 
2) lnc Medical Expense - $234,600 
3) Salary Increase 



IV. Goals (1999-2001) 
A. Completion of ACA/Performance Based Accreditation 

B. Enhance Education Programming 

1. Fully funded 12-month school program. 

2. Continued cooperation with Missouri River Correctional Center and the Building 
Trades Program. 

3. Experiment with the implementation of block scheduling to better meet the 
educational needs of our students. 

C. Resident Care 

1. Enhance Drug and Alcohol services. 

2. Enhance high security programming. 

3. Implementation of a vo lunteer program at NDYCC to involve local community 
members . 

V. Closing Remarks 
I view our population not as children at risk, but rather children of promise. I thank you for 
your time this morning and openly invite you to visit NDYCC at your convenience. 

4 



NORTH DAKOTA YOUTH CORRECTIONAL CENTER 
STATISTICAL DATA 

JULY 1, 1997-JUNE 30, 1998 

Total Number of Admissions = 531 to include: Evaluation, Time-Out, Treatment, and Detention 

DAILY AVERAGE AVERAGE LENGTH OF STAY 

Month Total Evaluation Time Detention Treatment Treatment= 7 months Evaluation = 40 days 
Out Time-Out = 14 days Detention = 8 days 

7/97 
86 8 3 5 70 

97 ?" 0 2 72 
8/97 

_.) 

TYPES OF ADMISSION 

9/97 
103 19 I 3 80 

Total Percentage 
Number of of Students 

Students 

10/97 
99 12 0 5 82 

Evaluation: 
Court Requested: 38 116 22% 

104 13 2 2 87 
11/97 DJS: 78 

12/97 
101 12 0 2 87 

Time-Out 43 8% 

1/98 
96 8 4 3 81 

Treatment 266 50% 

2/98 
89 8 2 0 79 

Detention 106 20% 

3/98 
98 7 I I 89 

SEX 

4/98 
98 4 I 2 91 

Male 430 81 % 

5/98 
100 12 0 5 83 

Female 101 ]9% 

6/98 
89 11 0 I 77 

RACE 

Average 97/daily 
II 1.17 2.58 82 

White 324 61% 

COMMITTING AGENCY= 425 students Black 15 3% 
(Doesn't include Detention) 

Court requested 38 9% American Indian 184 35% 
Evaluations 

Division of 372 88% Other 8 1% 

Juvenile Services 

Bureau of 2 1% CLASSIFICATION = 425 students (Does not 
Indian Affairs include Detention) 

Bureau of Prisons 13 2% Delinquent 419 99% 

Offenders 

Status Offenders 6 1% 
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NDYCC EQUIPMENT REQUEST 
1999-2001 BIEN!'IWM 

Dust Coll~ctor- Carper.Jry ShQ.P_,($15,000): Life S~fety fasue. Purchase cfa portable 
dust collector for use in the Carpentry Shop/Building Trades. 

Dust Collector - Tech Ed Shop ($18,200): NDYCC has received a grant from 
V ocationai Education (S 18,200) to accomplish purchase and installation of a dust 
collector system in L11e Tech Ed Shop in the current biennium. An Emergency 
Commission to accept and expend these federal dolla.rs has been submitted. 

Residential Cottage. Fumiture Replacements {$10,000): Equipment dollars are requested 
to either replace or modify juvenile bed frames. Bed frame change~ ~re iiecessary to: ( 1) 
preclude beds from being dismantled and the parts used as weapons against staff, and (2) 
eliminate bed parts that can be used by juveniles to deliberately cut or otherwise maim 
themselves. This is a critical life-safety need (for hot.h juveniles and staff). A..-r1y dollars 
remaining after this project has been completed will be used to purchase group 
counseling room table!) and ch~ir~. 

Exercis,e/Safety Mats ($10,075} and Mat Truiik ($225)- Gymnasium: Exercise/Safety 
M~ts for 1~~e around and under gym apparatus to provide additional cushioning and to 
build juveniles, confidence. The Exercise/Safety ma.ts "Nill also be used in mandatory 
stafftraining sessions, including Self-Defense and First-Responder courses. 

Rgpla.cement Computers: The Youth Correctional Center has approximatt,ly 100 
computers on campus. Most of these computers (75) are essential, either: (1) in the 
school for juvenile education and training, or (2) in day-to-day business operations by 
staff. The remaining computers (25) are located in the resitfential cottages for use by 
juveniles. 

The YCC Technology plan is to replace one.third (25) ofYCC's essential computers on a 
three year rotation cycle (25 computers per year x $2,OOO/computer ~ $50,000). As 
essential computers are rnpfo.ced 1 the old computers ar0 transferred to the cottages for use 
by juveniles. 

JJ~d Tractor ($15,000): The Maintenance Depaitment is requesting the purchase of a 
used replacement tractor for maintaining the grounds at the Norll Dakota Youth 
Correctional Center. The current tract0r, a l 950~s model Massey Ferguso~ is inoperable. 
This tractor \'\rill be used to perform the cultivation required L., the tree belt areas, the 
mowing of the gracs in the areas that a.re too rough for the regnl~r l::tw ~1111ipment~ pulling 
the water tank for watering new trees, weed control with the sprayer, and other uses. 

P. 002 
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We are looking at purchasing a tractor in the 40 horsepower range -with a 3-point hitch 
and live power take-off. 

Double Set Cement Pads - Carpentry Program: (Cost for material and labors $5,000.00) 
(l $cl .. 3 pads - 45' long and 4' wide and 6'' deep): A double set of cement pads for house 
cribbing used in construction of houses (1 set equals three pads) allows YCC Carpentry 
Prugram to work on the construction of hvo houses during the wa.rm. weather. When the 
winter weather arrives YCC Carpentry Program will have two houses enclosed for winter 
finishing work. Thus house construction "\Vil! not come to a slow do'Ml or stoppage 
because of weather. 

Acecn Door/Slab Addjtion - Carpentry Prosram'. An a.cees~ door will be c:ut tot.he side 
of the existing overhead door. The access door and installation cost is $3,5000. The 
existing cement driveway to the overhead door will be expanded on both sides to 
accommodate access doors, a pad for the dumpster, and a pad for the dust collector 
system. (Es.1imated cost for cement and labor - $1,500.00). 

Storage Garage - Carpentry Program: A slab of cement will be poured for the floor of 
the;, CUID$Lructloa of a building for the storage of tools nnd m'1terials to be used in house 
construction as we11 as space for blueprint layouts, clothing, safety equipment, and other 
construction related materials and supplies. (30' x 40' x c,_,, - size of slab) (Cost for 
cement, reinforcement. and labor: $10.000) 

P. 003 



January 13, 1999 

Representative Rick Berg 

ALTERNATIVE CORRECTIONS, INC 
Post Office Box 1121 
Moorhead, Minnesota 56561•1121 
Phone(218)291-0896 
Pax GUS) 291·0899 

North Dakota House of Representatives 
6437 13th Street North 
Fargo, North Dakota 58102 

RE: ELECTRONIC HOME DETENTION AND ALCOHOL MONITORING 

Dear Representative Berg: 

The purpose of this letter is to inform you about the services that my company provides 
and how those services may be helpful to the state of North Dakota. My company 
provides home detention for criminal offenders. The attached letter explains the 
technology utilized to insure that the offender is at home and does not consume alcohol. 
Home detention is most often served by persons who have multiple convictions for 
driving under the influence, although, the offenses range from theft to welfare fraud to 
assault. 

Specifically, my services could save North Dakota millions of dollars annually. 
Alternative Corrections currently saves Clay County, Minnesota, over $30,000 per month 
(Clay County has less than 60,000 residents). These savings are achieved by requiring 
the offender to pay for his own punishment and by keeping the offender out of jail. 

North Dakota would save millions of dollars annually if Judges had the option of 
sentencing alcohol offenders to jail, jail and home detention, or home detention. In a 
state where the penitentiary houses offenders who serve more than 30 days, the savings to 
the state would be substantial. From July 1, 1997 through June 30, 1998, the North 
Dakota Department of Corrections spent $2,025,584.00 housing inmates outside of the 
penitentiary. The average cost to the state is $40.00 per person per day. See attached 
memo from the State Penitentiary. For each inmate that is sentenced to home detention, 
the savings to the state would be $14,600.00 per year. Additionally, the rate of growth of 
the state's penal institutions could be slowed. 

The problem lies in the fact that electronic home detention has not been legislatively 
recognized as an alternative to incarceration for criminal offenders. I am asking that you 
legislatively recognize home detention with alcohol monitoring as an alternative to 
incarceration. 

Please call me if you have any questions or concerns. 
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MEMORANDUM 
NORTH DAKOTA STAT! PENfTENTIAIIV 
SFN 10H1 (11•90) 

ions, .. nc. 

Per your letter dated July 7, 1998, the following information was 
requested: 

The cost to ho\lse j nmatos :i.n county jails, c:ommuni ty placement 
and Appleton Correctionc1l E'ac.ility for ~luly 1, 199'/ through June 
30, 1998 js approxima~ely $2,025,584 {tho month of June was 
estimated). The cost per inmate pe.r day averages approx:i.matoly 
$40, with the exception of those inmates housed at Appleton whjch 
c:harged $50 per inmate per day, We had monthly, approximatoly 60 
to 100 inmates in county jails, l.5 in community placement and 9[, 
at Appleton. With the opening of our medium security facility 1.n 
Jamestown, the only external housing will be 15 inmates in 
community placement • 

As I stated to you ou tho phone, we arc in the process of working 
on our 1999-01 budget and those numbers are not available at this 
time. 



October 12, 1998 

Representative Rick Berg 

ALTERNATIVE CORRECfIONS, INC 
Post Office Box 1121 
Moorhead, Minnesota 56561-1121 
Phone(218)291-0896 
Fax (218) 291-0899 

North Dakota House of Representatives 
6437 13th Street North 
Fargo, North Dakota 58102 

RE: ELECTRONIC HOME DETENTION AND ALCOHOL MONITORING 

Dear Representative Berg: 

The purpose of this letter is to let you know about the services that my company provides 
and how those services may be helpful to the state of North Dakota. Further, I am a 
lifelong resident of North Dakota and wish to do business in my home state. 

Alternative Corrections, Inc provides electronic home detention and alcohol monitoring 
services to four counties in western Minnesota. Electronic home detention is achieved by 
installing a small video camera in an offender's home and calling that on a random basis 
to make sure that the offender stays home. The unit is approximately twice as large a 
standard desk phone (the camera may not be activated without the assistance of the 
offender). When a call is placed to the offender, the offender is required to go to the unit 
and press a button to transmit the offender's image to assure that the offender is home. 

Alcohol monitoring is achieved by coupling the video supervision outlined above with a 
breathalyzer. In the alcohol monitoring scenario, the offender is required to submit a 
breath sample in addition to a video image. The video image not only assures that the 
offender is home, but also assures that the person that is submitting the breath test is the 
offender. I have attached a product summary for your review. 

The reason that this service has been so successful is that Minnesota has legislatively 
recognized home detention with alcohol monitoring as an alternative to jail for DUI 
offenders. The benefits to the North Dakota would be immediate. Fewer felony level 
DUI offenders would be housed in state correctional facilities. The most popular thing 
about this program is that the offender pays for this service out of his/her own pocket. 
The State of North Dakota would not be required to expend in excess of $32.00 per day 
per person for the offenders on an alcohol monitoring program. 

I am interested in your thoughts regarding legislatively recognizing home detention and 
alcohol monitoring (especially because the Governor recently announced that the new 
Jamestown facility would be full soon). Thank you for your attention in this matter. I 
look forward to hearing from you. 

Sincerely, 
ALTERNATIVE CORRECTIONS, INC 

Thomas P. Martin, President 
-Enclosure 
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MEMS 2000 HomeStation 
Diamond Series VBR 

The MEMS 2000 VBR HomeStation is an electronic monitoring device that is 
comprised of a Video Display Telephone, a Breath Alcohol Tester and a radio 
frequency Receiver/Monitor. The three components are housed in one fully 
integrated unit measuring just 11 "x 11 "x 9.S"(LxWxH).The two tone gray unit 
consists of a top half made from ABS flame retardant plastic. The bottom half of 
the case is a metal chassis designed for durability. The operational switches are 
covered for easy cleaning and tamper resistance and the vents are filtered to 
prevent the intrusion of debris into the chassis. 

The HomeStation attaches easily 
to a participants telephone. It will 
operate with either a standard 
rotary or touch tone telephone, 
using a modular telephone 
connector jack or plug . 

The HomeStation is powered by a 
standard 11 0V AC power source. 
No permanently attached wires or 
cables are visible on the outside of 
the unit, as the HomeStation 
utilizes connection jacks for 
telephone, telephone line, and 
power. It is equipped with an 
internal back up battery capable of 
providing up to 18 hours of 
emergency power in the event of a 
commercial electrical failure at the 
home site. 

The Video Display Telephone 

The Video Display Telephone sends a still black and white image to the 
WorkStation in 9 to 12 seconds, using a CCD camera with external infrared 
LEDs to provide lighting . The camera is mounted behind a tv-Jo-way mirror for the 
purpose of positioning the client's image properly prior to sending a picture. With 
resolution of 242 pixels x 200 lines and a gray scale level of 50, the client's 
image is transferred to the monitoring center by pushing a single button . 



• 

• 

The Breath Alcohol Tester 

The HomeStation utilizes an Electro-Chemical Breath Alcohol Tester(BAT) that is 
capable of providing highly accurate alcohol consumption assessments by 
analyzing a deep lung sample, achieving an accuracy rate of +/- 5%. The BAT is 
used in conjunction with the Video Display Telephone to identify and confirm that 
the subject taking the test is the program participant. The BAT sends commands 
to advance the voice prompts from the computer and to inform the computer of 
test results or any errors that occur. 

An interface circuit combines the Video Display Telephone with the Breath 
Alcohol Tester. The interface circuit tells the Video Display Telephone when to 
capture and send the client's image and tells the BAT when to send the test 
results. 

The Receiver/Monitor 

The Receiver/Monitor module is factory integrated into the MEMS 2000 VBR 
HomeStation. It receives signals from the transmitter that is worn on the ankle of 
the client. The Receiver/Monitor sends and receives information about the 
participants presence and absence and relays the information to the Workstation 
via standard local and long distance telephone lines. The Receiver/Monitor can 
detect the transmitter signal from a distance of 200 feet. 

The Receiver/Monitor features electrical surge protection for both power and 
phone lines, tamper sensitive enclosure, an internal clock for time/date stamping 
of events, and modem interface for data transmission. The Receiver/Monitor 
automatically calls the Workstation for maintenance checks at programmable 
intervals, and is equipped with a local memory capable of storing 1,024 events. 

Each Receiver/Monitor has a specific transmitter programmed to it at the time of 
enrollment. This transmitter code can be changed at any time, and a new 
transmitter paired with the Receiver/Monitor. While a transmitter is paired with a 
specific Receiver/Monitor, it will respond to events from that transmitter only. 

The Transmitter 

The Transmitter is a unit worn by the client around the ankle using a tamper 
resistant strap. It features dual tamper design and will detect any efforts by the 
participant to tamper with or remove the device. The Transmitter sends signals to 
the Receiver/Monitor, automatically and accurately confirming the participant's 
presence when the Transmitter comes within 200 feet of the Receiver/Monitor. 
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The Transmitter measures 1.75" x 1.56" x 0.69" and weighs just 1.6 ounces . 
Utilizing futuristic mold technology, it features a unique one piece design, 
attaching easily and comfortably to the ankle of the participant with a disposable 
locking clasp. Constructed of non-toxic, non-irritant, non-flammable plastic, the 
Transmitter poses no health or safety hazards and, in no way, unduly restricts 
the physical movements or activities of the participant. The strap measures 11.4" 
x 0.87" x 0.12" and is fully adjustable, allowing easy fitting for both juveniles and 
adults. 

The Transmitter is powered by a 7 volt DC Lithium battery with an operational life 
of 18 months and a shelf life of five years. Because of the long life of the battery 
and the Transmitter's one piece design, replacing the battery does not require 
cutting the strap. 

The Transmitter is shock 
resistant and fully water 
proof. It functions reliably 
under normal atmospheric 
and human environmental 
conditions. The 
Transmitter's operational 
temperature range is 
-10°C to 55°C, levels well 
outside those experienced 
in a typical client 
environment. 

The Transmitter features a digital ID signature and status that is unique to each 
individual Transmitter and is not used by any commercial or consumer products. 
The Transmitter will detect any attempt to duplicate the unique signature by 
anything other than the Transmitter itself. The MEMS 2000 radio frequency and 
Transmitter comply with all applicable FCC and UL Rules and Regulations . 



MEMS 2000 HomeStation 
Diamond Series VB 

The MEMS 2000 HomeStation is available in several models. The VB 
HomeStation gives corrections agencies the option of monitoring a participant's 
presence in the home and/or the participant's alcohol consumption. 

The VB HomeStation can be used with or without the optional Breath Alcohol 
Tester(BAT), further customizing the system. This allows the agency to utilize the 
electronic monitoring technologies it needs most. 

Where the alcohol consumption of a participant is restricted, the optional electro
chemical Breath Alcohol Tester can be utilized in conjunction with the Video 
Display Telephone. This provides verification that the subject performing the 
alcohol test is actually the program participant. This confirmation is provided 
without the need to make a home visit. 
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MEMS 2000 HomeStation 
Diamond Series RF 

The flexibility of the MEMS 2000 Diamond Series equipment is further 
demonstrated with the RF HomeStation. The RF HomeStation features all of the 
continuous signaling capabilities of the VBR HomeStation in a smaller unit for 
agencies with no need for video verification or breath alcohol testing. The 
customization capability of the MEMS 2000 Diamond Monitoring System allows 
an agency to categorize program participants, thus reducing per diem costs for 
corrections agencies. 

The RF HomeStation utilizes the same transmitter as the VBR HomeStation and 
is compatible with the MEMS 2000 Workstation. Alarm reporting, 
preprogrammed maintenance checks, self diagnostics, RF range, and ease of 
installation are characteristics that remain consistent with all Diamond Series 
radio frequency equipment. 
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MEMS 2000 
Mobile Monitor Unit 

The MEMS 2000 Mobile Monitor Unit is a small, hand-held, portable unit 
designed to receive and display any valid transmitter status within its range. The 
unit's memory is capable of storing 1000 readings, which include transmitter 
identification number, strap and body sensor tamper status, transmitter battery 
status, and date and time of any occurrences. 

The Mobile Monitor has an RF range of up to 700 feet and will detect signals with 
the use of its 4" antenna and/or its optional car mounted antenna. The unit is 
operational for up to six hours when powered by its 12 volt DC rechargeable 
NiCad battery. Additionally, the Mobile Monitor is able to access an automobile's 
DC power source with the optional cigarette lighter accessory cord. 

All events and readings detected are capable of being downloaded to the 
Workstation through a laptop via a modem, or directly to a printer. All cables and 
software are included in the MEMS 2000 Mobile Monitor package. 
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ALTERNATIVE CORRECTIONS, INC 
Poet Oftlce Bo11; 1121 
Moorhead, Minnesota 56561·1121 
Phone (218) 291-0896 
Fax (218) 291-0899 

January 28, 1999 

Representative Rick Berg 
North Dakota House of Representatives 
North Dakota State Capitol 
600 East Boulevard A venue 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58577 

RE: Ideal Statutory Change 

Dear Rick: 

SeotByFa:a: 
(701) 328-1997 
4 Pages 

I have distilled my wishes fur this iegislative session into one proposed legislative 
change. I have included the entire section with this fax for your review. The change 
would be a mere addition to the existing DUI statute. 

My proposal is to add the following paragraph to N.D.C.C. § 39-08-01. 

h. For purposes of this section, "imprisonment" means commitment to the 
Department of Corrections to serve a tellil, commitment to the County 
Sheriff to serve a term, or enrolhnent in a program of electronic home 
detention wherein the defendant is tested at least twice daily for the 
consumption of alcohol 

I will give you a call to discuss this tonight. 

Sincerely, 
AL~IVE CORRECTIONS, INC 

Thomas P. Martin, President 

Enclosure 
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39-08-01. Penona under the influence of lnto:dcatina liquor or 
-, odler dnp or 11Ubatancee not to operate vehicle - Penalty. 

1. A person may not drive or be in actual ph)'Bicel control of any vehicle 
upoii a highway or upon public or private areas to which the public 
has a right or access for vehicular UBe in thus state if any of the 
following apply: 
a. That penon bu an alt.obol concentration of at leaat ten one

hundredtha of one pel'Calt by weight at the tiuie of the perfor
mBPCe of a chemical teat withm two bo111'8 after the driving or 
being in actual physical control of a vehicle. 

b. 'nlat person ia under the imluence of intmicatjng liquor. 
c. That penon i4 under the influen~ of any drug or substance or 

combination of drnga or subetances to a degree which tetldera 
that person incapable of safely driving. 

cl. That person is under the oo,nbined influence or alcohol and any 
other drugs or substanc:es to a degree which nmdete that peraon 
incapable of safely driving. 

The fact that any person charged with violating thia section ia or bas 
been legally entitled to wse alcohol or other drugs or subat.ancea is 
not a defeme against any charge for violating this sed:ion, unleaa a 
drug which pnsdoa>inately caused impairment was uaed ollly aa 
ditect.ed or cautioned by a practitioner who legally prescribed or 
dispensed the drug to that person. 

2. A person violating this section or equivalent ordinance ia guilty or a 
clBSB B misdemeanor for the first or second oft'ense in a five-year 
period. of a clN8 A misdemeanor for a third offense in a five-year 
period, of a dae• A misdemeanor for the fourth oft'ense in a eeven
year periQC!, and of• class C felony fot a fifth or subsequent offense 
in a aeven-year period. The minimwn penalty for violating thia 
section is as provided in subsection 4. The court ahall take judicial 
notice of the fact that au offense would be a subsequent offense if 

187 
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MOTOR VIBICLF.S f:-
., .... 

:indicat.ecl by the records o( the ditector or may meke a aubeequen .. / 
offense finding based on other evidence. ·:r~~ 

8. Upon conviction, the court lllay order the motor vehicle number. -:: 
plat.ea of the 111otor vebicle owned and operated by the offender at the : · .. 
tulle of the off'enae t.o be impounded Cot the dnration of the period of ,~· 
11uspenaion or revocation of the otrender'11 driving privilege by the ;,; 
licensing authority. '11:le impounded ntllllber plates mnat be sent to ,. 
the director who must retain them for the period of a~pell8ion or 
revocation, subject to their disposition by the court. 

4. A ·peraoo convicted of violating this section, or an equivalent ordi
nance, muet be &ellt.enced in accordance with this subaeci.ioo.. 
a. For a first offense, the aent.ence must include both a fine of at leut 

two hundred fifty dollan and an order for addiction evaluatioo by 
an appropriate licenaed addiction treatllleot program. 

b. For a aecond, off'enae within five yea:re, the aentence must illclude 
at least four 48Jllf"' imprifO!lJPent of which fimt:mcht hOUJ'B muat 
~. or ten days' comuumity service; a fine of 
at leaat five hundred cl;Dars; atad an order for addictioo a,,alua
tioo by an appropriat.e licensed addiction treatment pragnm. 

c. For a thp:d gffimNJdtbin fin ran. the aentenc:e must include at 
leasts· ~im~ ofwhi fl · th nrsmuatbe 
serv tiVe • a fine of one thousand dollars; and an order 
or addiction evaluation by an appropriate licenaed addiction 

treatment program. 
d. For a J2!!.rt.h or e,•bPeqnent affim@e within seven .1!!!J, the ,.. 

sentence must include one hundJ::ed eid,ty dm,' jJpprisopm~t. of .. 
which f9rty-eigh~ muat he served copaecutiyelY and a fine of :. 
one tbowsand d • 

e. The execution m.- iDlpoaition of sentence under this aec:tion may 
not be suspended 01' deferred llDder subsection 3 or 4 of section 
12.1-32-02 ncept that a fine or a se11t.ence ofiulpri11omnent may 
be suspended in any of the following instances: 
(1) Upon conviction of being in actual physical control of a motor 

vehicle in violation of this section or equivalent ordinance. 
(2) Jf the defendant ia under age eighteen when convicted ocept 

that if the defendant has, within the preceding five yean, 
previously bean convicted of violating section 39.08-01 or 
equivalent ordinance. the sentence must include at least 
forty-eight consecutive hours imprisonment or in a miuimum 
security facility or at least ten da.ys of community Bel'Vice. The 
execution of the eentenc:e may not be auapended nor the 
impositi011 of .entenc.e deferred under subsection 3 or ~ of 
section 12.1-32-0'l. 

f. For purpose8 oC thia section, conviction of an oft'ense under a law 
or otdinance of another state which is equivalent to this section 
D1uat be considered a prior offense if such oftimae was committed 
within the time limitations specified in this subaection. 
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DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 
AND REHABILITATION 
3303 East Main, PO Box 1898 • Bismarck, ND 58502-1898 

(701) 328-6390 • FAX (701) 328-6651 • TDD 1-800-366-6888 

Supervision Fees Program Analysis 

There are presently 2684 offenders on probation status. During the past 
year there were 1645 releases from probation, or a 62% turnover rate of 
the population in one year. Based upon these numbers, approximately 
81 % of the probation population will turnover in 18 months. This means 
that based upon the above numbers, as of January 1, 2001 ( an 18 month 
delayed effective date for the $36 fee) only 19% or about 510 offenders 
would remain on probation under the $30 supervision fee; the remaining 
offenders would have been sentenced since July 1, 1999 and would come 
under the $36 fee. Also, the majority of those offenders sti II subject to the 
$30 fee would come off probation within six months. 

If the $36 supervision fee became effective July 1, 2000 (a one year 
delayed effective date) approximately 1039 offenders would still remain 
subject to the $30 supervision fee. 

The management of the supervision fee program would be so much less 
complicated if the majority of the offenders on probation were subject to 
paying the same supervision fee. As you know, many offenders do 
community service in lieu of paying the supervision fee. At the present 
supervision fee of $30, we deduct $5.00 for each hour of community 
service completed. We will deduct $6.00 for each community service 
hour completed under the $36 fee. It will be difficult to justify deducting 
different rates for community service completed, just because the 
supervision fee is different between two offenders: The most manageable 
delayed effective date for the supervision fee increase would be July 1, 
2001. However, if the date chosen by the legislature is earlier, a January 
1, 2001 date would certainly be more manageable than July 1, 2000 . 

Division of Juvenile Services - 701-328-6390 State Penitentiary - 701-328-6100 
Parole and Probation - 701-328-6190 North Dakota Youth Correctional Center - 701-667-1400 



• 

Apri I 7, 1 999 

SEPTEMBER 1998 
OCTOBER 1998 
NOVEMBER 1998 
DECEMBER 1998 
JANUARY 1999 
FEBRUARY 1999 
MARCH 1999 
APRIL 1999 

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 
AND REHABILITATION 
3303 East Main, PO Box 1898 • Bismarck, ND 58502-1898 

(701) 328-6390 • FAX (701) 328-6651 • TDD 1-800-366-6888 

Parole Board Action 

September 1 998 - Apri I 1999 

Cases Reviewed Paroled 

148 30 
156 46 
142 36 
89 31 

105 39 
110 37 
89 39 
75 27 

The parole board recently adopted a new policy that utilizes an inmate's risk score to 
determine when an inmate is eligible to first be reviewed by the parole board for 
release. This policy was first utilized for the September 1998 parole docket. Since a 
number of inmates in the population were eligible under the new policy to come 
before the board, the number of inmates seen by the parole board in the first few 
months of the new policy were increased from previous parole dockets. Gradually 
over the past few months all of the inmates eligible to see the board under the new 
policy have been seen and the number of inmates on the docket, and subsequently 
paroled has steadily decreased since September. Therefore, the data does not indicate 
that the number of paroles given in future months would support a downward trend in 
the inmate population for the next biennium. 

Division of Juvenile Services - 701-328-6390 State Penitentiary- 701-328-6100 
Parole and Probation - 701-328-6190 North Dakota Youth Correctional Center - 70 1-667-1400 
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Heidi Heitkamp 
ATTORNEY GENERAL 

CAPITOL rowea 
Stale Capitol 

Toi 

OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL 
STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA 

MEMORANDUM 

~arren Emmer, Director, DOCR Division of 
Field Services and Clerk, North Dakota 
Parole Board 

600 E. Boulevard Ave. From: Ken Sorenson, Assistant Attorney General 

August 14, 1998 

Blsmarck, ND 58505-0040 
701 -328-2210 
FAX 701-328-2226 Date 1 

consumer Protection 
and Antitrust Division 
701-328-3404 
800-472-2600 
Toll Free in North Dakota 
701-328-3409 (TDD) 
FAX 701-328-3535 

Gaming Division 
701-328-4848 
FAX 701 -328-3535 

Licensing Section 
701-328-2329 
FAX 701-328-3535 

State Office Building 
900 E. Boulevard Ave. 
Bismarck, ND 58505-0041 
FAX 701 -328-4300 

Clvll Litigation 
701-328-3640 

Natural Resources 
701·328-3640 

Racing Commission 
701-328-4290 

Bureau of Criminal 
Investigation 
P.O. Box 1054 
Bismarck, ND 58502-1054 
701 ·328-5500 
800-472-2185 
Toll Free in North Dakota 
FAX 701 -328-551D 

Fire Marshal 
P.O. Sox 1054 
Bismarck, ND 58502-1054 
701-328-5555 
FAX 701-328-5510 

Fargo Office 
P.O. Box 2665 
Fargo, ND 58108-2665 
701-239-7126 
AX 701-239-7129 

Subject: Parole Eligibility, Violations of 
N. D.C.C. chap . 19-03 . 1. 

The North Dakota parole statutes, found in N. D. C. C . 
chapter 12-59, do not create any statutory expectation 
of release or liberty interest in parole. Instead, 
parole is a matter of legislative grace. 

Wi th parole being a matter of legislative grace, the 
Legislative Assembly has specifically required that 
for a number of offenses, offenders must serve some 
minimum component of a sentence without benefit of, er 
eligibility for parole, see, e.g., N.D.C . C . §§ 12. 1 -
3 2 - o 2 . 1 , 12 . 1- 3 2 - o 9. 1, 3 9- o 8 - o 1 . 2, and 3 9 - 3 o - o 2 . 

Where the Legislative Assembly has not otherwise 
statutorily limited parole, it has delegated very 
broad discretion to the North Dakota Parole Board 
under N.D.C.C. chapter 12-59 to de:.ermine whether an 
inmate's term of imprisonment may be shortened through 
parole. 

The Legislaci ve Assembly has provided that for some 
offenses, such aR certain violatio:1s of the Uniform 
Controlled Substances .i\ct, N. D.C.C. chnpter 19-03.1, 
the courts must sentence an offender to a mandatory 
minimum term of imprisonment. In so doing, the 
Legislative Assembly did not statutorily preclude or 
restrict the Parole Board from considering such 
offenders for parole within the term of the mandatory 
minimum imprisonment 

The Parole Board's powers, authority, and discretion 
may be illustrated by way of the following example. If 
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an offender is guilty of a second non-narcotic 
Schedule I controlled substance offense under the 
Uniform Controlled Substances Act, the offender is 
subject to N.D.C.C. § 19-03.1-23 (1) (b). Under the 
provisions of N.D.C.C. § 19-03 . 1-23(1) (b) the district 
court must sentence the offender to a mandatory term 
of imprisonment for at least three years. Unless there 
are aggravating factors which would have made the 
offense a class A felony, the offender is guilty of a 
class B felony which carries a maximum term of 
imprisonment of up to ten years. If the district court 
sentenced the offender to the Departme~t of 
Corrections and Rehabilitation for ten years and 
suspended five years of the sentence, the of fender 
would initially serve five years, which is two years 
longer than the mandatory minimum sentence the 
district court is statutorily obligated to impose. 
The mandatory minimum imprisonment sentencing 
provisions of N.D.C.C. chapter 19-03.1 do not preclude 
the Parole Board from considering whether it may grant 
the offender parole anytime within that initial five
year period. However, in the exercise of its powers, 
authority, and discretion, the Parole Board may 
require the offender to serve all or part of the 
sentence imposed by the district court. This includes 
the power, authority, and discretion of the Parole 
Board to require the offender to serve the same 
minimum term of imprisonment the district courts are 
statutorily obligated to impose for a violation under 
the Uniform Controlled Substances Act. In the above 
example, the Parole Board would be acting well within 
its power, authority, and discretion by requiring the 
of fender to serve at least the first three years of 
the sentence before it considers whether or not it 
should parole the offender. 

Therefore, while the Parole Board may parole an 
offender before completion of a mandatory minimum 
sentence of imprisonment under the Uniform Controlled 
Substances Act, the Parole Board may also require the 
of fender to serve the same mandatory minimum periods 
of imprisonment the Legislative Assembly set forth in 
N.D.C.C. chapter 19-03.1 before making a determination 
whether or not to parole the offende~. 

cc: Elaine Little, DOCR 
D~n Wrolstad, NDSP 




